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CORPORATE CULTURE
XL

Corporate Culture Slogan
Diversified & New Culture

Corporate Culture Philosophy

Core Concepts

Core Values: Strict, Efficient, Upstraight, Harmonious
Corporate Spirit: A Never Ending Pursuit of Excellence
Vision: Home - Stage - Dream

Ethical Code: Integrity, Responsibility, Loyalty and Dedication

Strategic Thinking

Corporate Tenet: To Build A Green Home with Innovative Energy Science
and Technology

Strategic Objective: Becoming a dynamic and innovative clean energy
technology provider

Business Policy: Being Pragmatic and Innovative, Larger and Stronger
Being Strategic and Energetic, Innovative and Effective

Management Ideology

Human Capital: A magnet for industrial elites with a dream of green
future

Technology: An industrial leader of continuous innovation

Branding: Green technology for a better world

Code of Conduct

Employee Code of Conduct: Dedication, Professionalism, Teamwork
and Execution

Employee Workplace Etiquette: Equal & Respectful, Solidary &
Amicable, Gracious & Polite, Motivated & Confident

Management Code of Conduct: Accountability, Creativity, Motivation
and Self-discipline

Logo of Cultural Communication
Green technology for a better world
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AWARDS & PRIZES TO GUODIAN TECH

ERERATE T 2R &

National Class-Il Prize for Achievements in Science
and Technology Development
BRMBRIAGES —FK

2005

20054

Yantai Longyuan Electric Technology Co., Ltd.
EEREIRE W ERMRN AR AE

Plasma Ignition and Combustion Stabilization Technology
of Coal-Fired Boiler Furnace

B S 5 Bl T B N SR AR A S M

National Class-A Prize for the Progress of Science
and Technology granted by National Energy
Administration

BEREERANRES - SR

2010

20104

Yantai Longyuan Electric Technology Co., Ltd.
fEETERE W RMARDBR AT

Plasma Ignition and Combustion Stabilization Technology
ZRET R PUM B N R AR
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National Class-A Prize for the Progress of China’s
Electric Science and Technology
PEIEDNBRIES —F18R

2007

20074

Beijing Guodian ZhiShen Control Technology Co., Ltd.

I RBEES TN B R A

Research and Development of 600MW DCS Program and
lts Engineering and Application
B00MWiAE B B DCSHIFF 8 R A T2 fEF

2003

20034

Yantai Longyuan Electric Technology Co., Ltd.
EEERENBMAR AR

Plasma Technology for Ignition and Stabilized Combustion
of Coal-Fired Boiler Furnace

B 81 3 Bl T BR AR S AR A B

National Class-A Prize for the Science and
Technology of China’s Machinery Industry

H B T B B Rl — F 88

2009

20094

Beijing Guodian ZhiShen Control Technology Co., Ltd.

I RBRES TS KM B R AR

Research on the DCS program of 600MW Supercritical
Coal-fired Power Units with IPR-Ownership and Its
Engineering and Application
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. ZHU Yongpeng

Mr. YANG Guang

Mr. FENG Shuchen

Executive Directors
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Mr. LI Hongyuan

Ms. WANG Hongyan
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Authorized Representatives
Mr. YE Weifang
Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen

Compliance Advisor
China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong Securities Limited

Legal Address and Headquarters in the PRC
Suite 1101, 11/F, Building No.1

Block No.16 Xi Si Huan Zhong Road

Haidian District, Beijing, PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
Unit 4001, 40/F, Cosco Tower, 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong
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Mr. ZHAI Ligong

Ms. WANG Hong Yan
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CORPORATE PROFILE

NSIVANE

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (the
“Company”, “our Company” or “GUODIAN TECH”), formerly Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Limited Liability Company, was
converted into a joint stock limited liability company on May 16, 2011.
It was established as a result of consolidation of the hi-tech divisions
of China Guodian Corporation (the “Guodian Group”), its controlling
shareholder. The Company, together with its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group” or “our Group”), is the largest environmental protection
and energy saving solution supplier for coal-fired power plants, and
also a leading renewable energy solution supplier and equipment
manufacturer in China.

GUODIAN TECH keeps focus on technology innovation to secure an
advantageous position in future technical and industrial development.
The Company is actively promoting new applications of core
technologies such as desulphurization and denifrification solutions
for power plants, plasma ignition, energy management contract,
water treatment, automatic control of power station, air cooling
systems for power station, wind power equipment, solar power
plant construction, etc. With a strong competence in the fields of
research and development (“R&D”), manufacturing and engineering,
the Company is a technology-driven leader in China’s power sector
with a high profitability. GUODIAN TECH is playing an important role
in Guodian Group’s business transformation and making contribution
for an “Energy Saving and Environmental Friendly” society.

Focusing on technical innovation and industrialization, GUODIAN
TECH has achieved a large number of innovations based on original
ideas, resource consolidation and technology absorption and
adaptation. Among its leading technologies in the PRC or globally,
the Group’s plasma ignition technology is ranked top one place in the
world. In domestic market, the Company keeps a leading position
in many technical areas such as wet flue gas desulphurization,
seawater desulphurization, furnace combustion De-Nox and flue
gas denitrification. Longyuan Environmental, Longyuan Technology,
United Power, Longyuan Cooling, Guodian Zhishen and GD Solar
are famous with good reputation in China. As of December 2011,
GUODIAN TECH has been granted 323 patents, including 8
international patents and 66 patented inventions. The Company has
received more than 40 sci-tech awards at national or ministry level
and participated in 7 projects under the 863 Program. The Company
has 3 national laboratories, several R&D centers and 1 post-
doctoral research station. A corporate-wide innovation system and a
technology industrialization base are in place.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Guodian Group, the parent company of GUODIAN TECH, is listed
in Fortune Global 500 and one of the five largest power generation
conglomerates in China. The Group operates as a flagship for the
businesses of environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions and renewable energy equipment manufacturing and
services of the Guodian Group. During the Twelfth Five-Year Plan
for the National Economic and Social Development of the PRC
(“Twelfth Five-Year Plan”) Period, GUODIAN TECH plans to continue
to foster its leading edge in the areas of technology, business scale
and market position by focusing on technological innovation as well
as management innovation in line with China Guodian Corporation’s
strategy of “developing new energy and building an innovative
enterprise”. GUODIAN TECH strives to maintain the high-level and
fast-paced development of the renewable energy business and
become one of the leading environmental protection and energy
saving solution providers for coal-fired power plants world-wide, and
also a leading renewable energy solution supplier and equipment
manufacturer globally so as to make a greater contribution to the
global development of clean energy.

:IH;::;iﬂ

=

Jttuaaa,
Emiis

==

=i

HEMNBRNIRAFFEREEEARAZEKME
5008 AR RFBEAREARGZ— - AEER
BB EIRIR M EIRLAR T R R A BARERRE
IS RIRBSEENERE TS - FRBEREEMLE
FER+_ABRIME(+-RREDHME - BER
Rt EBHhEREEE K NERFNER - 2%
BRI | BRI - AR Al A& 32 Al 3
REL - BERFEARN - HE  mEEHEMN
BRED  BAKE SR REREER FERE

IRES - STEBR — RN ERCRIRETRERDRTT R

AR & BIR R ST Ay Al B A REIREDR T SR BRI I
REEER  RERBFRERERBMEERNE
J%ﬁ o]

-ﬂ‘«-“ﬁﬁﬂ w2
i TEER
tpunzsllan
faniEd il g w
L RLE-L . =i
Ffﬂ"'ig!gi:iﬂ]n'v

EEMRBEREEAROARLAA - —Z——FF®R 005



CORPORATE PROFILE
ATV

The following chart illustrates the Group’s business segments and [ &EFI|RANEB M EED I RED I
sub-segments:

Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited
ENERREERGERA A

Environmental Protection | Renewable Energy
and Energy Conservation | Equipment Manufacturing
Solutions and Services

RRREREHRT R A BERRRERERBRE

Protection Conservation Products Products
BRIR Solutions and Services and Services

HIRERR T R B EE R KRS AISREE R K R

‘ Environmental Energy Wind Power Solar Power
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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The industries in which the Group operates have positive market
outlooks. The demand for services and products of the Group
is significant. The Group’s environmental protection and energy
conservation solutions business serves the coal-fired power industry,
which is subject to the most stringent environmental protection
requirements in the power industry of the PRC and accounts for the
majority of aggregate installed power capacity in the PRC; and the
Group’s renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services
business serves the wind and solar power industries, which have
experienced significant growth. The Group believe that the industries
in which the Group operates present ample potential for further
development. For example, China is the world’s largest consumer of
fossil fuels and is also the largest producer of pollutants causing the
greenhouse effect and other environmental damage, including carbon
dioxide, sulfides and NOx. In recent years, the PRC Government
has focused on pollution reduction, energy efficiency and related
adjustments to energy structures, and has promulgated policies
to promote the environmental protection, energy conservation and
renewable energy industries.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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| 20.02%

| 51.72 %

China Guodian Corporation
HEEEREAD R

| 39.21%

l

GD Power Development Co., Ltd.

(“GD Power”)

HEENBRROARAF(EHEED])

| 39.19%

National Social Security Fund
Council of the PRC (“NSSF”)
PEARAMEZETE
REESEES((HREL )

l 1.58%

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited

ERNREREEROARLA

lW 00%

Beijing Guodian Longyuan
Environmental Engineering

0., Ltd.
)| FERE T RRRHL
BREEAR

l 23.25%

Yantai Longyuan Power
Technology Co., Ltd.

Co., Ltd. EEERE D EAMR G
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Environmental Energy Conservation
Protection BBE
RIR )
Environmental Protection
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o Co.,thd. & y Shenyang Longyuan Power
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TR EEAERAR Technology Co., Ltd.
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o, Jiangsu Deke Environment
 67.46% Equ%ment Co., Ltd. 519  Shanghai Yinguo Thermal
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Beijing Longyuan 100%  Technologies USA
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—— Co., Ltd. BIESE R ESE )
= = TN
I RREFRIR T2 AT
R
~ Zhoushan Longxi
71.43%  Environment Engineering
Co., Ltd.
ALEZRRIEER AR
60% Nanjing Longyuan
Environmental Co., Ltd.
FERERIRRER AR
l 40%
; Guodian Longyuan Nanjing
60%  Membrane Technology
Co., Ltd.
B E iR R R AR AR
70% Puyang Guodian Longyuan
— Water Treatment Co., Ltd
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Guodian United Power
Technology Co., Ltd.
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BHRAF

Wind Power Products
and Services
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Guodian Longyuan
Power Technology and
Engineering Co., Ltd.
EERSHHEMITE
BREELQH

Energy Conservation

B

Beijing Guodian Longyuan

100% 58.2% Hangguo Lankun Energy
POWEL Equipment Co., Ltd. Engineering Technology
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l 90%

Beijing Huadian Tianren
Power Controlling

—— Technology Co., Ltd.
TRESEXRCEDES
BER A A

Wind Power Products
and Services
VBB n KRS

Guan Huadian Tianren
100% Power Control
—— Equipment Co., Ltd.
& 23 TR 3R
BRAR]

l 100%

Beijing Lucency

1 51%

Guodian Longyuan

Environment and — Electrical Co., Ltd.
—— Technology Co., Ltd. EERRERERAT
bR AR R )
ARARE Wind Power
Products
Environmental and Services
Protection R & R AR
RIR
Baoding Longyuan
Taiyuan Lucency 100%  Electrical Device

— Co., Ltd.
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809 Sewage Treatment
— Co., Ltd.
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Taizhou Lucency
70% Environment and
——> Technology Co., Ltd
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Shanxi Xinyuan
Environment Protection
51%  Recource Development
Co., Ltd.
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Shanxi Tianrun Water

Supply Co., Ltd.
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519, Dalian Delang Water
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A5 BT IRR B
BRAF]

Dalian Lucency
Environmental

100%
—— Engineering Co., Ltd.
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Guodian Solar
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.
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L5 Co., Ltd.
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Guodian Technology &
Environment Group
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.
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Solar Power
Products
and Services
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

M REHE

2008 2009 2010 2011
20084 20094F 20104 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT ARETRE AR®ETR
Revenue WA 3,966,148 5,349,651 10,998,908 18,706,980
Profit before taxation RIS 244,272 247,792 680,465 1,271,574
Income tax Fri5 7t (41,123) (53,337) (118,639) (107,161)
Profit for the year AREFE 200,149 194,455 561,826 1,164,413
Attributable to: BN
Equity owners/shareholders of RRrEFTBAN
the Company %R 90,854 95,545 350,359 840,681
Non-controlling interests Elniiyr ey 109,295 98,910 211,467 323,732
Profit for the year ANEFE 200,149 194,455 561,826 1,164,413
Basic and diluted earnings FRERREERF
per share (RMB) (AR®TT) 0.02 0.02 0.07 0.17
Total non-current assets BB B EARRE 1,847,198 6,272,829 13,371,840 14,730,958
Total current assets MENE EBEE 5,620,230 9,632,862 19,096,520 27,324,740
Total assets BEmEE 7,467,428 15,905,691 32,468,360 42,055,698
Total current liabilities mENE B (4,769,651) (11,411,443) (21,219,909) (29,118,663)
Total non-current liabilities EmEBERRE (424,792)  (1,414,323)  (3,148,420)  (1,940,956)
Net assets BEFEE 2,272,985 3,079,925 8,100,031 10,996,079
Total equity attributable to equity — #EzRA25E R BN
owners/shareholders of the NARIERFTAEN
Company A% 1,715,595 2,332,040 6,157,176 8,771,546
Non-controlling interests IEEAR = 557,390 747,885 1,942,855 2,224,533
Total equity W25 4A%EE 2,272,985 3,079,925 8,100,031 10,996,079
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
FREME
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESREE

Dear Shareholders:

Energy is the material basis for the progress and development of
human society. In today’s world, energy shortage and environmental
pollution issues are of increasing concern due to their adverse
impacts on sustainable human development. The trend towards a
green, intelligent and sustainable approach to energy development,
as represented by the emergence of new energy, is inevitable.
Technological advancement and innovation are the decisive factors in
redefining the energy development model. The electric power industry
will keep pace with the rapid growth of China in the forefront of the
efforts for carrying out the scientific concept of development, building
a harmonious society and developing an eco-friendly civilization.

ZHU Yongpeng
KRR

Chairman
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Over the years, GUODIAN TECH has been committed to developing
and promoting environmental protection and energy-saving solutions
and new energy technologies while focusing on core R&D efforts and
supporting strategic clusters of emerging industries with comparative
advantages. Leveraging the enhanced corporate social responsibility
(CSR) capability and adhering to the high standard of clean electricity
production, we are now a leading force in the environmental
protection and energy conservation sectors in the power industry
and renewable energy industry in China. Our successful listing in
Hong Kong made us a spearhead into the international capital
market among our Chinese peers dedicated to environmental
protection technologies in the electric power industry. Not just an
international presence did it mean to GUODIAN TECH and even
China’s enterprises in the field of environmental protection and energy
conservation, more a showcasing to the whole world of China’s
achievements made in energy conservation and environmental
protection and renewable energy development as well.

016

ZER - EERRBINIRRET SR ] BARERE
T PR B AN HERR - AR TR A —HERE B AZ OBl
R T BB REBENER T EERER - 85
TRACREEEENRIMENTENBREE
IKF - AP BIE N IRRETREN A B A AL IR BN
SR o IWRREBKIN LT - EEERERKR
BEREEBEREARTSNTEEDRERREE -
ENMERT T EEMREPERREAESENER
FEN WA RER T hEESEERER N B
IRHYBERAHL ©

GUODIAN TECHNOLOGY & ENVIRONMENT GROUP CORPORATION LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2011



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESREE

Looking forward, by adhering to the strategic deployment of
“developing new energy and building an innovative enterprise”
launched by China Guodian Corporation, we are readily poised
to continue our efforts in technological innovation, and promoting
new applications in China of environmental protection and energy
conservation technologies and renewable energies in order to
ensure the innovation-driven economic growth oriented to energy
conservation, environmental protection and optimization of energy
structure. We will pool all our efforts and endeavors as ever before
to develop us into a globally admired provider in the field of thermal-
power environmental protection and energy conservation, as well
as a worldwide leading service provider and manufactures for
renewable energy system and facilities, contributing more to creating
a clean world where we live, and maximizing returns to the investors,
employees and the society.

i

ZHU Yongpeng
Chairman
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PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
48 4K T8 Y

Li Hong Yuan
BRIR
President

Dear Shareholders: BEHAARER ¢

Since its start, GUODIAN TECH has developed strong technological ~ BIERHE BRI LAK « EHE EETREREEALS 2R
R&D and engineering capabilities, and launched many proprietary Stz 0 EAMTRIFIEE TR T E » 2K T 58 A RIAfT 3
products and applications in the core technology areas for energy ~ FITH2EH @ B T A2 B T AIFETEIZ O BT FIE
conservation, emissions reduction and clean energy with an 5 Z4&EBMEAIN ©

increasingly prominent business presence at home and abroad.
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PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
FCECEER g i

As a main force driving China Guodian Corporation’s technological
innovation and business transformation, GUODIAN TECH’s growth
is rooted in self-reliance and innovation. Leveraging its innovative
mechanisms and human assets and maintaining superiority in human
resources, technology and marketing, we are devoted to “Creating
a Green Land with Energy Technology” by introducing a number of
national-level research platforms and developing a series of green
electricity solutions. GUODIAN TECH is playing an important role in
achieving the “Eleventh Five-Year Plan” emission control goal for the
power industry and the PRC’s goal of building a “Resource-saving
and Environment-friendly Society”.

In 2011, we unify to strive for a new summit. In this year, we ringed
all the staff together, work conscientiously, we realize the business
income RMB18.71 billion, profit for the year RMB1.16 billion, seeing
a strong but steady growth in our performance! In this year, we
successfully listed our shares in Hong Kong, showing the world
China’s energy conservation and environmental protection and the
development of renewable energy achievements, also exhibiting
investors the advanced development concept, strong technical
strength and significant business performance of Guodian Group and
GUODIAN TECH, as well as a beautiful future vision to all employees
of GUODIAN TECH.

When there is a will, there is a way. With a vision of
“Home-Stage-Dream”, GUODIAN TECH will adhere to the
development concept of “Aiming to Become A Great Enterprise
and Group with A Wide Development Sphere and Market”, and the
development criterion of “Being Strategic and Energetic, Innovative
and Effective” in working out innovation technologies for green
energy. We will give an emphasis to strategic new industries such as
renewable energy while maintaining the competitive edge in the area
of energy conservation and environmental protection. It’s our goal to
become a dynamic and innovative clean energy technology provider
and make a greater contribution to the development of clean energy.

Z

(u_/

LI Hong Yuan
President
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR E

2011 INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Key Industry Developments

In 2011, the regulatory landscape in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC” and, for the purpose of this definition only, excluding
Taiwan, the Macau Special Administration Region of the PRC and
the Hong Kong Special Administration Region of the PRC) continued
to undergo significant changes, with the PRC government (the “PRC
Government”) introducing new regulatory initiatives and significant
revisions to rules and regulations applicable to the PRC power and
power-related industries. These initiatives and revisions are intended
to address certain key strategic areas relating to energy supply
and environmental concerns, in particular, the diversification of the
PRC energy supply structure to reduce reliance on coal-fired power
generation and to encourage development of the renewable energy
sector. However, given the relatively low generation cost of coal-fired
power and the continued increases in demand for electricity across
the PRC, coal-fired power generation is expected to continue to play
a key role in the PRC power mix, with cumulative installed capacity
of coal-fired power plants increasing from approximately 660.8GW
in 2010 to 706.7GW in 2011, representing year-on-year growth
of approximately 6.9% (Source: China Electricity Council). In line
with the continued growth of the coal-fired power generation in the
foreseeable future, it is expected that the environmental protection
and energy conservation service sectors related to coal-fired power
will continue to grow.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR E

The followings are the key regulations issued by the PRC Government
and regulatory authorities which are expected to have a material
effect on the Group’s business, operations and financial condition:

Environmental Protection and Energy Conservation Solutions

e 12th Five-Year Plan for Development of Environmental Protection
Technology ((EIZx =% (R#E 1+ — 7 | B &R Z])) and the
Comprehensive Working Program for Energy Conservation and
Emissions Reduction during the “12th Five-Year Plan” Period
(1= FEPBER A A 17 %) (the “12th Five-Year Plan and
Comprehensive Working Program”). In July 2011, the PRC
Government issued the 12th Five-Year Plan and Comprehensive
Working Program, which aim to reduce national SOz and
NOx emissions by 8.0% and 10% between 2010 and 2015,
respectively. Specific performance targets are set for each of the
PRC provinces in connection with the proposed reductions.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR E

Emissions Standards of Air Pollutants for Thermal Power
Plants ({A AR Z2HEHIZZE) ) (the “Revised Emission
Standards”). The Revised Emission Standards were issued on
July 29, 2011 by the Ministry of Environmental Protection (/%
#B) and General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection
and Quarantine (HIxXE EEEmERZ#EE), and became
effective on January 1, 2012 for new constructed power plants
whose environmental impact assessment dossier obtained
approval on or after January 1, 2012, with a later effective date
on July 1, 2014 for existing power plants. The Revised Emissions
Standards reduced allowable amounts of SO2 and NOx emissions
for (among others) coal-fired power plants from the existing limits:
for NOx emissions, to 100 mg/m3, and for SO2 emissions, to
100 mg/m? (for new power plants) and 200 mg/m? (for existing
power plants), respectively. The revised SO2 emission thresholds
are not applicable to power plants situated in Guangxi, Sichuan,
Chongging and Guizhou, for which the applicable SO2 emission
standards have been set at 200 mg/m? (for new power plants)
and 400 mg/mé? (for existing power plants), respectively. In
addition, fly ash emissions have been restricted to 30 mg/mg.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR E

024

Notice Relating to Increase of On-grid Tariffs (the “Tariff Notice”).
In November 2011, the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC (FZE AR EABEIBERER N ELZ ES)
(“NDRC”) issued the Tariff Notice, pursuant to which the average
on-grid tariff payable to coal-fired power plants was increased
by RMB0.026/kWh effective from December 1, 2011. The Tariff
Notice also stipulated a new subsidy of RMB0.008/kWh for
coal-fired power plants with installed denitrification equipment,
in addition to on-grid tariffs, for 14 provinces or cities in the
PRC, namely, Guangdong, Hainan, Sichuan, Gansu, Ningxia,
Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shanxi, Shandong, Shanghai, Jiangsu,
Zhejiang and Fuijian, in order to subsidize costs incurred by power
producers to comply with NOx emissions requirements. The Tariff
Notice also contemplated an increase in the surcharge on power
sales to RMB0.008/kWh from RMBO0.004/kWh.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR E

Renewable Energy Equipment Manufacturing and Services

] B 2 BEIR R 1 RUE IR T
s AR ZTEXGEENANKRELATE BRI BH)

e Notice Regarding Improvement to the Feed-in Tariff Policy for On-

grid Solar Power Generation ((BIR T ZEXGEENH AT FAEE
A ) (the “Solar Tariff Notice”). In July 2011, the NDRC issued
the Solar Tariff Notice with immediate effect, which introduced
a common tariff to be applied to on-grid solar power generation
on a national basis. Under the Solar Tariff Notice, solar projects
which were approved prior to July 1, 2011 and commenced
operations prior to December 31, 2011 would be eligible for a
tariff of RMB1.15/kWh. Solar projects which were approved prior
to July 1, 2011 but commenced operations after December 31,
2011 would be eligible for a lower tariff of RMB1.0/kWh, except
for solar projects located in Tibet, which would be eligible for the
higher rate. The NDRC indicated that it may adjust these tariff
rates based on factors such as changes in investment costs and
technological progresses.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE uﬁnfﬁﬂ& Tﬁ

The following are key industry trends relevant to the Group’s
operations in the PRC power and power-related sectors during 2011.

Environmental protection and energy conservation solutions.
In the environmental protection sector, environmental pollution
continues to be an area of key concern to the PRC Government, with
the reduction of SO2 and NOx emissions being primary areas on which
the PRC Government has focused. Since 2007, the PRC Government
has issued several regulations encouraging the growth of both the
desulfurization and denitrification services industries in the PRC by,
among other things, establishing detailed compliance standards
and emission limits for power producers, and for the payment of a
special on-grid tariff subsidy of RMB0.015/kWh with respect to coal-
fired power plant with installed desulfurization equipment. The on-
grid tariff subsidy relating to desulfurization services and the pilot
plan introduced in 2008 by the PRC Government (under which
desulfurization services could be provided on a concession basis by
service providers) resulted in rapid growth in desulfurization market, as
compared to the denitrification market, which developed at a relatively
slower rate as compared to the desulfurization market. In November
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR E

2011, however, the NDRC issued the Tariff Notice, which announced
that coal-fired power plants with installed denitrification equipment
located in 14 specified PRC provinces and cities would be eligible
for an additional subsidy of RMB0.008/kWh, effective from January
1, 2012. The introduction of this tariff subsidy is expected to have a
significant impact on the growth of the denitrification services sector.

Compliance by PRC power producers with the 12th Five-Year Plan
and Comprehensive Program, as well as the Revised Emissions
Standards, both issued in 2011, is expected to result in a significant
increase in demand in the environmental protection and energy
conservation services and solutions sectors and to stimulate
further growth in these markets. The Group expects that it is well-
positioned to capture these growth opportunities, with the objective
of maximizing shareholders’ return.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR E

The PRC Government has also encouraged the development of
the energy conservation industry and the advancement of related
technologies as part of its measures to reduce pollution and
emission in the PRC power industry. These technologies reduce
the amount of energy required in the power generation process,
which in turn reduces consumption of fuel and coal resources, thus
generating potentially significant cost savings for power producers
and reducing their reliance on such supplies and capital expenditure
requirements for the construction of storage facilities for such
materials. Policy support from the PRC Government for the adoption
of energy conservation solutions such as plasma ignition combustion
stabilization (“PICS”) and waste heat recovery services is expected to
result in growth potential for the energy conservation sector.

Renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services.
In 2011, the renewable energy industry in China continued to grow
rapidly, increasing the proportion of power generation capacity
from renewable energy resources to China’s total power structure.
According to estimates published by the China Electricity Council,
the aggregate installed capacity attributable to wind power increased
from 31,070 MW in 2010 to 45,051 MW in 2011, accounting for
4.3% of aggregate installed power generation capacity in the PRC as
compared to 3.2% in 2010.

The wind power equipment manufacturing and services sector
continued to experience intense competition, with prices for wind
turbine generators decreasing in 2011 as compared to 2010, in part
due to decreases in prices for raw materials used in the manufacture
of the wind turbine generators (“WTGs”). The maturing of the wind
power industry has resulted in a shift in focus from large scale, rapid
roll-out of wind power installations, to greater emphasis on innovation
and research and development on wind power related technologies.
While price sensitivity continues to be a key driver for wind power
operators in selecting manufacturers of WTGs for their wind power
installations, there is a growing shift towards emphasis on quality,
efficiency, reliability and after-sales service during the selection
process. PRC Government initiatives have also shifted to encourage
the development of China’s wind power equipment manufacturing
industry into a dynamic, technology-driven and innovation-focused
industry, rather than a traditional manufacturing industry dependent
on external technological advancements. Demand trends have
also shifted, with an increasing demand for larger capacity and low
wind-speed WTG units, as the majority of China’s onshore wind
resources are categorized as Class Il sites under the International
Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) standards based on wind
speeds. Customer retention and market share growth in the WTG
manufacturing industry in the PRC are therefore increasingly
dependent on reliability and quality considerations, as well as
technological innovation.

In addition, the Solar Tariff Notice issued in August 2011 resulted
in major shifts in the PRC solar power and solar power equipment
manufacturing sectors, with solar power operators requesting that
their projects be completed and commissioned before December
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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31, 2011 in order to benefit from the higher tariff rate. According
to estimates published by the China Electricity Council, aggregate
installed capacity for solar installations in the PRC increased by
275.5% from 450 MW in 2010 to 1,690 MW in 2011. As project
operators and manufacturers intensified their efforts to meet the
December 31, 2011 deadline, there was an unprecedented upsurge
in installation activities in the fourth quarter of 2011.

Key Business Developments

Completion of the initial public offering and listing of the
Company. In May 2011, the Company was converted into a joint
stock company with limited liability under the laws of the PRC, in
connection with the contemplated initial public offering of its equity
securities. Upon conversion, the Company’s total equity comprised
4,850,000,000 ordinary shares, which were issued to its then existing
shareholders at no additional consideration.

In December 2011, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “HKSE”)
granted an approval for the listing of the Company’s shares.
The aggregate net proceeds received by the Company from its
initial public offering, after deduction of all trading, brokerage and
underwriting commissions and offering expenses, amounted to
approximately RMB1,769.4 million.

Pre-initial public offering corporate restructuring and
reorganization. In connection with its initial public offering, the
Company undertook a group restructuring and reorganization, under
which interests in certain subsidiaries and associated companies
were transferred to companies controlled by the Company’s
controlling shareholder, the Guodian Group, or independent third
parties. The interests held by the Group in these subsidiaries and
associated companies were transferred based on strategic reasons,
in particular, that the business activities of such companies were
not directly related to the businesses of the Group, and were not in
line with the Group’s long-term business strategy. See “Analysis of
consolidated results of operations — other net income/(losses)” for
more information.

Effective capturing of growth opportunities arising from
regulatory changes affecting the coal-fired power industry.
The issuance of various regulations by the PRC Government and
regulatory authorities as described in the section headed “Key
Industry Developments” above had a significant impact on the
business operations of the Group and demand for its environmental
protection and energy conservation solutions. Revenues generated
from this business segment increased by approximately 32.5%
in 2011 as compared to 2010, primarily attributable to growth in
revenues from the Group’s environmental protection business due to
increased demand by power producers required to comply with the
Revised Emissions Standards and from power producers seeking
eligibility for the new PRC Government subsidy for denitrification
equipment installations introduced by the Tariff Notice. These new
policies were particularly favorable to service providers with the
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A2 20105 A450JK FL1E iN275.5% %2 2011 F H)
1,690JKFL - AR IEE & ER REERMANER
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technological knowhow and expertise to provide integrated systems
for the reduction of NOx emissions through combining denitrification
and energy conservation technologies. For example, the Group
offers an integrated denitrification solution which combines low-NOx
combustion and selective catalytic reduction (“SCR”) or selective non-
catalytic reduction (“SNCR”) technologies, which are able to efficiently
reduce NOx emissions. Revenues from the Group’s denitrification
business grew by approximately 146.9%, from approximately
RMB538.3 million in 2010 to RMB1,329.2 million in 2011. The Group
also expanded its desulfurization concession operations business,
with increases in capacity allowing it to provide desulfurization
services for aggregate installed power generation capacity of
25,930 MW as at December 31, 2011, an increase of approximately
227.8% from 7,910 MW as at December 31, 2010. For the year
ended December 31, 2011, the Group’s engineering, procurement
and construction (“EPC”) business undertook desulfurization and
SCR denitrification installations for power plants with newly installed
capacity of 3,740 MW and 8,665 MW, respectively.

Effective capturing of growth opportunities arising from
regulatory changes affecting the renewable energy industry.
Increased market concentration in the wind power manufacturing
industry and intensified price competition, as well as decreases
in prices of key raw materials and components in the WTG
manufacturing industry in the PRC, resulted in decrease of the
average selling price of WTG units sold by PRC manufacturers. In
2011, the Group released a new product of 3.0 MW WTGs. The
Group’s annual WTG sales volume increased from 867 WTG units
in 2010 to 1,611 WTG units in 2011, although growth in WTG sales
volume was partially offset by the declines in average selling prices
experienced across the industry. In 2011, the Group also exported
six 1.5 MW WTG units to the United States and contracted to export
107 MW WTG units to Argentina. The following table sets forth the
sales volumes for the Group’s WTG products for 2010 and 2011, as
well as information on its order book based on confirmed orders and
successful tenders:

#49146.9%E2011F M AR KA ,320.2H BT - ANE
EMET AR SR ER - RS NEEREH
hﬁi\ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁin& MR2011F12 A31 H AR I FE

82/525,930)KF © BE =2010912 A31 HAY7,910
%Ei‘ﬁuiﬁzw 8% ° B E2011F12 A31 H I F
B REBSNBMALE RSCREE TR « S RE
E([EPC) ¥ HFMIEE M A S 5 R A3,740KE
58,665JK L, °

B E T B RIT RN EER B A
R#EE - RERETEMSE NERFEEFF N
Bl ARFPAERER NBEEHATENETZRM
R REMHEER TR B EEERHENE
NEBHREFHEBEH TR - 20114 » X&EE
?’Eﬂj%ﬁéuus OJKELR e EMAR - AL E R S5
EHAFHEN2010FER867ER N THEE S
2011 EM1,611ER NEEEHAE - BRE HEBEFHAE
HERRIOWITEFEERE TIEMES -
R20114E - AREE TR O/NE1.5K LR 3 Bk
HEER  DEYEOEMBERNETE107IKEE
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Actual Completed Sales Order Book
(units) (units)
ERTHHEE R E T8
() ()
2011 2010  As at December 31, 2011
20114 20104 M2011512A31H

Confirmed  Successful
orders tenders
O ERRTE BRI FRAE
1.5 MW 1.55KF 1,596 867 2,637 881
2.0 MW 2.0KF - - 24 98
3.0 MW 3.0KF 15 - 17 216
Total units wmEg 1,611 867 2,678 1,195
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In the solar power industry, the issuance of the Solar Tariff Notice
in August 2011 resulted in unprecedented demand for the Group’s
EPC services in the fourth quarter of 2012 on an industry-wide basis,
with operators of approved solar projects pressing for completion
by the December 31, 2011 deadline in order to qualify for the higher
tariff rate. As a result, the revenues of the Group attributable to
its solar power products and services business grew by 242.7%
in 2011 as compared to 2010, with growth in revenues from the
solar EPC business increasing by approximately 5,700.0% from
2011 as compared to 2010, and becoming a key driver of revenues
attributable to the Group’s solar power products and services
business.

Maintaining and strengthening market leader positioning
across business lines and segments. In 2011, the Group
maintained all its market leading positions in the PRC in its various
business operations. According to information published by the
China Electricity Council, in the desulfurization services sector,
the Group was the largest EPC service provider (based on factors
such as newly installed and contracted capacity for the year ended
December 31, 2011 and cumulative installed and contracted
capacity as of December 31, 2011) and the largest desulfurization
concession operator (based on cumulative capacity as of December
31, 2011). In the denitrification services sector, the Group was the
largest EPC provider (based on newly installed capacity for the year
ended December 31, 2011 and cumulatively installed capacity as of
December 31, 2011) and the third largest EPC provider (based on
newly contracted capacity for the year ended December 31, 2011).

The Group also improved its market share and ranking with respect
to its WTG manufacturing business. According to the China Wind
Power Association and based on newly installed capacity of wind
project in 2011, the Group was the third largest WTG manufacturer
in the PRC in 2011, as compared to 2010 when it was ranked as
the fourth largest WTG manufacturer. The Group also maintained its
market leading position with respect to its solar power station EPC
business in the PRC based on aggregate installed capacity of solar
projects completed for 2011 of 195 MW, having captured the market
opportunity presented by the issuance of the Solar Tariff Notice in
August 2011.

Developments in WTG technology and product lines. \With its
continued focus on innovations in WTG and WTG related technologies
through research and development, the Group diversified its WTG
product portfolio to include 2.0 MW, 3.0 MW and 6.0 MW WTG units
in 2011. The first installation of the Group’s 3.0 MW WTG unit was
completed successfully and connected on-grid during the year, and
the first 6.0MW WTG unit was successfully manufactured. The Group
was also one of the first WTG manufacturers in the PRC to produce
WTGs with a 42-meter blade, suitable for low wind speed wind
farms. In order to further enhance the attractiveness of the Group’s
WTG product offering, the Group established a specialized WTG
maintenance and operations center during the year, and expects to
further develop this supporting business line going forward.
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Addition of newly constructed wind power product production
facilities. In 2011, the Group commenced operations at new
production bases for gearboxes and generators for WTGs, located in
Baotou and Yixing, respectively. It also commenced construction of a
new production base located in Changchun during this period. As of
the end of 2011, the Group’s annual WTG production capacity was
2,500 units.

Addition of new solar module production line facilities. In 2011,
a new 200 MW solar module production line became operational at
the Group’s solar cell and module production base located in Yixing,
Jiangsu province. The Group expects to add additional production
lines which are expected to become operational over the course of
2012 for the production of high efficiency solar cells, thin-film solar
cells and concentrated photovoltaic (“CPV”) cells.

Awards and other accolades granted to the Group. Advanced
technologies and strong research and development capabilities of the
Group are key to its leading market position in the PRC. The Group
received a spectrum of industrial recognitions and awards in 2011.

Under the environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions segment:

e The Group was granted the 2010 Environmental Protection
Enterprises Competitiveness Award (2010388 (b %55 5 h A £5)
by China Environment Investment Website (R B 3B3E1% & 49),
Alliance of China Environmental Investment (7 Bl 3B 3215 & B4 B5)
and Committee for China Environmental Investment Summit (#f
RIFIREARNEGHZEE) in March 2011;

e The Plasma Oil-free Power Station Systems Technology was
awarded the 2010 China Power Science and Technology First
Prize (20104F /€ B & I BHEH T 82— 48) in March 2011;

e The Group was named in the list of Energy Conservation
Contribution China Top Ten (20114 &figg 7 B+ A Z B ELL) in
May 2011;

e Research and Application of Plasma Qil-free Coal-fired Power
Plant Systems (& IR & 1 i 17 5 R 60 A = F 1T A 70 B i )
project of the Group was awarded the National Science and
Technology Advance Second Prize in September 2011;

e The Plasma-assisted Pulverized Coal Combustion Technology

Laboratory of the Group was granted the PRC National Key
Laboratory status.
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Under the renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services
segment:

e The Group undertook the construction of Key Laboratory of
Jiangsu Province on Wind Power Generation Technology (T #x&
RENEERMERERE),

e UP1500-77 WTG of the Group was awarded the A-level design
certificate issued by Germanischer Lloyd and passed the
low-voltage ride through test conducted by National Energy
Large-Scale Wind Power Grid Connection Systems Research
Experiment) Centre (BIZ 48R A AL @ E HH48 RS 2% (BB F.0);

e The double-fed 3.0 MW offshore WTG of the Group was
evaluated by the National Energy Administration of China and
granted Certificate of National Energy Science and Technology
Result;

e Guodian United Power Technology Co., Ltd. (B E 54 &) = iT
BIEAT]) (“United Power”), a subsidiary of the Group which is
the primary platform for wind power business in the Group, was
ranked second among 2011 China Cleantech Top 20 (2011 &
BRFiT2058HB).

ANALYSIS OF 2011 FINANCIAL RESULTS

Please read this section in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial results of the Company as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Analysis of Consolidated Results
Revenue

Revenues of the Group in 2011 amounted to approximately
RMB18,707.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
70.1% from RMB10,998.9 million in 2010. The Group had significant
increases on a year-on-year basis in its revenues as compared
to 2010 for the environmental protection, wind power products
and services and solar power products and services businesses
of approximately RMB1,169.0 million, RMB3,402.3 million and
RMB3,041.9 million, which represent percentage increases of
approximately 37.8%, 58.6% and 242.7%, respectively, in these
businesses. The increases in revenues from the environmental
protection and solar power products and services businesses were
primarily attributable to regulatory changes in the PRC which, among
other things, revised existing emission compliance requirements
and introduced new subsidies and revised tariffs, thereby increasing
demand for services provided by certain business lines in these
businesses. The increases in revenues from the wind power products
and service business and in other business lines such as waste heat
recovery were primarily attributable to the Group’s development and
expansion efforts in those businesses.

A BARRRBEENRE DB E - AKHE :

o ARNIHAERANBRERMEHEREAR ;

o UP1500-77/E 3 B ABES REE S KM R
HBBENARRTRERZE W BAHBEKRER
AEREHE R G (ER) P LETHIES
EEZERRIE

* BOXRERE RN ETHEBBERER
BRPR LS ERRERE B RETE E

=

=

s REAEXBKNIETEMBAREERS
HBEMBRAB([BAEE ) EFI20115
BREAM20EEE A -

2011 EBI IR E DT

BB A EihF 8 — 1 FBER 220114 12531 H1FF
JEAR N AJREBEZ A R TEHAE -

BOEED T
KA

AEB2011FHUWAL A ARKE18,707.08 &
JC » E2010F AR¥10,998. 9B B AL ER T
#970.1% ° AEL20106F » REBE KRB RERR © A
BEMMRE - AR KIGEEE @ MRS ES AU A
RILLEEEIEN DRI AARE11690.088 T
AREES402.3BE TR ARKE3,041.98 8T @ &
IMB DL D BIZI37.8% + 58.6% K242.7% ° IR
MARPZREE MM RIEEBWAEREEESAHRER
WECREE) - (AP EREMEHR T RITHERES
ko BETHAEBETSITNER  MERYZFE
BETERGEREMNRBSAOFIEN - MEAEER
MARTE TG R B ZEFEAR - GNEREAEI UK SE S I I8
ENEE2HRAEERNER MIBRELEBKM
g( o

EEMRBEREEARNARLAA - —Z——FF®R 033



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SRR E S

The following table sets out the Group’s revenue by segment and X5 BIE 5 E E20114F % 20105F12 H31 B |46

as a percentage of total revenues of the Group for the years ended  EiZ D H

PEID AR B AR EEARERKRAD

December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively: Bt
2010
2010F
(RMB millions) % (RMB millions) %
(NREBET) (AR¥EET)

Environmental protection and energy  BB{R R EfaEfRRH 5

conservation solutions:

Environmental protection RR 3,093.6 28.1 4,262.6 22.8

Energy conservation solutions DS 720.1 6.6 788.7 4.2

Total &t 3,813.7 34.7 5,051.3 27.0
Renewable energy equipment A4 R R R RE R R

manufacturing and services:

Wind power products and services BB 5 & RIS 5,807.6 52.8 9,209.9 49.2

Solar power products and services A5 a4 @ R ARTE 1,253.1 11.4 4,295.0 23.0

Total &t 7,060.7 64.2 13,504.9 72.2
All otherst PR E A 124.5 1.1 150.8 0.8
Total &t 10,998.9 100.0 18,707.0 100.0
Revenue
KA

0.8% 1.1%

22.8%

4.2%

49.2%

Note:

Bt -

(1) Revenues included under this category are mainly from the wind power (1
generation by wind farms, biomass power generation, other power related

products and rental of properties.

[l Environmental protection
RR

B Energy conservation solutions
BRRERRIR T =

[ Wind power products and services
R e AR

Solar power products and services
A5 aeE G KR AR TS

All others
FiE EAth

BWHEBETHORAZTZRERDEESHHE D E
B AMELRE  HMENREERKYFEAES
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Cost of sales HERLK

Cost of sales for the Group increased by approximately RMB6,784.2  ANEER)IHEK ANH2010F M A R 14015 E
million, or 74.2%, from RMB9,140.1 million in 2010 to RMB15,924.3 T i) A R#6,784.2 8 &8 T34 74.2% 22011 5
million in 2011. This was primarily attributable to corresponding &I AR¥15,924.3B & T o &K FE 2 HA R H
increases in sales volume across all business segments, consistent W AIE KRR — A FTE EE D SPiH S HMEIERAT
with revenue growth for the same period. By oo

The following table sets out the Group’s cost of sales by segment  T~X 5 BIE 5 #E, E20114 2010512 A31 B |4
and as a percentage of total cost of sales of the Group for the years  Eiz D #2ID A AREEHERK AA R E(EAEH A

ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively: HEKRAHNA DL ¢
2010 2011
20104 20114
(RMB millions) % (RMB millions) %
(NR¥EBET) (AR¥EETT)

Environmental protection and energy  BB{R R EfAEFRR A T
conservation solutions:

Environmental protection IRIR 2,642.8 28.9 3,639.0 22.9
Energy conservation solutions i S 488.5 5.4 511.9 3.2
Total &5t 3,131.3 34.3 4,150.9 26.1
Renewable energy equipment B4R R RE R R -
manufacturing and services:
Wind power products and services  [EE & MIRTS 4,779.1 52.3 7,687.9 48.3
Solar power products and services A aEE B R IR 1,128.8 12.3 3,986.8 25.0
Total &t 5,907.9 64.6 11,674.7 73.3
All others FrAEEM 100.9 1.1 98.7 0.6
Total &t 9,140.1 100.0 15,924.3 100.0
Cost of sales
HERHA
0.6% 1.1%
[l Environmental protection
22.9% RIR
B Energy conservation solutions
BREERRIRTT &
3.2% [ Wind power products and services
JB\E E fb K AR
Solar power products and services
A58 EE b & R %
All others
48.3% FfE EAth
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the foregoing reasons, the gross profit of the Group increased
by approximately RMB923.9 million, or 49.7%, from approximately
RMB1,858.8 million in 2010 to approximately RMB2,782.7 million
in 2011. The average gross profit margin across all segments of
the Group decreased from 16.9% in 2010 to 14.9% in 2011. This
decrease was primarily attributable to decreases in gross profit
margins in the wind power products and services and solar power
products and services businesses, partially offset by an increase in
gross profit margin in the energy conservation solutions business.
The decrease in the average gross profit margin in the wind power
products and services business was primarily due to declines in the
average selling prices for WTG units on an industry-wide basis due
to the maturing process of the industry and intense competition,
although such declines were partially offset by decreases in the
prices of raw materials and components used in WTG manufacturing
process over the period. The decrease in the average gross profit
margin in the solar power products and services business was
attributable to intense price competition in the solar power sector,
particularly in the solar products manufacturing business, in line
with the general market conditions. The increase in the average
gross profit margin in the energy conservation solutions business
was primarily attributable to the plasma-assisted coal ignition and
combustion stabilization business due to cost savings attributable
to the maturing of the Group’s plasma-assisted coal ignition and
combustion stabilization technology.
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The following table sets out the Group’s gross profit and gross profit &5 BlIE 5 #E, 220114 2010512 A31 B |E 46
margins by segment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and  [E#x 2l H N AEBEERN R FEF R :
2010, respectively:

2010 2011
20104 20114
(RMB millions) % (RMB millions) %
(AE¥BET) (AR®EER)
Environmental protection and energy  BB{R R EfAEIRR A S
conservation solutions:
Environmental protection RIR 450.8 14.6 623.6 14.6
Energy conservation solutions S S 231.6 32.2 276.8 35.1
Total &5t 682.4 17.9 900.4 17.8
Renewable energy equipment A AR RE R
manufacturing and services:
Wind power products and services BB & LIRS 1,028.5 17.7 1,522.0 16.5
Solar power products and services A aEE T R IR 124.3 9.9 308.2 7.2
Total ast 1,152.8 16.3 1,830.2 13.6
All others FrEEA 23.6 19.0 52.1 34.5
Total a5t 1,858.8 16.9 2,782.7 14.9
Gross profit
EF
1.9% 1.2%
[l Environmental protection
22.4% RIR
[ Energy conservation solutions
ERERRR T R
) . Wind power products and services
99% REER RIS
Solar power products and services
YNCEE )&
All others
Fir 8 E A

Other revenues B A

Other revenues increased by approximately RMB203.1 million, E Ut A FH2010F 4 AR BE148.98 & 012 N4y
or 136.4%, from approximately RMB148.9 million in 2010 to A R#203.1 A 273 136.4% E 2011 E 4 A R
approximately RMB352.0 million in 2011. This increase was primarily  352.0BH &7 c 2 E X ELE AN BAREBETE
due to increases in interest income received on bank deposits of the X FFEF 2 U8 AL 11 R EFR B BFE FHOARE
Group and approximately RMB113.9 million of additional subsidies — 113.95 & T a5 EREFTE -

granted by the PRC Government during the period.
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Other net income/(losses)

Other net income increased by approximately RMB285.0 million,
or 4,253.7%, from a net loss of approximately RMB6.7 million in
2010 to net income of approximately RMB278.3 million in 2011.
This increase was primarily attributable to net gains on disposals
amounting to approximately RMB242.6 million from the disposal of
certain subsidiaries and associates of the Group in connection with
the strategic corporate reorganization process undertaken prior to
the Company’s initial public offering in December 2011. Except for
the disposal of Guodian Jintech Solar Energy Technology (Yixing)
Co., Ltd. to an independent third party, all other subsidiaries and
associates were disposed of to associates of the Guodian Group,
the Company’s controlling shareholder. The considerations for these
disposals were based on independent third party valuations. The
associates disposed of in 2011 were Guodian Hainan Real Estate
Co., Ltd., Guodian Shandong Jingneng Biomass Generation Co.,
Ltd. and Beijing Guodian United Commercial Network Co., Ltd. and
the subsidiaries disposed of in 2011 were Guodian Ningxia Solar
Co., Ltd., Guodian Jintech Solar Energy Technology (Yixing) Co.,
Ltd., Guodian Youyi Biomass Power Generation Co., Ltd., Guodian
Tangyuan Biomass Power Generation Co, Ltd., Guodian Jiansanjiang
Qianjin Biomass Power Generation Co., Ltd. and Shandong
Longyuan Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
RMB232.2 million, or 57.6%, from approximately RMB402.8 million
in 2010 to RMB635.0 million in 2011. This increase was primarily
attributable to increases in equipment warranty provisions and
transportation expenses resulted by the increase in the number of
WTG units sold.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB369.7
million, or 49.6%, from RMB745.8 million in 2010 to approximately
RMB1,115.5 million in 2011. This increase was primarily attributable
to increased wage and salary expenses from an increase in the
number of employees of the Group in connection with its business
expansions, and increased depreciation of office properties owned by
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S ERE

Operating profit and operating profit margin

For the foregoing reasons, operating profit increased by
approximately RMB810.1 million, or 95.0%, from approximately
RMB852.4 million in 2010 to RMB1,662.5 million in 2011. Operating
profit margin increased from 7.7% in 2010 to 8.9% in 2011, primarily
due to increases in the operating profit margins for the Group’s
environmental protection, energy conservation and wind power
products and services businesses, and partially offset by decreases
in operating profit margin from the Group’s solar power products
and services businesses. In general, all operating costs associated
with the Group’s production of goods or provision of services in
each business are allocated to operating costs for each respective
business, except for operating costs and expenses for the Group’s
centralized functions and head office operations. Accordingly, the
Group’s operating profit margins on an overall basis improved in
2011, primarily due to the one-off disposal gains recognized from
the Group’s corporate reorganization, as well as from increases in
governmental subsidies and incentives received for the Group’s
various research and development activities.

The following table sets out the Group’s operating profit margins
by segment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively:
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B il REA - EEFER2010F 4 ARES52.4
HETEMHARES10.18 8 L595.0% 22011
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2010 2011
20104 20114
(%)
Environmental protection and energy IRRKREFRERRR TR ¢
conservation solutions:
Environmental protection IR{R 5.4 7.6
Energy conservation solutions BBEfRIR T 2 19.4 22.0
Segment operating margin 2P R =R 8.1 9.8
Renewable energy equipment manufacturing A B4 REIR R R4S M RS ¢
and services:
Wind power products and services R EE AR 8.4 9.3
Solar power products and services KI5 BeEE on M AR %5 8.5 4.3
Segment operating margin D EPREE R =R 8.4 7.7
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S ERE

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB216.2 million,
or 108.5%, from approximately RMB199.2 million in 2010 to
approximately RMB415.4 million in 2011, primarily due to increases
in interest rates and in principal amounts borrowed by the Group. As
a percentage of Group revenues, finance costs increased from 1.8%
in 2010 to 2.2% in 2011, because of increases in the benchmark
interest rates set by the People’s Bank of China and in average
interest rates for bank loans borrowed to repay certain indebtedness
owed to Guodian Group and its associated companies, whose loans
carried comparatively lower interest rates than those offered by PRC
commercial banks. The increase in principal amounts borrowed
by the Group in 2011 was primarily due to increases in borrowings
to fund capital and other operational expenditures of the Group, in
line with its expanded scale of operations. See also “— Liquidity and
Capital Resources.”

Profit before taxation

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit before taxation of the
Group increased by approximately RMB591.1 million, or 86.9%,
from approximately RMB680.5 million in 2010 to approximately
RMB1,271.6 million in 2011.

Income tax

Income tax charges decreased by RMB11.5 million, or 9.7 %,
from RMB118.7 million to RMB107.2 million, notwithstanding the
increase in the operating profits of the Group. The Group’s effective
tax rate decreased from 17.4% in 2010 to 8.4% in 2011. This
significant reduction was primarily due to tax deductions granted to
the renewable energy and related business of the Group, the effect
of unused tax losses accumulated from previous years, as well as
certain of the Group’s entities being entitled to enjoy preferential tax
rates due to their status as high-technology enterprises.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year increased by
approximately RMB602.6 million, or 107.3%, from approximately
RMB561.8 million in 2010 to approximately RMB1,164.4 million in
2011.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interest

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to non-controlling
interests of the Group increased by approximately RMB112.2
million, or 53.0%, from approximately RMB211.5 million in 2010 to
approximately RMB323.7 million in 2011.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S ERE

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company increased by approximately RMB490.4 million,
or 139.9%, from approximately RMB350.3 million in 2010 to
approximately RMB840.7 million in 2011.

Analysis of Segment Results

The following table sets out the Group’s segment revenues, gross
profit and operating profit, each as a percentage of total Group
revenue for the relevant period, for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively:

A2 Al as RS R

B Ll RE - AR R EREEGEFEB2010
FHAREI50.30 BTN ARE490.45ETT

s —

5139.9% E2011F 4 ARKE840.7AETT °
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TR BIEFNEZ2011F %2010 12 A31 H IEF
ERAREE S IBRA - EFMLEFE  UREH
AR A B AW AN B DL

2010 2011
2010% 2011
(RMB millions) % (RMB millions) %
(ARBBEET) (AR®EER)
Environmental protection and RARREGERRAIR
energy conservation solutions
Environmental protection: BRI
Revenue LN 3,093.6 28.1 4,262.6 228
Gross profit EH 450.8 24.2 623.6 22.4
Operating profit R FIE 167.2 19.6 323.0 19.4
Energy conservation solutions: GIED: S ER
Revenue WA 720.1 6.6 788.7 4.2
Gross profit S 2316 12.5 276.8 9.9
Operating profit KR 139.9 16.4 173.5 10.4
Segment revenues pak:i1 N 3,813.7 34.7 5,051.3 27.0
Segment gross profit PHBER 682.4 36.7 900.4 323
Segment operating profit DL E R 307.1 36.0 496.5 29.8
Renewable energy equipment EERERRERER RS
manufacturing and services
Wind power products and services: Bl S A G L R AR A
Revenue WA 5,801.6 52.8 9,209.9 49.2
Gross profit ES| 1,028.5 55.3 1,522.0 54,7
Operating profit HEPFE 486.6 57.1 857.4 51.6
Solar power products and services: K5 EEE f R AR
Revenue WA 1,253.1 1.4 4,295.0 23.0
Gross profit EH 124.3 6.7 308.2 11.1
Operating profit DA 106.0 12.4 182.9 11.0
Segment revenues 2B 7,060.7 64.2 13,504.9 72.2
Segment gross profit A EEFH 1,158.8 62.0 1,830.2 65.8
Segment operating profit DL R 592.6 69.5 1,040.3 62.6
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SRR E S

Environmental protection and energy conservation solutions
Environmental protection

The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and gross
profit attributable to the environmental protection business, each
as a percentage of revenue for this business for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively:

2010 2011
2010%F 20115
(RMB millions) % (RMB millions) %
(AREB&ET) (AR®EET)

Revenue 3,093.6 100.0 4,262.6 100.0
YA
Cost of sales (2,642.8) (85.4) (3,639.0) (85.4)
HEMAR
Gross profit 450.8 14.6 623.6 14.6
e
Revenue

Revenue from the environmental protection business increased by
approximately RMB1,169.0 million, or 37.8%, from approximately
RMB3,093.6 million in 2010 to approximately RMB4,262.6 million in
2011. The increase was mainly attributable to increases in revenues
generated by the SO2 and NOx emissions reduction businesses of
approximately RMB427.4 million and RMB790.9 million, respectively,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 23.0% and
146.9% as compared to 2010. The growth in revenues in these
businesses was attributable to increased market demand, in part
due to the issuance of the Revised Emissions Standards and the
Tariff Order, which had a positive impact on the Group’s SOz and
NOx emission businesses, in particular, the Group’s desulfurization
concession operations, NOx emissions reduction EPC services and
low-NOx combustion business lines.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the environmental protection business increased
by approximately RMB996.2 million, or 37.7%, from approximately
RMB2,642.8 million in 2010 to approximately RMB3,639.0 million
in 2011, primarily due to increases in cost of sales corresponding to
revenue growth in the SO2 and NOx emissions reduction businesses as
described above.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SRR E S

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing factors, gross profit attributable to the
environmental protection business increased by approximately
RMB172.8 million, or 38.3%, from approximately RMB450.8 million
for 2010 to approximately RMB623.6 million for 2011. Gross profit
margin for this business remained constant at 14.6%, primarily due to
an increase in the gross profit margin of the SOz emissions reduction
business, offset by a decrease in the gross profit margins of the NOx
emissions reduction and water treatment businesses. The increase
in the average gross profit margin of the SO2 emissions reduction
business was mainly attributable to the increase in proportionate
revenue contribution of the desulfurization concession operations
business in 2011, which had a higher profit margin as compared
to the desulfurization EPC business. The decrease in the average
gross profit margin of the NOx emissions reduction business was
primarily due to the decrease of proportionate revenue contribution
of SCR denitrification catalysts external sales, which had a higher
profit margin as compared to other services under the NOx emissions
reduction business. The decrease in the average gross profit margin
of the water treatment business was mainly attributable to the
increased competition in 2011 for this business.

The following table sets out the changes in gross profit margins for
the business lines comprising the Group’s environmental protection
business for 2011 as compared with 2010:
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MR EMEAE BREFEHEFNH2010FHAR
#450.8E BT M A REE172.8 8 &L 3(38.3%
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2010 2011
20104 20114

(%)
SOz emission reduction Rt 77 15.4 15.6
NOx emission reduction Rt A 22.3 19.5
Water treatment KRR 13.5 9.7
Others Hit 2.5 7.3
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SRR E S

Energy conservation solutions

The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and gross
profit attributable to the energy conservation solutions business, each
as a percentage of revenue for this business, for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively:

2010 2011
20104 20115
(RMB millions) % (RMB millions) %
(AREB&ET) (AR®EET)
Revenue 720.1 100.0 788.7 100.0
YA
Cost of sales (488.5) (67.8) (511.9) (64.9)
HEMAR
Gross profit 231.6 32.2 276.8 35.1
EF
Revenue

Revenue attributable to the energy conservation business increased
by approximately RMB68.6 million, or 9.5%, from approximately
RMB720.1 million in 2010 to approximately RMB788.7 million in
2011. This was primarily due to increases in revenues from the
waste heat recovery services business, partially offset by decreases
in revenues from the plasma-assisted coal ignition and combustion
stabilization and steam turbine flow passage retrofitting business
lines, and from the energy management contract (‘EMC”) business.
Increase in the Group’s revenues from the waste heat recovery was
primarily due to the Group’s efforts in expanding this business line
and having entered into contracts of significant value in 2010. Some
of these projects were completed within 2011.

In particular, EMC revenue decreased by approximately 63.6%
from RMB178.8 million in 2010 to RMB65.0 million in 2011,
notwithstanding the delivery of certain steam turbine flow passage
retrofitting services under the EMC business model and the
consolidation of corresponding revenue as part of the revenue from
the EMC business, due to fewer EMC projects being obtained and
completed as a result of changes in applicable PRC regulations
requiring providers of EMC services to be certified by the relevant
government authorities in order to benefit from PRC Government
incentives applicable to EMC service providers. As a result of these
regulatory changes, the Group decided to postpone certain EMC
projects until the relevant certification was obtained. In November
2011, the Group obtained the relevant EMC certification.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SRR E S

A decrease in revenue from the Group’s plasma-assisted coal ignition
and combustion stabilization business was primarily attributable to
the relative decline in growth of incremental installed capacity in the
coal-fired power industry in the PRC.

A decrease in revenue from the steam turbine flow passage
retrofitting business was primarily attributable to certain steam turbine
flow passage retrofitting services being carried out under the EMC
business model and the relevant revenue classified as EMC revenue,
as well as to a general decline in demand due to market saturation.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the energy conservation solutions business increased
by approximately RMB23.4 million, or 4.8%, from approximately
RMB488.5 million in 2010 to approximately RMB511.9 million in
2011. This increase was mainly attributable to an increase in the cost
of sales for the waste heat recovery business, accompanied with the
business’ increase in revenue, in line with the Group’s strategic plans
to develop this business.

Gross profit and gross profit margins

As a result of the foregoing factors, gross profit attributable to the
energy conservation solutions business increased by approximately
RMB45.2 million, or 19.5%, from approximately RMB231.6 million
in 2010 to RMB276.8 million in 2011. Gross profit margin for this
business increased from approximately 32.2% in 2010 to 35.1%
in 2011, primarily due to an increase in the average gross profit
margin for the plasma-assisted coal ignition and combustion
stabilization business which was due to the cost savings attributable
to the maturing of the Group’s plasma-assisted coal ignition and
combustion stabilization technology.

The following table sets out the changes in gross profit margins
for the business lines comprising the Group’s energy conservation
solutions business for 2011 as compared with 2010:
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SRR E S

Renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services
Wind power products and services

The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and gross
profit attributable to the wind power products and services business,
each as a percentage of revenue for this business for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively:

2010 2011
20104 20114
(RMB millions) % (RMB millions) %
(AREBBETT) (AR¥BET)

Revenue 5,807.6 100.0 9,209.9 100.0
WA
Cost of sales 4,779.1) (82.3) (7,687.9) (83.5)
SHERAR
Gross profit 1,028.5 17.7 1,522.0 16.5
E
Revenue

Revenue attributable to the wind power products and services
business increased by approximately RMB3,402.3 million, or 58.6%,
from approximately RMB5,807.6 million in 2010 to approximately
RMB9,209.9 million in 2011. The increase was primarily due to a
significant increase in the Group’s sales volume for WTG units from
approximately 867 units in 2010 to 1,611 units in 2011, resulting from
the Group’s business expansion efforts to increase market share in
the WTG manufacturing industry, including sales of newly launched
2.0 WTGs. However, the Group’s increases in sales volumes were
partially offset by decreases in the average selling price of WTG units
from approximately RMB4.5 million per MW in 2010 to RMB3.8
million per MW in 2011, due primarily to increased competition in
the WTG manufacturing industry in 2011 as compared within 2010,
as well as to decreased prices of raw materials used in the WTG
manufacturing process, such as steel, iron and resin.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SRR E S

Cost of sales

Cost of sales attributable to the wind power products and services
business increased by approximately RMB2,908.8 million, or 60.9%,
from approximately RMB4,779.1 million for 2010 to approximately
RMB7,687.9 million for 2011, primarily due to a corresponding
increase in the number of WTG units manufactured and sold during
the period, and partially offset by declines in the prices of raw
materials used in WTG manufacturing process.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, gross profit attributable to the wind
power products and services business increased by approximately
RMB493.5 million, or 48.0%, from approximately RMB1,028.5 million
in 2010 to RMB1,522.0 million for 2011. Gross profit margin for this
business decreased from 17.7% in 2010 to 16.5% in 2011, primarily
due to decreases in the average selling price of WTGs as a result of
intensified competition in the WTG manufacturing industry, in line with
industry trend, although partially offset by decreases in raw material
costs as described above.

Solar power products and services

The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and gross
profit attributable to the solar power products and services business,
each as a percentage of revenue for this business for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively:

2010 2011
2010F 20114
(RMB millions) % (RMB millions) %
(AREBBETT) (AR¥EBET)

Revenue 1,253.1 100.0 4,295.0 100.0
WA
Cost of sales (1,128.8) (90.1) (3,986.8) (92.8)
SHERAR
Gross profit 124.3 9.9 308.2 7.2
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Revenues

Revenue attributable to the solar power products and services
business increased by approximately RMB3,041.9 million, or 242.7%,
from approximately RMB1,253.1 million for 2010 to approximately
RMB4,295.0 million for 2011, primarily due to increased revenue from
the solar power EPC business. Demand for the Group’s solar power
EPC services increased significantly in the fourth quarter of 2011,
primarily due to the issuance of the Solar Tariff Notice in July 2011.
Under the Solar Tariff Notice, approved solar power projects would be
eligible for a higher tariff if completed prior to a deadline of December
31, 2011. As a result, many of the Group’s customers required early
completion of their respective solar projects before the December
31, 2011 deadline, which were originally scheduled for completion in
2012. Accordingly, in the fourth quarter of 2011, solar EPC contract
revenues experienced a significant increase, with aggregate revenues
increasing by approximately RMB2,171.7 million, or 5,700.0%, from
RMB38.1 million in 2010 to RMB2,209.8 million in 2011. This made
the solar EPC contract business a major revenue contributor from the
solar power products and services business in 2011, increasing from
approximately 3.0% of revenue of solar power products and services
business in 2010 to approximately 51.5%.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales attributable to the solar power products and services
business increased by approximately RMB2,858.0 million, or 253.2%,
from approximately RMB1,128.8 million for 2010 to approximately
RMB3,986.8 million for 2011, primarily due to corresponding
increases in revenues from the solar power EPC business.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, gross profit attributable to the solar
power products and services business of the Group increased by
approximately RMB183.9 million, or 147.9%, from approximately
RMB124.3 million for 2010 to approximately RMB308.2 million
for 2011. Gross profit margin for this business decreased from
approximately 9.9% in 2010 to approximately 7.2% for 2011, primarily
due to increased market competition that resulted in a decrease in
profit margin across the industry, particularly in the solar power cell
and module manufacturing sector.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s principal use of cash has been for funding its business
operations. Its main source of liquidity has been cash generated
from its operating activities and indebtedness in the form of short-
term bank borrowings, as well as net proceeds of approximately
RMB1,827.0 million received from its initial public offering in
December 2011. The Group currently relies on its internal operating
cash flows, the proceeds of its initial public offering and financing
from a mix of short-term and long-term bank borrowings to fund its
business operations, capital expenditures and other working capital
requirements.

In general, the Group’s cash flows have been generally subject to
significant variation over the period from 2009 to 2011, in part due to
the strategic business expansion and development of certain of the
Group’s businesses during 2009 to 2010. In these years, the Group
experienced significant cash outflows and increased its reliance on
financing in order to increase its production capacity in its renewable
energy manufacturing businesses, as well as to build up inventories
of finished products in anticipation of expanding its market share in
the wind and solar industries. Between 2009 and 2010, the Group
also adopted several new business models in the provision of its
services, such as providing desulfurization services as a concessions
operator and the provision of certain energy conservation systems
and solutions on an EMC basis, both of which are capital intensive in
nature.

In addition, the Group’s operating cash flows are subject to significant
irregularity due to the nature of most of its business activities. The
wind power products and services business is a significant revenue
contributor, accounting for approximately 49.2% of the Group’s total
revenue in 2011. However, the seasonality of the WTG business
in which customers typically confirm their orders at the beginning
of each calendar year with delivery scheduled for November and
December, typically results in the majority of cash receipts from
the WTG sales business being received in the last quarter of
each financial year. Similarly, a few of the Group’s businesses are
project-based and are non-recurrent in nature, with payments from
customers typically being agreed upon on a schedule and subject to
unforeseen circumstances such as project delay.
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As a result of these factors, the Group relies significantly on short-
term borrowings to smoothen out its operating cash flows. As at
December 31, 2011 approximately 90.6% of the Group’s total
borrowings are short-term borrowings, which are consistent with the
length of projects in its major business lines, such as WTG production,
solar power EPC construction projects, and other EPC contracts of
the Group typically ranging from 12 to 18 months in duration. As the
Group expands its operations into longer term projects such as water
treatment construction, concession operations and EMC services,
it is expected that long-term borrowings will increase proportionally
as part of its capital structure. In addition, the recurring revenue from
concession operations, EMC operations and water treatment BOT
operations will be expected to have a stabilizing effect on the Group’s
operating cashflows proportional to their revenue contribution to the
Group’s results.

The following table sets out the net cashflows of the Group for the
financial years as of and ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

AR EMEAE - NEBRAEE ERRBREEERCR
BIEHEZEEERE - R2011F 128318 © =H
BERAME AR LB R EFEEN0.6% @ EHEFE
HEENMNIEE T3 LR NEEEANE
E + KN[GREEPCEETA B RASE—R AN F12
Z18E AR EMEPCE A o AR BIEAH 27
BRHAIEE - tKBRIEER - FRTEE REMCR
% - TR RBERIEAEBEARLEE —BH B LHIG
BN o PO - HERFRFASE C EMCEBAM/KEEZ
& FBEBR([BOT])EBAEERLE WA
T REASEEER S REELERENFE - &
HEHAREBWARNERBCIEL °

TR BIEFNEZ20115F %20105F12 531 H [EBF
HEE  AEERNRSREFHE

2011 2010
20114 2010
(RMB millions)
(AREBETR)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RESEEIES (FrA )RS E5E
operating activities 346.4 (1,266.9)
Net cash used in investing activities B RS FTAR® FRE (3,529.6) (7,045.1)
Net cash generated from financing activities mE R ELR & /F5E 7,026.9 8,852.1
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 R12A31BRIRE KIREEEBY 5,626.6 1,790.9

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

Net cash generated by the Group’s operating activities in 2011
amounted to approximately RMB346.4 million, as compared to
2010 where net cash used in operating activities amounted to
approximately RMB1,266.9 million. The increase in net cash flows
from operating activities was primarily attributable to the growth
in profits across the Group, in particular, in the renewable energy
equipment manufacturing and services business segment, in addition
to improved inventory and supply chain management and improved
supplier credit terms. The significant growth of the renewable energy
equipment manufacturing and services business segment resulted in
increases in operating cash inflows from customer payments.
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In addition, in 2010, the Group’s net operating cash outflow was
predominantly attributable to the expansion of the wind power
products and services business which resulted in increased purchase
of inventory of raw materials and other production materials, as well as
incurring production costs to build up an inventory of finished WTG
units. Accordingly, the Group’s operating cashflow requirements in
2011 were relatively smaller than in 2010, given that the significant
portion of the Group’s expansion strategy was implemented in the
preceding years.

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in the Group’s investing activities in 2011 amounted
to approximately RMB3,529.6 million, as compared to 2010 where
net cash used in investing activities amounted to approximately
RMB7,045.1 million. The significant decrease in cash outflows for
investing activities was primarily attributable to the Group’s having
completed most of its business development and expansion
plans between 2009 and 2010, which had relatively higher capital
expenditure requirements related to the purchase of property, plant
and equipment for the construction of WTG and solar cell production
lines, as well as small amounts of cash inflows received from sale
of certain business lines such as the biomass power generation
business as a result of the Company’s reorganization process prior to
its initial public offering.

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net cash generated from the Group’s financing activities in 2011
amounted to approximately RMB7,026.9 million, a decrease of
approximately RMB1,825.2 million as compared to 2010 where net
cash generated from financing activities amounted to approximately
RMB8,852.1 million. Net cash generated from financing activities
in 2011 was primarily attributable to the completion of the
Company’s initial public offering in December 2011 which generated
approximately RMB1,827.0 million of net proceeds, as well as
approximately RMB5,124.4 million of additional borrowings from
certain PRC bank lenders, part of which used in repayment of debt
previously owed to Guodian Group and its associated companies. In
contrast, in 2010, the Company received approximately RMB3,249.6
million from its equity owners who made capital contributions.
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Working Capital

As at December 31, 2011, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB5,626.6 million, an increase of RMB3,835.7 million
as compared to as of December 31, 2010. As at December 31, 2011,
unutilised bank credit facilities amounted to RMB11,059.3 million.

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing net debt
(includes interest-bearing other payables and interest-bearing bank
loans, less cash and cash equivalents) by total equity plus net debt,
decreased from 45.7% as at December 31, 2010 to 37.0% as at
December 31, 2011. This was primarily due to the increase in equity
of approximately RMB2,896.0 million which was primarily attributable
to the Company’s initial public offering, and a decrease in net debt
of approximately RMB371.3 million. The decrease in net debt of
the Company principally reflects an increase of interest-bearing
other payables and interest-bearing bank loans of approximately
RMB3,464.4 million and an increase in cash and cash equivalent of
approximately RMB3,835.7 million. See also “— Liquidity and Capital
Resources.”

As of December 31, 2011, the proceeds of the initial public offering
of the Company were placed in interest-bearing short term deposits
pending utilization in accordance with the Company’s plans as set
forth in the Company’s prospectus dated December 9, 2011 and
Supplemented by the supplemental prospectus dated December 20,
2011 (“Prospectus”).

Based on the existing cash resources and unutilized bank credit
facilities, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) confirm
that the Company’s working capital will be sufficient for its present
requirements and for the next 12 months.
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Net Current Liabilities

As at December 31, 2011, the net current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,793.9 million, representing a
decrease in net current liabilities of approximately RMB329.5 million,
or 15.5%, as compared to December 31, 2010. The decrease was
primarily attributable to an increase in the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents as a result of the receipt of net proceeds of approximately
RMB1,827.0 million from the Company’s initial public offering and
an increase of approximately RMB4,312.1 million in its trade and
bill receivables in line with its revenue growth in 2011, and partially
offset by increases in borrowings and trade and bill payables
of approximately RMB6,494.4 million and RMB3,242.8 million,
respectively. The increase in trade and bill payables partially reflects
the revenue growth of the Company in 2011, and represents an
improvement in the Company’s management of such balances.

Inventory Analysis

The inventories of the Group remained relatively constant as of
December 31, 2011 at RMB7,488.9 million, as compared to
RMB7,387.2 million as of December 31, 2010. The Group’s inventory
turnover days decreased to 170.5 days in 2011 from 217.4 days in
2010.

Trade and bill receivables

Trade and bill receivables increased by 76.8% from RMB5,613.5
million as of December 31, 2010 to RMB9,925.6 million as of
December 31, 2011, in line with the growth of the Company’s
business and revenues. The growth of the EPC construction business
across the Group’s segments and in particular in solar projects
resulted in increases in trade receivables due from customers for
contract work of 212.0% from RMB1,188.8 million as of December
31, 2010 to RMB3,709.4 million as of December 31, 2011. Similarly,
the increase in trade receivables from operating leases of 211.1%
from RMB106.8 million as of December 31, 2010 to RMB332.3
million as of December 31, 2011, primarily attributable to the growth
in the desulfurization concession operations of the Group. Increases
in trade receivables for sale of goods and rendering of services
of 137.2% from RMB1,759.9 million to RMB4,174.3 million were
primarily attributable to the increase in sales of WTG units and
solar cells and modules, with revenues from such sales growing at
approximately 58.6% and 100.5%, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s trade and
bill receivables as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively:

TP BIEFI2011EF20105E12 A31 B ANEE e
URBR R I =R YRR A

As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
R20116 20104
12A31H 12H31H
(RMB millions)
(AR¥EBEER)
Trade receivables for contract work & R TR ERERRR 3,709.4 1,188.8
Bills receivables for contract work ARTREMNEREE 310.1 465.5
Trade receivables for operating leases K ETHE R FE UAR X 332.3 106.8
Trade receivables for sale of goods and EYEE MR RS EWERE R
rendering of services 4,174.3 1,759.9
Bills receivable for sale of goods and rendering & 4856 MR ARFSH EURZ 1%
of services 1,495.3 2,142.5
Less: allowance for doubtful debts BT RIEEREME (95.8) (50.0)
9,925.6 5,613.5

The Group’s receivable turnover days increased to 151.6 days in
2011 from 134.5 days in 2010, in line with the increased growth of,
and revenue contribution from, the wind power product and services
business, which reflects the time lag between delivery and installation
of the WTG unit and actual payment by the customers, which is
characteristic of the industry.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables decreased
by 45.0% from RMB2,070.7 million as of December 31, 2010 to
RMB1,139.9 million as of December 31, 2011. The decrease was
primarily attributable to reductions in prepayments to sub-contractors
and for purchases of inventories, which reflects the Group’s improved
credit and business standing and favorable terms granted by sub-
contractors and suppliers to the Group.

Trade and bill payables
Trade and bill payables increased by 34.7% from RMB9,402.1 million
as of December 31, 2010 to RMB12,664.9 million as of December

31, 2011, reflecting the growth of the Company’s business and
revenues.
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Indebtedness

The following table sets forth the Group’s borrowings as of December

31,2010 and 201 1:

(=t

TREFF2010FEFM20114E12 A31 BANEFE M E

HIER

As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
20114 2010
12A31H 12A31H
(RMB millions)
(AR¥BER)
Long-term interest bearing borrowings RHEAIEEMER
Bank loans: RITER
Secured B 293.1 326.8
Unsecured AR 1,175.2 1,416.6
Loans from Guodian Finance Corporation R B B E B
Limited BIRARNERK
Secured BHEA = 150.0
Unsecured E = 850.0
Other loans (unsecured) Hi &R (mEgH) 11.7 12.6
1,480.0 2,756.0
Less: Current portion of long-term W REMEFEENEREE
borrowings (341.3) (247.3)
1,138.7 2,508.7
Short-term interest bearing borrowings EHEEER
Bank loans: IRITER
Secured A 249.5 23.0
Unsecured i i 10,347.5 3,003.6
Loans from Guodian Finance Corporation R B B E B
Limited BIRARNERK
Unsecured E = 1,170.0
Current portion of long-term borrowings REBE KA BNER RS 2 341.3 247.3
10,938.3 4,443.9
Total indebtedness BEIEEEE 12,077.0 6,952.6

The Group’s indebtedness increased by approximately 73.7% from
RMB6,952.6 million as of December 31, 2010 to RMB12,077.0
million as of December 31, 2011, primarily attributable to increases in
short term borrowings of approximately RMB6,494.4 million, partially
offset by a decrease in long-term borrowings of RMB1,370.0 million.
The proportion of short-term indebtedness to overall indebtedness
increased from approximately 63.9% in 2010 to 90.6% in 2011, with
a corresponding proportional decrease in long-term indebtedness.
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The increase in short-term indebtedness as part of the capital
structure of the Group in 2011 is in line with the Company’s growth
in certain major business lines, such as the WTG manufacturing
business and the solar project EPC construction business, which are
typically completed in less than a year, and reflected an increase in
short-term borrowings incurred to repay obligations owed to Guodian
Finance Corporation Limited.

The decrease in long-term indebtedness as part of the capital
structure of the Group in 2011 primarily reflects the repayment of
long-term obligations owed to Guodian Finance Corporation Limited.

Substantially all of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB,
and all of its cash and cash equivalents are denominated in RMB
except for insignificant amounts held in Euros.

The following table sets out the maturity profiles of the Group’s long-
term borrowings as at the dates indicated:

2011 FERARKEERNER — DN EHEERN
BREARARLE BB - RS EERAR
EEBIARG LI B EPCREXEBRERME—2 -
FUFRBREDE—FRTK - RRREBEER
NEEFHERABDEFELNERERNER -

PONFIERAEBEAREB Mo RIEED
MAOETERRBEERNEEHHEARAANRS
&% o

AEBBAIDNERHBAAREAE - HFAEH
Re kR EFEBWHHAAREE @ kT HUEK
TR ENMNERR -

TREFIAREERFR A SN RBERDIHBR -

2011 2010
20114 20104

(RMB millions)

(AR¥BET)
Within 1 year or on demand 1FARBRERER 341.3 247.3
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F LA EB2F A 777.3 451.4
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA H{ESF AR 190.0 1,422.6
After 5 years 5F A E 171.4 634.7
1,480.0 2,756.0

The Group’s effective interest rate (determined by dividing total
interest expenses by the sum of outstanding borrowings and other
interest-bearing payables), increased from 6.0% in 2010 to 6.3% in
2011, primarily due to increases in benchmark interest rates by the
People’s Bank of China and in average interest rates for bank loans
borrowed to repay certain indebtedness owed to Guodian Group and
its associated companies, whose loans carried comparatively lower
interest rates than those offered by PRC commercial banks.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group’s contingent liabilities increased by approximately 8.8%
from RMB1,484.6 million as of December 31, 2010 to RMB1,615.7
million as of December 31, 2011, corresponding to the growth
of its WTG sales and its EPC construction businesses due to the
provision of bid and performance guarantees required by the Group’s
customers for sales of WTGs and for construction contracts.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Associated Companies

Details of material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies of the Group are set forth in Notes 5 and 39
of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
included in this Annual Report (“Financial Statements”).

Market Risk

The Group is exposed to various risks associated with its business
operations, including credit and counterparty risk, interest rate risk,
exchange rate risk, risks affecting the energy and related industries
within the PRC generally and volatility risk relating to raw material and
components used in its production activities.

Credit and counterparty risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to our cash at bank
and in hand, trade and bills receivables, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables, gross amounts due from customers from contract
work and other non-current assets. The Group has an internal
credit polity to monitor exposure to its counterparty credit risk on an
ongoing basis.

Except for the net proceeds of the initial public offering of the
Company, which is held in Hong Kong in interest bearing deposits
with established and well known financial institutions, substantially all
of the Group’s cash is deposited in state-owned or controlled PRC
banking institutions. Therefore, Directors of the Company consider
such risks to be insignificant.

The Group performed credit evaluations on all of its customers,
and monitor outstanding receivables due from such customers on
an ongoing basis. The Group’s credit evaluation focuses on the
customer’s payment history, ability to pay and take into account
industry and customer-specific considerations, as well as the general
macroeconomic climate. The Group generally requires its customers
to settle progress billings and other debts in accordance with agreed
contract terms.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SRR E S

Interest rate risk

The Company has significant borrowings and its operational activities
are significantly dependent on the availability of credit facilities at
competitive rates. Substantially all of the Company’s borrowings
are denominated in RMB and are owed to PRC bank lenders and
financial institutions, which are subject to adjustments in interest
rates based on changes in the applicable regulations of the People’s
Bank of China. Accordingly, fluctuations in interest rates may have a
significant impact on the Group’s business, operations and financial
condition.

As of December 31, 2011, approximately RMB1,386.9 million, or
11.5%, of the Group’s aggregate borrowings are subject to fixed
interest rates, and interest on the remaining RMB10,690.1 million is
payable based on floating rates.

The effective interest rate of the Group in 2011 was 6.3%. The Group
does not currently hedge its interest rate risks through any derivative
instruments or other hedging arrangements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s operating cash flows are subject to significant
irregularity, given the nature of the businesses in which it is engaged.
Accordingly, while the Group aims to ensure that it has sufficient
working capital to meet its operational requirements, or has access
to sufficient banking credit facilities to continue operating without
disruption, the cash flow position of the Group is integral to its
continued growth and expansion.

Exchange risk

The continued development and expansion of the Group’s
international operations is expected to result in increased exposure
to exchange rate risk, arising primarily through export sales which
would typically be denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
expects that its future export sales will principally be denominated in
either the United States dollar, the Euro or the Hong Kong dollar. As
of December 31, 2011, the Group has limited exposure to exchange
rate risk arising from its operations. However, with the completion
of its initial public offering on the HKSE in December 2011, the
Group holds approximately RMB1,769.4 million in net proceeds
denominated in Hong Kong dollars in Hong Kong. The Group does
not currently hedge its exchange risk.

The RMB is not a freely convertible currency, and the PRC
Government may at its discretion restrict access to foreign currencies
for current account transactions in the future. Changes in such foreign
exchange controls may adversely affect the Group’s international
operations and sales, and may prevent the Group from satisfying its
foreign exchange denominated obligations. In addition, the Group
may be restricted from paying dividends on its listed H shares to
shareholders by any such changes in regulations.
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PROSPECTS FOR 2012

It is expected that the PRC Government will continue to monitor
developments in the PRC energy sector closely and proactively, with
the overall objective of achieving the performance targets set forth in
the 12th Five-Year Plan. Further regulatory intervention is expected
as the PRC Government fine-tunes its strategies to react to market
conditions and developments to achieve an efficient and sustainable
energy structure for the PRC and reduce overall environmental and
social costs of economic development. The Company is committed to
supporting the PRC Government in its strategic initiatives to diversify
into renewable energy resources and in energy-related environmental
protection and resource conservation, and has responded proactively
in increasing investments in research and development-related
activities and resources in these key strategic areas to promote
technological innovation and advancement. The Company believes
that technology is key to its strategic efforts to position itself as a
global player and market leader in the provision of clean technology
services and to promote awareness of the quality and performance-
efficiency of its wind and solar products in the global marketplace.
Accordingly, the Group’s main strategic focus will be on research and
development of its existing services and product offering, as well as
on future growth in potential new services, products or business lines
by identifying strategic areas of future environmental concern which
may be addressed using technological solutions and capitalizing
on the Group’s expertise and experience to develop innovative and
advanced solutions and products capable of commercial application
in these areas.

While the Group’s core strategy focuses on innovation, research
and development as the primary engine of growth for its future
profitability and expansion of operations, the Group will also continue
to rationalize, integrate and streamline its existing operations where
necessary, with the objective of optimizing resource utilization,
improving cost-efficiencies and maximizing synergy among the
various business lines. The Group expects to continue to improve its
competitiveness in the denitrification, desulfurization, ash removal,
wind farm and solar power station construction businesses, while
simultaneously exploring the feasibility of expanding its EPC business
to the environmental-friendly coal-fired power plants, microgrids and
energy storage systems.

In particular, the Group will focus on the following developments in its
various businesses in 2012:

Environmental protection and energy conservation solutions. A
key focus of the Group in this business segment will be on improving
its operating profit margins for the various business lines through
examining its supply chain management, centralized reporting and
management processes and further integrating complementary
operational functions in order to reduce unnecessary operational
costs. In addition, the Group also intends to explore potential
opportunities in expanding its clientele base outside of the power
industry, as well as to other fossil fuel-based power producers.
Other initiatives contemplated to be undertaken in 2012 include the
following:
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Environmental protection. The Group believes that it is one of the
few clean technology providers with the resources and expertise to
develop desulfurization and denitrification concession operations.
In the case of denitrification concession operations, the Group
believes that the success of the concession business model in
desulfurization services will be instrumental in persuading the PRC
Government and regulatory authorities to permit such models to
be adopted with respect to denitrification services in the future,
given that the characteristics of both are substantially similar. In this
respect, the Group intends to position itself strategically to capture
significant market share in this potential market. The Group believes
that concession operations are key to the continued growth and
profitability of the Group, representing a stable stream of operational
cashflow upon commissioning and balancing out the irregularities
in the Group’s internal working cashflows from other operational
activities, which are more seasonal or project-based.

The Group will also continue to invest significantly in research and
development of technologies, systems and applications related
to desulfurization and denitrification, which are significant growth
markets in the near future, given the focus of the PRC Government
on reducing environmental pollution. Key technologies in which
the Group intends to undertake further research and development
include resource-recycling desulfurization methods and technologies
which fully utilize and recycle desulfurization byproducts, low NOx
combustion technology (and the integration of such technology
with energy conservation systems such as plasma ignition and coal
combustion technology, given the favorable government subsidies for
power plants employing denitrification systems and equipment), SCR
denitrification methods and technologies and optimizing integration
between low-NOx combustion technology and SCR denitrifition or
SNCR denitrification technology.

Energy conservation solutions. The Group expects that energy
conservation solutions business will continue to grow in importance
as an integral part of efficient resource utilization, and will continue
to invest extensively in improving its current technology on a stand-
alone basis, while also undertaking research to identify and examine
the feasibility of integrating energy conservation solutions with
environmental protection systems on a cost-effective basis for power
plant producers. The Group believes that there is significant market
potential in offering integrated environmental protection and energy
conservation systems on a competitive price basis, which may not
only reduce production and efficiency costs for power producers, but
also enable them to benefit from applicable environmental protection
subsidies and incentives.

The Group will also continue to promote its EMC business and waste
heat recovery services, and will focus on research and development
of boiler energy-conservation technologies in general, as well as in
resource-recycling systems and technologies.
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Renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services.
The Group intends to leverage on its brand equity and reputation as
a market leader in clean technology solutions to further develop an
integrated “one-stop shop” renewable energy portfolio of services
and products, encompassing research and development, project
evaluation and feasibility, project design and construction, investment
consulting, renewable energy equipment manufacture and installation,
operator, maintenance and repair services. The Group believes that
it can leverage its existing expertise across its business segments
to offer an integrated service model to potential wind farm and solar
power station investors and operators on a competitive basis, with
significant cost and operational efficiencies in reducing coordination
requirements with respect to the various design, construction and
installation teams, operational error and learning downtime with
respect to teams which are unfamiliar with the equipment to be
installed and operated, as well as price efficiencies which would be
reflected in the overall contract bid value submitted by the Group for
such projects. The Group believes that such a business model would
be attractive to investors and operators by optimizing economic
returns on their projects and minimizing their resource allocation
requirements.

Wind power products and services. The Group intends to focus
on developing new value-added products and services in its WTG
business, in line with its strategic focus on offering an integrated
portfolio of products and services. Research and development
activities will continue to focus on the development of large capacity,
offshore, low wind speed and customized WTG units; the Group
will continue to promote sales of its new 2.0 MW and 3.0 MW WTG
units, both within the PRC and internationally in selected markets.
Internationally, the Group will focus on developing opportunities in
selected key markets in which it has established a presence through
increased marketing and sales activities.

Solar power product and services. The Group believes that the
solar power industry will experience significant growth as a result
of the implementation of a nationally applicable on-grid tariff rate.
Notwithstanding that the December 31, 2011 deadline for the higher
tariff rate has passed, it is expected that more solar projects will
become economically feasible as a result of the tariff, and that the
solar power industry will continue to experience significant growth
in 2012. The Group intends to further allocate resources to the
development and expansion of its solar power station EPC business,
leveraging on its previous experience and performance track
record and its high-quality solar cell and module product offering
to successfully bid for future solar power station EPC projects. The
Group has also invested in expanding its production capacity for
various types of solar cells, with additional production lines expected
to be operational within 2012.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

55 EBEEMEREEASR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company consists of 9 directors: 3 executive
Directors, 3 non-executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive
Directors. The functions and duties of the Company’s Board include:
convening shareholders’ meetings, reporting the Board’s work at
the shareholders’ meetings, implementing the resolutions passed
on the shareholders’ meetings, determining our business plans and
investment plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and final
accounts, formulating the Company’s proposals for profit distributions
and for the increase or reduction of registered capital as well as
exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred by the
Company’s Articles of Association. The Company has entered into
service contracts with each of its executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

The following table sets out certain information relating to Directors of
our Company. Our Company’s existing non-executive Directors and
executive Directors were elected to their current term on the Board
of Directors on May 16, 2011. Our Company’s independent non-
executive Directors were appointed on September 21, 2011, and
their appointments become effective on the Listing Date. The current
term for all our Company’s Directors will expire on May 15, 2014.
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Name Age Position Dates of Appointment

HE FiR B ZERH

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng 61 Chairman of the Board of Directors and May 16, 2011

KK AE Non-executive Director 2011457168
EERFBIFWITESF

Mr.YE Weifang 59 Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors May 16, 2011

RERFEE and Executive Director 201145 A16H
BIESERFNTES

Mr. YANG Guang 47 Non-executive Director May 16, 2011

i FEMITES 201145H16H

Mr. FENG Shuchen 47 Non-executive Director May 16, 2011

ISR E S FEMITES 201145 A16H

Mr. LI Hongyuan 46 Executive Director May 16, 2011

FRBSTE WITES 201145A16H

Ms. WANG Hongyan 47 Executive Director May 16, 2011

EHRE L HITEF 201145H416H

Mr. LU Yanchang 71 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011

PEIES S BIUFNTES 20114F9A21H

Mr. ZHAI Ligong 65 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011

Bk E BYIEHITES 201149A21H

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony 51 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011

BioEEE BIUFNTES 20114F9A21H
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5% BRENSREREAER

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng, is a non-executive Director and chairman of
the Board of Directors of our Company. Mr. Zhu serves concurrently
as President of the Guodian Group, chairman of the board of
directors and non-executive director of GD Power, and chairman of
the board of directors and non-executive director of China Longyuan
Power Group Corporation Limited (B/RE HEERM AR A 7))
(“Longyuan Power”). Mr. Zhu commenced to serve on our Board in
January 2005. Mr. Zhu previously served successively as director of
general office of the power department of the Ministry of Energy from
June 1988 to September 1993; vice president of China Longyuan
Electric Power Group Corporation of Ministry of Electric Power from
September 1993 to November 1997; President of China Longyuan
Electric Power Group Corporation of Ministry of Electric Power from
November 1997 to June 1999; President of China Longyuan Electric
Power Group Corporation from June 1999 to July 2000; and vice
chairman of the board of directors, President of GD Power during
the period from July 2000 to October 2002. He also served as vice
president of the Guodian Group from December 2002 to March
2008, and President of the Guodian Group since March 2008. Mr.
Zhu received a Bachelor’s degree in engineering from Northeast Dianli
University in 1982. He is a Professor-level Senior Engineer, receiving
special allowance from the PRC State Council.

Mr. YE Weifang, is an executive Director and deputy chairman of
the Board of Directors of our Company. Mr. Ye joined our Group in
May 1997. He previously served successively as general economist
of Xionghui General Contraction Company of North China Electrical
Bureau from September 1996 to May 1997; vice president and
President of Beijing Guodian Longyuan Environmental Engineering
Limited Liability Company from May 1997 to January 2005; President
of the environmental engineering branch of our Company from
January 2005 till May 2006; general manager of Beijing Guodian
Longyuan Environmental Engineering Limited Liability Company
from May 2006 to December 2006; vice president of our Company
from December 2006 to June 2009; and President of our Company
from June 2009 to May 2011. Mr. Ye received a Bachelor’s degree
in thermal power engineering from North China Electricity Power
University in December 1979 and a Bachelor’s degree in economics
from the Correspondence Institute of the Party School of the CPC
Central Committee. He is a Senior Economist.
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Mr. YANG Guang, is a non-executive Director of our Company.
Mr. Yang serves concurrently as head of Science-Technology and
Comprehensive Business Department of the Guodian Group. Mr.
Yang joined our Board in January 2005. Mr. Yang previously served
successively as designing chief engineer, deputy director and director
of Engineering Division of South West Electric Power Design Institute
from 1994 to April 1998; deputy chief engineer of South West Electric
Power Design Institute and director of Project Division of South
West Electric Power Design Institute from April 1998 to June 1999;
deputy director of Economic and Trade Division of International
Department of the State Power Corporation from February 2001
to November 2001; director of Economic and Trade Division of
International Department of the State Power Corporation from
November 2001 to January 2003; deputy head of Engineering and
Construction Department of the Guodian Group from January 2003
to December 2006; head of International Cooperation Department of
the Guodian Group from December 2006 to October 2008, and head
of International Cooperation and Overseas Business Department
of the Guodian Group from October 2008 to September 2009. Mr.
Yang received a Bachelor’s degree in engineering from Chongqging
University in July 1985 and is also a Senior Engineer.

Mr. FENG Shuchen, is a non-executive Director of our Company
and serves concurrently as President of GD Power. Mr. Feng joined
our Group in September 2004. He previously served successively
as chief manager of Chaoyang Power Plant from October 2000
to February 2002; deputy chief manager of Guodian Datong No.2
Power Plant from February 2002 to December 2002; chief manager
of Guodian Datong No. 2 Power Plant from December 2002 to
September 2004; vice president of our Company from September
2004 to July 2008; President of our Company from July 2008 to April
2009; and head of the Human Resources Department of the Guodian
Group from April 2009 to October 2010. Mr. Feng graduated from
Shenyang Electric Power Institute in August 1982. He also completed
a post-graduate study in control theory and control engineering in
North China Electric Power University and received a Master’s degree
in engineering. He is a Senior Engineer.

Mr. LI Hongyuan, is an executive Director and President of our
Company since 2011. Mr. Li joined our Group on May 16, 2011.
He previously served successively as President of Guodian Xuanwei
Power Generation Co., Ltd. from April 2002 to January 2006; vice
president of Guodian Yunnan Branch from March 2004 to January
2006; deputy head of Department of Environmental Protection of
the Guodian Group from January 2006 to December 2006 and
deputy head of Department of Safety Supervision from December
2006 to October 2008; and President and executive director of
Guodian Yunnan Power Co., Ltd. from October 2008 to 2011. Mr. Li
received a Bachelor’'s degree in engineering from Taiyuan University
of Technology in July 1986 and a Master’s degree in engineering
from Kunming University of Science and Technology. He is a Senior
Engineer.
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Ms. WANG Hongyan, is an executive Director and chief accountant
of our Company. Ms. Wang joined our Group in January 2005. Ms.
Wang previously served successively as financial executive of China
Longyuan Electric Power Group Corporation from June 1993 to
December 2000 and vice president of Long Wei Power Technology
Co., Ltd. from January 2001 to February 2004; and deputy manager
of Department of Finance of GD Power from February 2004 to
January 2005. She also served as deputy chief accountant and
manager of Department of Finance of our Company from April 2005
to April 2006, and served as chief accountant of our Company
from April 2006 till now. Ms. Wang received a Bachelor’s degree in
accounting from Renmin University of China (No. 1 Branch) in July
1987. She is a Senior Accountant.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LU Yanchang, is an independent non-executive Director of our
Company. Mr. Lu serves concurrently as vice president of China
Association for Science and Technology and president of Chinese
Society of Electrical Engineering. Mr. Lu served successively as deputy
general of department of power generation, head of dispatch bureau,
chief engineer and head of department of general office in the Ministry
of Water Resources and Electric Power from June 1984 to May 1988;
chief engineer for electric power and head of power department of
the Ministry of Energy from May 1988 to April 1993; deputy minister
of Ministry of Power Industry from April 1993 to March 1998 (and vice
president of State Power Corporation and deputy chairman of the
board of directors of China United Telecommunications Corporation
from December 1996 to March 1998); vice president of State Power
Corporation and deputy chairman of the board of directors of China
United Telecommunications Corporation from March 1998 to June
2001; deputy chairman of the sixth China Association of Science
and Technology from June 2001 to June 2006; deputy chairman
of the seventh China Association of Science and Technology
since June 2006 and member of the tenth national committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC). Mr.
Lu graduated from department of power of Tsinghua University and
majored in thermal power. Mr. Lu is a Professor-level Senior Engineer.
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Mr. ZHAI Ligong, is an independent non-executive Director of
our Company. Mr. Zhai serves concurrently as deputy managing
president of China Association of Production Science, and deputy
executive and secretary-general of China Birth Defect Intervention and
Aid Foundation. Mr. Zhai served as deputy head of Institute for Energy
Economies of Shanxi Academy of social sciences from May 1979
to December 1982; chief officer of Shanxi Taiyuan Governmental
Research Center for Technology Economy from December 1982 to
December 1985; successively as director, chief general and deputy
head in the National Bureau of Statistics from January 1986 to
November 2000; chairman of Central Work Committee for Central
Government-led Enterprise and board of supervisors of State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council (“SASAC”) from November 2000 to July 2010. Mr. Zhai
graduated from the Department of Labor Economics at the Capital
University of Economics and Business, formerly known as Beijing
College of Economics, in July 1970.

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony, is independent non-executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Fan has previously held senior positions with
various international financial institutions and has gained extensive
experience in reviewing and analyzing audited financial statements
of public and private companies. He serves as a director or holds a
managerial position in the following companies:

BYGE  AARRENIERITES - BALER
KETHEEENSEERISR PR AR
BTFEMMESSREEREWER - BEER
197965 A = 1982F 12 BRI A& - SR BpT At
TREEFTEIFTR : 1982412 A& 19854 12 A{E 1L
A RKERMBREEMEERTERLLHE : 1986
F1HE2000F 11 A BEERRFGET RER © &
£+ BB : 2000511 A E2010F7 B#EEFH R
TtE¥ETR  ESEREEEEBEEZEg([HE
ZNEESIF -  BEEMITOFE7T ABEREH

RELBIAB(AIEAILREESE) BBEER

SAESEE - BARABILIENTES - Bk
RIS B & BB RE SR E R BB - 33
FURHTARRILAR ANGERABRENE
HREEER - KRN T AR EEEFREE
B

Period Name of company
HAm NGRS

Position

Bz

December 1994 — present

1994F12AF 4

August 2000 — present

20008 HES

August 2007 — present

20078 AES

August 2007 — present

20078 AES

Raymond Industrial Limited, listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (00229.HK)

NREBEARAR  NEBBRMED
(00229.HK)

CITIC Resources Holdings Limited, listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(01205.HK)

REERERBRAF -
REBEE P £ T(01205.HK)

Shenzhen World Union Properties
Consultancy Co., Ltd., Listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (002285.S2)

Y|t ERE R D BR AR
RRYIFEH R 5P £11(002285.57)

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd., listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(00220.HK)

B ERPBIERARAR
RE BB FT £ (00220.HK)

Independent non-executive director and
member of the audit committee

BYIFATESNETREGNE

Independent non-executive director and
chairman of the audit committee

BYNTEZREALREEER

Independent non-executive director

BYIFATES

Independent non-executive director and

chairman of the audit committee

BYFNTEZREALREEER
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Period

Ll

Name of company

NCIRE

Position

Bz

August 2008 — present

2008F8HES

September 2008 — present

2008F9HES

July 2010 — present

20107 A&E4S

May 2010 — present

20105845

August 2011 — present

2011F8AES

September 2011 — present

2011F9AES

Renhe Commercial Holdings Company
Limited, listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (01387.HK)

Aﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬂ

MEBR P £ (01387 .HK)

Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company
Limited, listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (02882.HK)

%&éﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁ?

MEBRR P £ (02882.HK)

Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited, listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (00563.HK)

FEEFHTHRESREARAR
REBB P £ (00563.HK)

Asialink Capital Limited
RIRERBRAT

Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited,

listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(06868.HK)
5&%%(%522) ERRBRAR]

& RSP E T (06868.HK)

Technovator International Limited, listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(01206.HK)

PR EBERERAT -
REBBFT £ (01206.HK)

Independent non-executive director and
chairman of the audit committee

BN IERITEERBNLZESER

Independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee

BYIERITEERENTLZEGKE

Independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee

BN IFHITEERENTLZEGKE

Chairman and managing director

TEREFRLE

Independent non-executive director,
member of the audit committee

BN IERTEERBEALZESNE

Independent non-executive director and
chairman of the audit committee

BN IERITEEREBNLZESER

Mr. Fan also served as an independent non-executive director and
a member of the audit committee of Chinney Alliance Group Limited

R2008F7 HE201156 A -

SERENEE—AE

(00385.HK), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
from July 2008 to June 2011, from which he resigned for personal
reasons. Mr. Fan received his MBA degree from University of Dallas in
1986. The Company considers that Mr. Fan possesses the relevant
accounting and financial management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules.

VS HSE A BT T /A A3 5 [ A PR A A1(00385. HK) &Y
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Board of Supervisors

The board of supervisors of the Company consists of five members.
Except that employee representative supervisors are elected by
employees, supervisors are elected by the shareholders of the
Company. Supervisors serve a term of 3 years after which they may
be re-elected or re-appointed. The responsibilities of the board of
supervisors includes but are not limited to: review and verify the
financial report, business report and profit distribution plan prepared
by the Board of Directors; and (for any question) appoint certified
public account and certified public auditor to review the financial
information of the Company once more; supervise financial activities
of the Company; supervise the performance of directors, president
and other senior management and see whether they have breached
any law, administrative regulations and details of the association
of the Company in the course of fulfilling their duties; and require
directors, president and senior management to correct the actions
that harm the interests of the Company as well as exercise other
rights granted to them by the Articles of Association of the Company.

Supervisor

The following table sets out certain information relating to our
SUpervisors.

Exg

ARAMESSREHARKEEK - BRBIAR
EFhREERLI  EEHHARRRREL - £
Hi3%F - MEBERRENZEAN TEME - EFEN
BESKRETRR)  BHMEESTSRAENNM
BHE  FHERERMEDET R : WA RERH)
RESNE SR EREENEE AR BN
BER  ERARFNPHEY  ERES - #K
BEREMEREEABNRKRE  REERENAT
BBRNTAEEERER TBRERARER
AR BREBR  BRERSRERABYERE
ARBNENTTE : URITEARREK AR ER)
BT R R EARRER o

ES

TRINBHEFENETES

Name Age Position Dates of joining Dates of Appointment

HE FiR B IIDNI=E: ZEEH

Mr. QIAO Baoping 56 Chairman of the Board of May 16, 2011 May 16, 2011
Supervisors

BRFEE EEeEE 2011558168 201145 16H

Mr. CHEN Bin 52 Supervisor January 6, 2005 May 16, 2011

PR S5 4 Ex 200551 A6H 201145A16H

Mr. XU Xingzhou 50 Supervisor May 16, 2011 May 16, 2011

RN A Ex 2011%5A16H 201145A16H

Mr. GUAN Xiaochun 58 Employee Representative November 12, 1998 May 16, 2011
Supervisor

R E BIRKES 1998411 A12H 201145A16H

Mr. LI Wei 37 Employee Representative March 10, 2008 May 16, 2011
Supervisor

FREE BIRKES 20083 H10H 201145A16H
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Mr. QIAO Baoping, is chairman of the board of supervisors of our
Company. Mr. Qiao joined our Group on May 16, 2011. He serves
concurrently as vice president and party secretary of the Guodian
Group. Mr. Qiao previously served successively as managing director
of standing committee and organization department of Central
Committee of the Communist Youth League from August 1998 to
May 2000; managing director of mass work department of Central
Work Committee for Central Government-led Enterprises from May
2000 to July 2000; managing director of mass work department
of Central Work Committee for Central Government-led Enterprise
from July 2000 to May 2003 (also as secretary of Committee of the
Communist Youth League for Central Government-led Enterprises);
managing director of Mass Work Bureau and United Front Work
Department of SASAC from May 2003 to June 2005; and member
of the party committee and disciplinary officer of China Power
Investment Corporation from June 2005 to June 2008. Mr. Qiao
received a Bachelor’s degree in political economics from Nankai
University in August 1983 and attended a part time Master program
in law in Party School of the CPC Central Committee and received a
Master degree in September 1999. He is a Senior Economist.

Mr. CHEN Bin, is a Supervisor of our Company. Mr. Chen joined
our Group on January 6, 2003. Mr. Chen also serves concurrently
as head of Finance Management Department and deputy chief
accountant of the Guodian Group. Mr. Chen previously served
successively as director of Finance and Accounting office and
director of financial budget office, financial and property rights
department of State Power Corporation from April 1997 to October
2001; general accountant of Sinohydro Engineering Corporation from
November 2001 to January 20083; general accountant of GD Power
from February 2003 to November 2006 (also vice president of GD
Power from March 2004 to November 2006); and head of financial
and property rights department as well as deputy general accountant
of the Guodian Group since November 2006 to October 2008. Mr.
Chen received a Bachelor’s degree in power management from
Northeast Dianli Institute, and a Master degree in management from
North China Electric Power University in April 2011. He is a Senior
Accountant.
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Mr. XU Xingzhou, is a Supervisor of our Company. Mr. Xu joined
our Group on May 16, 2011. Mr. Xu serves concurrently as head
of the Human Resource Department and head of Social Insurance
Center of the Guodian Group. Mr. Xu previously served successively
as deputy director and director of the Salary and Insurance Division
of Human Resource Department of State Power Corporation from
May 1999 to January 2003 and deputy head of the Human Resource
Department of the Guodian Group from January 2003 to November
2010 (also chairman of the board of supervisors of Guodian Sugian
Company and Guodian Kaiyuan Company since October 2003).
He has been appointed as head of the Social Insurance Center of
the Guodian Group since October 2003 and head of the Human
Resources Department of the Guodian Group since November 2010.
Mr. Xu received a Bachelor’s degree in management engineering
from Jilin Technology University in July 1983, attended a part-time
postgraduate program in Tsinghua University and received a Master’s
degree in enterprise management. Mr. Xu is a Senior Economist.

Mr. GUAN Xiaochun, is an employee representative Supervisor
of our Company. Mr. Guan joined our Company on November 12,
1998. He serves concurrently as party secretary, disciplinary officer
and chairman of the labor union of our Company, and as chairman
of board of directors of Yantai Longyuan Power Technology Co., Ltd.
(E=8RE HEMBR A T) (“‘Longyuan Technology”) and Guodian
Longyuan Electrical Co., Ltd. (“Longyuan Electrical”). Mr. Guan
previously served successively as President of Guodian Longyuan
Electrical Co., Ltd. from August 1998 to April 2001; President,
chairman of the board of directors of Longyuan Power from April
2001 to August 2004 and disciplinary officer and chairman of the
trade union of our Company from April 2006 to April 2009. Mr. Guan
received a Bachelor’s degree in engineering from Northeast Dianli
University in February 1982 and is a Senior Engineer.

Mr. LI Wei, is an employee representative Supervisor of our
Company. Mr. Li joined our Group on March 12, 2008. He serves
concurrently as deputy manager of the inspection and audit
department of our Company. Mr. Li previously served successively
as deputy director of the audit department and vice president of
the financial department of China National Electronic Materials
Corporation from March 2000 to December 2008; and deputy chief
accountant of United Power from March 2008 to October 2008. Mr.
Li received a Bachelor’s degree in economics from Hangzhou Institute
of Electronics Engineering and an MBA degree from Beijing University
of Aeronautics & Astronautics. Mr. Li is a Senior Accountant.

Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors and our Supervisors
confirms with respect to him/her that (i) he/she does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, Supervisors, senior management
or substantial or Controlling Shareholders of our Company; (ii) there
is no other information that should be disclosed for him/her pursuant
to the requirements under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (iii)
there are no other matters that need to be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEAE

The following table sets out certain information relating to our senior TF~XRI|IREHESREEAENETES °

management.

Name Age Position Dates of joining Responsibility

HE Fie B X B BE

Mr. LI Hongyuan 46 Executive Directorand  May 16, 2011 Implementation of the resolutions

President passed on the Board of Directors

and overall management of the
Company

FRERE HITE S RAaKrs 201145 416H HITARRZEEEREREBASRA
E’]/;%ui‘ﬁ?K

Ms. WANG Hongyan 47 Executive Director and ~ September 13, 2004  Assets management, budget

Chief Accountant management and financing

management of our Company

TRt WITESE REGETR 200449 A13H AARIMEBEEE  BEEER
BEEE

Mr. WANG Gonglin 52 Vice President December 26, 1998  Supervising workplace safety,
management of operation, and other
works relating to production and
management of the Company

FRAMEE Bl iasse 1998412 A26H EEIHESANEGE K28 REM
BHARRRAEREENEE

Mr. ZHANG Binquan 48 Vice President April 30, 2001 Marketing, public relations, and
international cooperation

RABREE EIRERCS 200144 A30H s - AEBENEREE

Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong 36 Vice President November 1, 2010 Reform of the incentive mechanism
of the Company, management of
personnel evaluation, informatization
construction, management of
properties and legal affairs

SREER S Bl 201011 A1H RN T RIS - ABREER - E8
bR~ MEREEFHREENNE

Mr. YANG Dong 39 Chief Engineer January 18, 2001 Innovation, R&D and development of
new products

BREE 8 TA2AD 200141 A18H FEmEBIFT - 3 e
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Position

B

Name

##

Age

FiR A B

Dates of joining

Responsibility
BE

Mr. TANG Dejun 43 Secretary of the Board

of Directors

E=gNE

Il

February 5, 2007

20072 H5H

Secretary duties of the Board; meeting
affairs relating to the board of
directors, board of supervisors,
general meetings of an entity of
which the Company is the controlling
shareholder; assist President in affairs
relating to securities, financing in
capital market and investor relations;
and in charge of the Administrative
Office of the Board and the Securities
Financing Division.

BEESSNETIE  AEARRER
BUEEg EFT BRRGEHE
BT BORECEEERSFSH
BATISRENRIREEXHBR -
NEEEGMAENELFFE -

Mr. LI Hongyuan — Please see details under the heading “Director”
above.

Ms. WANG Hongyan — Please see details under the heading “Director”
above.

Mr. WANG Gonglin, is vice president of our Company. Mr.
Wang joined our Group on December 26, 1998. Mr. Wang was
vice president and then President of Longyuan Technology from
December 1998 to June 2009. He was appointed as vice president
of our Company in June 2009. Mr. Wang received a Master’s degree
in thermal measurement and automation from Northeast Dianli
University in January 1990 and is a Senior Engineer.

Mr. ZHANG Binquan, is vice president of our Company. Mr. Zhang
joined the Group on April 30, 2001. Mr. Zhang previously served
successively as assistant President and vice president of Guodian
Longyuan Power Technology and Engineering Co., Ltd. & &R
BAREMIREREL2A A (“‘Longyuan Engineering”) from May
2001 to October 2005; manager of operation and development,
new energy department as well as President of solar department of
our Company from November 2005 to September 2008, President
of Guodian Ningxia Solar Co., Ltd since October 2008. Mr. Zhang
majored in control engineering and automation and graduated from
Harbin Institute of Technology in 1985 for undergraduate study and
received in equivalent master degree in management in Yanshan
University. Mr. Zhang is a Senior Economist of the Guodian Group.
Mr. Zhang also worked in China Great Wall Industry Corporation and
CITIC International Cooperation Co., Ltd.
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Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong, is vice president of our Company. Mr. Zhang
joined our Group on November 1, 2010. Mr. Zhang previously served
as project principal of Energy Conservation Information Dissemination
Center and project principal of project construction division of
Information Center of the State Economic and Trade Commission
from September 1999 to September 2004; deputy director of
research and consulting division of the SASAC’s Information Center
and director of application and development division of the SASAC’s
Information Center during the period of September 2004 to October
2010. Mr. Zhang majored in electric technology and received a
Bachelor degree from Taiyuan Heavy Machinery Institute. He also
received an MBA degree from Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics. Mr. Zhang is a Senior Engineer.

Mr. YANG Dong, is chief engineer of our Company. Mr. Yang
also serves concurrently as assistant President and manager of the
department of technology management of our Company. Mr. Yang
joined our Group on January 18, 2001. Mr. Yang previously served
as thermal mechanical engineer of North China Electric Power
Design Institute from 1993 to 1998; project engineer of ABB Beijing
Representative Office from 1998 to 2000; manager of Engineering
Department of Beijing Guodian Longyuan Environmental Engineering
Limited Liability Company from 2000 to 2004; President of Beijing
Longyuan Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd from August 2004 to
May 2010. Mr. Yang was assistant president and manager of the
department of technology management of our Company from June
2010 to June 2011. Mr. Yang received his Bachelor’s degree in
engineering and applied electronics technology from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University and an MBA degree from Renmin University of China.
Mr. Yang is an Engineer.

Mr. TANG Dejun, is secretary of the Board of Directors of our
Company. Mr. Tang also serves concurrently as director of Longyuan
Technology. Mr. Tang joined our Group on February 5, 2007. Mr.
Tang previously served as director of division of finance of Computer
& Microelectronics Development Center of Ministry of Information
Industry from October 2000 to December 2001; chief financial
officer (also secretary of board of directors) of CCID Consulting Co.,
Ltd. from December 2001 to November 2006; manager of finance
department of our Company from February 2007 to February 2008;
and vice president and chief accountant of Longyuan Technology
from February 2008 to April 2011. Mr. Tang received a Bachelor’s
degree in economics from Hangzhou Institute of Electronics
Engineering and a Master’s degree of economics in finance from
Central University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Tang is a Senior
Accountant.

RERSE  AARRFELIE - SRIEER2010
F11A1BIMARER o oR LA LE N 199949 A
E2004F9 A EEBIREBE RS SEEFR IR
BEEAUKBEREERE S OIEEEREEE
BE A 200459 A E2010F10 A HAM - kB #E
FREZEEFRLARFZARIRER BEZREE
FOERAZERR - REEEEENKEZAEMW
27 S ERAME LB - KHIVESIL RmMZE
MARBEIFERELSNMN - RAEERRRIRE
Bl

BREE  ARRRMATERM - BELEBAIE
EAARARBCEIERFEMEEILIE - B
AER2001F1A18HIMAREE o B AELBR
1093F £ 1998 F & 2E L T N R AT A2V T 72
Bl : 19984F Z 2000 #Z T ABB1L K 2K EZ )18 B
T F2EM ; 2000F 22004 F T4t RE B ERIRIR
Ti2EMR A Al RETEPALIE - 200448 A £201045
RHER - EEIERERRRIIEAR A AR
20106 AE2011F6 A » FEEAR AR RLLIEBHIE
FREMEIREEIE - IBLERER BB KRE
ETRRERSTRMSLESN  WESPEAR
RETHERBITEM - 5L TIEA -

BEEXE  AALRANESSWE - BLERF
BEFRREMNES - 55EER2007F2H58
IMAZREBE - 5% 4 518 72000610 A 220015
12AFEEEXBTEREMETERTFRF L
BB EE & ¢ 20014812 A £20064F11 AT & B
BN ERARMBEE(REZSMWE) - 2007
F2HZE2008F 28 - EARRMIEIBLLIE ; 2008
F2AZE2011F48 @ EAEREMEBLIEFE
SR o SAEBRERMMNE T TEER - EEE
EEAE T BT - ISR KB
i o GhEEE e -

EEMRBEREEARNARAA - —Z——FF®R 073



DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

5% BRENSREREAER

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. TANG Dejun — Please see the subsection above under the
heading of “Senior Management”.

Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen, is joint company secretary of our
company. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Approved Supervisor, a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wong serves as company secretary, accountant and authorized
representative of CCID Consulting Co., Ltd (stock code: HK08235).
Mr. Wong received a Bachelor degree of business administration in
City University of Hong Kong in 1993, majored in China trade and
minor in accounting; he did postgraduate study in department of
accounting of University of Lethbridge, Canada, minor in finance;
received a Bachelor degree from Oxford Brooks University in 2006
and majored in accounting. He also received a joint MBA degree from
Tsinghua University and MIT.
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The Board of the Company hereby presents to shareholders this
Annual Report and the audited financial Statements for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011.

Share Issuance and Listing

On December 30, 2011, the shares of the Company was listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited issuing an aggregate
of 1,092,500,000 H shares not including exercise of over-allotment
option, with a nominal value of RMB1.0 each, at the price of HKD 2.16
per share by way of an initial public offering (the “IPO”). In connection
with the Global Offering, 96,000,000 domestic state-owned shares
with a nominal value of RMB1.0 owned by Guodian Group were
converted into H shares on a one-for-one basis and transferred to the
National Council for Social Security Fund of the PRC for no additional
consideration in accordance with relevant laws of the People’s
Republic of China. As of December 31, 2011, the total share number
of the Company was 5,942,500,000, including 4,754,000,000
domestic shares and 1,188,500,000 H shares.

Share Capital

As of December 31, 2011, the total issued share capital of the
Company was RMB5,942,500,000, divided into 5,942,500,000
shares of RMB1.0 each. Details of movement in the share capital of
the Company during the year are set out in Note 34(c) to the Financial
Statements.

As of January 13, 2012, the underwriters to the Company in its initial
public offering, China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong
Securities Limited and UBS AG, Hong Kong Branch, exercised an
over-allotment option requiring the Company to issue an additional
121,270,000 H shares of RMB1.0 each. Upon the issuance of the
additional shares, the total issued share capital of the Company was
RMB6,063,770,000, divided into 6,063,770,000 shares of RMB1.0
each after exercise of over-allotment option.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Save as above share issuance and listing, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended December 31,
2011.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company or the PRC law, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Principal Business

The Company is principally engaged in (1) environmental and energy
saving solutions, and (2) manufacturing and services of renewable
energy facilities. The Company offers diversified products and services
as well as use various business modes in business operation. Details
of subsidiaries and associations of the Company are set out in Note
18 and 19 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Results

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2011 and the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 are set out in the audited
financial statements on pages 125 to 252.

A discussion and analysis of the Group performance during the year
and material factors underlying its results and financial position are
set out in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 20 to
61 of this Annual Report.

Profit Distribution

The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend
for the year ended December 31, 2011, except for the special
distribution, details of which are set out in Note 42(b) to the Financial
Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the

Company and its subsidiaries during the year are set up in Note 13 to
the Financial Statement.
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Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 34(a) to the Financial Statements, among which,
details of reserves attributable to the shareholders are set out in Note
34(e) to the Financial Statements.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 are set out in Note 27 to the
Financial Statements.

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the
Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2011.

A

REFARQ G EERZ B F BN B HREM T
34(a) » ERAIHSRE FTRENREEFBIHRT B
wABIFES4(e) °

RITERRHMER

ARARE REKEBARMN20114F12 8318 2R
TER M EMERAFEH N mERMFE2T7 -
EX - EENSHNEEAE

TRINEEHE2011E12A3 BILFEFERARTE
= EENSREEAENETER -

Name Position in the Company Date of Appointment
i RN BB ZEAH
Directors

=

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director May 16, 2011
RAKRFTE EERRIFVITES 201145161
Mr. YE Weifang Vice Chairman of the Board and Executive Director May 16, 2011
ERFEE BEERRATES 2011454161
Mr. YANG Guang Non-executive Director May 16, 2011
it FMITES 201145161
Mr. FENG Shuchen Non-executive Director May 16, 2011
SRR A FHITES 201145 A16H
Mr. LI Hongyuan Executive Director May 16, 2011
FREBFRE HITES 201145 A16H
Ms. WANG Hongyan Executive Director May 16, 2011
TRt WITES 201145H16H

Mr. LU Yanchang
BEIE S SE

Mr. ZHAI Ligong

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony
BIERSE

Independent Non-executive Director

BYIFATES

Independent Non-executive Director

BYIFATES

Independent Non-executive Director

BYIFNTES

September 21, 2011
2011F9H21H

September 21, 2011
2011F9H21H

September 21, 2011
2011F9H21H
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Name Position in the Company Date of Appointment
#®A KA TBAL ZEAH
Supervisor

Ex

Mr. QIAO Baoping Chairman of the Board of Supervisors May 16, 2011
BRFEE EESTE 201145 A16H
Mr. CHEN Bin Supervisor May 16, 2011
PR S5 4 Ex 201145 A16H
Mr. XU Xingzhou Supervisor May 16, 2011
ATEUN e Ex 201145 A16H
Mr. GUAN Xiaochun Employee Representative Supervisor May 16, 2011
it BIRKRES 2011454161
Mr. LI Wei Employee Representative Supervisor May 16, 2011
FREE BIKKES 201145 316H
Senior Management

EREEAR

Mr. LI Hongyuan Executive Director and President

FRERE MITESRRAKIE

Ms. WANG Hongyan
IRt

Mr. WANG Gonglin
TRMELE

Mr. ZHANG Binquan
RABRTE

Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong
REER T4

Mr. YANG Dong
BREE

Mr. TANG Dejun
SIS ESTE

Executive Director and Chief Accountant

MITEERAGE

Vice President
EFerg i

Vice President
EFerg i

Vice President
EFerg i

Chief Engineer
4 TH2AD

Board Secretary
ExgwE

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)

and considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are

independent of the Company.
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Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

Biographical details of Directors, supervisors and senior management
are set out on pages 62 to 74 of this Annual Report.

Service Contracts of the Directors and
Supervisors

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations, the Articles
of Association of the Company, and arbitration regulations, the
Company has entered into service contracts and appointment
letter with each executive Director, supervisor and non-executive
Director on November 28, 2011. Each service is a term of 3 years
commencing from May 16, 2011. Each appointment letter is a term
of 3 years commencing from May 16, 2011. The Company has made
appointment letter with each independent non-executive Director
on November 28, 2011 and it will last 3 years since the listing of its
shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or supervisors has
entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company are set out in Note 9 to the Financial Statements.

Interests of Directors and Supervisors in
Contracts

At the end of the year or at any time of the year, there was no contract
of significance to the Group’s business in which the Company and its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director or supervisor had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year
or at the end of the year.
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Interests of Directors in Competing Business

During the year of 2011, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors and their associates had any competing interests in any
business which competed, or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group:

ESRBFERBNES

P20 EERN - BRTIXFHEEN  BMEEEK
11 S BB B A M) B AN 51 B 2E 7 B 2 s IR R K
% 5 ok O] BERE R B S M TS R R A (5 S e

Position in the Company

N F AL

Name of Directors

EEns

Other Interests

HitbfE s

Non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Board
IEMTESRESK

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng
RXRTEE

Mr. YANG Guang
b it

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Mr. FENG Shuchen Non-executive Director

President of Guodian Group, Chairman of the board of
directors and non-executive director of GD Power
and Chairman of the board of directors and non-
executive director of Longyuan Power

HEEERKE  BEENEEFRRIIFNTEZTUAR
FERENEERMBIFNTES

Chief of Science and Comprehensive Industry
Department of Guodian Group
B EEBE R G S EEIFE

President of GD Power

SR A EBMITES BB E ) REIE

Interests and Short Positions of the Directors, EZ - EERSREEASRRG
Supervisors and Senior Management in the ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂ@géﬁfﬁ
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As of December 31, 2011, none of the Directors, supervisors and ~ #2011F12A831H * AR A& EE EZh e

senior management of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be registered in the register referred to therein, or which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares FTERERNIRGD ZES

As at January 13, 2012, so far as known to the Directors, the 201241 8138  BiESFRA © FTIAL(ERA
following persons (other than the Directors, supervisors and senior =®lEE - BEERSREEAEBIN) RARQ TG
management of the Company) had interests or short positions in the sk #EEGIK (0 2 % B IR 1E(GE 5 R EA & 1501 Y EEXVED
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be 52 Rk37 EBAIAATIRE 2 TR E -
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO:
Percentage in
Number of  the Relevant Percentage
Shares/ Class of in the Total
Underlying  Share Capital Share Capital
Name of Shareholder Class of Share Capacity Shares Held (Notes 1) (Notes 1)
(Share) (%) (%)
BRgE,/ A% RADEA 54 EEBRE ERAEY
BERG/HE ERZASL ZADH
RIPEE (BaE1) (FaE1)
(1) (%) (%)
Guodian Group Domestic shares Interests of beneficial owner and  4,754,000,000 100.00 78.40
BlEEE NER controlled corporation (Notes 2)
ERlAARIEARZER  (Long position)
(Btzr2)
(#8)
GD Power Domestic shares Interests of beneficial owner 2,376,500,000 49.99 39.19
BEE AER BB AR (Notes 2)
(Long position)
(Bzr2)
(FE)
Yan Yan H shares Interests of beneficial owner and 288,200,000 22.00 4.75
Ak Hi% controlled corporation (Notes 3)
ERBBARZBERE R (Long position)
GER)
(FE)
SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. H shares Interests of beneficial owner and 288,200,000 22.00 4.75
Hi% controlled corporation (Notes 3)
EnEBARTERR R (Long position)
GER)
(#8)
SAIF IV GP LP H shares Interests of beneficial owner and 288,200,000 22.00 4.75
HRZ controlled corporation (Notes 3)
ERBBARTERE R (Long position)
(Kt33)
(#8)
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Percentage in

Number of  the Relevant Percentage

Shares/ Class of in the Total

Underlying  Share Capital Share Capital

Name of Shareholder Class of Share Capacity Shares Held (Notes 1) (Notes 1)

(Share) (%) (%)

BREE,/ EH R A3 Rl L) RERRE ERAEH

BERG/HE EHZEAL ZBDL

RIPEE (ByaE1) (By=E1)

(B) (%) (%)

SAIF Partners IV L.P. H shares Interests of beneficial owner 288,200,000 22.00 4.75
HiR BB AR (Long position)
(###)

China High Speed Transmission H shares Interests of beneficial owner 144,100,000 11.00 2.38
Equipment Group Co. Ltd HE% EnlkE AR (Long position)
HERREDREEEERA (##)

Huaneng Renewables (Hong Kong) H shares Interests of beneficial owner 108,050,000 8.25 1.78
Limited HE% ERlB A R (Long position)
ERMEER(BE)ERAR (H##)

Datang Renewables (H.K.) Co., Limited ~ H shares Interests of beneficial owner 108,050,000 8.25 1.78
AEFR(ES)BBAR HE% BB AR (Long position)
(H##8)

State Grid International Development H shares Interests of beneficial owner 108,050,000 8.25 1.78
Limited Hi& EnliA AR (Long position)
BlIREREREREARAA (#2)

China Huadian Hong Kong H shares Interests of beneficial owner 108,050,000 8.25 1.78
FEESEEERAA H BB AR (Long position)
(##)

Beijing High Technology Venture Capital  H shares Interests of beneficial owner 105,637,000 8.07 1.74
Co., Ltd. HE% BB A R (Long position)
ERBHERMAIRRERG ARAR (H##)

National Council for Social Security Fund  H shares Interests of beneficial owner 96,000,000 7.33 1.58
of the PRC HE% BB AR (Long position)
2EHEREEGESE (H#R)

SDIC Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. H shares Interests of beneficial owner 72,050,000 5.50 119
B EAERERAA HiR BB AR (Long position)
(###)
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Notes:

1. This percentage is calculated on the basis of the number of underlying shares/
total shares that had been issued by the Company as of January 13, 2012.

2. Guodian Group holds, directly or indirectly, 100% of the domestic shares via
GD Power. Guodian Group has 51.72% of the interests in the total shares
of GD Power and GD Power has 49.99% of the domestic shares. Therefore,
Guodian Group is deemed to have the interests in the domestic shares
possessed by GD Power.

3. Yan Yan holds 22.00% of the H shares indirectly via SAIF Partners IV L. P.
through SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. and SAIF IV GP LP. He is the controlling
shareholder of SAIF IV Capital Ltd., SAIF IV GP LP, and SAIF Partners IV L. P.
SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. is the controlling shareholder of SAIF IV GP LP. SAIF IV
GP LP is the controlling shareholder of SAIF Partners IV L.P. SAIF Partners IV
L.P. has 22.00% of the H shares. Therefore, Yan Yan, SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd.,
and SAIF IV GP LP are deemed to have the interests in the H shares held by
SAIF Partners IV L. P.

Management Contracts

The Company did not enter into any contract in respect of the
management or administration of the entire or any significant part of
the business of the Company nor such contract subsisted at any time
during 2011.

Subsequent Events

Details of non-adjustment events after the balance sheet date of the
Company are set out in Note 42 to the Financial Statements.

Connected Transactions

The Company have entered into certain contracts with its connected
persons (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules). These
transactions were monitored and managed by the Company in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Bt -

1. ZADLRUARRFR201241 5138 B 21T
PHEBRHBBEE -
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3. BB BSAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. &ZSAIF IV GP LPAESAIF
Partners IV L.P.fE##522.00%HAE o B4 ESAIF
IV GP Capital Ltd. * SAIF IV GP LPIA X SAIF Partners IV
L.P.HIEAZNER © SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd.ZSAIF IV GP
LPEYIEA% AR SR = SAIF IV GP LPRZSAIF Partners IV L.P.#)
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Major connected transactions of the Group during 2011 are as
follows:

U]

2

084

Non-exempt One-off Connected Transaction

During the year of 2011, the Group has not entered into any non-
exempt one-off connected transactions which were discloseable
or subject to independent shareholders’ approval under the
Listing Rules.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

The Group has entered into certain non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during the year.

Upon the listing of the Company’s shares, HKSE approved
the annual caps of those non-exempt continuing connected
transactions and granted a waiver to the Company from
strict compliance with the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements. The table below has set out
the annual caps and the actual transaction amount of such kind
of connected transactions:

TIAREER20MFREANTIZ@ERS ¢

() TERE-MERERS

2011 - REEMETZRIE EHARAET
VAR 5B sk B 1S 98 S A R HL /Y FERA S — IR 1 S

(S TEREFERERS

AEENAFEI T T BT RRE BN
%5 -

ARREREND EMEESERXMHZETE
HERERERZFE LROME  WERT
HReBRBETERAE B BIRILENR
E o TRITIHERER FNFE LRANER
RHEH

Cap for 2011 Actual

as Disclosed Transaction

in the Amount

Connected Party Transaction Type Prospectus for 2011

BRERKE 2011 FE

BES REE|H 20MFEFELR BBRRXZEHE

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR®BERT) (AR¥E&ERT)

1 Guodian Group Provision of Products and services 11,354.0 12,242.7
HEEE by the Group to Guodian Group

and its subsidiaries
FR ZN £ [ () B 26 £ B J L /B
RN EFR A E R RS

2 Guodian Group Provision of products and services 780.0 692.6
HEEE by Guodian Group and its
subsidiaries to the Group
ISR E R ENE A TR
NEE R A E M MR

3 United Power Provision of products and services 778.0 410.9
GEB N to United Power and its
subsidiaries by the Group
FR 7N 5 [ () B B ) R LT
NI E G AR TS
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Cap for 2011 Actual

as Disclosed Transaction

in the Amount

Connected Party Transaction Type Prospectus for 2011
BRERKE 200115 FE

BER RBEH 20MFEFEELER BBRIXSZ5EHE

(RMB million)  (RMB million)
(AR®EHEER) (AR¥EER)

4 11th Institute Provision of products and 320.0 315.8
F+ M5 services by the Group to the

[T Electronics Eleventh Design
& Research Institute Scientific
and Technological Engineering
Corporation Limited

HAREREREXENE+—
R AARE TR D AR
AR E m N R TS

5 11th Institute Provision of products and services 100.0 84.5
F+ M5 by the IT Electronics Eleventh

Design & Research Institute
Scientific and Technological
Engineering Corporation Limited
to the Group

HESEXEHE+—RHAE
PR T2 B R A Bl [AZR
& B R M E m M RS

6 United Power Lease of properties by the Group 25.0 20.2
BaB to United Power
HAKE RS 8 HEYE

7 Beijing Full Dimension Power Tech Provision of products and services 151.0 87.2
Co., Ltd. by Beijing Full Dimension Power
I REOHEEHEHEER AR Tech Co., Ltd. to the Group

BRIt 2MES HRHRER AT
AN 52 B (2 o S AR 7%

8 Longyuan Technology Provision of products and services 16.0 114
BER AT by Longyuan Technology to the
Group
HRERBL T (M AN SR B fR A 2 mm
Pl 75
9 Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst Co., Ltd. Provision of products and services 86.0 82.2
TErsERE(CBEIBR AR by Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst

Co., Ltd. to the Group
HITERERECEIAR QB RA
SR HEm MRS
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Provision of products and services by the Group to the
Guodian Group and its subsidiaries (other than the Group)

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with the Guodian Group on November 23, 2011.

Material terms and conditions of the agreement are set out as
follows:

Pursuant to this master agreement, the goods and services to be
provided by the Group to the Guodian Group and its subsidiaries
(other than the Group) include:

e Environmental protection and energy conservation solutions
services segment: (i) environmental protection products
(including, among others, ash removal, water treatment and
denitrification catalyst); (ii) energy conservation products
(including, among others, plasma-assisted coal combustion
equipment); (iii) environmental protection services (including,
among others, desulfurization concession service,
denitrification concession service, desulfurization EPC service,
denitrification EPC service, water treatment build-operate-
transfer (BOT) service); and (iv) energy conservation services
(including, among others, steam turbine flow passage
improvement service and EMC); and

e Renewable energy equipment manufacturing and integrated
solutions services segment: (i) WTGs and their parts and
components; (i) solar power products; (iii) wind power
services including wind farm EPC services; and (iv) solar
power services including station EPC services.

If the terms and conditions of similar products and services
offered by an Independent Third Party are no better than those
offered by one party, the other party shall give priority in sourcing
the requisite products and services from the first party.

The Group and the Guodian Group and its subsidiaries (other
than the Group) will enter into separate agreements which shall
set out the specific scope of products and services, terms and
conditions of providing such products and services according to
the principles laid down by the agreement.

The agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 2013. Either party may terminate the agreement upon giving
the other party at least three months’ written notice.

. AKEOEEEERAREQE (BRAEES)
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o RRREFEAFRRIEDEL : ()VIRIREM
(BIEBREE ~ /KRR RALAEE(LEISE)  (i)&h
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(il RIR RS (BB AR A 2 RS ~ AR AN
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(BB AR RSERIE MEMCE) &
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The products to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the following pricing policy:

(1) government-prescribed price (including any price prescribed
by any relevant local government, if applicable);

(2) where there is no government-prescribed price but there is a
government-guidance price, then the government-guidance
price;

(8) where there is neither a government-prescribed price nor
a government-guidance price, the market price, which is
defined as the price at which the same type of products and/
or services are provided by the Independent Third Parties in
the ordinary course of business; or

(4) where none of the above is applicable or where it is not
practical to apply the above pricing policies, then the price
agreed between the relevant parties shall be based on arm’s
length negotiation and shall be the reasonable costs incurred
in providing the products plus reasonable profits.

The above pricing mechanism is hereinafter referred to as the
“Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.”

The services to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the following pricing policy:

(1) the bidding price where the bidding process is required; or
(2) where no bidding process is involved, the market price.

The above pricing mechanism is hereinafter referred to as the
“Applicable Standard Services Pricing Policy.”

The Group would be accorded priority by the Guodian Group
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) in the provision of
the relevant products and services, provided that the terms
and conditions offered by Independent Third Parties to the
Guodian Group and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are
no more favorable than those offered by the Group for the same
products or services, and in return, under the same terms and
conditions, the Group has undertaken to the Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) that it shall not provide
products and services which are less favorable than those offered
by the Group to Independent Third Parties.
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Guodian Group is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is, together with its subsidiaries, a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this continuing
connected transaction for 2011 was RMB11,354.0 million and the
actual transaction amount was RMB12,242.7 million.

Provision of products and services by the Guodian Group
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) to the Group

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith
and at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and
services with the Guodian Group on November 23, 2011. Please
refer to relevant disclosure under “1. Provision of products and
services by the Group to the Guodian Group and its subsidiaries
(other than the Group)” for material terms and conditions of the
agreement.

Goods and services to be provided by the Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) to the Group include:
S0O2 emissions reduction equipment, NOx emissions reduction
equipment and water supply, electricity supply, gas supply and
consulting services.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this continuing
connected transaction for 2011 was RMB780.0 million and the
actual transaction amount was RMB692.6 million.

Provision of products to United Power and its subsidiaries
by the Group

The Company has entered into a master agreement in good faith
and at arm’s length with United Power for provision of products to
United Power and its subsidiaries by our Group on November 23,
2011. Pursuant to this agreement, the products to be provided
to United Power and its subsidiaries by our Group are parts and
components of WTGs.

Material terms and conditions of the agreement are set out as
follows:

Subsidiaries of both parties will enter into separate agreements
which shall set out the specific scope of products and services,
terms and conditions of providing such products and services
according to the principles laid down by the agreement.

The products to be provided under the agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.
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The agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 2013. Either party may terminate the agreement upon giving
the other party at least three months’ written notice.

The products to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

The Company owns 70%, while Longyuan Power owns 30%,
of equity interest in United Power. Longyuan Power is a 63.68%
owned subsidiary of the Guodian Group, the Company’s
controlling shareholder, United Power is therefore an associate
of the Guodian Group. Therefore, United Power is the connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(4) and Rule 14A.11(5)
of the Listing Rules. The subsidiaries of United Power are the
Company’s connected persons under Rule 14A.11(4) and Rule
14A.11(6) of the Listing Rules. The result of the transactions
between United Power and its subsidiaries and the Group will
be eliminated in consolidation because United Power is the
Company’s connected person as well as its subsidiary.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this continuing
connected transaction for 2011 was RMB778.0 million and the
actual transaction amount was RMB410.9 million.

Provision of products and services to the Group by the 11th
Institute

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with The IT Electronics Eleventh Design & Research Institute
Scientific and Technological Engineering Corporation Limited
(“11th Institute”) on November 23, 2011.

Material terms and conditions of the agreement are set out as
follows:

Pursuant to this master agreement, the products to be supplied
to the Group include solar power equipment and spare parts,
and the services to be supplied to the Group include engineer
design, agency services to purchase certain accessory equipment
and construction of facility system in relation to the Group’s solar
pOwWer Services.

If the conditions of similar products and services and the fees
payable thereof offered by an independent third party are not
better than those offered by one party, the other party shall give
priority in sourcing the requisite products and services from the
first party.
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Relevant subsidiaries of both parties will enter into separate
agreements which shall set out the specific scope of products and
services, terms and conditions of providing such products and
services according to the principles laid down by the agreement.

The products to be provided under the agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

The agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 2013. Either party may terminate the agreement upon giving
the other party at least three months’ written notice.

The 11th Institute owns 40% of equity interest in Guodian Solar
System Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“GD Solar (Shanghai)”),
which is a 50% owned subsidiary of Guodian Solar (Jiangsu) Co.,
Ltd. (BE etk GI&EF) BEAR) (“GD Solar’). GD Solar is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. Therefore, the 11th Institute
is a substantial shareholder of GD Solar (Shanghai) and the
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(1) of the
Listing Rules. The 11th Institute is not otherwise connected to the
Guodian Group.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this continuing
connected transaction for 2011 was RMB320.0 million and the
actual transaction amount was RMB315.8 million.

Provision of products and services by the Group to the 11th
Institute

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with the 11th Institute on November 23, 2011. The products
provided by the Group to the 11th Institute are equipment and
spare parts. Please refer to the disclosures under “4. Provision of
products and services to the Group by the 11th Institute” for the
material terms of this master agreement.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this continuing
connected transaction for 2011 was RMB100.0 million and the
actual transaction amount was RMB84.5 million.
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Properties Leasing Agreement

The Company entered into a master leasing agreement with
United Power in good faith and at arm’s length on November 23,
2011.

Material terms and conditions of the agreement are set out as
follows:

The Company agreed to lease land and buildings to United Power
and its subsidiaries as offices, production facilities, workshops
and staff quarters.

United Power and its subsidiaries are not entitled to sub-lease or
transfer any of the leases to another party without prior written
consent from the Company;

This agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 2013, and is subject to compliance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules by us, renewable upon mutual agreement of the
parties;

During the term of the leases for the properties, the parties to
each lease will bear their own taxes in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations;

United Power have warranted that it and its subsidiaries will pay
the rents specified for each of the properties in a timely manner
and that United Power and its subsidiaries shall use the properties
in accordance with the leases and not do or allow any damage to
the value of the properties;

The rights and obligations of the parties under the master leasing
agreement are not transferable; and

The rent for each of the leases has been determined for the three
year period with reference to comparable properties in similar
locations as specified in each of the leases and (where applicable)
will be adjusted in accordance with the terms of the lease by
mutual agreement or by the appointment of an independent
valuer acceptable to both parties. However, any such increment
in rent has to be reasonable and no higher than the rent that
would otherwise be payable by an Independent Third Party paying
market rent for similar properties.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this continuing
connected transaction for 2011 was RMB25.0 million and the
actual transaction amount was RMB20.2 million.
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Provision of products and services to the Group by Beijing
Full Dimension Power Tech. Co., Ltd.

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith
and at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and
services with Beijing Full Dimension Power Tech. Co., Ltd. (“Full
Dimension”) on November 23, 2011.

Material terms and conditions of the agreement are set out as
follows:

Pursuant to this master agreement, the products to be provided
to the Group include equipment for improvement of the circulation
function of the steam turbine, all necessary spare parts and
technical materials as required for performing the improvement.
The services to be provided by Full Dimension to the Group
include design, testing, installation, adjusting, examination and
acceptance, technical guidance, technical assistances and
training in relation to the improvement of the circulation function of
the steam turbine.

The agreement is for a term of three years ending December 31,
2018. Either party may terminate the agreement upon giving the
other party 3 months’ written notice.

The products to be provided under the agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

The services to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Services Pricing Policy.

Full Dimension owns 20% of equity interest in Beijing Long Wei
Power Generation Technology Co., Ltd. (3t RBEE 2 B K T B R
Aa]) (“BJLW?), which is a 60% subsidiary of United Power. The
Company owns 70% of equity interest in United Power. Therefore,
Full Dimension is a substantial shareholder of BJLW and the
Company’s connected person under Rule 14A.11(1) of the Listing
Rules. Full Dimension is not otherwise connected to the Guodian
Group.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this continuing
connected transaction for 2011 was RMB151.0 million and the
actual transaction amount was RMB87.2 million.
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Provision of products and services by Longyuan
Technology and its subsidiaries to the Group

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with Longyuan Technology on November 23, 2011.

Material terms and conditions of the agreement are set out as
follows:

Pursuant to this master agreement, the products and services
to be provided to the Group by Longyuan Technology and its
subsidiaries include plasma-assisted coal combustion equipment,
and other products and services.

If the conditions of similar products and services and the fees
payable thereof offered by an independent third party are not
better than those offered by Longyuan Technology and its
subsidiaries, the Group shall give priority in sourcing the requisite
products and services from the first party.

The Group and Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries will
enter into separate agreements which shall set out the specific
scope of products and services, terms and conditions of providing
such products and services according to the principles laid down
by the agreement.

This agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 20183. Either party may terminate the master agreement upon
giving the other party three months’ written notice.

The products to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

Longyuan Technology is the Company’s 23.25% owned
subsidiary. As of the Latest Practicable Date, Hero Asia (BVI)
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Longyuan
Power, owns approximately 18.8% of equity interest in Longyuan
Technology. Given that Longyuan Power is a subsidiary of the
Guodian Group, Longyuan Technology is a connected person
of the Company under Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules. The
subsidiaries of Longyuan Technology are the connected persons
of the Company under Rule 14A.11(6) of the Listing Rules. The
result of the transactions between Longyuan Technology and
its subsidiaries and the Group will be eliminated in consolidation
because Longyuan Technology is the Company’s connected
person as well as its subsidiary.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this continuing
connected transaction for 2011 was RMB16.0 million and the
actual transaction amount was RMB11.4 million.
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Provision of products by Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst Co.
Ltd. to the Group

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst Co. Ltd. (IL#rge)R &L Bl A R A
7)) (“Jiangsu Longyuan”) on November 23, 2011.

Material terms and conditions of the agreement are set out as
follows:

Pursuant to this master agreement, the goods to be provided
by Jiangsu Longyuan to the Group include SCR denitrification
catalyst.

This agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 20183. Either party may terminate the master agreement upon
giving the other party three months’ written notice.

The products to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

Jiangsu Longyuan is a 70% owned subsidiary of Longyuan
Environmental, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary. Guodian
Environment Research Institute, a subsidiary of the Guodian
Group, holds the remaining 30% of equity interest in Jiangsu
Longyuan. The Guodian Group is the Company’s controlling
shareholder. Therefore, Jiangsu Longyuan is an associate of the
Guodian Group and the Company’s connected person under Rule
14A.11(4) and Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules. The result of
the transactions between Jiangsu Longyuan and its subsidiaries
and the Group will be eliminated in consolidation because Jiangsu
Longyuan is the Company’s connected person as well as its
subsidiary.

During the reporting period, the annual cap of this continuing
connected transaction for 2011 was RMB86.0 million and the
actual transaction amount was RMB82.2 million.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed each of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
conducted:

(1) in the usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient
comparable transactions to determine whether they are on
normal commercial terms, from the perspective of the Group,
on terms no less favorable than the terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(8) in accordance with relevant agreement governing the relevant
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Chapter 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged by the Board of the Company to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the work
performed, the auditor of the Company confirmed to the Board of
Directors of the Company that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions:

(1) have been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company;

(2) involving the provision of goods and services by the Group
were priced in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group stipulated under the relevant agreements governing
such transactions;

(8) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the relevant annual cap as disclosed in
the Prospectus of the Company, except for the provision
of products and services by the Group to the Guodian
Group and its subsidiaries with an aggregate amount of
RMB12,242,660,000 which has exceeded the annual cap of
RMB11,354,000,000 as disclosed in the Prospectus.

The auditor has issued his qualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 84 to 94 of this
Annual Report in accordance with rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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In respect of the abovementioned connected transactions, the
Directors also confirmed that the Company was in compliance
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The reasons for exceeding the annual cap for the above
transaction are set out in the announcement published by the
Company on March 27, 2012. A circular containing, among other
things, details of the continuing connected transaction for the
provision of products and services by the Group to the Guodian
Group and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31,
2011 will be despatched to the shareholders of the Company in
due course and approval will be sought from the independent
shareholders of the Company to approve and ratify the exceeded
caps in 2011.

Compliance with Non-Competition Agreement

The Company entered into the Non-Competition Agreement with
Guodian Group and GD Power respectively on November 23, 2011.

Pursuant to the agreement, Guodian Group and GD Power provided
certain non-competition undertakings to the Company and granted
the options and pre-emptive rights to acquire the retained business
and any new business opportunities of Guodian Group or GD Power
(as the case may be) to the Company. Pursuant to the agreement, the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible
for reviewing and considering whether or not to exercise such options
and pre-emptive rights and are entitled, on behalf of the Company, to
review the implementation of the undertakings under the arrangement
on an annual basis.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company have reviewed the implementation of the Non-Competition
Agreement and confirm Guodian Group and GD Power has been
in full compliance with the agreement and there was no breach by
Guodian Group and GD Power.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the purchase from the
Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate contributed 24.6% of the
Group’s total purchase for the year, among which, the total purchase
from the largest supplier contributed 7.7% of the Group’s total
purchase for the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the sales to the Group’s five
largest customers in aggregate contributed 77.9% of the Group’s
total sales for the year, among which, the sales to the largest
customer contributed 65.4% of the Group’s total sales for the year.

Guodian Group’s subsidiaries as the Group’s customers mainly
include GD Power and China Longyuan Power which are all the
Group’s connected person. Save as disclosed above, during the year,
so far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, associates of
Directors or any shareholders of the Company (who to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Company’s five largest suppliers or five
largest customers during the year.
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Retirement and Employees Benefit Scheme

Details of the Group’s retirement and employees benefit scheme are
set out in Note 7(a) to the Financial Statements.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices

As a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Company strives to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices and complies with the code provisions as set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
as set out on pages 100 to 113 of this Annual Report for details.

Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and so
far as the Directors are aware, not less than 21.6% of the issued
share capital of the Company was held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual Report, which was in
compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

Material Litigation

As of December 31, 2011, the Company was not involved in any
material litigation or arbitration. So far as the Directors are aware,
no material litigation or claims are pending or threatened against the
Company.

Audit Committee

The 2011 annual results of the Group and the Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011 prepared in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards have been reviewed
by the audit committee of the Company.

Auditors

KPMG and RSM China Public Accountants Co., Ltd. were appointed
as auditors for the financial statements prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises of PRC for the year ended
December 31, 2011, respectively. The enclosed Financial Statements
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards have been audited by KPMG. KPMG and RSM China
Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd. have been appointed by the
Company since the date of preparation of its listing.

By order of the Board

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
Chairman of the Board

ZHU Yongpeng

Beijing, March 27, 2012
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Board of Supervisors’s Report

In 2011, in the interests of shareholders and the long-term interests
of the Company, and in strict compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and Articles of Association of the Company, the board of
supervisors of the Company had carefully exercised its supervision
over the convening and decision making procedure, and its
implementation procedure of the Board of Directors to ensure they
are in line with relevant laws and regulations as well as the provisions
of Articles of Association. During this reporting year, the main works
of the board of supervisors of the Company are as follows:

(1) Meeting Convened by the Board of Supervisors

1. The first meeting of the first session of the board of
supervisors was held on May 16, 2011, at which
the Resolutions regarding the Election of the Chief
Supervisor of Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Corporation Limited was considered and
approved.

2. The second meeting of the first session of the board
of supervisors was held on June 10, 2011, at which
the Resolutions regarding the Rules and Procedures
of Meetings of the board of supervisors of Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
was considered and approved.

& The third meeting of the first session of the board
of supervisors was held on July 22, 2011, at which
the Resolutions regarding 2010 Financial Report,
the Resolutions regarding 2011 Financial Budget,
and Work Report of the board of supervisors were
considered and approved.

(2) Work Information of the Board of Supervisors

In 2011, the board of supervisors mainly carried out the
following works:

During the reporting year, the board of supervisors carefully
reviewed the Company’s operation plan and development
plan and put forward reasonable suggestions and advice to
the Board of Directors. The board of supervisors exercised
strict and effective supervision over significant decisions and
specific decisions of the Company’s senior management
to see whether they are in compliance with the laws and
regulations of the country, Articles of Association of the
Company, and the interests of shareholders.
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The board of supervisors carefully reviewed and approved
the Directors’ Report, reviewed Financial Report and Dividend
Distribution Plan which are to be presented at this general
meeting of shareholders by the Board of Directors. The board
of supervisors is of the opinion that the members of the Board
of Directors, President and other senior management were
strictly in compliance with the principle of integrity, worked
diligently, exercised their powers in the maximum interests
of the Company, and were able to carry out various works
in accordance with Articles of Association. Meanwhile, their
operation was standard and the internal control system
became more and more perfect. The transactions of the
Company with connected persons were strictly in compliance
with the overall interest provisions of the Company’s
shareholders and fair and reasonable prices. Till now, the
board of supervisors did not discover that the Board of
Directors, President, and senior management had abused their
rights and functions or any of their actions that were prejudicial
to the interests of the Company, shareholders and staff of the
Company, or in any way violated the laws, regulations and the
Articles of the Association of the Company.
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the prospect of the Group.
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By Order of the Board of Supervisors REEE @G
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors EEoTE
Mr. QIAO Baoping BREEE
Beijing, China, March 27, 2012 FEHER - 2012F3 A27H
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The Board of the Company hereby presents to the shareholders the AR REE @I [AAREIE 2 HEZ2011F12 831
corporate governance report for the year ended December 31, 2011. B IFEENREEA®ME o

Corporate governance framework of the Company is set out as ~ ZNA R EEAEEENT ¢
follows:
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Corporate Governance Practices

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed to
ever improving its corporate governance and regarded it as an
indispensible part to create values for shareholders. The Company
has established a modern corporate governance structure which
comprises a number of independently operated and effectively
balanced bodies including general meetings, the Board, the board
of supervisors and senior management with reference to the code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has
also adopted the Code as its own corporate governance practices.
During 2011, the Company has strictly complied with the principles
and code provisions, and some of the recommended best practices as
set out in the Code without any deviation from the code provisions as
set out in the Code during 2009.

Corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
summarized below.

1. The Board

The Board exercises its powers and functions in accordance
with the provisions as set out the Articles of Association. Under
the principle of acting in the best interest of the Company and its
shareholders, the Board reports its works at the general meetings,
implements the resolutions passed thereon and is accountable to
the general meetings.

1.1 Composition of the Board

As of December 31, 2011, the Board consisted of 9 Directors,
including 3 executive Directors, 3 non-executive Directors and
3 independent non-executive Directors.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out on pages 62 to 74 of this Annual Report.
There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationship) among members
of the Board. The structure of the Board is well balanced
with each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise relevant to the business operation and development
of the Group. All Directors are aware of their joint and several
responsibilities to the shareholders.
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Since the listing of the Company, the Board has been
in compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
regarding the appointment of at least 3 independent non-
executive Directors and the qualifications of the 3 independent
non-executive Directors of the Company are in full compliance
with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules. In addition, the Company has received annual
confirmations from independent non-executive Directors as to
their respective independence in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company therefore considered all
independent non-executive Directors to be in compliance with
the independence requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.

The composition of the current Board of the Company is set
out as follows:

The Board

The Board of the Company consists of 9 Directors, including
3 executive Directors, 3 non-executive Directors and 3
independent non-executive Directors. The Board of Directors
of the Company exercises the following powers and functions:
hold general meetings, report works of the Board of Directors
at general meetings, implement the resolutions passed at
general meetings, define the business plan and investment
plan of the Company, prepare annual budget and final
accounts, work out profit distribution plan and proposals
of increasing and reducing the registered capital as well as
exercise other powers, functions and responsibilities as set
out in the details of the Articles of Association. The Company
has entered into service contracts with all the executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors respectively.
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Certain information concerning the Directors of the Company is
set out in the table below. Our current non-executive Directors
and executive Directors were elected as the current Directors
on May 16, 2011 and our independent non-executive
Directors were appointed on September 21, 2011 and their
appointment came into effect on the listing date. This term of

all the Directors of the Company will be terminated on May 15,

TREMLAEBARABEEHETER - &
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2014.

Name Age Rank Date of Appointment

HE FiR B ZEAH

Zhu Yongpeng 61 Chairman of the Board and May 16, 2011
Non-executive Director

KKK BEERMFIEPTES 201155A16H

Ye Weifang 59 Vice Chairman of the Board and May 16, 2011
Executive Director

ERxF BESRFNTES 201155A16H

Yang Guang 47 Non-executive Director May 16, 2011

k5 FEMITES 201155A16H

Feng Shuchen 47 Non-executive Director May 16, 2011

1 FEMITES 201155A16H

Li Hongyuan 46 Executive Director May 16, 2011

FRIE HITES 201155A16H

Wang Hongyan 47 Executive Director May 16, 2011

bt HITES 201155A16H

Lu Yanchang 71 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011

aFu= BIFNTES 201149A21H

Zhai Ligong 65 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011

2=hva’) BIUFNITES 201149A21H

FAN Ren Da Anthony 51 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011

BT

BIFMITES

201159 H21H
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is required
to hold at least 4 Board meetings each year, to be convened
by the Chairman of the Board. A notice of at least 14 days
shall be given for a regular board meeting. The notice shall
state the time, venue and means by which the board meeting
will be convened.

Except for the Board’s consideration of matters in relation
to connected transactions as stipulated by the Articles
of Associations, the quorum for a board meeting is the
presentation of at least half of the total number of the
Directors. A Director may attend the board meeting in person,
or appoint another Director in writing as his proxy to attend the
board meeting. The secretary to the Board of the Company
is responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes of board
meetings and ensuring that such minutes are available for
inspection by any Director.

During 2011, the Board held nine meetings in total (including
one meeting on continuing connected transactions and
investment management proposed by independent non-
executive Directors). Presence of Directors at board meetings
is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name Position in the Company Attended/Held Attendance Rate

e AN BB b RBITEERH HE=

Zhu Yongpeng Chairman of the Board and Non- 9/9 100%
executive Director

KRR EERMBIFNTES

Ye Weifang Vice Chairman of the Board and 9/9 100%
Executive Director

®ES BIEERFANTES

Yang Guang Non-executive Director 9/9 100%

k2t FEHMITESE

Feng Shuchen Non-executive Director 9/9 100%

e FEHMITESE

Li Hongyuan Executive Director 9/9 100%

PRIR HITEE
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Number of Meetings

Name Position in the Company Attended/Held Attendance Rate
e A RBAL HEBOTEERRE HER
Wang Hongyan Executive Director 9/9 100%
FRe HITES

Lu Yanchang Independent Non-executive Director 2/2 100%
laFua= BUIFHITES

Zhai Ligong Independent Non-executive Director 2/2 100%
2] BUIFHITES

FAN Ren Da Anthony Independent Non-executive Director 2/2 100%

k= BIUFBITES

1.3 Powers Exercised by the Board and the Management

The powers and duties of the Board and the management
have been clearly defined in the Articles of Association, which
aims to provide adequate check-and-balance mechanism for
good corporate governance and internal control.

The Board is responsible for deciding on the Company’s
business and investment plans, determining the establishment
of the Company’s internal management structure, formulating
the Company’s basic administration system, making
resolutions on other material business and administrative
matters of the Company and monitoring the performance of
the management.

Led by the President (also an executive Director), the
management of the Company is responsible for implementing
the resolutions approved by the Board and administering the
Company’s day-to-day operation and management.

1.4 Chairman and President

The posts of the Chairman of the Board and President of the
Company (i.e. chief executive officer pursuant to the relevant
Listing Rules) are segregated and held by different persons
to ensure their respective independence of responsibilities,
accountability and the balance of power and authority
between them. Mr. Zhu Yongpeng acts as the Chairman of
the Board and Mr. Li Hongyuan acts as the President. The
Board considered and approved the Rules and Procedures of
the Board Meeting and the Terms of Reference of the Senior
Management of the Company, which clearly defined the
division of duties between the Chairman and the President.
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Mr. Zhu Yongpeng, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible
for leading the Board in determining the overall development
strategies of the Company, ensuring that the Board is
functioning effectively in performing its duties, discussing
significant and appropriate matters in a timely manner,
ensuring the formulation of good corporate governance
practices and procedures by the Company and ensuring that
the Board acts in the best interest of the Company and all of
its shareholders. Mr. Li Hongyuan, the President, is mainly
responsible for the Company’s day-to-day operation and
management, including organizing the implementation of
Board resolutions, making day-to-day decisions etc.

1.5 Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be
elected at general meetings with a term of office of no more
than 3 years and may be re-appointed. The Company
has implemented a set of effective procedures for the
appointment of new Directors. Nomination of new Directors
shall be first considered by the nomination committee whose
recommendations will then be put forward to the Board for
consideration. All newly nominated directors are subject to
election and approval at general meetings.

The Company has entered into service contracts with each
of the Directors (including non-executive Directors) from
November 28, 2011. Each service contract or appointment
letter prescribes a term of 3 years commencing from May
16, 2011. On November 28, 2011, the Company has made
appointment letter with each independent non-Director for a
term of 3 years since the date of share listing.

1.6 Directors’ Remuneration

106

The remuneration and assessment committee makes
recommendations in respect of Directors’ remuneration
according to criteria such as educational background and
work experience. Directors’ remuneration is determined
by the Board with reference to Directors’ experience, work
performance, position and market condition and subject to
approval of general meeting.
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2. Board Committees

There

are four Board committees, namely the audit committee,

remuneration and assessment committee, nomination committee
and strategic and planning committee.

2.1 Audit Committee

The audit committee consists of 3 Directors: Mr. FAN Ren

Da
Lig
Gu

Anthony (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Zhai
ong (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Yang
ang (non-executive Director). Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony

serves as the chairman of the audit committee. The primary
responsibilities of the audit committee are to review and
supervise our financial reporting procedures, including:

Appoint and supervise the work of our independent
auditors and review and approve in advance all the audit
service provided by our independent auditors;

Review the Company’s annual financial statements, results
disclosure, material accounting policy and conventions for
preparing financial statements, the substitution methods
for financial materials, the effect of disclosure control and
procedures, and important tendency and development of
financial reporting conventions and provisions;

Review the Company’s plan and manpower allocation of
internal audit, the organization, duties, plan, performance,
budget and manpower allocation of the internal audit
team, and the quality and effect of the internal control;

Check the Company’s risk evaluation and management
policy;

Set up the treatment procedure of receiving the complaints
concerning relevant accounting, internal accounting
control, auditing business, potential violation of laws and
suspected accounting or audit business; and

Two independent non-executive Directors are entitled to
reviewing whether or not Guodian Group and GD Power
have been in compliance with and has enforced the
compliance with Non-Competition Agreement that has
been signed.
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The first meeting in 2012 of the first audit committee of
the Board was convened on March 22, 2012, whose main
contents are as follows: (1) discussed and passed 2011
Annual Report and results abstract; (2) heard external auditor’'s
report on the audit of the Company’s 2011 financial report;
(3) discussed and passed the Company’s 2011 financial
statements; (4) discussed and passed the re-appointment of
auditors for 2012 and its payment.

All the members of the audit committee attended the above
meeting.

2.2 Remuneration and Assessment Committee

108

The remuneration and assessment committee of the
Company consists of 3 Directors: Mr. Zhai Ligong (independent
non-executive Director), Mr. Zhu Yongpeng (non-executive
Director) and Mr. Lu Yanchang (independent non-executive
Director). Mr. Zhai Ligong serves as the chairman of the
remuneration and assessment committee. The primary
responsibilities of the remuneration and assessment
committee are to formulate the assessment standards
of Directors and senior management, and assess their
performance. The remuneration and assessment committee
also decides on and review the remuneration policy and plan
of Directors and senior management, including:

e Approves and oversees the overall remuneration plan
of Directors and senior management; assesses the
performance of senior management and decides on
and approves the remuneration to be paid to senior
management;

e Review the remuneration of Directors and then make
recommendations about it to the Board of Directors; and

e Review the remuneration policy, strategies and principles
of Directors and senior management and make
recommendations about it to the Board of Directors.

The first meeting in 2012 of the first remuneration and
assessment committee of the Board was convened on March
27, 2012, whose main contents are to discuss the Company’s
2011 remuneration of Directors, supervisors and senior
management.

All the members of the remuneration and assessment
committee attended this meeting.
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2.3 Nomination Committee

The Company’s nomination committee consists of 3 Directors:
Mr. Lu Yanchang (independent non-executive Director), Mr.
Zhai Ligong (independent non-executive Director) and Ms.
Wang Hongyan (executive Director). Mr. Lu Yanchang serves
as the chairman of the nomination committee. The primary
responsibilities of the Company’s nomination committee are
to formulate the nomination procedures and standards for
candidates for Directors and senior management, and conduct
preliminary review of the qualifications and other credentials of
the candidates for Directors and senior management.

The first meeting in 2012 of the first nomination committee of
the Board was convened on March 27, 2012, whose main
contents are to discuss the Company’s 2012 members for the
nomination of Directors, supervisors and senior management.

2.4 Strategic and Planning Committee

The Company’s strategic and planning committee consists
of five Directors: Mr. Zhu Yongpeng (non-executive Director),
Mr. Feng Shuchen (non-executive Director), Mr. Ye Weifang
(executive Director), Mr. Li Hongyuan (executive Director)
and Mr. Zhai Ligong (independent non-executive Director).
Mr. Zhu Yongpeng serves as the chairman of the strategic
and planning committee. The primary responsibilities of
the strategic and planning committee are to formulate the
Company’s overall development plans and investment
decision-making procedures, including:

e Review the Company’s long-term development strategies;

e Review the Company’s strategic planning and
implementing reports; and

e Review significant capital expenditure, investment and
financing projects that require approval of the Board;

e And grant president work meeting of the Company to
formulate specific plans, negotiate, implement relevant
review and approval procedures, sign contracts and
relevant document, and handle relevant procedures for the
items mentioned above.

The first meeting in 2012 of the first strategic and planning
committee of the Board was convened on March 27, 2012,
whose contents are to discuss the development plan of one to
three years, and 2012 capital expenditure plan and overseas
investment issues of the Company.
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Doctor’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2011.

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and
understandable assessment of 2011 financial statements and
other issues required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
and other supervisory provisions. The management has provided
such explanation and information to the Board as necessary to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group which is to be review and
approved by the Board.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

In addition, appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ liability
has been arranged against possible legal proceedings to be taken
against the Directors.

Compliance with the Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct and rules governing
dealings by its Directors and Supervisors in the securities of the
Company. Having made specific enquiry of the Directors and
Supervisors of the Company, all Directors and Supervisors have
confirmed that they have strictly complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers during the reporting period.

The Board will examine the corporate governance practices and
operation of the Company from time to time so as to ensure the
compliance with relevant requirements under the Listing Rules
and to protect shareholders’ interests.
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Internal Control

The Company has attached prime importance to internal
control. A complete and prudent internal control system has
been established to protect shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets.

In respect of rules and regulations, the Company set up systems
on internal control, including “Rules and Procedures of the
Board Meeting”, “Rules and Procedures of Meetings of the Audit
Committee”, “Rules and Procedures of Meetings of Remuneration
and Assessment Committee”, “Provisions on Information
Disclosure”, “Rules on the Conduct of Connected Transactions”,
“Tentative Risk Management Framework”, “Template for
Regular Declaration Requirement by the Directors and Senior
Management”, “Terms of Reference of the Senior Management of
the Company”, “Interim Measures on Anti-Corruption, Complaints
and Reports” and “Management System of Internal Audit.

In terms of organizational structure, the Company established
the Finance and Property Department, Audit Department and
Supervision Department. Sufficient personnel were retained to
take charge of financial operations, risk management, internal
audit and anti-corruption. Besides, the Company arranged
reasonable budgets and provided regular trainings to the staff of
the Company and subsidiaries performing the duties of finance,
risk management and internal audit so as to ensure that they are
well trained and experienced.

The effective implementation of the internal control system
ensured orderly development of the Company’s operating and
management activities as well as control of risks, safeguarded the
security and integrity of the Company’s property and guaranteed
the realization of the Company’s operating and management
objectives.

Each department of the Company has the channel to submit
information requests to the Board. Being the most senior point
of contact to each department, the President of the Company
has the duty to effectively report to the Board in relation to the
operations of each department, and to coordinate and mobilize
the demands of each department to promote reasonable decision
making within the Company. Accordingly, any possible significant
matter (if subject to disclosure to the market) discovered by the
staff can be reported to the management of the Company in a
timely, accurate and effective manner and the decisions from the
management of the Company can be implemented accurately
and timely, and be exercised with supervision.
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During the reporting period, the Board assessed the internal
control systems of the Company and subsidiaries and was not
aware of any material deficiencies nor any material defaults
with respect of financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management. The Board believes that the current
monitoring system of the Company is effective and considers
that the resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions, its
training programs and budget thereof are adequate.

Auditors and Remuneration

KPMG and RSM China Public Accountants Co., Ltd. were
appointed as auditors for the financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises of PRC for the
year ended December 31, 2011, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the fees payable to
KPMG and RSM China Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.
for audit services were RMB7,000,000 and RMB2,396,000
respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2011 KPMG and RSM China
Certified Public Accountants Co., did not provide any non-audit
service.

KMPG, the Company’s external auditor’s responsibility to the
financial statements are set out on pages 123 to 124 of this
Annual Report.

The Company plans to present the proposal of re-appointing
KMPG and RSM China Certified Public Accountant Co., Ltd. as
the auditors of the Company to the annual general meeting of
shareholders which is to be convened.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Company highly appreciated shareholders’ opinions and
advice, actively organized various investor relations to maintain
connections with shareholders and made timely response to the
reasonable requests of shareholders.

The Company set up a website at www.01296.hk, as a channel
to promote communication, to publish announcements, financial
information and other relevant information of the Company.
Shareholders are welcomed to make enquiries directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
Company will respond to all enquiries in a timely and appropriate
manner.

The Board is willing to receive shareholders’ suggestions and
encourages them to attend general meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or the management.
Chairman of the Board and the chairmen of all committees usually
attend the annual general meeting and other general meetings to
address shareholders’ queries.

During the reporting year, the Company has held 6 general
meetings of shareholders.

A circular to shareholders containing detailed procedures of voting
and resolutions voted by way of poll has been dispatched to the
shareholders together with the Annual Report.
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Summary of Human Resources
As of December 31, 2011, the Group had a total of 9,981 staff, of
which 7,612 or 76.3% were male while 2,369 or 23.7% were female.

The staff structure is as follows:

Table 1: Analysis of the Group’s staff by business segments

No. Segments Number of staff Percentage

R o AE i

1 Centralized management 78 0.8%
HEEE

2 Wind power business 3,755 37.6%
EEE 3t

8 Coal power business 2,866 28.7%
KB

4 Technical and

related services business 578 5.8%

BT R AR RS S 15

5) Other renewable energy 2,704 27.1%
Hith Al A AR
Total 9,981 100.0%
At

Table 2: Analysis of the Company’s staff by academic qualifications

No. Academic qualification Number of staff Percentage

R BE N i

1 Postgraduate or above 28 35.9%
e KA

2 Undergraduate 40 51.3%
RERH

8 College diploma 9 11.5%
RBHR

4 Technical secondary 1 1.3%

school or below

HERNUT
Total 78 100.0%
At
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Table 3: Analysis of the Company’s staff by age R=E R ATRERESNEI DN
No. Age Number of staff Percentage 5.1%
B R A 5at]
1 56 years old and above 4 51%
5657 KA I
2 46-55 years old 13 16.7% 48.7%
46-555%
8 36-45 years old 23 29.5%
36-455%
4 35 years old and below 38 48.7%
355 AT
[l 56 yearsold and above [ 36-45 years old
Total 78 100.0% 5688 KA £ 36-45%%
A-:_l. B 46-55yearsold 35 years old and below
=R

46-557% 35 MIAT

Table 4: Analysis of the Group’s staff by academic qualifications &M : XEERBEEFTNET 547

No. Academic qualification Number of staff Percentage 7-2%
R BE AH i
38.8%
1 Postgraduate or above 719 7.2%
HImER £ 29.6%
2 Undergraduate 2,954 29.6%
REXRRE
3 College diploma 2,436 24.4%
REHR
4 Technical secondary 3,872 38.8%
school or below 24.4%
‘:F‘ %&L‘AT [l Postgraduate or above [ College diploma
MRAERNU E REHR
Totel ssst  tooow M i e
=a RERIAT
Table 5: Analysis of the Group’s staff by age ®A  AEERFRESVEI SN
No. Age Number of staff Percentage 25%5 991
P TR A8 i
1 55 years old and above 247 2.5%
5558 M PA -
2 46-54 years old 590 5.9%
46-5475%
g 36-45 years old 1,625 16.3% 75.3%
36-455%
4 35 years old and below 7,519 75.3%
35 RA T
[l 55yearsold and above [ 36-45 years old
Total 9,981 100.0% SSmMIALE 36-455%
A [l 46-54 years old 35 years old and below

46-547% 35 RIAT
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Staff Incentives

In order to cater for its development needs, the Group, on the
basis of its existing position-based accountability system, has
further established and perfected an effective mechanism for staff
performance appraisal and management. By maintaining a clear
division of duties, identification of the performance targets of different
positions, formulation of performance standards, appraisal of staff
performance in an objective and accurate manner, stimulation of
the potential and enthusiasm of the employees, the Group has
made clear its approach of stressing on both motivations and
regulations. The Group has established a double-track mechanism for
administrative management position and technical business position
which has laid a solid foundation for developing staff’s career path.

Staff Training

Envisioning the Group’s future development and talents needs,
a sound staff training system was established, in a bid to duly
implement the strategy of strengthening the enterprise by talents, and
standardize and strengthen the education and training of the Group’s
system. The Group has organized to formulate and implement plan
of training programs tailored for management, technical and skilled
personnel.

In 2011, the Group continued its effort in training all kinds of talents
by providing its staff with various forms of training, primarily including
regular trainings for management, orientation training for new staff,
licensed induction training for operating and maintaining staff in power
stations, professional qualification training, international cooperation
programme training and others. These training courses covered 5,030
people during the year, rendering the percentage of total staff training
to exceed 50.3%.

The Company has laid a solid foundation for building the platform
of talent training and appraisal of occupational skills through the
establishment of “Lecture Hall of GUODIAN TECH”. Through
continuous development of various training courses, the Group
continuously improved staff quality, reinforced the modern
management concept among its management and enhanced the
overall management efficiency.

Employee Remuneration Policy

The staff remuneration of the Group comprises of basic salary and
bonus payment. The bonus payment is made with reference to the
operating results of the Group and results of performance assessment
on the employees.
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Closely concentrating on the corporate culture of the Company, the
Group considers the corporate social responsibility as a valuable
concept for an enterprise that is act in a responsible way to the
society, which is born inside the running process of the enterprise.
We strive to realize a sustainable development of both ourselves
and the society. The Group insists on promoting a scientific outlook
of the social responsibility of an enterprise, actively exploring the
management and practice of its social responsibility, dedicating to
the mutual promotion of enterprise’ fulfillment of its responsibility and
enterprise operation, transforming enterprise’ social responsibility into
the significant drive of enterprise’ operation so that it could maximize
the comprehensive value of economy, society and environment
through effectively managing the impact of enterprise’ operation on all
the stakeholders and the nature.

Since the world financial crisis, the problems of resources and
environment have emerged remarkably and green, intelligent and
sustainable energy development has become the irreversible historical
trend. In the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”, developing strategic emerging
industries is set as a national strategy of China. As a key enterprise
involved in the national energy security and national economic lifeline,
GUODIAN TECH social responsibility, focuses on the new round of
industrial points of environmental protection, energy conservation,
renewable energy and low-carbon technology, etc., keeps exploring
the way to develop green energy technology to serve society and
fulfils the corporate philosophy of “To Build A Green Home with
Innovative Energy Science and Technology”.

Focus on Technological Innovation and
Develop Globally-Leading Environmental
Protection and Energy Conservation
Technologies

As one of the state-owned enterprises, GUODIAN TECH regards
enhancing independent innovative capability and constructing an
innovative enterprise as its development strategic core, seizes the
opportunities of international industry adjustment and shift and
production element optimization and reorganization, focuses on the
breakthrough of certain key core technologies in the energy industry
and proactively drives the construction of the modern energy industry
system, thus forming a group of emerging industries with competitive
advantages and playing an important role in China’s efforts in
developing strategic emerging industries.
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Improve R&D System and Build a National-
level Innovative Platform

In order to better bring its supporting role in science & technology
innovation into full play, GUODIAN TECH is dedicated to the
creation of the science & technology working mechanism
based on enterprises, guided by market, horizontally combining
industries, universities, research institutes and application, and
cooperative innovation and the Group aims at energy saving and
emission reduction, pollution control and resource key technology
breakthrough so as to find the way for the industry and the state and
create a national-level innovative platform for the whole industry. At
present, the Company has gathered a group of high-quality science
and technology talents, including more than 900 senior professionals
and employees with master and doctoral degrees, forming a research
and development team with strong innovative strength. Taking
controlling the commanding point of emerging industry technologies
as its responsibility, this team further improve the competitiveness of
the Group and realize the enhancement of the utilization efficiency of
national energy and adjustment of energy structure through scientific
and technological innovation.

Focus on the Promotion of Science &
Technology Achievements and Drive the
Development of Green Society

Aiming at “Green technology for a better world”, GUODIAN TECH
makes great effort to develop and promote environmental protection,
energy conservation and renewable energy technologies. Since
its inception, it has actively promoting the effective combination of
science & technology research, technical innovation and industry
development. In particular, it has promoted the technology of
environmental protection, energy conservation and application of
high-end renewable energy equipment. Meanwhile, it has greatly
enhanced the clean, environment-protected and sustainable
development of the power industry so as to boost the harmonic
development of economy, society and ecologic environment of China.
Besides, the technologies and products of GUODIAN TECH have
entered into international market, as a driver pushing forward global
energy saving and emission reduction initiative.
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Jointly Construct Harmonic Environment and
Drive the Development of Local Economy

Subsidiaries and associates of GUODIAN TECH are located all
over China, whose development has strengthened and driven the
development of some local enterprises operated in the related
industries. Therefore, the Group has played a proactive role in
further diversifying the local industrial structure, promoting the local
employment and promoting the progress of urbanization. Over the
years, accumulatively, GUODIAN TECH has invested over RMB3
million in the construction of local roads and transformer substations;
in addition, it was invested annually hundreds of thousands of RMB
in local education, making its contribution to the local economic and
social development.

The Company has invested to construct Guodian Science &
Technology Exhibition Hall, which, as the environmental protection
and energy conservation technology education base of the power
industry, shows the general public the overall picture of the hi-tech
power industry from aspects such as environmental protection,
energy conservation, renewable energy automation and IT-
supporting, hydropower development, coal development and
comprehensive utilization and so on. Moreover, via such media as
website, magazine and so on, it publicizes and promotes electric
power energy-saving and environment-protected technologies and
innovative products, advocates the philosophy of energy saving and
environmental protection and calls the low-carbon life.

Since its inception, the Group has shouldered the important
commitment to develop green energy and promote energy saving
and emission reduction and has been striving for the target of
“construct an energy-saving and environment-friendly society”. In the
future, adhering to the corporate philosophy of “To Build A Green
Home with Innovative Energy Science and Technology”, the Group
will continuously have more contributions to the sustainable economic
and social development of China.
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Carefully Implement Environmental Protection
Assessment at the Preliminary Stage of
Projects

The Group has fully carried out relevant requirements of such
statutory documents as Law of Environmental Impact Assessment,
Decision on Implementing Scientific Concept of Development and
Strengthening Environmental Protection by the State Council,
Provisional Methods for Public Participation in the Environmental
Impact Assessment. It has strictly implemented the environmental
protection assessment at the preliminary stage of projects, made
quantitative analysis of potential environmental impact resulted from
projects, such as ecological impact and noises. Besides, it has made
careful plans on vegetation restoration after the implementation of
project construction so as to form an ecological environment with
reasonable structure and stable system, and strive to realize the win-
win result of resources exploitation and the protection of ecological
environment.

Continue to Strengthen the Management
of Environmental Protection during Project
Construction and Operation

The Group fully carries out energy-saving and environmental protection
idea, clarifies the management system of environmental protection,
and takes various measures to strengthen the management of
environmental protection during project construction and operation.
For example, it has prepared the pollution prevention scheme and
the annual implementation plan, strengthen the supervision of
environmental protection technology, the environmental monitoring
and statistics, the management of treatment project concerning
environmental protection technological renovation, and intensify the
control of pollutants in production process and the comprehensive
utilization of the emissions of solid waste.
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Construction of Investor Relations

The Company has always given emphasis and been dedicated to
improving the timeliness and accuracy of information disclosure. After
the successful share issue, the Company has modified its Chinese
and English websites immediately and released in time relevant
announcements, financial information and other information. The
Company tries to deliver its information to the investors so as to
gradually improve the transparency of its information.

The Company has made cautious arrangements, accepted the visits
of investors analysts and media carefully, and answered to relevant
questions efficiently and comprehensively. The Company has paid
close attention to the market tendency and made communication
with the public through an objective and overall perspective.

Non-deal Roadshow

During the reporting period, the Company organized 3 non-
transaction roadshows, including 33 investor one-to-one meetings,
group meetings or telephone meetings as well as 4 investor
breakfast/lunch meetings.

IPO Roadshow

During the reporting period, the Company organized an IPO
roadshow. The senior management of the Company went to
Hong Kong, Singapore, UK and US to implement international IPO
roadshows from December 5, 2011 to December 15, 2011. In
addition, the senior management also organized 2 press conferences,
2 Analyst Meetings, 4 investor lunch meetings, and 32 one-to-one
meetings, group meetings or telephone meetings.

Results Roadshow

By March 2012, the senior management of the Company had gone
to Hong Kong to carry out the annual results roadshow. Besides, the
senior management organized 1 press conference, 12 one-to-one
investor meetings, group meetings or telephone meetings.
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Day-to-day Visit of the Investors

During the reporting period, the Company accepted 72 visits in the
form of one-to-one meeting, group meeting and telephone meeting
so that it had made a full communication with nearly 50 institutional
investors and analysts.

Since January 1, 2012, the Company has accepted 11 visits in the
form of one-to-one meeting, group meeting and telephone meeting
so that it had made a full communication with over 20 institutional
investors and analysts.

Summit Meeting of the Investors

During the reporting period, the senior management of the Company
attended 1 summit meeting of the investors held by world-
renowned investing banks at which the company made a thorough
communication with the investors through group meetings.

Since January 1, 2012, the Company has attended one
communication meeting between listing companies and investors
held by world-renowned investing banks, at which the Company
made a thorough communication with the investors through one-to-
one meetings or one-to-many meetings.

Inverse Roadshow
During the reporting period, the Company organized 5 inverse

roadshows and invited analysts and investors to visit the subsidiaries
and projects of the Company in Jiangsu, Shanxi and Hebei.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 125 to 252, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2011, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS (CONTINUED)

B ZHAN RS (@)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
B ER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F12 431 H IEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREEFIIR)

2011 2010
20114 20104
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARET AR¥ET T
Revenue WA 4 18,706,980 10,998,908
Cost of sales SHEMK A (15,924,329) (9,140,081)
Gross profit EX 2,782,651 1,858,827
Other revenue HABYA 5 352,022 148,903
Other net income/(losses) Habzs /(E518) 55 5 278,276 (6,746)
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEFRY (634,980) (402,801)
Administrative expenses THFAX (1,115,463) (745,784)
Profit from operations REFE 1,662,506 852,399
Finance costs JEURL AN 6 (415,442) (199,245)
Share of profits less losses of associates  FE{GHA A T FEREE 1B 24,510 27,311
Profit before taxation Pt B0 R 3R 7 1,271,574 680,465
Income tax Frg 8 (107,161) (118,639)
Profit for the year REFIH 1,164,413 561,826
Profit attributable to: FEBER
Equity shareholders/owners of RRERERIRER,
the Company FrE A 840,681 350,359
Non-controlling interests AR = 323,732 211,467
Profit for the year N ERHE 1,164,413 561,826
Basic and diluted earnings BREARBHERF
per share (RMB) (AR%T) 12 0.17 0.07

The notes on page 135 to 252 form part of these financial statements. 1352252 8 #Ifft X AL 0 & RFEHI—2 5 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A i A >

=Nvas ;Z\vT\ | X m

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & £20114612 A31H I FE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAARKEFIR)

2011 2010
201145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Profit for the year REFE 1,164,413 561,826
Other comprehensive income for REHMERE W
the year
Exchange difference on translation of financial & /R A RHEFE ([FHE )
statements of operation outside the People’s 359N B 7% R % 2= A 1Y
Republic of China (the “PRC”) [& 5 =% (153) (142)
Total comprehensive income for REHFEW SRR
the year 1,164,260 561,684
Attributable to: FEFEER
Equity shareholders/owners of RNRBERSIRER BB A
the Company 840,528 350,217
Non-controlling interests FEPERR 323,732 211,467
Total comprehensive income for REFEWNEEEEE
the year 1,164,260 561,684

The notes on page 135 to 252 form part of these financial statements. 1352252 8 #Ifft = &t B & RFEHI— 25 ©
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

attEERE

As at 31 December 2011 722011412 831 H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREFIR)

2011 2010
201145 20104
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARET AR¥ET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRG 13 10,055,273 9,492,611
Investment properties KB E 14 258,392 159,148
Lease prepayments JEN A E K 15 885,349 553,687
Intangible assets WA E 16 648,719 626,771
Goodwiill kS 17 7,082 14,409
Interests in associates HEEZ N RIS 19 291,998 209,730
Unquoted equity investments JE EEREE 112,255 74,988
Other non-current assets HEMIEmEEE 20 2,297,352 2,142,847
Deferred tax assets BRI E = 30(b) 174,538 97,649
Total non-current assets kR EELALE 14,730,958 13,371,840
Current assets REBEE
Inventories w5 21 7,488,905 7,387,225
Gross amounts due from customers for  JEGEE A RIE P 28
contract work fake] 22 1,638,456 1,021,444
Trade and bills receivables G E S 23 9,925,578 5,613,515
Deposits, prepayments and other & - BARIEREM
receivables FEWRIE 24 1,139,902 2,070,712
Tax recoverable AU IR IR 30(a) 127,962 149,787
Restricted deposits PR I F K 25 436,222 86,913
Cash at bank and in hand RITERREFRS 26 6,567,715 2,766,924
Total current assets REEERE 27,324,740 19,096,520
Current liabilities RBEE
Borrowings & 27(b) 10,938,282 4,443,908
Trade and bills payables EERR R EE 28 12,644,926 9,402,092
Other payables HAb R IR 29 4,807,775 6,607,651
Gross amounts due to customers for EREESRIEF
contract work FIBLBFE 22 518,044 588,467
Income tax payable R FR 1SR 30(a) 126,058 157,922
Provision for warranty BIRG BAE 31 83,578 19,869
Total current liabilities REEEERE 29,118,663 21,219,909
Net current liabilities BB ETEE (1,793,923) (2,123,389)
Total assets less current liabilities REERADEME 12,937,035 11,248,451

The notes on page 135 to 252 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
EHEERABR®

As at 31 December 2011 20114128314
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥517R)

2011 2010
20114 20104
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR¥T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities ERBARS
Borrowings B3 27(a) 1,138,728 2,508,709
Deferred income B Wz 32 306,072 185,649
Provision for warranty BIRG B 31 391,868 209,045
Other non-current liabilities BEMIEmEaE 33 104,288 245,017
Total non-current liabilities FRBE B 1,940,956 3,148,420
NET ASSETS EEFH 10,996,079 8,100,031
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAXR#E
Share capital/paid-in capital AR, E W B AN 34(c) 5,942,500 4,822,590
Reserves HE 2,829,046 1,334,586
Total equity attributable to the equity (REBARATERRE
shareholders/owners of the Company FiG A ERR4A%E 8,771,546 6,157,176
Non-controlling interests FEERR R 2,224,533 1,942,855
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 10,996,079 8,100,031

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27  EHEEM2012F3 A27 A #b & &R T)E
March 2012

Li Hongyuan Wang Hongyan
P FREG
Director Director
EFE EFE

The notes on page 135 to 252 form part of these financial statements. 1352252 8 #Ifft X AL B & RFEHI— 25 ©
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BALANCE SHEET
BEAER

As at 31 December 2011 2011412 A31H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREFIR)

2011 2010
20114 20104
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR¥T AREFIT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRG 13 1,470,461 979,969
Investment properties B E 14 877,507 859,533
Intangible assets B EE 597 237
Investments in subsidiaries B R RIRIRE 18 3,769,824 2,157,079
Interests in associates HEE N RIS E 19 63,116 132,969
Unquoted equity investments JE EMEREE 107,538 69,500
Other non-current assets HEMIEmEEE 20 157,380 81,771
Total non-current assets FREEEREE 6,446,423 4,281,058
Current assets REEE
Gross amounts due from customers for FEUEESRIEZ P
contract work fake] 22 10,554 178,779
Trade and bills receivables G E S 23 158,772 84,758
Deposits, prepayments and other B4 FENFIEREE
receivables WA 24 3,729,608 4,628,989
Restricted deposits 2R BIFR 55 -
Cash at bank and in hand BITFRREFRS 26 2,648,118 637,829
Total current assets MENEERT 6,547,107 5,530,355
Current liabilities RBAE
Borrowings B3 27(b) 4,170,000 1,280,000
Trade and bills payables AR NS 28 104,973 156,877
Other payables EAth S 5RIE 29 1,081,892 2,843,251
Total current liabilities mEBERAE 5,356,865 4,280,128
Net current assets REEEFHE 1,190,242 1,250,227
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 7,636,665 5,531,285

The notes on page 135 to 252 form part of these financial statements. 13522528 #IMt:= At S0 S REHI —HBH
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
BEARKR®

As at 31 December 2011 20114128314
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥517R)

2011 2010
20114 20104
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARET T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities FRBERF
Borrowings B3 27(a) 640,000 590,000
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEREE 640,000 590,000
NET ASSETS EEFE 6,996,665 4,941,285
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERRf#E 34(a)
Share capital/paid-in capital A, BUWE A 5,942,500 4,822,590
Reserves Ex 1,054,165 118,695
TOTAL EQUITY EEaE 6,996,665 4,941,285

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27  EZE&7201243 827 B #th & R IF#E T2
March 2012

Li Hongyuan Wang Hongyan
FRE ERYG
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on page 135 to 252 form part of these financial statements. 1352252 8 #Ifft X AL B & RFEHI— 25 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
j( P)’\,%a,.\@]%%

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F12 431 H IEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREEFIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders/owners of the Company

FRALTRRRTE/FEA
Paid-in PRC Non-
capital/share Capital  statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests equity
LU Bx  dEEE EX g% FER i

&%/ B i & B N it 4%
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMWBOO0  RWBI00
ARETRL ARMIL ARBTR ARETR ARMIL ARBTR ARETR ARMTR

Note 34(c) Note 34(c)() note 34(d)i) note 34(d)il
BiEtsac)  BEESA)  EEESA(  BREE34(O)

Balance at 1 January 2010 2010511 A& 1,537,669 119,585 15,068 (221) 669939 2,332,040 747885 3,019,925
Changes in equity for 2010: 10FRH21 -

Proft for the year RERH = - - - 350,359 350,359 211,467 561,826

Other comprehensive income A AkE - - = (142 = (142 = (142)
Total comprehensive income for the year A& A NEES - - - (142 350359 350217 211467 561,684
Transfer to paicin capital (ote 34(c)e) - BZZACAZ(Fizz34(d))e)) 66772 (66,772 - - - - - .
Capital contrioutions (notes 34(c)) and G AR (Fir34(c)i) R

34)o) 34(0)0) 3218149 31465 - - - 320614 1268040 4517654
Appropriation L - - 7,113 - (7,713 - - -
Dilution of equity interest in a subsidiary ~ MB 2 AIRiERE

(note 34(d)ic) (BE34(ie) - 229515 - - - 29515 (220515) =
Acquisitions of non-controling interests YRR IRER - (4,210 - - - (4,210 (32,712) (36,922)
Divicends paid by subsidiaries to WEARREERER A

non-controling equity owners THRE - - - - - - (22,310) (22,310)
Balance at 31 December 2010and 2010512531 &201151 A1H

1 January 2011 fitke 4,822,590 309,583 22,781 (363) 1,002,585 6,157,176 1,942,855 8,100,031
Changes in equity for 2011: NMEEES

Proft for the year AERH - - - - 840681 840881 323,732 1,164,413

Qther comprehensive income Al - - - (153) - (153) - (159)
Total comprehensive income for the year  REAAEES - - - (153) 840,681 840,528 323,732 1,164,260
Capital contributions BRER - - - - - - 213,995 213,995
Conversion into a joint stock company | RHERAT

with limited fiabity (note 34(c)) (BzE34(c)) 2,40 14347 (13,63 - (8119 - - -
Appropriation i - - 31,367 - (31,367) - - -
Issuance of shares by initial public offering B & WARRRE TR

(note 34(d)f(d) (B3E34(c(d)) 1,092500 676912 - - - 1,769412 - 1,769,412
Dilution of equity interest in a subsiclary ~ KB A RERE - 4430 - - - 4430 (4,430 -
Disposal of subsidaries (note 39) HENBAE(H30) - - - - - - (116226  (116,226)
Divicends paid by subsidiaries to WEARREERERAA

non-controling equity owners THRE - - - - - - (185393  (1352399)
Balance at 31 December 2011 N1E12B3 AL 5942,500 1,005,272 40,510 (516) 1,783,780 8,771,546 2,224,533 10,996,079

The notes on page 135 to 252 form part of these financial statements. 1352252 8 #Ifft s At B & RFEHI— 25 ©
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BHEESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # %2011 12 A31 B 1L &

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAARKEFIR)

2011 2010
201145 2010%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR%T ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities HREKEZTHNRER
Profit before taxation T ATFE 1,271,574 680,465
Adjustments for: PR
Depreciation e 7(b) 438,575 220,979
Amortisation B 7(b) 40,210 18,355
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME « BE MR
plant and equipment BB (W) F5E 5 163 (168)
Net loss from changes in fair value NABEEZEEEFE 5 1,449 =
Impairment loss on trade and other JFEE k2 BR TR e L A B L RN IR
receivables BB R 7(0) 45,351 13,454
Finance costs B TSR AN 6 415,442 199,245
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net ERF(WE), Hia 5 (21,835) 13,459
Interest income FLEHA 5 (84,975) (35,123)
Government grants BT ED (11,232) (6,864)
Dividend income from unquoted equity JEETRERFHFARBIA
securities S (6,041) (298)
Net gain on disposal of associates S B A R e SRR 5 (145,325) -
Net gain on disposal of unquoted HEIE ETERRE
equity investments Was 58 5 (109) -
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBEA R FRE 5 (97,312 -
Share of profits less losses of FER B R B F B 1R
associates (24,510) (27,311)
Changes in working capital: LBEBESHEL
Increase in inventories FEREM (455,146) (3,884,565)
Increase in gross amounts due from JEWGEES AR F B4R
customers for contract work HY A0 (561,393) (115,054)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEWBR R e AR AL N (4,605,560) (3,134,624)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, & - B FIEMEAEL
prepayments and other receivables SIERR AL, (3 h0) 1,418,327 (905,190)
Increase in other non-current assets Ha3Em B & E/IE N (146,015) (1,357,224)
Increase in trade and bills payables FERTBR IR N2 =R A3 AN 3,686,126 5,182,351
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HAbpEFER R 4G hn (791,964) 1,809,733
(Decrease)/increase in gross amounts JEREARIRFE IR
due to customers for contract work 7R, 2N (70,423) 104,443
Increase in provision for warranty BIRE BERIE N 246,532 174,227
Cash generated from/(used in) medhEL ()
operations WHRE 541,909 (1,049,710)
Income tax paid B ETISHRL 30(a) (195,520) (217,155)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEELE (FRWNERE
operating activities 346,389 (1,266,865)

The notes on page 135 to 252 form part of these financial statements. 1352252 8 #Ifft = AL B & R HI— 25 ©
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
aHEeRER®

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & %2011 12 8318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥517R)

2011 2010
20114 2010%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR®T T ARET T
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHHRER
Payments for purchase of property, RIEMZE - BB R&E - TRt
plant and equipment, lease THHERREFEES T
prepayments and intangible assets (4,972,589) (6,075,919)
Payments for acquisitions of associates U REHE S N 5 & IE E gz
and unquoted equity investments WEZ (92,259) (79,941)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash HEMRBEARPSAFIRE
disposed of 40 464,176 =
Payments for advances to related parties 45 @88 77 B9 EAZK (117,887) (141,297)
Payments for advances to third parties 45 = HHYEA R (2,699) (1,681)
Increase in deposits with banks SRITIF SRAYIE N (909,988) (976,000)
Withdrawal of deposits with banks SRITIF KA IR EN 944,920 -
Government grants received Ue B B BT B 131,655 74,307
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BEKZEMS
plant and equipment I8 1,408 1,471
Proceeds from repayment of advances PR T (BB
by related parties 807,636 91,305
Proceeds from repayment of advances FE=HEEBRK
by third parties 7,721 2,101
Proceeds from disposal of associates and & 54 A ) B 3E gz
unquoted equity investments B R ?:E'rfﬁ’\ 119,057 2,679
Dividends received B U B 15,200 33,718
Interest received BHFIE 74,052 24,133
Net cash used in investing activities REFZEFEANFEES (3,529,597) (7,045,124)

The notes on page 135 to 252 form part of these financial statements. 13522528 #IMt:= At S0 S REHI —BH
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

AN [ A==} =

SRS RER®)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & %2011 12 8318 ILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥517R)

2011 2010
201145 2010%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR%T AR¥ET T
Cash flows from financing activities REREEZHMNRLSRH
Capital contributions from equity A REZRIER,#HE AN
shareholders/owners of the Company BINTRE - 3,249,614
Capital contributions from non-controlling  Kf/& A R FEIEARERSFTE AR
equity owners of subsidiaries BB 213,995 1,268,040
Proceeds from issuing shares, net of BTG IS RIER EH
listing expenses 8 1,827,040 -
Proceeds from borrowings BB IR 11,577,475 6,810,966
Proceeds from advances from related RaHs: 5 2R
parties 911,472 2,077,717
Proceeds from advances from third BZHBK
parties 190,000 -
Decrease in restricted deposits S2PR 7 3R AR 253,219 1,119,914
Repayment of advances to related parties {232 5 /5 23K (2,775,296) (1,134,519
Repayment of advances to third parties ~ {Ei& 5 = F 8% (46,302) (1,000)
Repayment of borrowings EEER (3,761,752) (3,355,207)
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to M8 A R R SEIE R = FT A A
non-controlling equity owners SR (133,914) (44,634)
Interest paid BRFE (626,535) (379,814)
Increase in restricted deposits SZBR HIAF FR A hI (602,528) (722,018)
Payments for acquisitions of AU R SRR AR A 2
non-controlling interests - (36,922)
Net cash generated from financing RETBEENEES
activities 7,026,874 8,852,137
Net increase in cash and cash RERESEEMHFIEMEE
equivalents 3,843,666 540,148
Cash and cash equivalents at 1A1ANBEERESEEY
1 January 1,790,924 1,255,059
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4N e 2 4| ) 7 28 (7,943) (4,283)
Cash and cash equivalents at 12A31ENRERBELSEEY
31 December 26 5,626,647 1,790,924

The notes on page 135 to 252 form part of these financial statements. 1352252 8 #Ifft X At B & RFEHI—2 5 ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M ot

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIERHHA - LAARKTIR)

1 Organisation 1 A&

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) was formerly known as Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Limited Liability Company and was established
on 6 April 2001 as a state-owned enterprise with limited liability.
The Company was converted to a joint stock company with limited
liability in the PRC on 16 May 2011 (the “Conversion”). China
Guodian Corporation (“Guodian”) and GD Power Development
Co., Ltd. (“GD Power”) each held 51% and 49% equity interest in
the Company immediately before the Conversion. The Company
converted its equity into 4,850,000,000 ordinary shares with a par
value of RMB1.00 each on 16 May 2011. Guodian and GD Power
assumed 2,473,500,000 (51%) shares and 2,376,500,000 (49%)
shares, respectively.

In December 2011, the Company issued an aggregate of
1,092,500,000 H shares with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
at a price of HKD2.16 per share by way of initial public offering to
Hong Kong and overseas investors (the “IPO”). In connection with
the IPO, 96,000,000 domestic state-owned shares of RMB1.00
each owned by Guodian were converted into H shares on a one-
for-one basis and transferred to the National Social Security Fund
Council of the PRC (“NSSF”). As at 31 December 2011, a total of
1,188,500,000 H shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE”).

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on HKSE. A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The Group has adopted all those new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective for the accounting period ended 31
December 2011 in preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2010. The Group has not early
adopted any new and revised IFRSs that are not yet effective
for the accounting period ended 31 December 2011 in the
current or previous accounting period (see note 44).

BEMBIREREERROBRAR([ARAF])
A ABNERERREEER AR - AEA
BRETCENMKIN2001F4H86H XA
AIR2011F5 A16 B E R A—XFERHER
AR([EH]) - FBEEEEELQR([EE])
MEEENERROHDEBRAR(TEHEES])
R HI 7T Bl 99 B FF B AN A 5]51% A 49% I #E
5 o AR REIR2011F5 A16 B i HiksEin s
4,850,000,000% &A% 1B A R ¥E1.007T /) I i
f% - BEIEMEEEE S5 AIES2,473,500,000%
(519%)F12,376,500,000%(49%) &I J& 15

ANRABFR2011 612 A LA E X AR B H 7T
MEBLEIMEE EUEREE2 16 TRE K
17 +£1,092,500,000 % HR% - &RXEE A A
R#1.007C - EREXARBR - BEHEHN
FRRE{E A R #1.007T#796,000,000% B A B
B E—R—WEM FESHRITEEEF
BErEteREESESS([HRES]) -
2011412 431 H + ££1,188,500,000 % H %
EEBBARGMERAR([EBHRAT])
M e

FESTHE
(a) &EEHH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on these financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 3.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

136

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
rounded to the nearest thousand, which is the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries established
in the PRC (“PRC Subsidiaries”) carrying on the principal
activities of the Group. The functional currencies of the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and United States are
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and United States dollars (“USD”)
respectively.

2 FEREHEER(R)
(b) B BR MR LR

(c

~

HZE2011F12 A31 H IEFER A G ER
RERARAGMNEKMBEAR (KB AEIANE
& |) K RS E A N IR RERS o

MBREmETERNTEER
RERE

SR

BT A BB 15 RS ERIR E B 53R
REKREBE(EL FIE - At ARE
% EHIE fﬁ#fﬂfﬁ%%%.z.ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ
fﬂ’éF BE - WARARZHH
ﬁpﬁrﬂ]?fﬁEﬁﬁ“ﬂ)}ﬁﬁf‘ﬂﬁi‘«%ﬁﬂﬁ
EZ A THEERAENSEAMER
I B e FZ A H B B AT R IE B A0 R M 5
ﬁE’]éﬁFﬂfﬁfﬁ%ﬁF@E’M&%ﬁ - B4
BEB BRI ELLfhEt -

BRMGEFIMERBRSRFERMN - MR
E.;HMEquE’Jf A EREFLARIET N

- AIBRETReEEH®R - By
*HﬁﬂﬂiXE‘Jﬁﬂfﬁiﬁﬁ%L - RlgEET

BRERTH HIRI AR SR AR ERR o

& T E 1 B R B R B 75 3 o BB TR L
Hﬂﬁﬁ%i&ﬁ*ﬁiﬁwEZ#Uﬁﬁ A K
EEEETHEMEZIEZRR  FAR

PIEES ©
IhEEE w

HEFMBHRERGARR B REF BRI
MEAR([HEMBELAR ] ARASER
EEBMEANINEEBARE(TAR
BDIR  MERAAZESEONT - AR
AEFEMEXENSHBARNNEEE
ARlmET(ET])MET(TET))

GUODIAN TECHNOLOGY & ENVIRONMENT GROUP CORPORATION LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR MY 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 FESHBER(E)

(d) HERE

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared assuming
the Group will continue as a going concern notwithstanding
the net current liabilities of the Group at 31 December 2011.
The directors are of the opinion that, based on a detailed
review of the working capital forecast of the Group for the
12 months period ending 31 December 2012, the Group will
have necessary liquid funds to finance its working capital and
capital expenditure requirements.

(e) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

)

138

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with notes 2(q) or (r) depending
on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 FESHBER(E)

(H BEQT (F|)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(f)
and (m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(h)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ER B + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g9) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(h) Other investments in unquoted equity securities

140

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in unquoted equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in unquoted equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair value can
be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for in the balance sheet at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(m)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(M)

1)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(l)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(m)). The
depreciation policy is the same as that of property, plant and
equipment (see note 2(j)). Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(w)(v).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2(m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Land, buildings and structures 20-70 years
— Machinery and equipment 3-20 years
— Motor vehicles 4-10 years
— Furniture, fixtures and others 3-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

142

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising from a
service concession arrangement when it has a right to charge
for usage of the concession infrastructure. Intangible assets
received as consideration for providing construction services
in a service concession arrangement are measured at fair
value upon initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition
the intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
2(y)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
2(m)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 2(m)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Concession assets 25-30 years
— Technical know-how 5-18 years
— Capitalised development costs 5 years
— Software and others 3-10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(I) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases except for land held for own use
under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the building
is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included in property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities,
net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2()).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(m). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Leased assets (continued)

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

(m)Impairment of assets
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() Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)Impairment of assets (continued)

() Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries and associates,
the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(m)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(m)

().

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

2 FESHBER(E)

(m)Impairment of assets (continued)

146

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade and bills receivables and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against the
respective receivables directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— investment properties;

— lease prepayments;

— intangible assets; and

— goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the

recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

(o) Construction contracts

148

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group
of assets, where the customer is able to specify the major
structural elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 2(wj(ii). When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract
costs are recognised as an expense by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract at the balance sheet date. When
it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the balance sheet
date are recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus
recognised profit less recognised losses and progress
billings, and are presented in the balance sheet as the “Gross
amounts due from customers for contract work” (as an asset)
or the “Gross amounts due to customers for contract work”
(as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by
the customer are included under “Trade and bills receivables”.
Amounts received before the related work is performed are
presented as “Receipts in advance” under “Other payables”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(m)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(q) Interest-bearing borrowings

(1)

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(v)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(u) Income tax

150

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to business combinations, or items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 FEREHEER(R)
(u) FF181 ()

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR HI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

162

liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR HI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless
the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other
payables. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2(v)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR HI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition

154

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax (“VAT”) or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract is
recognised using the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage of contract
costs incurred to date to estimated total contract costs for
the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable.

(i) Service concession revenue

Revenue relating to construction services under a service
concession arrangement is recognised based on the stage
of completion of the work performed. Operation or service
revenue is recognised in the period in which the services
are provided by the Group.

(iv) Rendering of services

Revenue from design and consultant services rendered
is recognised in the consolidated income statement in
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at
the balance sheet date.

Revenue from other services rendered is recognised upon
the delivery or performance of the services.

2 FEREHEER(R)
(w) AR

BAZB RS EBRREZRAEBEE
BB EERAALEE - AKEESR
AISE A E WA RRA(ER) K - Rl
ARE T I EE RS AR

() #HEHRda

EmHERAREEMCNEERFPK
BEAEPERRERMAEEER
F R e A ] $RBF R, © W AR HUR R 3
i BASIRER(MEBER]) RE A
HEMSE °

(i) & RHA

MRS A AR i
BEEEaRz A S ERRT AL
FAER - SEBEHEAALEEE
2 ARBAE RO RRARER AL
st -

MBS B2 SR A -
BIEAE E A AAAT R E B3 e
RN -

(i) ARFEFFETHENA

REBERE RS RRIERREAE
MEARAR TR TEERR - 28K
AR 75 Uk a2 1 AN 5= 1B £2 4 AR 7% B B3 i A

(iv) FELIRTE
PrER LR RET AR RIS WA R HR

BEEABBERANTEREZRA FRER
AHER o

PR 4 i) E At AR 7S O UL AR AR FS R 4R 12
R o

GUODIAN TECHNOLOGY & ENVIRONMENT GROUP CORPORATION LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 FEREHEER(R)
(w) AR (4D

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v) Rental income from operating leases () AAZHEZHEKA

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(vi) Dividends

— Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

(vii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(viilGovernment grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are initially recognised as
deferred income and are subsequently recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR HI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

]

v)

156

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations which have a functional currency
other than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(z) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.

2 FEREHEER(R)
(2) BREETS

(@) FE—EAkEZEARBERBIRIREER
BEWR AEANEB G - RZE
A
() Pk RS ARE
(iy HXREEHEERNTE : 3k

(i) RANEE N ANEEFABRBERE
BAE -

EEFAA MEEmRNBERT » X—&
BN SEASEAEBNER

3

%ﬂﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬂﬂ SED
BB (BISRAFE - fEBARMEZR
B A Tﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%o

iy —HEREES ERBMNEE QR
AETE(HES—EBERBAKERRZ
SEETKREARZHE NGNS
) o

(i) MEEEHY AR —F=ZFHNaED
%o

- T
2030 m
|
i
BE
e

Xt L

W
[1]
N
i
o
=
=

I M|

I

EAEEBRRED
Eﬂ R BB 1R 48 F

i;
ot
m%
&

a3

& A
il

2 g

B

(vi)

o

) H-

15}
i

) P sat ) 18] A 22 1) 3 R 22 il

\
!

a)()F EEMEAEARZERN
AAAER(IZEENT
A EIE AR o

;wmm

Il F#
&

Eiﬁx

)

=

AEZUNREXBRIEBHRSE
%mx%¢ AREeFERAEA

HEMBRREERNDERAR - —T——FFH 157



158

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

3 Accounting judgement and estimates

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations are
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates
that underlie the preparation of these financial statements.
The Group bases the assumptions and estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that the Group
believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making
judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from those estimates as
facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those polices and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing these
financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth
in note 2. The Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and estimates
used in the preparation of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

3 Accounting judgement and estimates
(continued)

(a) Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts resulting from the inability of the customers and other
debtors to make the required payments. The Group bases
the estimates on the aging of the receivable balance, debtors’
credit-worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the customers and debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

(b) Construction contracts

As explained in accounting policies set out in notes 2(o) and
(w)(ii), revenue and profit recognition on an uncompleted
project is dependent on estimating the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work done to date.
Based on the Group’s recent experience and the nature of
the construction activity undertaken by the Group, the Group
makes estimates of the point at which it considers the work
is sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this point
is reached the amounts due from customers for contract work
as disclosed in note 22 will not include profit which the Group
may eventually realise from the work done to date. In addition,
actual outcomes in terms of total cost or revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the balance sheet date,
which would affect the revenue and profit recognised in future
years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

(c) Provision for warranty

The Group provides warranties for its products for up to 25
years after sales have taken place. Due to limited warranty
claims history, the Group estimates warranty costs based
on the Group’s historical cost data, industry data and an
assessment of the Group’s competitors’ accrual. The warranty
obligation of the Group will be affected not only by the product
failure rates, but also by costs incurred to repair or replace
failed products. If the actual product failure rates and cost
of replacement or repairing of failed products differ from the
estimates, the Group will need to prospectively revise the
provision for warranty costs which would affect profit or loss in
future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR HI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

3 Accounting judgement and estimates
(continued)

(d) Impairment losses for non-current assets

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain of the Group’s assets which include property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, lease prepayments,
intangible assets, investments in associates and unquoted
equity investments, recoverable amount of the asset needs to
be determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling price because quoted market prices
for these assets may not be readily available. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to items such as level of sales volume,
selling price and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of items such as sales volume, selling price
and amount of operating costs.

(e) Recognition of deferred tax assets

160

Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses and tax
credit carried forward and deductible temporary differences
are recognised and measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date. In determining the carrying amounts
of deferred assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to the
operating environment of the Group and requires a significant
level of judgement exercised by the directors. Any change in
such assumptions and judgement would affect the carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets to be recognised and hence
the net profit in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

3 Accounting judgement and estimates 3 &:tHERLEH(E)
(continued)

() Depreciation (fH e

Property, plant and equipment and investment properties are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

(9) Income tax

The Group files income taxes with numerous tax authorities.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for taxation
as there are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determinations are uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. For preferential tax treatments
available for approved High and New Technology Enterprises,
in determining the applicable tax rates for calculations of
current income tax and deferred income tax, after passed the
substantive approvals, the Group uses the expected tax rates
that are probably be approved by tax authorities according
to the tax rules and regulations enacted at the balance sheet
date. Where the final tax outcomes of these matters are
different from the amounts originally recorded, the differences
may impact on the current income tax and deferred income
tax provisions in the periods in which the final tax outcomes
became available.

(h) Contingent liabilities

Management judgement is required in the area of contingent
liabilities particularly in assessing the outcome of possible
obligations arising from the transactions as detailed in note
37. Management reassesses the likelihood of the outcome
of these possible obligations at each balance sheet date.
Where a change in the probability that an outflow of economic
resources will be required to settle the obligation, a provision
will be recognised in the period in which such determination is
made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR M 5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting

(a) Revenue

162

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of
ignition equipment, wind turbines, solar cells and modules and
other related electric equipment for power plants, construction
engineering of desulphurisation, water treatment, solar energy
and other environmental protection and energy conservation
projects, rental of desulphurisation facilities and provision
of integrated services relating to environmental protection,
energy conservation and renewable energy businesses.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers, net of VAT, revenue from construction contracts,
revenue from rendering of services and rental income. The
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised
during the year is as follows:
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2011 2010

201145 20104

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AR¥ET T

Sales of goods (note) SHEEm(MEE) 12,026,474 7,766,142

Revenue from construction contracts &4 R A 5,558,146 2,377,056

Rendering of services TR ARTS 92,527 117,945
Service concession construction PR FFRT R R i A (B RE41)

revenue (note 41) 21,084 262,560

Rental income from operating KEFAENHEERA
leases (note 38(a)(i) (FF5E38(a)()) 1,008,749 475,205
18,706,980 10,998,908

Note:

Revenue from sale of goods amounting to RMB1,833,074,000 (2010:
RMB1,806,885,000) is sale of wind turbines to contractors who are
engaged to construct wind farms for Guodian and related parties under
Guodian.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
TSR R M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 4 WA R IPHE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (b) 2 EIHRE

The Group manages its businesses by subsidiaries, which
are organised by business lines (products and services).
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments.

— Environmental protection segment: this segment
provides environmental protection products and
services which mainly consists of sulphur oxide control
technologies, nitrogen oxide control technologies, rental of
desulphurisation facilities, ash removal with filer bag, water
treatment related technologies and products.

— Energy conservation solutions segment: this segment
provides energy saving products and services which
mainly consists of plasma ignition and micro-oil ignition
equipment and gas turbine improvement services.

— Wind power products and services segment: this segment
produces and sells wind turbine and its components,
provides related system solutions and services to wind
power operators.

— Solar power products and services segment: this segment
produces and sells solar cells, solar modules and other
solar products, constructs solar power stations and
provides related system solutions and services to solar
power operators.

The Group combined other business activities that are not
reportable in “All others”. Revenue included in this category
is mainly from the wind power generation by wind farms,
biomass power generation, other electric power related
products and rental of properties.

AEE BB LR E(EmR RS ) B8
MM E QB ERER - AEERESETT
BRAEMEEFEMANEEZZRT
BEEEMERTRENEN —HOHTR
ZHRATHER 28, ED

— BREDE o MEHERERER KR
% T2 BB - REsT - E
BRI - BIBRFRE - KB IEAAR
By R Em o

— HRBERRRITERDED ¢ sy ERERAENBEE
m MRS - EEEREER TR ALK
i N R A S TR S AR T

— BEERMEREDE « &0 G EERH
EREEEAMF - MEEELEEHE
B8 R ARR Ty 2 S AR

— KBREEMNMRBEOE : O MEER
HEKGREED - ARGeAFREMA
FREEEm ~ IE AR REE vl R AIKFEEE
BRI MARR R SRR T R AR

AEERREFNEBELXBE S A
Hi| - BREZERANKATERNEE
BRNEE  EMERE - HME AR
EmkPERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR M 5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

164

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of
investments in associates, unquoted equity investments,
tax recoverable, deferred tax assets and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the
exception of tax payables and other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is the
gross profit. In addition to receiving segment information
concerning the gross profit, management is also provided
with segment information concerning depreciation and
amortisation, interest income, finance costs, impairment of
assets and additions to segment non-current assets.

4 WARSEBHE (&)
(b) 5 EBHR% ()

() DEERAE  BEREE

M%ﬁ“%%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ 5 B B R M

 AEBRNERITRERABRUAT
§+%$ AR 23D EBE(RAIELE -
BERAE:

DHEERERYBEARTNERE - 3
LHESERE - AJRERIE - REIA
BERHEMITREEZINNEHEE -
D E R ERRERENAEHR R EMITHR
BEZIMMERAE

REBBREE N 28,70 BT WWA
MELNFEX - BRARRZ D
BT 28D &R ©

ARNEE2HD BN BENEERER -
BRESEBEENNDBERZI  E1
Eﬁﬁxﬁ%m%%&%% B
- AR - BERENARE D EIE
mﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬂéﬂ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
TSR R M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 4 WA R 2 2BHKE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 7 EpHwE (&)

() Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)) () DEb%EE BERAEGE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments ® T DB ERMTEE Z2011F K&
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive 2010F12 A1 BIEFEM D EEEM
management for the purposes of resource allocation and MAEEESRTHRERBRENAS
assessment of segment performance for the years ended Er2HOBERAT

31 December 2011 and 2010 is set out below:

2011
011E
Energy Wind power Solar power
Environmental ~ conservation products products
protection solutions  and services and services All others Total
4 BE K
R AR ERREH Em RS fiEkt it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARRFR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR

Revenue from external customers — SMFZEUA 4,262,567 788,746 9,209,921 4,294,963 150,783 18,706,980
Inter-segment revenue DA 45,035 - 190,408 - 12,619 248,062
Reportable segment revenue ~ AI2HATUA 4,307,602 788,746 9,400,329 4,294,963 163,402 18,955,042

Reportable segment profit 2RI BAB(ER)

(gross profit 628,698 276,832 1,558,838 308,117 64,778 2,837,263
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 253,684 17,252 114,835 53,239 36,202 475,212
Impairment/{reversal of impairment) YRS R E A B YGE

of trade and other receivables W/ (FASE) 24,927 9,004 ] 12,440 (1,014 45,351
Interest income FEMA 28,195 21,175 16,162 231 1,065 68,074
Finance costs BRI 51,074 - 248,005 60,145 9,008 369,422
Reportable segmentassets ~ AI2HAPEE 9,578,500 2315,115 16,560,658 8,089,052 1,643,465 38,186,799

Adoftions to reportable segment  FRAEAI 25
non-current assets during the year - AZEREAE 1,683,743 11,075 582,445 1,679,880 509,810 4,466,953

Reportable segment liabilities ~ FI2HAHEE 7,036,997 550,609 14,804,483 6,880,855 618,692 29,981,236
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TSR R M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

166

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

4 WARTDEREHRE (&)

(b) 7 BB H (&)

() 7EbRE  EERREE)

2010
2010F
Energy Wind power Solar power
Environmental conservation products products
protection solutions and services and services Al others Total
Ik EE Kbt
iR L IES Emkk% EmBRH Rl h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AREFT
Revenue from external customers  SMBEFMA 3,093,618 720,128 5,807,563 1,263,121 124,488 10,998,908
Inter-segment revenue DHERA 160,128 - - - = 160,128
Reportable segment revenue ~ 2HAHUA 3,263,746 720,128 5,807,553 1,263,121 124,488 11,159,036
Reportable segment profit 2RI BAB(ER)

(gross profit) 455,251 231,639 1,000,428 124,344 23,550 1,835,212
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 132,967 6,808 65,778 14,734 18,031 237918
Impairment of trade and other TR R EL A e

recelvables FEH(E 276 4,670 - 79 5915 13,454
Interest income MEMA 5909 8870 8,492 12339 1169 25,779
Finanoe costs B 23,156 - 102,411 9515 13,954 149,036
Reportable segmentassets ~ T2HAHEE 6,706,991 2,051,877 14,340,368 5,711,983 1,057,156 80,770,375
Adoftions to reportable segment  FRAE A2

non-curent assets during the year - HZEREAE 1,348,614 15,746 996,460 3,096,361 408,638 5,865,819
Reportable segment liabilities ~ T2 HAPEE 5413012 347,913 12,962,139 4,602,828 924,198 24,250,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
TSR R M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 4 WA RS IR (E)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) D EPIRE ()
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, gross (i) FIZIIEWA - EF - EELEEA
profit, assets and liabilities SR
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue A 23R/ EPUA 18,955,042 11,159,036
Elimination of inter-segment revenue % ZBEI UL A K 8 (248,062) (160,128)
Consolidated revenue XL ON 18,706,980 10,998,908
2011 2010
201145 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Gross Profit EX
Reportable segment profit BIE=Foni¥ e 2,837,263 1,835,212
Elimination of inter-segment profit paR= Rl E (54,612) 23,615
Consolidated gross profit BHEM 2,782,651 1,858,827
2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFIT
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets A 2RO HEE 38,186,799 30,770,375
Inter-segment elimination 20 fE 1 8 (538,811) (516,352)
37,647,988 30,254,023
Interests in associates HEE AR E 291,998 209,730
Unquoted equity investments JELEMEREE 112,255 74,988
Tax recoverable A Y B £ 18 127,962 149,787
Deferred tax assets FETH BB 174,538 97,649
Unallocated head office and ROBLBEH RITHEE
corporate assets 3,700,957 1,682,183
Consolidated total assets EHEERE 42,055,698 32,468,360
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 4 WA RS IHE (E)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, gross

(b) 7 BB E (4R)

(i) FIZ#DEWA - EF - BEHE B

profit, assets and liabilities (continued) A (48 )
2011 2010
201145 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARET T
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities A2HmHEaE 20,981,236 24,250,090
Inter-segment elimination 7 BB 5 (485,723) (483,171)
29,495,513 23,766,919
Income tax payable R ETIS AR 126,058 157,922
Unallocated head office and ROMEH RITHAE
corporate liabilities 1,438,048 443,488
Consolidated total liabilities AaGERE 31,059,619 24,368,329

(i) Geographical information

The Group did not have significant business operations
outside the PRC, therefore no geographic segment
information is presented.

(iv) Major customers
Revenues from Guodian and related parties under

Guodian amounted to RMB12,242,660,000 (2010:
RMB5,876,405,000).

(i) HEEH]
7 830 430 R BSOS A B AT
R 4 2 SRR S SRR -

i) FEES
RERTRAT TEN T OKA S

AR #12,242 660,0007T (20104 : A
R#5,876,405,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

5 Other revenue and other net income/(losses) 5 HftWm AR E MUk~ (B5i8) 55

2011 2010
201145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETTT
Other revenue Hug A
Government grants BT B 223,808 109,889
Interest income FLEHA 84,975 35,123
Dividend income from unquoted equity JE LR ERBMA
investments 6,041 298
Others Hih 37,198 3,593
352,022 148,903
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBT T
Other net income/(losses) Hp (E518) 348
Net gain on sales of raw materials SHE M B 58 15,307 6,545
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries B R B W F R
(note & note 39) (B R B 5£39) 97,312 =
Net gain on disposal of associates (note) & &k A Gl F 28 (M) 145,325 =
Net loss from changes in fair value AR EEEHEETE (1,449) =
Net gain on disposal of unquoted HEIE EiEs IR & e 5
equity investments 109 -
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE K&
plant and equipment (E518), W F58 (163) 168
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) EN e (518 ) F 88 21,835 (13,459)
278,276 (6,746)

Note:

In 2011, the Group disposed of certain subsidiaries and associates to related

fiE -

R20114F + AEELBREAREE974,064,0007T 1) F

parties under Guodian at a consideration totalling RMB974,064,000, which BETENAEBALES THEARRBERR - RETD
was determined with reference to valuation reports issued by independent ERENBIUTEMNEERSAET - RERXFE
appraisers in the PRC, and resulted in a total net gain of RMB225,020,000 W FREA R AR 225,020,0007T B FEFE il &7
which is included in the amounts above. t e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR HI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

6 Finance costs

BARE R

2011 2010
20114 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Interest on bank and other borrowings ARRAFANBEERRITR
wholly repayable within five years HA gz S 618,028 364,368
Interest on bank and other borrowings ARAFREENRITR
repayable after five years HAEFFLE 29,785 29,253
647,813 393,621
Less: interest expenses capitalised into i : EENMEAYME - BE &
property, plant and equipment, RE - BREEER
intangible assets and construction EEARMNF B
contracts (232,371) (194,376)
415,442 199,245

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.99% per

annum (2010: 4.83%)).

7 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FABAA, o
7 HAETRE

BAETAMBERSR,(FTA) :

&R AN B 3% 1|2 5.99% (20104F : 4.83%)

(a) Staff costs* (a) BT R+
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Salaries, wages and other benefits He Iiéf&,ﬁ\ﬁﬁéﬂ 786,359 535,201
Contributions to defined FEHEFEGRIRGT B A3k
contribution retirement plan (note) (Bd&E) 63,877 46,775
850,236 581,976
Note: B3 -
Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the R BIAERE 2 BN GBI RRIERR - AR E] R E A BT

170

Company and its PRC Subsidiaries participated in defined contribution
retirement schemes (the “PRC Schemes”) organised by the relevant
local government authorities for its employees. The Group is required to
make contributions to the PRC Schemes at 17% to 20% of basic salaries
of the employees. The local government authorities are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees. In addition,
certain subsidiaries and its staff participate in a retirement plan managed
by Guodian on a voluntary basis to supplement the above-mentioned
schemes and the Group is required to make contributions at 5% to 10% of
total salaries of the employees. The Group has no other material obligation
to make payments in respect of pension benefits associated with these
schemes and supplementary retirement plan other than the annual
contributions described above.

%@T,Amm%MmﬁW%%ﬁﬁﬁamﬁmﬁ
PR ARTEI ([ ETE]) - AEBEEN TIE
ﬁﬁ$ﬁ%mw%im%mmwﬁ¢l+%\mo
EHAEEAERARNMEESNEHRASD It
G ETHEBARREETIAB2EHEEEEN
B EAER LTS AEBERRBREETS
HBEBE5% = 10% TR © B Bl FE RSN - &
S E A EZ S E R R IR 2 AR R
BARSEAFEINRNERERT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

7 BATRE(E)

7 Profit before taxation (continued)

(b) Other items (b) HEf1EH
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARET T
Amortisation® By
— lease prepayments —JEft LA E R 14,079 4,463
— intangible assets —\EEE 26,131 13,892
Depreciation? e
— investment properties — BN 6,497 668
— property, plant and equipment — W - WE MK 432,078 220,311
Impairment losses BIEETE
— trade and other receivables — FEUWER R R
Hofth e WK IR 45,351 13,454
Auditor’s remuneration — audit services ZENEME B — X EURTS 9,396 1,648
Operating lease charges* RLTHE B
— hire of plant and equipment —THEME k& 5,976 6,477
— hire of properties —HEmE 13,704 22,270
Research and development costs AT EE AR AN 122,980 114,459
Provision for warranty (note 31) BRE BB (IS 255,907 177,296
Rental receivable from investment WA MMM S EWNGRIE
properties (32,536) (5,903)
Direct outgoings of investment properties & & MW N EER Y 5,886 1,415
Cost of inventories* (note 21(b)) TFERA(HIEE21(0) 9,912,232 6,309,745
# Cost of inventories includes staff costs, depreciation and amortisation o OFERABREEINA - B REHMZ KL

EHEER  ZUFRAIF IR AR EXH
M7 EBREN S HASEA

expenses and operating lease charges, which amount is also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note
7(a) for each of these types of expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

8 Income tax in the consolidated income 8 4#tEXRANWFIER
statement

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) AT EHFIE/t R ZRANFIE :
represents:
2011 2010
201145 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Current tax BRERBEIE
Provision for the year INEE B 200,246 153,468
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior B FEREEHECAE) TE
years (14,765) 7,691
185,481 161,159
Deferred tax (note 30(b)) IEFER 18 (I7E30(b))
Origination and reversal of TR E R EA LR
temporary differences (78,320) (42,380)
Effect on deferred tax balances resulting PS5 K& B IR IEF I8
from changes in RN E
income tax rates - (140)
(78,320) (42,520)
107,161 118,639
Notes: B3 -
() A subsidiary of the Group is incorporated and carried out business () AEE—RMBRARNEBEMERIMEEZE
in Hong Kong and is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5%. % HARBEBNSHE16.5%HF o BN
Taxation for the overseas subsidiary is charged at the appropriate rate B A RIRAR A B ZR A E AT R R o

of taxation ruling in the relevant country.
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SRR HI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

8 Income tax in the consolidated income
statements (continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statements
represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary of the Tenth National People’s
Congress passed the new Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”). Accordingly, effective from 1
January 2008, the Group’s PRC Subsidiaries are generally subject to
income tax at the statutory rate of 25%, unless otherwise specified.

Prior to 1 January 2008, based on the then prevailing tax rules
and regulations, a subsidiary of the Group was a production-
oriented foreign investment enterprises with an operating period
of 10 years or more and therefore was entitled to a tax holiday of
2-year full exemption followed by 3-year 50% reduction in income
tax rate commencing from its first profit-making years from PRC tax
perspective (“2+3 tax holiday”). It commenced its tax holidays in 2007.

The above tax holiday is grandfathered until it expires by the New CIT
Law and its relevant regulations in 2011.

Pursuant to the New CIT Law and its relevant regulations, certain
subsidiaries of the Group enjoyed the following preferential tax
treatments:

e Certain subsidiaries of the Group are approved as High and New
Technology Enterprises and are subject to income tax at 15%
during the approved periods, subject to fulfiment of the High and
New Technology Enterprises recognition criteria.

e A subsidiary of the Group is engaged in qualified environmental
protection and energy or water conservation projects and income
derived from such activities is tax exempted for the first 3 years
followed by 50% exemption from the fourth to the sixth years
starting from the year in which the projects first generate operating
income. This subsidiary first generated operating income from its
projects in 2009.

e A subsidiary of the Group is a small-scale enterprise and is
subject to income tax at 20%.

8 AffERAIFTES (&)

(a) ATEIIE M RAMNBIR : (F)

HiaE (&)

(i) M2007F3A16H FREFE+EZEARKE
ABERLREZBBTACREARLMBECE
FrSBUEN R EEMBRUE]) < itk - #£2008
F1R1HE  RIESHRE - NEBEEH M
B RH225% 17 B Bt R AN B S FTSH

7R2008F1 A1 HAT + IREBHE BT KRG &
EH AR E—RMBARRLEHE10F R
LA EREERSNEIRE RS - B ERIE

AEME -

AERE A EENFELENEME

FERRBHEHEEMEHEER=FER
FRERGRNEEMERAVBESH((ME=
WAFBE]) - ZMBEA B NHIEEELN2007

FHILE ©

RIBHEEAETORREBBER - BlRRG

EENBEEEREZEN2011FEIH -

RIBHEEABPOEREBBER - AEEW

HETHERRZZATHBESSE

o AKEETHERRRRBERDI M D
¥ R EERE BRI ER15%0 5 X5
MEH - AT AR RITERXNRE

S o

Tﬁj
N

o AEE-ZRWBARKEAEBRRRKE
BEEKIRE - A ZXUCHAR ELLE

WA B 88 — G B B = {4 FE EA S A

1SS

FSH - BRE M EINF IR F B R

MIEEEHNEERFE - ZMBARR

2009F A BN B HIF B EELERA -

o AEE-—RWEBARBN/NEMAEE

EfiR20% M H X H A DEMSH
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BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

8 Income tax in the consolidated income 8 S§#WEFEXRAMNAER (&
statements (continued)

(b) Reconciliations between tax expense and accounting (b) REARRTECHERXEESHIE2
profit at applicable tax rates: WEWT -
2011 2010
201145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARET T
Profit before taxation AR E 1,271,574 680,465
Notional tax on profit before taxation TS FT A B i iR B SR e i R
at PRC statutory tax rate HEMZEFIE 317,894 170,116
Effect on non-deductible expenses A HIR A S H IR ?7.5. 10,263 8,189
Effect of non-taxable income IR FR IR R (1,769) ©917)
Effect of research and development PSR S NEH IR A %RIE\
bonus deductions =7 (43,668) (2,776)
Effect of share of profits less losses of FE(EEE &2 | R RS R A
associates T (7,938) (6,828)
Effect of PRC tax concessions H fﬁﬁz{aﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ =7 (140,375) (75,752)
Effect on deferred tax balances resulting PS4 5 Ra B) ¥R Lfﬁlﬁ
from changes in income tax rates ERERE - (140)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and RIERAEFRRFISEE K
temporary differences not recognised =AM E TR R TE R 22,830 23,286
Tax effect of unused tax losses and F—FEREREAREE

temporary differences not recognised in 2 {# A sk B iR RIA(E B
previous year but utilised or recognised A EE M TR ZRER

in current year mmEsE (37,098) -
(Over)/under-provision in respect ﬂfii&% HCBR), TR

of prior years (14,765) 7,691
Others Hith 1,787 (4,230)
Actual tax expense ERRIERAS 107,161 118,639
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SRR HI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

9 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

9 EEREENHM

Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are as follows: EENEEEMEHMAOT ¢
Directors’ Salaries,
and allowances Retirement
supervisors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2011
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
EXBR TE-#R 20114
EEZE REVEN MERAL  BRASHK CHS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR¥TR AR¥TR AR®TRT AR%®T:R
Directors S
Mr. Zhu, Yongpeng (Chairman) FARAE(EZR)
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011 FE5 R ) - - - - -
Mr. Feng, Shuchen et feta
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011 FE5 R fE4) - - - - -
Mr. Yang, Guang oy - - - - -
Mr. Ye, Weifang EEFRAE
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011455 B T) - 416 323 84 823
Mr. Li, Hongyuan TREEE
(Appointed in May 2011) (20115 A E7) - 270 180 49 499
Ms. Wang, Hongyan FTrEL+
(Appointed in May 2011) (20115 A E7) - 367 228 78 673
Mr. Xu, Fenggang HREREE
(Resigned in May 2011) (201145 A BLH) - 212 97 42 351
Mr. Wang, Zhongau FRELE
(Resigned in May 2011) (20115 A EH) - - - - -
Mr. Qi, Zhiming PEREE
(Resigned in May 2011) (20115 A EH) - - - - -
Ms. Ren, Mudi ERR L
(Resigned in May 2011) (20115 A EH) - - - - -
Mr. Li, Zhongjun FRERE
(Resigned in May 2011) (20115 A EH) - - - - -
Mr. Wang, Baozhong FRBEE
(Resigned in May 2011) (20115 A B - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors B IEE{TES
Mr. Lu, Yanchang BEFEE ST
(Appointed in September 2011) (2011F9A ) 25 - - - 25
Mr. Zhai, Ligong 2UNkE
(Appointed in September 2011) (2011F9A ) 25 - - - 25
Mr. Fan, Renda Anthony BLERAE
(Appointed in September 2011) (2011F9A ) 25 - - - 25
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9 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments 9 EEREEMNHE(E)

(continued)

Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are as follows:

EXEREFHHMOT - (8)

(continued)
Directors’ Salaries,
and allowances Retirement
supervisors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2011
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
EXBR TE-#R 20115
EEE  REVEN MEBTEAL  BAEHX A3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT AR%TR AR%®TR AR%®TR
Supervisors Ex
Mr. Qiao, Baoping BREEE
(Appointed in May 2011) (201155 A1) - - - - -
Mr. Chen, Bin B 58 A - - - - -
Mr. Xu, Xingzhou FHEN A
(Appointed in May 2011) (201155 A1) - - - - -
Mr. Guan, Xiaochun BEELE
(Appointed in May 2011) (201145 B fE4) - 43 326 84 823
Mr. Li, Wei FREL
(Appointed in May 2011) (201145 B E4R) - 202 190 60 452
Mr. Wang, Longling FaEEEsE
(Resigned in May 2011) (20115 AE) - - - - -
Mr. Jiang, Hongyuan ZHREAE
(Resigned in May 2011) (2011465 A BHH) - - - - -
Mr. Feng, Shuchen ISR EE
(Resigned in May 2011) (20115 A) - - - - -
75 1,880 1,344 397 3,696
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9 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments 9 EERE-ENHE(E)

(continued)
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are as follows: EEREENHIOT : (8)
(continued)
Directors’ Salaries,
and allowances Retirement
supervisors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2010
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
EXER IB #R 20106
EZE  REDEN BEEa BRASER Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
Directors B
Mr. Xu, Fenggang (Chairman) HERLE(FER) - 428 324 60 812
Mr. Wang, Zhongau FRERE = - - - -
Mr. Yang, Guang i = - - - -
Mr. Qi, Zhiming BERLE = = - - -
Ms. Ren, Mudi ERRE L = = - = -
Mr. Li, Zhongjun FRERE - - - - -
Mr. Wang, Baozhong FRBEE = - - - -
Supervisors o
Mr. Wang, Longling FaREE = = = - -
Mr. Chen, Bin BRI 58 A = = = - -
Mr. Jiang, Hongyuan ZHREE = = = = -
Mr. Feng, Shuchen BEERE = = - - -
- 428 324 60 812
10 Individuals with highest emoluments 10 HM &S EA

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2010:
one) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2010:

four) individuals are as follows:

FERSODLMEAF - EP=(z(2010% :
—)REE - HFMEMZOPET TRE -
H iz (20104 : PUAL) EABARF AT -

2011 2010

20114 20104F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFIT

Salaries and other emoluments T& % E fih 3 B 678 1,836
Discretionary bonuses BYIBIEAT 496 1,584
Retirement scheme contributions RIREHEFK 156 296
1,330 3,716

BEMERREERNDER AR

CE—EER
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10 Individuals with highest emoluments
(continued)

The emoluments of the two (2010: four) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

10 i S Y EA ()

EmMAI(2010F © WAL BB REFHMEE AR
FrENEELD T -

2011 2010

201145 20104

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AH

Nil to HKD1,000,000 = 278 #1,000,0007T 2 4

11 Profit attributable to equity shareholders/
owners of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders/owners
of the Company includes a profit of RMB34,161,000 (2010: a loss
of RMB70,207,000) which have been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Reconciliations of the above amount to the Company’s profit for
the year:

1 %ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂii/ﬁﬁﬁkﬂ’ﬂ

BEBRAARERRE 1B ANEGFEE
BAR34,161,000 T F)E (20104F : AR
#70,207,000 T K 518 ) EFE AR BB s #R 3%
I o

P S FEEARRBAREFN B AL

2011 2010
201145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Amount of consolidated profit/(loss) KRR EREAEINAR
attributable to equity shareholders/ SEEBRA N RS
owners dealt with in the Company’s FTE ABAGHFIE, (E518)
financial statements 34,161 (70,207)
Final dividends from subsidiaries and BN E—EEAEIERN
associates attributable to the profits of RERERRENB AR
the previous financial year and approved [z H4& /A 5 H) HAR A% 2.
during the year 251,807 140,743
Impairment losses of subsidiaries and NS =NG D)
associates BB R - (23,235)
Company’s profit for the year (note 34(a)) A~ FIANEFIE (P 5334(a)) 285,968 47,301
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12 Earnings per share 128REBF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the FIRERBRAGER AR R LRI A
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders/owners of BAHHMEA R #840,681,0007T (20104 :
the Company of RMB840,681,000 (2010: RMB350,359,000) AR #350,359,0007T ) A R F REEITEINE
and the weighted average of 4,855,986,000 ordinary shares 38 P hN A S 159 8 4,855,986,000 % (2010 4F :
(2010: 4,850,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year, 4,850,000,0000% E3@p%) - sTET :
calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares TERMEFERE
2011 2010
201145 2010%F
’000 000
T F i
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January ®1A18 E%’*ﬁﬁ’]ﬂtﬁlﬁ - -
Effect of the Conversion (note) HHIWFE (M) 4,850,000 4,850,000
Effect of issuance of shares in 2011512 A 82 1TARID R RZ 22
December 2011 5,986 -
Weighted average number of ordinary K12 A31 B E@ERH
shares at 31 December N 15 £ 4,855,986 4,850,000
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence HE2011FEK2010F12A31B IEFE R - K
during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010. RNEANMFERBILDEEE R
Note: FE
The Company was converted into a joint stock company with limited liability AR AR201145 A 16 A & 4| F%HQ E=] ﬁE NG
on 16 May 2011 by converting its equity into 4,850,000,000 ordinary shares. ﬁj& 7 88 ¥ X 4,850,000,000 f% T @B A% - ZF L B
These ordinary shares were issued to its then existing equity owners for no BAOTARAERNER Ffrﬁ/\ BAXNHE -
additional consideration. The number of ordinary shares was increased without BaTERLTBRSAESLMMEEELN - Bt -
a corresponding increase in equity. Therefore, the weighted average number 20114 &% 20104 B 1 TSN E i A e a2l
of ordinary shares outstanding during 2011 and 2010 is adjusted as if the TT AR R EAESETEEERAITHRERR
Conversion had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period presented. HEHAY) o BARERIMFF MR - 2 RME -
Details of the Conversion are set out in note 1.
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13 Property, plant and equipment 13Y% - BERZE
The Group NEE
Land, Machinery Furniture,
buildings and and Motor fixtures  Construction
structures  equipment vehicles  andothers in progress Total
1 BF e
REEY  KERRE RE RERHM HEIE At

RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBIO0O
ARETE  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Cost: A

At1 January 2010 2010F1A1H 829,911 909,567 78,167 45,528 2,918,557 4,781,730
Additions byl 118,111 765,426 56,489 40,971 4,296,472 5,212,469
Transfer from construction in progress ERIREA 2,038,181 534,730 = 85,239 (2,658,150) -
Transfer to investment properties (note 14)  B{EREEME(Hi14) (145,704) - - - - (145,704)
Disposal e = (2,170) (3,029 (2,126) = (7,329)
At 31 December 2010 and 20105124318 )

1 January 2011 20114%1R1H 2,835,499 2,207,553 131,627 169,612 4,556,879 9,901,170
Additions = 93,563 631,975 46,830 58,458 3,159,664 3,990,490
Tranfer from construction in progress FETREA 1,025,687 2,304,745 2,395 19,708 (3,352,535) -
Transfer to investment properties (note 14)  B{EREEME(izH14) (106,051) - - - - (106,051)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) mERBAR(FzE30) (638,816)  (1,829,402) (25,834) (13,047) (470,306)  (2,977,405)
Disposal e - (3,321) (2,393) (1,113 - (6,827)
At 31 December 2011 2011F12431H 3,209,882 3,311,550 152,625 233,618 3,893,702 10,801,377
Accumulated depreciation: 2HE .

At1 January 2010 20101 A1H 41,925 102,915 29,759 20,277 - 194,876
Depreciation charge for the year RERHEE 30985 148224 14,819 17,283 = 220,311
Transfer to investment properties (note 14)  E{EREMME (FizE14) (606) - - - - (606)
Written back on disposal Rt EmEm = (1,842 (2,258) (1922) = (6,022)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011~ 2010%12831B R

2011F1A1H 81,304 249,297 42,320 35,638 - 408,559
Depreciation charge for the year TEENEE 124,736 257,609 20,555 29,088 - 432,078
Transfer to investment properties (note 14)  E{ERAEME (Hz14) (7,887) - - - - (7,887)
Disposal of subsioliaries (note 39) HEMBAR(HE39) (16,469) (51,747) (7,582) (5,592) - (81,390)
Written back on disposal R E A - (2,319 (1,876) (1,081) - (5,256)
At 31 December 2011 20115124318 181,684 452,930 53,417 58,073 - 746,104
Net book value: REFE :
At 31 December 2011 20115128318 3,028,198 2,858,620 99,208 175,545 3,893,702 10,055,273
At 31 December 2010 20105124318 2,754,195 1,968,256 89,307 133,974 4,556,879 9,492,611
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 13V - MERRE(E)

The Company b NN
Land, Machinery Furniture,
buildings and and Motor fixtures ~ Construction
structures  equipment vehicles ~ andothers in progress Total
14 8% B8
REEY  EERRE RE  RERHEM HRIE At

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARETR  ARETR  ARBTL  ARMTL  ARMTR  ARETR

Cost: A

At 1 January 2010 2010€1R1A - - 3,031 2,181 1,515,079 1,520,291
Addtions =10 - - 4471 1,060 317,277 322,808
Transfer from construction in progress ERIREA 1,661,983 = = 84,448 (1,736,431) -
Transfer to investment properties (note 14)  B{EREEME(izH14) (859,539) - - - - (859,539)

At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 2010123318 &

2011E1 A18 792,450 - 7,502 87,689 95,925 983,566
Additions byl 16,510 - 2,549 1,020 499,970 520,049
Transfer from construction in progress ERIREA 36,855 116,107 - - (152,962) -
At 31 December 2011 20115123318 845,815 116,107 10,051 88,709 442,933 1,503,615
Accumulated depreciation: e
At1 January 2010 201051718 - - 1,408 991 - 2,399
Depreciation charge for the year TEEHER - - 75 443 - 1,198

At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 2010123318 &

_______________________ DO PO SO SO =
Depreciation charge for the year rERHEE 26,588 938 1,416 615 - 20,557
pilbell | AR oo .® e e Ll
Net book value: BEEE:

At 31 December 2011 2011%12A318 819,227 115,169 6,472 86,660 442933 1,470,461
At 31 December 2010 20105127318 792,450 - 5,339 86,255 95,925 979,969
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(v)

The Group’s and the Company’s plants and buildings are located in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2010, certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s buildings
(including investment properties) and machinery (see note 27), which
had an aggregate net book value of RMB27,170,000. There were no
borrowings secured by the Group’s buildings and machinery as at 31
December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group is in the process of applying for
the ownership certificates for certain of its properties. The aggregate
carrying value of such properties of the Group as at 31 December 2011 is
approximately RMB229,193,000. The directors are of the opinion that the
Group is entitled to lawfully occupy or use these properties.

The Group leases out a number of items of machinery and equipment to
power plants under operating leases, details of the lease arrangements
are set out in note 38(a)(). At the balance sheet date, the aggregate net
book value of these assets amounted to RMB1,915,356,000 (2010:
RMB1,188,037,000).

14 Investment properties

13 Y12 ~ BB K=&t ()

GEE

0)

(i)

(i)

()

AEBEARFNBE MEFTHLUNFE -

M2010F12A31H * AEBHE THEMRITRE
ERARERMAOE TEF(RIEREEYE) R
R (2RKE27)  HEmFELEAA
R#27,170,0007T ° 720116128318 * NEEZ
F R e s R E AT S SRIR AL o

R2011F12A318 » AEBEEEAS TYENEE
HE o R2011E12831H  AEENHEMERE
BARK229,193,0007T - EEMRAE - ANEEHE
BFEMBRERALEDE -

AEBULERERNEREAT S THRERR
B BREERH  28KE380)) c REE
BEXH  UFEENEEAFELBERAARYE
1,915,356,0007T ° (20104 : A R#1,188,037,000
JL) ©

14 REMYZE

The Group
2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Cost: R :
At 1 January 1H1H 162,574 16,870
Additions 80 7,577 -
Transfer from property, plant and Y% - BEMEREEA
equipment (note 13) (Mg7E13) 106,051 145,704
At 31 December 12H31H 276,202 162,574
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHITE -
At 1 January 1A1H 3,426 2,152
Depreciation charge for the year REEFESR 6,497 668
Transfer from property, plant and M - B NEREEA
equipment (note 13) (BF5E13) 7,887 606
At 31 December 12H31H 17,810 3,426
Net book value: BRHEEE 258,392 159,148
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14 Investment properties (continued) 14 REMYE(E)
The Company b NN
2011 2010
201145 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARET T
Cost: A :
At 1 January 1H1H 859,533 -
Additions 0 43,998 -
Transfer from property, plant and Y% - BB REEEA
equipment (note 13) (Bfs£13) - 859,533
At 31 December 12H31H 903,531 859,533
Accumulated depreciation: Z:HirE
At 1 January 1H1H - -
Depreciation charge for the year AEEHES 26,024 -
At 31 December 12H31H 26,024 -
Net book value: ARMENFE 877,507 859,533

All the investment properties owned by the Group and the
Company are located in the PRC.

According to the Property Valuation Report issued by Jones
Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited, a firm of independent qualified
valuer in the PRC, on 9 December 2011, the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties as at 30 September 2011 was
RMB415,109,000. Management estimates that the fair values
of the Group’s investment properties as at 30 September 2011
and 31 December 2011 are not significantly different (2010:
RMB253,537,000).

AEBRARNRRMAENEEEYWESAMRF
o

RIEMEHTAM AR 2 A (Jones Lang
LaSalle Sallmanns Limited * 3% A &)2 & B
i —RBL A BRHEERR)R2011512
AOB AR AHE) - KW201149A
308 - AEBEMREUMELARBERARE
415,109,0007T > EEER A © KR2011F9 A
30H &2011F12A31H » AEBEHREHEY
ERNABETFEEAZR(2010F : ARKE
253,537,0007T) °
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14 Investment properties (continued)

(a) Investment properties leased out under operating lease

The Group and the Company lease out investment properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 3 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease after
that date at which time all terms are re-negotiated. Lease
payments are usually adjusted upon the expiry of lease
terms to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

The Group’s and the Company’s total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

receivable as follows:

14 REMY = (F)
(a) RIBAEEEE LRI

AEBEARBAKEHERLRE LY
X —RUGHEEMI A3 -65F - BIMZ
‘BAIAEH - ERETEMERERR
Bk - HEIBIMZ & —RRIEMHHE
SHHESETHE - MIBEHESRH T
ExBHEE -

ERA@REEHERT  AREERN
RAARREW R RIERE KA T -

The Group NEE
2011 2010
20115 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Within 1 year 1FRN 28,238 11,288
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F1&2B5F R 15,980 5,327
44,218 16,615

The Company NN |
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARETTT
Within 1 year 1R 14,894 7,467
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15 Lease prepayments 15 A L FHERK
The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Cost: A :
At 1 January 1A1H 564,060 240,145
Additions =0 396,138 323,915
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) B A A (FiEE39) (52,221) =
At 31 December 128318 907,977 564,060
Accumulated amortisation: Sty
At 1 January 1H1H 10,373 5,910
Amortisation for the year INEEEHE 14,079 4,463
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEN B AT (F:E39) (1,824) -
At 31 December 12H31H 22,628 10,373
Net book value: ARMENFE 885,349 553,687

Lease prepayments mainly represent prepayments for rights to
use land, which is all located in the PRC, for own use properties
with lease periods of 36 to 50 years. There were no unpaid lease
prepayments as at 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group was in the process of
applying for registration of the ownership certificates for certain
of its land use rights. The aggregate carrying value of such land
use rights of the Group as at 31 December 2011 is approximately
RMB9,632,000. The directors are of the opinion that the Group is
entitled to lawfully occupy or use these land.

As at 31 December 2010, certain of the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings were secured by certain
of the Group’s lease prepayments (see note 27), which had
an aggregate net book value of RMB6,975,000. There was no
borrowings secured by the Group’s lease prepayments as at 31
December 2011.

Jaft LA ERT B R L TN - T
BEALIMHURTR - (ERERYE  HE
B &36—504F o 201112 A318 » Az
REMHFEN T HAEK -

R2011F128318  AEEIEEAE T i lF
FAREPIBAEREE - JA20115E12 8318 » K&EE
B Z £ i P KRB E 40 A A R 59,632,000
T BEMRE - AEBBEEEMhERE
Pttt o

R2010F12A31H + AEE/E THERIRIT
REMERAREERE TEMS B ERE
EIR(2RM5327) HEEMFELEEAARE
6,975,0007T ° R2011F12A31H » AEEM
T T4 & FOR E Al fE SRR o
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16 Intangible assets 16 BLEE
The Group NEE
Concession Technical Development Software
assets know-how costs and others Total
BHEEE BER BB BHEREM &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®EFT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2010 2010F1 /14 200,465 102,051 4,556 12,101 319,173
Additions 0 262,560 55,508 27,468 5,446 350,982
At 31 December 2010 and 2010F12A31B K&

1 January 2011 201141 A1H 463,025 157,559 32,024 17,547 670,155
Additions #m 21,084 8,768 73,211 4,929 107,992
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)  HEMB A A (FiH3E39) - (65,236) - (3,316) (68,552)
At 31 December 2011 2011F12A31H 484,109 101,091 105,235 19,160 709,595
Accumulated amortisation: Rty
At 1 January 2010 2010F1 /14 6,170 21,036 - 2,286 29,492
Amortisation charge for the year KEEHEE 4,362 7,608 548 1,374 13,892
At 31 December 2010 and 2010F12A31B K&

1 January 2011 2011F1A1H 10,532 28,644 548 3,660 43,384
Amortisation charge for the year NEGHEE 9,246 12,715 1,184 2,986 26,131
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)  HEMEB A A (FiH3E39) - (8,547) - (92) (8,639)
At 31 December 2011 20114F12A31H 19,778 32,812 1,732 6,554 60,876
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2011 2011123318 464,331 68,279 103,503 12,606 648,719
At 31 December 2010 201012 A31H 452,493 128,915 31,476 13,887 626,771

Rt E EEAREZ AR HER S KEIER
HEITISKBRIRRRER] 45 5HHE B EE RIS IFRT
TH B L AR T -

Concession assets represent the rights the Group received for
the usage of the concession sewage treatment plants for the
treatment of sewage. The concession assets are amortised over
the operating period of the service concession projects.
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16 Intangible assets (continued)

The amortisation charges of RMB15,678,000 (2010:
RMB4,186,000) and RMB10,453,000 (2010: RMB9,706,000) are
included in “cost of sales” and “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated income statement respectively.

Certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
were secured by concession assets (see note 27), which
had an aggregate net book value of RMB84,707,000. (2010:

RMB87,732,000).

16 B EE (H])

GO ERPEOIHEEREN ] RI1THAX JE
B TR BEEHEERARK15678000
L (20104 : AR ¥4,186,0007T) K A R &
10,453,0007C(20104F : A R#9,706,0007T) °

AEENE THEERRITREME KT
BEEFERF(ZANZE27) EEREFEL
%A AR ¥84,707,0007C (20104 : AR
87,732,0007T) °

17 Goodwill 1I7TRHE
The Group NEE
2011 2010
20115 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T AR¥ET T
At 1 January 1H1H 14,409 14,409
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 39) &M E A A (FiEE39) (7,327) =
7,082 14,409

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to operation and operating segment as

follows:

B D BLRRIR T I 375 S Q& 0 #8810 ey A
SEMBRSELET

2011 2010

20114 2010%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

Environmental protection RIR 7,082 7,082
Solar power products and services K5 eEE MRS - 7,327
7,082 14,409
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18 Investments in subsidiaries 18 S B A MR E

The Company b NN
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETIRD - AT E 3,755,710 2,172,838
PRC listed shares, at cost PR TRk - R AEE 14,114 14,114
3,769,824 2,186,952
Less: impairment loss W OREETE - (29,873)
3,769,824 2,157,079
Market value of PRC listed shares R _ETIR D TR 1,888,908 2,494 074

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries as at
31 December 2011 which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the Group. All of the PRC Subsidiaries are limited

liability companies.

R2011F12A318 - HAKERE - EEXR
BRABXZZENMBRRNFBEIIRNT
ETENBARHIABEREERT -

Proportion of ownership interest

&Rl
Place of Group’s Held
establishment/ Issued and fully effective by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest ~ Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BRTARH AREN AEXRE HKELF
GRS AL/ s BREMNER  BYER ®E BE IEEE
Beijing Guodian Longyuan The PRC RMB1,000,000,000 100% 100% - Provision of desulphurisation and
Environmental Engingering Co., Ltd. AK#1,000,000,0007 other environmental protection
EREEERRRIEERAR) engineering services
MR R RR TIRERR
Jiangsu Deke Environmental The PRC RMB80,000,000 67.46% = 67.46%  Production and sale of environmental
Equipment Co., Ltd. f AK80,000,00070 protection equipment

(TEERRRRAERAT)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

18 HHE 2 A viIRE (&)

18 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

FrE&ERLA
Place of Group’s Held
establishment/ Issued and fully effective by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BETERZE  AREN AARF  AWEAR
GRS A/ BREMNER  BYER ®E BE IEEE
Beijing Longyuan Environmental The PRC RMB33,750,000 51% = 51%  Provision of desulphurisation and
Engineering Co., Ltd. H AR%33,750,0007 other environmental protection
ERERRRIEBRAF) engineering services
MR R RR TIRERR
Zhoushan Longxi Environment The PRC RMB33,340,000 36.21% - 71%  Design and construction of
Engineering Co., Ltd. H AR#33,340,0007 environmental protection projects
(FHUEBRRIRARAA) RIRE R MR RIET
Bengbu Guodian Longyuan The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% - 100%  Operation of environmental
Environmental Development Co., Ltd. & AR%30,000,0007 protection faciliies
HEESRRRRERARAR) RIRR AT S
Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB50,000,000 70% - 70%  Production and sale of selective
(IE&ERECAERAR) i AE#50,000,00070 catalytic reduction catalyst
BEMRECRREED
HEREE
Tonghua Guodian Longyuan The PRC RMB26,000,000 100% - 100%  Generation and sale of electricity
Environment Engineering Co,, Ltd. AR%26,000,00070 EERHE
(BRI EERRRERIARAR)
Guodian Longyuan Nanjing Membrane  The PRC RMB25,000,000 84% - 100%  Production and sale of membrane,
Technology Co., Ltd. e AR%25,000,00070 water treatment equipment and
EEERERERTBRAF) electric equipment
B KREREREREZEN
EEREE
Nanjing Longyuan Environmental The PRC RMB50,000,000 60% = 60%  Provision of environmental protection
Co., Ltd. H AR #50,000,00070 engineering services
ERERERERARF) RRRTERE
Puyang Guodian Longyuan Water The PRC RMB10,000,000 70% - 70%  Operation of water treatment
Treatment Co., Ltd. w AR%10,000,0007 projects
(EGEEERKBERAR) KEREAMEE
Longyuan Environmental Protection Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary 100% 100% - Sale of desulphurisation equipment
(Hong Kong) Corporation Limited B shares of HK$1 each R ENEE
(note (i) 2,000,000
(ERRR(EE) AR ) () BRAKITHLER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

18 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

18 HHE 2 A viIRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

FiE&ERLA
Place of Group'’s Held
establishment/ Issued and fully effective by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest ~ Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BETERZE  AREN  BARE  AWEAR
NAER R/ BHENER  BYER BE BE IEEE
Beijing Lucency Environment and The PRC RMB500,000,000 100% 100% - Construction and operation of water
Technology Co., Ltd. H AK 500,000,000 treatment projects
OERBARRRNRARAR) KERIEIBE M LA
Dalian Delang Water Treatment Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 51% = 51%  Operation of water treatment
(REEAKBERAR) i ARH#20,000,0007 projects
KEERERMEE
Shanxi Xinyuan Environment Protection ~ The PRC RMB13,000,000 51% = 51%  Construction and operation of water
Resources Development Co,, Ltd. AK13,000,0007 treatment projects
(WETRRRERREEREELT) LAY L)
Taiyuan Lucency Sewage Treatment The PRC RMB10,200,000 80% - 80%  Design and installation of sewage
Co., Ltd. H AE10,200,0007 treatment equipment
REBHRKEEARAR) kBB R R B R
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB1,403,046,300 70% 70% - Research and development of wind
Co., Ltd. H AE1,408,046,3007T turbing technology
EEHSBNRAERAF) EWil: SRl
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB220,000,000 70% - 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Baoding) Co., Ltd. H AR %220,000,0007 BEA#REERHE
EEHSB NI (RE)ARAR)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB220,000,000 45.82% = 65.46%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Baotou) Co., Ltd. H AR%220,000,0007 BAHEEERHE
EEHSD NI (RR)ARAR)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB150,000,000 70% - 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Lianyungang) Co., Ltd. H AR%150,000,0007 BEO#REERHE
EEHEYNBM(EER)BRAA)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB105,000,000 70% - 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Chifeng) Co., Ltd. i AR#105,000,00070 B E R E
([EEBSB NI (FE)ERAR)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB50,000,000 59.50% - 85%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Yixing) Co., Ltd. i A 50,000,007 EWL iolsdississ

E=BRNRM(ER)ARAT)

190

GUODIAN TECHNOLOGY & ENVIRONMENT GROUP CORPORATION LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

18 HHE 2 A viIRE (&)

18 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

FiE&ERLA
Place of Group'’s Held
establishment/ Issued and fully effective by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest ~ Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BETERZE  AREN  BARE  AWEAR
NAER R/ BHENER  BYER BE BE IEEE
Beijing Long Wei Power Generation The PRC RMB40,000,000 42% - 60%  Production and sale of steam turbine
Technology Co., Ltd. i AR %40,000,0007C FRRNEERKE
(LR EERMARAT)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB40,000,000 61.25% = 87.50%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. H AR%40,000,0007T BEA#REERHE
([EEBS B NI (LE)ARAR)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB5,000,000 70% - 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Changchun) Co., Ltd. H AR%5,000,0007C EO#REERHE
EEHSB NI (REF)ARAR)
Guodian Solar (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,074,000,000 100% 100% - Production and sale of solar cells
(note (ii) H AR#1,074,000,0007T AGE N EEREE
EEFROLE) AR (i)
Guodian Solar System Technology The PRC RMB20,000,000 50% = 50%  Construction of solar power
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (note (iv)) H AR%20,000,0007T generation system
EEAGR 2GR LE)BRAT) KGR EBRRMRIER
(FiFEE ()
Guodian Longyuan Power Technology ~ The PRC RMB141,727,000 100% 100% - Construction and operation of
and Engineering Co., Ltd. H AKE141,727,0007 biomass power plants
EFERENHNIEEREELF) ENERERNE AL
Guodian Longyuan Energy Saving The PRC RMB20,000,000 99.58% - 100%  Provision of energy conservation
Technology Co., Ltd. H AK#20,000,00070 engineering services
([EEERERRMBRAT) RS TRRS
Beijing Guodian Hangguo Lankun Energy The PRC RMB10,000,000 58.20% = 58.20%  Production and sale of biomass fuel
Engineering Technology Co., Ltd. H AR%10,000,0007T boiler
(tREEERMRE R R IR EMERHRE A EREE
ARAR)
Yantai Longyuan Power Technology The PRC 154,000,000 shares 23.25% 23.25% - Production and sale of thermal
Co., Ltd. (“Longyuan Technology’) & of RMB1 each energy equipment
(note (v) 154,000,0008% B R ENEEREE
(EEERENHIMRNERAR) BRARBIT

f
(TRembn ) (st ())
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

18 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

18 HHE 2 A viIRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

FrE&ERLA
Place of Group’s Held
establishment/ Issued and fully effective by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BETERZE  AREN AARF  AWEAR
GRS A/ BREMNER  BYER ®E BE IEEE
Guodian Longyuan Technologies USA  United States USD2,000,000 23.25% - 100%  Production and sale of igniters and
Corporation (note (i) (FFE (i) e 2,000,000%7T other electric equipment
HAEREMERRREN
HEREE
Beijing Huadian Tianren Power The PRC RMB24,232,100 90% 90% - Production and sale of safety
Controlling Technology Co., Ltd. H AR #24,232,1007C instrumented system and speed
EREEXCENEHIRIBRAF) controller for the variable-pitch
wind turbine
ERPENRZ 2RERAR
BREHENEEREE
Guodian Longyuan Electrical Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB14,932,900 51% 51% - Production and sale of wind turbine
EEEFEIERAF) HE AE#14,932,9007 components
RO ERREE
Notes: F3E
(i)  Except for Longyuan Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Corporation () B®Longyuan Environmental Protection (Hong Kong)
Limited and Guodian Longyuan Technologies USA Corporation, the Corporation Limited } Guodian Longyuan
English translation of the names of other entities is for identification only. Technologies USA Corporation#) 5 XX Z &z 7 » H
The official names of these entities are in Chinese. MENEBERRBA A - ELEARWERETE
R -
(i) This company has been renamed as Guodian Technology & Environment (i) ZAREEZRABRERBRREETERRATF
Group Hong Kong Corporation Limited with effect from 15 March 2012. 20123 158 4R °
(i) These companies were newly established in 2011. (i) FLLRRIER2011FFKILH AR °
(iv) The Group appointed and has the power to appoint the directors of this (v) SZARMKIIAK - REEBIEER T » WHEED
company to govern the financial and operating policies of this company Z N BIRE S DA L 52 B B B 765 B4R 8 BUR N A4
so as to obtain benefits from its activities since the establishment of this i B %A AR & A B R EVE R o
company.
(v) The Company is the biggest equity owner of this company and no other V) ARFREZAFZANERAEA @ BIBEZAFN

192

equity owners individually or in the aggregate had the power to control
this company according to the articles of association. Historically,
the Company controlled the operation of this company by appointing
senior management, approving annual budget and determining the
remuneration of employees, etc. The Company has agreements with
certain shareholders of this company, whereby such equity owners have
agreed to vote in concert with the Company since the establishment of
this company. The PRC lawyer of the Company confirmed that these
agreements are valid under relevant PRC laws. Considering the above
mentioned factors, the directors are of the opinion that the Company
controlled this company during the years presented.

RAER - PMEEER R EEM AR NIZEFZA
A EMESMAA - EZRRESE £ AARR
BEPERERALE  FERESHNECESSH
B%E  —EHZRARNEEZHENE - BZAT)
BILAR - ARBEZRRNE TRREER T
o REBHHERT  HERRABERARERE—
HHRER - KRB P BIZAER - WEBHED
BOERETARRSD - EX LiEE - EEMR
B EREFRA - RNATHZAREAEGE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

19 Interests in associates 19 HEFE N TNERE

The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBT T
Share of net assets JE(EEEFE 290,798 208,530
Amounts due from associates il NG A e 1,200 1,200
291,998 209,730

The Company RRF]
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARET T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT, - IBAAETE 63,116 152,969
Less: impairment loss R EEE - (20,000)
63,116 132,969
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

19 Interests in associates (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of associates, all of
which are unlisted corporate entities and established in the PRC,
which principally affected the results or assets of the Group as at

31 December 2011:

19 HEE N R AVIRE ()

TRIIE THAREE2011F12 431 B EESK
’é{?ﬂ*ﬂ‘ik CENBERRINFE - TEE
RNEGRENE LT - WA o

Proportion of ownership interest

FEERRLA
Group’s Held
Place of Issued and fully effective by the Held by
Name of the company establishment paid-up capital interest ~ Company asubsidiary  Principal activities
ERTEE  AREN  @ARE  HWEAR

DRER B2 BROER  BYER 55 BB FERE

Bejiing Longyuan Cooling Technology ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 60% 60% - Production and installation of
Ltd. (note i) H AR%50,000,0007 coo\ing equipment

OERER R AT AR A R) (2 ) RAZENEERLE

Beijing Guodian Zhishen Control The PRC RMB53,900,000 46.86% 46.86% - Research and development of
Technology Co., Ltd. H AK53,900,0007C automatic control system of

EREEERENRIERAR) thermal power generation units

(ERAEEZRR A ERE

Datong Sunshine Desulphurisation The PRC RMB8,000,000 20% - 20%  Production and sale of lime and
Preparation Co., Ltd. f AKH8,000,0007C limestone powder

(REFXHREEBRAR) RRERRMN EEREE

Guodian Jintech Solar Energy The PRC RMB234,179,000 26.67% - 26.67%  Design, production and sale of
Technology (Yixing) Co., Ltd. e AR 234,179,000 solar power generation equipment

EEEEAGENR(ER)ERAF) G EERENRE

EFE@%’%

Dalian Economic and Technical The PRC RMB48,422,000 50% - 50%  Management and operation of
Development Zone Drain # AR%48,422,00070 water treatment projects
Management Co., Ltd. (note (ii) KEBBRNERELE

(RECERIRERKERERAR
(Bt (i)

Notes: FI3E

() The English translation of the names is for identification only. The official () ARMRNEBERZAN A  BLEARMERE

names of these entities are in Chinese. WY AR X ETE -

(i) According to the articles of association of this company, the resolutions in (i) WIBEZARMNARER  BRERUHRLEERR

relation to material financial and operating decisions have to be passed by FREZFEMNHO I —EERB - TRRAANERE

three-fourth of directors. As the Company only has rights to appoint four
out of seven directors of this company, the Company does not have power
to control the financial and operating policies of this company although the

Company owns more than half of equity interests and voting power in this #E o

company.

(i) This company was acquired by the Group in 2011.

- ARREZA

BZF - ARAAREERESETHNBRES
Hit - BEARBRFAEZARBFHNERERRR
AR 15 R AR EBUR T BB £

(i) AEBP2011FKE TZ AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

19 Interests in associates (continued) 19 BHFE N FINERE(E])
Summary financial statements on associates: Bt N R IR E
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Profit
BE afE R A b5y

RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARETE ARE®ETT ARBTT

2011 20114

100 percent 100% 2,922,014 (2,096,736) 825,278 1,349,581 129,865
Group’s effective interest AN B KA Kz 1,306,853 (1,016,055) 290,798 689,797 22,547
2010 20105

100 percent 100% 2,138,959 (1,564,322) 574,637 1,077,276 49,407
Group’s effective interest  NEE KA KR 1,027,423 (820,482) 206,941 569,580 25,722
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f), the BEME2NE THENS TR - EXBE
Group discontinued to recognise its share of losses of an associate N AR TR R R BB s = A R b g e
as its share of losses of that associate has exceeded its interest B AEERITHREREZEE A RIMIELK -
in that associate. The current year unrecognised share of losses REFRBERAOEGEE R AIBREN LGB
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate AR E AR P EDR A A R1,963,00070
is RMB1,963,000 (2010: RMB1,589,000). The accumulated (20104 : AR¥1,589,0007T) - REEAE
unrecognised share of losses of an associate as at the balance xH B RERNEGEEARBLAAR
sheet date is RMB nil (2010: RMB1,589,000). ¥Z T (20106 : AK¥1,589,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

20 Other non-current assets 20 HitERBEE
The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Long-term trade receivables due from: RHAFEWER SR « (FIEEG)
(note (i)
- related parties under Guodian — BB T B REH 140,445 -
— third parties —%£=5 130,805 55,810
Less: current portion of long-term B REFFEURER SR BN AR ER 7
trade receivables (64,486) (24,039)
206,764 31,771
Long-term retention receivables due from: & EFFEWE RS 70E « (K3E(i)
(note (i)
— related parties under Guodian —RETBR@EHS 309,095 402,759
— third parties —E=5 180,115 96,586
489,210 499,345
Long-term loans to third parties (note (i) 4 E = FRRIFER
(Bt & i) ) 37,587 12,960
Less: current portion of long-term loans 5 : T EFE K HBNERES 5 (10,160) =
27,427 12,960
Non-current financial assets ERBERMEE 723,401 544,076
Long-term prepayments REIFEI R 21,550 23,960
Deductible VAT (note (iv)) FIRFIIRE R (£ (V) 1,552,401 1,574,811
2,297,352 2,142,847
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

20 Other non-current assets (continued)

20 Hth3EREBEE (&)

The Company b NN
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Long-term trade receivables due from: RHAFEWER SR « (FIEEG)
(note (i)
- related parties under Guodian — BB T B REH 132,265 -
— third parties —%=5 71,630 55,810
Less: current portion of long-term trade & : & EREUBR ZR BN ERES
receivables (56,305) (24,039)
147,590 31,771
Loan to a subsidiary (note (v)) REBHB AR NER (V) - 50,000
Non-current financial assets ERBEREE 147,590 81,771
Deductible VAT (note (iv)) AR (E R (FRE (V) 9,790 -
157,380 81,771
Notes: BiEE

0)

(i)

(i)

(V)

(vi)

Long-term trade receivables represent trade receivables of certain
construction contracts which are repayable by instalments over a 5-year
period.

Long-term retention receivables represent retentions of sales of wind
turbines which will be received when the retention period elapses.

Loans to third parties comprises an interest-free loan amounting to
RMB13,427,000 which is repayable by instaiment from 2015 to 2034 and
a loan amounting to RMB24,160,000 which bears interest of 6.65% per
annum and is repayable by 2014. Both loans are unsecured.

Deductible VAT represents the input VAT in excess of output VAT. Input
VAT is recognised for the purchase of manufacturing raw materials and
components and acquisitions of machinery and equipment used for
operation. Input VAT will be deductible from output VAT payable for goods
to be sold in subsequent years.

The loan to a subsidiary as at 31 December 2010 was a designated loan,
unsecured and at a fixed interest rate of 5.4% per annum and due in
December 2012. The designated loan was early repaid in June 2011.

All non-current financial assets of the Group and the Company are neither
past due nor impaired.

(v)

BEMBRREERNDERAT

RHRUEREERFHRAD BENNE TRES
[RIIE T Y FE AR o

RAEWERSFIRBRERH 2R BUEREEN
BHELREFR -

REGE=ZFTHNEFEE " ZESERARE
13,427,000 7T * 12015 F £ 2034 F o Hi{E & -
AR —EH B ERAR24,160,0007T @ FF =
6.65% ' R2014FRIEE - B9 BERIA -

A 5 H138 B 751 45 HE TR (B 704 7R 3 5H TR (B T O 26
7 o EIRIRET IS B A E M R A R ER A A K B8
B MRS IRERER - EREERAINRE
FEOERMENMIEREET T EN

M2010F12A318 ' RELHBRARINER AR
B3k RER - BEFHNES.4% 0 B2012612 5 5

B

W o ZIBEFEESRE2011F6 AR IRAIER -

AEERARRNFEFRDEMEER B -
TRAREERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

21 Inventories 21 78
(a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet (a) e EEEBRTHNFERRE
comprises:
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Raw materials R 873,019 961,604
Work in progress EEM 481,775 332,871
Finished goods ERT 6,080,419 6,082,590
Spare parts g 53,692 10,160
7,488,905 7,387,225
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) EEHRBRTIERAREANTFEESHES
as an expense and included in the consolidated income T
statement is as follows:
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFENEREEEEE 9,876,078 6,309,745
Write down of inventories T B 36,154 =
9,912,232 6,309,745
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

22 Gross amounts due from/to customers for

contract work

2 Bl EAREEREF RURAH

The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Contract costs incurred plus recognised — fEEZA &GS R D 2 A A R
profits less recognised losses in e wRAE
connection with construction contracts B B RERREY 1B 2k
in progress 11,423,133 8,413,005
Less: progress billings W TIREEE R (10,302,721) (7,980,028)
1,120,412 432,977
Gross amounts due from customers for  JEINEE S R R R I8 4458
contract work (notes (i) and (iii)) (PR 2 i) 22 i) 1,638,456 1,021,444
Gross amounts due to customers for JEEEERBFHRIARE
contract work (note (iv)) (BFzEqv)) (518,044) (588,467)
1,120,412 432,977
The Company ARNF]
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Contract costs incurred plus TEPEEEREEA
recognised profits less recognised A RIS W R
losses in connection with RE MR K
construction contracts in progress 10,554 178,779
Gross amounts due from customers for  JEINEES R R R IB4E%E
contract work (notes (i) and (iii)) (B =G E2L i) 10,554 178,779
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

22 Gross amounts due from/to customers for
contract work (continued)

Notes:

(i)  Gross amounts due from customers for contract work represent unbilled
revenue for contract work and are presented as assets in the consolidated
balance sheet. Gross amounts due to customers for contract work
represent the amounts billed in advance of the contract work delivered and
are presented as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

(i) The gross amounts due from customers for contract work of the Group
include amounts of RMB1,069,492,000 (2010: RMB677,689,000) due
from related parties under Guodian. All gross amounts due from customers
for contract work of the Company as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 are
due from related parties under Guodian.

(i) As at 31 December 2011, except for amounts of RMB66,509,000 (2010:
RMB47,693,000) which are payable to the Group after the retention
period of construction contracts, all of the remaining gross amounts
due from customers for contract work of the Group are expected to be
recovered within one year. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, all of the
gross amounts due from customers for contract work of the Company are
expected to be recovered within one year.

(iv) Included in the gross amounts due to customers for contract work are
amounts of RMB244,073,000 (2010: RMB424,791,000) due to related
parties under Guodian.

n&g/@ﬁ@%éﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

G

)

(i)

()

EYGEES AEPRBRABE SR TRETRER
BHWRA  EEHEERBRTIIREE - BNE
EAREFPFRAEEEERESESNETRT
RNEHE  ERHEERERAYISAE -

AEERKREECRARFABLERERKESE
BB Y B8 B 5 U BN A BUEEA R #51,089,492,000 7T
(20104 : AR#677,689,0007T) ° 20114 &
2010F12A31H * AR AIEREES RBFPRIER
B AENEE T E R 5 KRR BR K o

R2011F12A31H * BREEARE THRIERRZ
B IER AR E B AR%66,509,0007T (20104 :
AR #47,603,0007T) 25D - ANEEREKEEESRE
FHUERAENAMARBRR - B BE—F 2Rk
@ - R20114E K2010F12 8318 » AR EIfEUREE
ARBFHRBEBRBENRARDN  EifBE—F2A
@] o

BEERMNEEARRTFEREAE Y NNESZ G
BT T & AR 5 I RRIE A AR 244,073,0007T
(20104 : AR#424,791,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR MY 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

23 Trade and bills receivables 28 EWRER R BB
The Group NEE
2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ET T
Trade receivables for contract work ARTREAEKIRR
due from:
— related parties under Guodian — BIE BRI 2,958,402 256,485
— associates — B QA 10,436 =
— third parties - =Vl 740,572 932,270
3,709,410 1,188,755
Bills receivable for contract work: ARIENEKREZE
— related parties under Guodian —BRE T BN 82,932 =
— third parties —F=F 227,157 465,473
310,089 465,473
Trade receivables for operating leases KR EREIWRERK
due from:
— related parties under Guodian —EETNERE S 327,352 106,813
— third parties —F=5 4,938 -
332,290 106,813
Trade receivables for sale of goods EYHE MR RS
and rendering of services due from: FEUBRSK
(note (i) (PR &EGi)
— Guodian — = 145 940
— related parties under Guodian —EHETNEAEE 863,546 795,776
— associates L EANE] 11,530 11,247
— third parties —%=5 3,299,075 951,984
4,174,296 1,759,947
Bills receivable for sale of goods and EYEE MR ARTE
rendering of services due from: BRI
— related parties under Guodian — Bl B Ry - 8,610
— third parties —%=5 1,495,265 2,134,009
1,495,265 2,142,519
10,021,350 5,663,507
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RIBEREME (95,772) (49,992)
9,925,578 5,613,515
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR MY 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

23 Trade and bills receivables (continued) 23 EWERFI R ZiE (48)
The Company b NN
2011 2010
201145 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARET T
Trade receivables for contract work AR TREAEWER
due from:
— related parties under Guodian —EE T BRI - 508
— third parties —%=5 82,427 96,288
82,427 96,886
Trade receivables for sale of goods EYiEE MR HAR
and rendering of services due from: I FE AR K -
— related parties under Guodian —EE B 56,903 -
— third parties - =Vl 25,106 -
82,009 -
Bills receivable for sale of goods and JEWBB R R EiHE
rendering of services due from a KRR R R R
subsidiary 6,464 -
170,900 96,886
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RIEREME (12,128) (12,128)
158,772 84,758

Notes: B5E -

() Trade and bills receivables of the Group include bills discounted to () AEENERERREZRBERBARITHER -
banks or endorsed to suppliers and factored trade receivables with IEEEBRLEERNER  URTERENE
recourse totaling RMB707,123,000 (2010: RMB2,493,770,000). These IREBRFRIRE - 4858 B A R ¥ 707,123,000 7T (2010
receivables were not derecognised as the Group remains exposed to the F: ARM2,493,770,0007T) ° &L EKIRA K E
credit risk of these receivables. The carrying amount of the associated BARW R IEHER - BRAREBDEELERERTR &
bank loans and trade payables amounted to RMB690,769,000 (2010: SRABERRR - HERITERREMERRAER
RMB2,477,026,000). 4 5 A A R %690,769,0007T (20104 : AR

2,477,026,0007T) °

(i) As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables for sale of goods amounting to (i) P20116128318 - {ERKRE AIRITE R Y im &
RMB335,620,000 was pledged as collateral for short-term bank loans (see B & 05 B FE MR 5k A R #5:885,620,0007T (£
note 27). RHizE27) -

All trade and bills receivables (net of impairment losses for REBEARQRMNMERUEER R EE (%

doubtful debts) of the Group and the Company are expected to RERAREER) BT ER—F 2RkE -

be recovered within one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR MY 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

23 Trade and bills receivables (continued) 2B EWRAR R EE(1E)
(a) Aging analysis (a) BRER D47
The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables (net of 7R £ [ ER RN R A FE UL BR B R =45 (HBR R
allowance for doubtful debts) of the Group and the Company is EERME ) BRI AT ¢
as follows:
The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
Within 1 year 1FR 9,385,711 5,249,714
Between 1 to 2 years 1—2%FR 466,396 253,899
Between 2 to 3 years 2—3FR 50,315 73,895
Over 3 years 3ELE 23,156 36,007
9,925,578 5,613,515
The Company PN
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT
Within 1 year 1FR 109,651 53,449
Between 1 to 2 years 1—2FR 25,690 13,536
Between 2 to 3 years 2—3FR 23,431 17,773
158,772 84,758
Aged receivables that were not impaired relate to a wide REERENRABRKERERZEFE
range of customers for whom there were no recent history of B BLEEPSRFEARSL - EARE
default and have a good track record with the Group. Based ERFRIFNR Friek o BIENELES -
on past experience, management believes that no impairment ERERR  BERUERFTZEZRER
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there #H EREAZEEVREESTAEL D
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the R ERRA 2 WE - @Rt ER
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group K NEE W ARFEE EARY) o

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Trade receivables are generally due immediately without credit FEUBR R —MRZ BN 2 E - Sk B B30K %180
or with credit period ranged from 30 days to 180 days. Further REEAER - BRAEEAERBEF
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 35(a). HHELRA - 2 RHI5ES5(a) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

23 Trade and bills receivables (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables

204

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade and bills
receivables directly (see note 2(mj(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is
as follows:

23 FE W IR e R 4% ()
(b) FEU AR R SR O

FE AR R N SR R (B B 1R R AR R A B
R BRIFAEER/ET T AW E X
RIE BB T - MERBLER
WS EREERERETHE(2LME
2(m)(i)) °

REZEBIMBERNREREGHZ SN
T

The Group NEE

2011 2010

20115 2010%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

At 1 January 1H1H 49,992 39,167

Impairment losses recognised TERR R EEE 49,045 11,451

Reversal of impairment losses WEEIEE D (2,859) (555)

Uncollectible amounts written off AT B FRIB H S 8 (406) (71)

At 31 December 12H31H 95,772 49,992
The Company AT
A

2011 2010

20114 2010%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

At 1 January and 31 December 1A1H&12H31H 12,128 12,128

The Group’s and the Company’s trade and bills
receivables of RMB61,064,000 (2010: RMB49,986,000)
and RMB12,128,000 (2010: RMB12,128,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that the
receivables are expected to be unrecoverable. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB60,564,000
(2010: RMB49,986,000) and RMB12,128,000 (2010:
RMB12,128,000) were recognised by the Group and the
Company respectively.

AEBEAQRE@ERFE A RERNE
AR R ZHE 5 5l A& AR #61,064,0007T
(20104 : AR#49,986,0007T ) £2 A R #&
12,128,0007C (20104 : AR¥512,128,000
70) o WEARIFEE A B R E R B EIE T
AR GTENBRENTFBEEEET TR
BEBEWKIETA LW E - Flt - AEE
HARNB SRS ERIBEREBEHET ARK
60,564,0007C (20104 : AR#49,986,000
JT) B A R#12 128,0007T (20104F : AR
#12,128,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

24 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 24 ##¢ - E{HER EittEWEIE
The Group REH
2011 2010
201145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Prepayments to sub-contractors (note (i) iﬁi’\" BEMTES R (HEE)))
— related parties under Guodian ESNEL o)) 44,200 1,536
— associates = Hﬁ’ﬁ /NG 4,808 5,343
— third parties —%=5 390,837 773,257
Prepayments for purchase of inventories T}T{,ﬁ\%ﬁ%’jﬂ’\ﬁﬁiﬁ =
— related parties under Guodian ESANEL0)2) ) 17,180 521
— associates ﬁ’ﬁ*z.*ﬁ Al 613 613
— third parties —%£=5 363,823 881,261
Deposits for construction contracts’ e RIS EAIRE S
bidding or performance (note (ii)) (B 3EGi)
— Guodian I HE 300 289
— related parties under Guodian EN L]k 33,294 26,965
— third parties — %:E 85,402 62,346
Other deposits Hitiz e 5,158 49,155
Advances to staff HEBEIMENR 29,130 49,454
Advances to %&?ﬁ\
— related parties under Guodian ESANEL0)E) 3,691 1,771
— associates (note (iii)) ﬁ’ﬁféﬁ a) (B Gin)) 4,181 154,560
— third parties —%=5 6,558 11,580
Interest receivables from FEUEYFI B
— related parties under Guodian —EE T BRI - 220
— third parties —%=5 9,369 6,716
Dividends receivable from associates R = N B A AR B 12,350 -
Consideration receivable from a related JEUL B T B A BB 5 Y
party under Guodian for the disposal of B A BIHEHE
an associate 101,222 =
Others Hih 29,966 53,514
1,142,082 2,079,101
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIBEREE (2,180) (8,389)
1,139,902 2,070,712
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

24 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

4%  EAREBEREBERRE

(continued) (#&)
The Company b NN
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Prepayments to third party YRBRE=F DB mEMTENKR
sub-contractors - 806
Advances to R
— subsidiaries — B A A) 3,550,970 4,337,000
— associates NG| 3,691 150,000
Interest receivables from subsidiaries KB A R EWEFI 2 - 1,543
Dividends receivable from FEU B A% B,
— subsidiaries — B A) 38,328 133,741
— associate N 12,350 =
Consideration receivable from a related U BIE T B HY RaEt 77 Ay
party under Guodian for the disposal BN TR E
of an associate 101,222 -
Others Hib 23,327 6,179
3,729,888 4,629,269
Less: allowance for doubtful debts BB - RIBREME (280) (280)
3,729,608 4,628,989
Notes: fI5E -
() The balances represent prepayments to the sub-contractors in connection () ZAEEERAEERES R MRS EEZTH
with the Group’s construction contracts. The prepayments will be settled R - D EERNEYMRERE 2% - RIEETEN

(i)

(i)

206

upon the delivery of goods and services by the sub-contractors.

The balances represent deposits placed with customers for contracts
bidding or performance of contracts in progress. The deposits will be
released to the Group upon the completion of the related bidding or
contract work, where applicable.

All advances to associates are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand except for amounts of RMB100,000,000 and RMB50,000,000
as at 31 December 2010 bear interest at 4.05% per annum and 4.78%
per annum, and were repayable on 30 July 2011 and 21 April 2011,
respectively. There is no interest-bearing advances to associates as at 31
December 2011.

(i)

=1
HEEE -

ZHRRENARARERAABOM T HEETFH
RES - HEKBRIERIETEIZE  ZRER
AfIRIERAEE -

R2010F12 A31H + B AR 100,000,0007T & A
R#¥50,000,0007T 4 2. £ 5 5l £4.05% K 4.78% H 5
AR 201147 AS0H 201144 A21 BB AR
HZAN B HAMATE R RINBR AEER -
SRR ER 2 &BIEBANEK - R2011412
A318 ' REE(4EHE D AR T ERR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR MY 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

24 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 243i& 4 - A RER H it E Wk =18
(continued) (&)

(a) Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other (@) &% - EAFUERH M EWFENRE
receivables
Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other receivables Re -~ TN FIE KA b FE U GRIE A R (E
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group WA ABEER - BRIEAEBRABLT AT
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which el @2 I8 - EWIBEF 2 | - Bl EEG
case the impairment loss is written off against deposits, WER S « TN FRIE K H A FE Y RE SR,
prepayments and other receivables directly (note 2(m)(i)). BEE (2 R HEE2(m)i) °
The movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful accounts REFREMERBENSECERNAT

during the year is as follows:

The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
At 1 January 1A1H 8,389 5,831
Impairment losses recognised TERR R EEE 2,385 2,558
Reversal of impairment losses BEE B (3,220) -
Disposal of subsidiary HEKB AR (5,374) -
At 31 December 12H31H 2,180 8,389
The Company /N |
2011 2010
201145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
At 1 January 1H1H 280 52
Impairment losses recognised TERR R EEE - 228
At 31 December 12H31H 280 280
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

24 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
(continued)

(@) Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables (continued)

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables
of RMB2,180,000 (2010: RMB5,497,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to the counterparties that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that the receivables
are expected to be unrecoverable. Consequently, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of RMB2,180,000 (2010:
RMB5,497,000) were recognised by the Group.

For other balances of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables, management is of the opinion that the
counterparties are with good credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable.

25 Restricted deposits

Restricted deposits mainly represent guarantee deposits, cash
pledged as collateral for bills payable and housing maintenance
fund designated for specific purposes as requested by PRC
regulations. Majority of these restricted deposits are expected
to be released within one year except for housing maintenance
fund which is a fund deposited in a specific purpose account
for housing maintenance in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations and is not expected to be utilised for housing
maintenance expenditures within one year.

4%§~EH%E&EM@W%E

m

(@) & r ANRERHEtERTRNHE
()

AREBEERTEEADRENES BN
FRIE K H Ath R U5k TE B A R #2,180,0007T
(20104 : AR#¥5,497,0007T) ° 1B RIFE
EABRERNREWIETEREFEERS R
HMHENH T BEEEEIERSHERK
HIEFT AT BEdRE - E L - AEBEE R
EEREME T AR ¥2,180,0007T (20104 :
AR¥5,497,0007T) °

AR EMiZ S - T8 FRIE N H b 8 UK
B BEERR HTARARFNERE
B WERE - AN AR E AR YGRIA
AIATEZR YR E -

25 Z BR %17 K

ERHIFEREIBEERRIESER  BNREM
FANERRE - ARBRIEHBEDERRTE - BK
EMREEREES - FEEEESEREN
BIZEZERRE  FRERRFBIEEEERE
MBS @ B E—FZATESHREEEEM
B BRI REBEMERGILETET
R — 5 2 MARERIR )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

26 Cash at bank and in hand BRTEIREFERE
The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Cash in hand BEFRS 1,032 930
Cash at bank SRITIERN 6,566,683 1,808,024
Cash at Guodian Finance Corporation B ENHHRAR
Limited (“Guodian Finance”) ([EEHSF ) EFR - 957,970
6,567,715 2,766,924
Representing: BAE
— cash and cash equivalents R MIREEBY 5,626,647 1,790,924
— deposits with banks over three months  — ZI|HA B =& A LA _E&9R7T
of original maturity T3k 941,068 976,000
6,567,715 2,766,924
The Company ANF]
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Cash in hand EFRE 152 3
Cash at bank RITIER 2,647,966 6,449
Cash at Guodian Finance BHEH K - 631,377
Cash and cash equivalents He RIS EEY 2,648,118 637,829
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

27 Borrowings 27 B

(a) The long-term interest-bearing borrowings comprise: (a) REAFBEMEREIE -

The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Bank loans RITEN
— secured (note) — IR (FI3E) 293,140 326,770
— unsecured — 4 1,175,200 1,416,642
Loans from Guodian Finance TSP I=EN
— secured (note) — IR (I3E) - 150,000
— unsecured — - 850,000
Other loans (unsecured) HuER(EER) 11,727 12,636
1,480,067 2,756,048
Less: current portion of long-term B REIERABENERE S
borrowings (341,339) (247,339)
1,138,728 2,508,709
The Company AT
2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Bank loans (unsecured) RITEFR(EIEH) 840,000 590,000
Less: current portion of long-term B REMEFEENERER >
borrowings (200,000) -
640,000 590,000
Note: M3 -

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, secured long-term interest-bearing
borrowings are secured by concession assets (note 16) and income

stream of certain subsidiaries.

R2011E 201012 A31 8 - IR RIS BEH
LSRR S E (MisE16) A THE A R B (F

IR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

27 Borrowings (continued) 7B (5&)

(b) The short-term interest-bearing borrowings comprise: (b) EHHEEE/RESRE -

The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Bank loans IRITER
— secured (note) — IR (FI3E) 249,499 23,000
— unsecured — 10,347,444 3,003,569
Loans from Guodian Finance HEEHIEER
— unsecured —E - 1,170,000
Current portion of long-term RS RHBNERER
borrowings 341,339 247,339
10,938,282 4,443,908
The Company b /N
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Bank loans (unsecured) RITE R () 3,970,000 110,000
Loans from Guodian Finance RREIT B E R (EIEIR)
(unsecured) - 1,170,000
Current portion of long-term REAE KA BNERE
borrowings 200,000 -
4,170,000 1,280,000
Note: M3 -

Secured short-term interest-bearing borrowings are secured by trade and
bills receivables (note 23) as at 31 December 2011 and were secured by
property, plant and equipment (note 13) and lease prepayments (note 15) as

at 31 December 2010.

BEMBRREERNDER AR

ﬁézoﬂimﬁ 31 B a5 HAS S1E8 SR A FE U BR
KR (KIEE23) B - 1201012 531 B #H

E’Jhﬁﬂ’“ SERAME - BE MR

A ER(FHEE15) (R

GEIRESE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

27 Borrowings (continued)

(c) The interest rates per annum on borrowings are as

27

B (&)

(c) EREFERRMT :

follows:
The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
Long-term R
Bank loans WITER 4.48%~7.74% 4.86%~5.94%

Loans from Guodian Finance
Other loans

Short-term
Bank loans
Loans from Guodian Finance

R EA B ER
HAE R

SR
RITEN
R EA B ER

0.30%~2.88%

5.81%~7.87%

4.86%~5.32%
0.30%~4.44%

4.78%~5.84%
4.37%~5.00%

The Company VNN
2011 2010
20114 20104F
Long-term R
Bank loans IRITER 4.48%~6.65% 4.86%~5.04%
Short-term 45 HA
Bank loans IRITER 5.81%~6.88% 4.78%~5.84%
Loans from Guodian Finance WEEBEBHAEHER - 4.37%~5.00%

(d) The long-term borrowings are repayable as follows:

212

(d) REBEREBERBRMOT :

The Group AEH
2011 2010
20115 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBEFIT
Within 1 year or on demand 1ER S EREEER 341,339 247,339
After 1 year but within 2 years 1A HBE2FEUA 777,339 451,339
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F P H{ESF AR 190,007 1,422,637
After 5 years 5% A E 171,382 634,733
1,480,067 2,756,048
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M5 ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

27 Borrowings (continued) 7 ER(E)
(d) The long-term borrowings are repayable as follows: (d) REERERERAT © (&)
(continued)
The Company b NN |
2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Within 1 year or on demand 1 ek E kB BIETX 200,000 =
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F A HB2F AR 590,000 200,000
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F A HESF AR 50,000 390,000
840,000 590,000
28 Trade and bills payables 28 ENERA R EE
The Group NEEH
2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARETIT
Bills payable to: JENEE -
— sub-contractors and equipment — DB kR A ER
suppliers 205,997 94,785
— raw material suppliers — RV EH ER 2,822,025 2,103,835
3,028,022 2,198,620
Trade payables to: FERTERER
— sub-contractors and equipment — D BEE MR ERER
suppliers:
— related parties under Guodian —BE NBREE 3,538 27,833
— associates B NG 640 19,427
— third parties —£=7 1,809,047 2,036,827
1,813,225 2,084,087
— raw material suppliers: — R BHELRERS
— related parties under Guodian —BEE T~NBrRE 71,394 792
— associates NG| 27,784 7,340
— third parties —%=5 7,704,501 5,111,253
7,803,679 5,119,385
12,644,926 9,402,092
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28 Trade and bills payables (continued) 28 FE RN R4 (4E)
The Company b NN
2011 2010
201145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARET T
Trade payables to sub-contractors and HoeR KA EEERN
equipment suppliers: FERTRREX :
— related parties under Guodian — BB BRI 389 8,569
— subsidiaries —MB AR 74,161 126,450
— associates /NG 503 503
— third parties —%£=5 29,920 21,355
104,973 156,877
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, all trade and bills payables of 20115 2010912 A31H * BRENEIEA
the Group and the Company are repayable on demand except for ReEANEEZIN  NEBEARNARBTAE
bills payable which are repayable within 6 months. All trade and FENMBER N IR EES HIRE 2B BRI -
bills payables are expected to be settled within one year. BT A EMBER N EE G —F 2 RN&ES o
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29 Other payables 29 H i EFRIE
The Group REH
2011 2010
201145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Interest payables FERTFIE
— related parties under Guodian — BIE BRI 7,400 5,947
— third parties —%=5 16,410 11,517
Payables for staff related costs JEf B TRMERER A 62,091 50,214
Payables for other taxes FERTE B TE 153,149 234,347
Payable for acquisition of property, BEYE - BEKE 1%1%&
plant and equipment and land use rights i {# FA kA9 E < 55T
— related parties under Guodian = T B A R 197,569 289,486
— associates N 119,737 =
— third parties —%£=5 748,657 652,336
Deposits from sub-contractors (note (i) D EEZ T RES (M) 158,312 156,013
Retention payables (note (ii)) JESHE AR & 7B (BIRE() 49,417 28,080
Advances from (note (iii)) AR (P Gin))
— Guodian —EHE - 1,123,898
— related parties under Guodian —BEETBRER S - 740,185
— associates N 259 =
— third parties —F=F 143,698 -
Dividends payables FERTAR B 2,559 1,080
Listing expenses payable S ETER 58,289 =
Other accruals and payables /H\M?E?E/ﬁgﬁiﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ
— related parties under Guodian BB 28,150 840
— associates ﬁ’ﬁ /NG| 4,179 1,548
— third parties —%=5 78,640 52,719
Financial liabilities THREE 1,828,516 3,348,210
Receipts in advance (note (iv)) TR R IR (BRE )
— related parties under Guodian —RETBREHS 546,645 2,745,488
— third parties —$=5 2,432,614 513,953
2,979,259 3,259,441
4,807,775 6,607,651
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SRR FI5E ()
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29 Other payables (continued)

29 Hfth B FRIE (&)

The Company PN |
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Interest payables FERTFIE
— related parties under Guodian — BIE BRI 7,400 4,716
— third parties —F=5 - 2,684
Payables for staff related costs FEf B TRMERR A 12,473 1,388
Payables for other taxes FERTE A TE 4,576 30,353
Payable for acquisition of property, EEME  BEARRENUKL
plant and equipment and {5 FR A A FE A SRR
land use rights
— subsidiaries — B AR 204,572 -
— third parties —%=5 136,062 100,291
Advances from (note (v)) B (MIEE (v)
— Guodian —EE - 1,123,898
— related parties under Guodian —BEETBRNER S - 740,000
— subsidiaries —ME AR 587,501 831,156
Listing expenses payable Bt ETER 58,289 -
Other accruals and payables HihTEie o RR BRI FIB
— related parties under Guodian — BIE BRI 33,326 -
— third parties —%=5 20,363 8,765
Financial liabilities TRIAE 1,064,562 2,843,251
Receipts in advance TEURIR
— subsidiaries —MB A 15,641 -
— third parties =8=% 1,689 -
17,330 =
1,081,892 2,843,251
Notes: BfeE

(i)

216

The balances represented deposits from sub-contractors for contract
bidding. The deposits will be released to sub-contractors upon the
completion of the related bidding.

Retention payables represent the amounts due to equipment and
construction contractors which will be settled upon the expiry of the
warranty period.

() ZFEEENAE RREED ERREINEZES - 186
BRERZE - RSB EEHEH °

(i) BNERESFRERERRZE  ARNGERER
e TR ERERRR
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SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

29 Other payables (continued)

Notes: (continued)

29 Hfth B FRIE (&)

(i) Al amounts are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms of
repayment except for amounts of RMB1,660,000,000 as at 31 December
2010 which bear interest ranging from 2.73% to 4.67% per annum.

(iv) Included in the balance are amounts of RMB111,183,000 (2010:
RMB85,000,000) advances received from customers for which the related
construction works have not commenced as at the balance sheet date.

(v) All amounts are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment except for amounts of RMB529,451,000 (2010:
RMB2,235,000,000) of the Company which bear interest ranging from
6.10% to 7.05% (2010: 2.73% to 5.81%) per annum.

All of the other payables of the Group and the Company are
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year

or are repayable on demand.

30 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet

(a) Tax payable/(recoverable) in the consolidated balance

sheet represents:

HiaE - (&)

(i) BR2010%F12 A31 HEF|E2.73% — 4.67% K AR HE
1,660,000,0007C 291 » B RIBETEE « EEA
BARBEERE -

(v) ZFABRBREFUEHARKE111,183,0007T(2010
& AR¥85,000,0007T) BRFIE - REERER
B - HEREE TR ART -

V) BRARDFHARES29,451,0007T (20104 : AR
2,235,000,000 7T ) 4 7 & £ 6.10% — 7.05% (2010
F 1 2.78%—5.81%) 25N * FrEH b FRIF AT
B~ IR R R AR R SR o

TARH AN B AR B R B A R AN SRIB AR
—FZRBEBRERBRA - JREBFR 2%
SZEDSZA o

0 EHEERBRPNWAEHR

(a) EHFEERBERTEN (TWE)BIE

2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Net tax payable at 1 January 1 A1 BERTRIEFE 8,135 64,131
Provision for the year (note 8(a)) NS (M7ES(a) 200,246 153,468
(Over)/under-provision in respect of  BIEFE R GEE) B
prior year (note 8(a)) (Fff5E8(a)) (14,765) 7,691
Income tax paid BRI TSR (195,520) (217,155)
Net tax (recoverable)/payable at 128318 (A& @),/ FEft
31 December FRiEF5E (1,904) 8,135
Representing: 2k
Tax payable e PS8 126,058 157,922
Tax recoverable B {EEE (127,962) (149,787)
(1,904) 8,135
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30 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet 30 &8 &EEERBEPWAEE (&
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRWELEREEERERE !
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised AHEEBBRPERANELEHRBEE,
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during (B1E) A REREE S (LIS a0 Tt

the year are as follows:

Provision Unrealised
for profits on Provision
impairment intra-group Deferred for  Intangible
ofassets  Taxlosses transactions income warranty assets Others Total
SEAD
BENE RHRER
BE  HEEB MAE  BERE EREBE  BNEE -t &if
Deferred tax arising from  EEHERE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETRr ARETr ARETR  ARETR
(note (J) (note ()
(Ht30) GiED)
At 1 January 2010 201051418 6,039 8,011 7,745 24,848 10314 (3922) 2,09 55,129
Credited/{charged) to profitor 5t A/ (30 B4
loss (note 8(a)) (FizE8(a)) 1,02 2,452 (3,527) 15,410 34,776 (10,188) 2,3% 42520
At31December 2010and  2010£12A31 A&
1 January 2011 0111418 7,241 10,463 418 40,258 45,000 (14,110) 4,489 97,649
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR(H30)
(note 39) - (1,431) - - - - - (1,431)
Credited/(charged) profitor ~ 5HA/(315)) 1%
loss (note 8(a)) (Fi£8(a)) 12,858 23,081 (1,025) (6,560) 46,984 2,928 54 78,320
At 31 December 2011 2011127318 20,099 32,113 3,193 33,698 92,074 (11,182) 4,543 174,538
Notes: PE
() Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses are related to () BERARFIF &0 AT K 0 FE IB 548 P B AR MR AE B
subsidiaries that were established in recent years. They are now BEE  BREFRKIHHBARAERE B
progressing to their normal production stage and are deriving profits. Bt A 7] B A IEAE 28 A LS & IE 80 7 A 72 A A
Accordingly, it is considered probable that sufficient taxable profits will B e Bt - RAERIRE s T2 8 B
be available in the future to utilise their unused tax losses before they FRAE - 4 AT LA{SE AR LA B R A1 F 9 RT #E 40550
expire. THEE ©
(i) Deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets arose from the (i) AREFEEMELENELETEAERHNA
temporary differences in development costs and concession assets. BRARERS IS ENER I ERMESR -
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30 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet
(continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(u), the Group and the Company have not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses and
certain deductible temporary differences of RMB194,454,000
(2010: RMB291,127,000) and RMB178,016,000 (2010:
RMB174,956,000), respectively, as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses or the temporary
differences can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdictions and entities. As at 31 December 2011, the
expiration of tax losses of the Group and the Company, if
unused, is as follows:

0 EHEERBRTAEH(H)

(c) RERKIELEBIREE

BB F2ANFHEN TR - &
1S NN i i3 v N W N A B 7
EEEELATENNEREEERZD R A
A R #194,454,000 7T (2010 : AR
291,127,0007T ) & A K # 178,016,000 7T
(20104 : AR ¥174,956,0007T ) iR IE
EHIREE  AATHEBHBEEEE R
BERA BRNRAEEEATNFERALSE
SR ) PR 5 1A T 18 oY HT R M 2= Y R AN A A
8 o 2011612831 H » KREBEARQ A
RAARIBAEEAER 2RI T

The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
2012 20124 15,188 21,757
2013 20134 33,380 44,738
2014 20144 39,784 66,074
2015 20154 45,164 99,171
2016 20164 9,812 =
143,328 231,740

The Company AT
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
2012 20124 15,188 19,063
2013 20134 33,380 33,380
2014 20144 39,784 39,784
2015 20154 40,448 40,448
128,800 132,675
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30 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet
(continued)

0 EHEERBRTAEH(H)

(d) Deferred tax liability not recognised (d) RERWELEHBE RS
At 31 December 2011, taxable temporary differences relating
to undistributed profits and PRC statutory reserves of
subsidiaries and associates amounted to RMB1,933,061,000
(2010: RMB1,192,866,000). No deferred tax liability was
recognised in respect of these taxable temporary differences
as dividends from subsidiaries and associates are not subject
to PRC income tax and the Group has no plan to dispose of
these subsidiaries and associates in the foreseeable future.

R2011FE12A831H @ BRI B A 7 e
RAINARDEAERPBEEEATES A E
MELE A= R A A R®1,993,061,0007T
(20104 : AR#1,192,866,0007T) ° BER
HERAREEMEZR  REREMET
HRIBAE  EAKHEAR KB E QR
BHRETEHRWHRHER - BERAE
BRAKR  AEBWETMAFEES LS
B AR MEE AR

31 HRERE
AEEEQERSBBOBEMT -

31 Provision for warranty

The movement of provisions for product warranty during the year is

as follows:
The Group BEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
At 1 January 1818 228,914 54,687
Additional provisions made AN 255,907 177,296
Provisions utilised BEREE (9,375) (3,069)
At 31 December 12A31H 475,446 228,914
Less: current portion of provision for B BREEERNREIE S
warranty (83,578) (19,869)
391,868 209,045

Under the terms of the Group’s sales agreements, the Group will REAEBEHEEHZETAT - EmES L A H

220

rectify product defects of wind turbines and steam turbines arising
within two to five years of the date of sale. Provision is therefore
made for the best estimate of the expected settlement under
these agreements in respect of sales made within two to five
years prior to the balance sheet date.

In addition, the Group’s photovoltaic modules typically sold
with a two or five-year warranty for defects in materials and
workmanship and a ten and twenty-five year minimum power
output warranty, against declines of more than 10% and 20%,
respectively, of initial power generation capacity from the date of
delivery. The Group has the responsibility to repair or replace solar
modules, at customers’ option, under the terms of the warranty
policy. The Group maintains warranty provision to cover potential
liabilities that could arise under these warranties.

2 15 2-55F P R M B2 T B 14 E AR Y E O R
AEERETRE - Al - LEEERARRKA
ZA2-6F AMIHE - RIRHHE TRBEN
TR RERGHEL THYE

BESN - NSRS IR IR SR B H IR 2 F SR F Ay
R R EUET 2REERY - ASH RN H
HARF RO Y025 B AL ) IR BB B10% #20% » o
AR H10F M6F R/ NEEELR - HER
RFIET - RIFFEPHENR  AEREAAEHE
EXERABZREETR - AEREHPEFERET
BENRIFHRE REE -
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31 Provision for warranty (continued)

The amount of the provision takes into account the Group’s
recent claim experience and the experiences of other companies
for similar products and is only made where a warranty claim is

N BEREBE(H)

IRIR AR BT S R A0 IR AR AR B LA e HoAth 12 B3
REBUERMERIELR @ BRI FERER
WEHRATBEEL B RELA BT BURME -

probable.
32 Deferred income 32 IEIE W 2

The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREF T
At 1 January 1A1H 185,649 115,396
Additions =0 136,391 77,117
Credited to profit or loss T ABE= (11,232) (6,864)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) B A A (FiEE39) (4,736) =
At 31 December 12H31H 306,072 185,649

Deferred income mainly represents government grants relating
to the construction of property, plant and equipment, as well as
technology research funding related to environmental protection
related assets, which would be recognised as income on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant
assets. The deferred income recognised is included in “other
revenue” in the consolidated income statement.

BT B ERBUTRE TR - BERR
fRHZEMRL - ARBINERRRRE E MR
MBEES  REERZERREENTEER
S HAERKA - ERAEERENFHIES
REA s R A Al 2z -

33 Other non-current liabilities B HMIERBAE

The Group REE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

Long-term retention payables B REERENR

— related parties under Guodian —BEETENE S - 2,000
— third parties —%=5 97,918 236,647
Other non-current financial liability HEMIERHEemAasE 6,370 6,370
104,288 245,017
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HUEX - FEREE

(a) BEAKIDNEES)

34 Capital, reserves and dividends
(@) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances B EREHRPIE T AEEE iR
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity AR R B EA W N B R ZE Y S ER 1B
is set out in the consolidated statements of changes in W0 AN A RERR B4R A B D B W) R SE R
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual BB R AT B -
components of equity between the beginning and the end of

222

the year are set out below:

Paid-in PRC
capital/ Capital statutory Retained Total
share capital reserve reserve profits equity
BlER/ HREIEE
BRA BXGRE AES BEEHE A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRH
Balance at 1 January 2010 20101 A1 BEREE 1,537,669 80,135 15,068 12,608 1,645,480
Changes in equity for 2010: 2010 EREL -
Profit and total comprehensive AEZER

income for the year GalEeR - - - 47,301 47,301
Transfer to paid-in capital BREWER

(note 34(d)(i)a)) (P E34(d))a)) 66,772 (66,772) - - -
Capital contributions BER

(notes 34(c)(il) and 34(d)(i)(b) (F5E34(c)(i)) B

34(d)()b)) 3,218,149 30,355 - - 3,248,504
Appropriation 2% - - 7,713 7,713 =
Balance at 31 December 2010and 20105128318 K

1 January 2011 2011F1 A1 BHE 4,822,590 43,718 22,781 52,196 4,941,285
Changes in equity for 2011: 2011 FREm AL -

Profit and total comprehensive AEEFEREE

income for the year I Ear it - - - 285,968 285,968
Conversion into a joint stock ZHIRRHER

company with limited liability AR (PEE34(c))

(note 34(c)() 27,410 14,347 (13,638) (28,119) -
Appropriation e - - 31,367 (31,367) -
Issuance of shares by initial public B E X ARER

offering (note 34(c)()(d) BITRA

(FIEE34(d))(d)) 1,092,500 676,912 - - 1,769,412
Balance at 31 December 2011 2011F12A31 A& 5,942,500 734,977 40,510 278,678 6,996,665
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34 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) UEXR- BERKRE(E)

(b) Dividends (b) B2
Except for the special dividend as disclosed in note 42(b), the BRI EE42(0) R R ERIR S 250 - BLE
Company did not declare nor pay any dividends for or during 2011F K%2010F 12 A31HILFE - A H
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010. WAREIRINAZHEAARE ©

(c) Share capital/paid-in capital (c) BA& "BUEAR
() Registered and issued share capital () B RETHIRA

No. of shares
iz B
000 RMB’000
T ARETT

Ordinary shares, registered issued B2+ R#{TE2FBHME
and fully paid: VR

Domestic shares of RMB1.00 each ARG ERARE1T

At 1 January 2011 20111 H1H = =
Conversion into a joint stock company — #E4%|&MR{H AR A 7 (H)

with limited liability (note) 4,850,000 4,850,000
Converted to H shares for NSSF (note 1) B ZEHR M IRES IR (HzE1) (96,000) (96,000)
At 31 December 2011 2011512 A31H 4,754,000 4,754,000
H shares of RMB1.00 each HE - BRAR¥1T
At 1 January 2011 201151 H1H = =
Issuance of shares by IPO (note 1) BB E X AFERIREE TR D

(MF3E1) 1,092,500 1,092,500

Converted from domestic shares #aEA RGO RES RS

for NSSF (note 1) (ff3E1) 96,000 96,000
At 31 December 2011 2011512 A31H 1,188,500 1,188,500
Total &5
At 1 January 2011 20111 H1H = =
At 31 December 2011 2011512 A31H 5,942,500 5,942,500
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LB E AR TRE MR E
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled BEREARFRIEZLZEE —ERE
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All o TELERENRANFIREES
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s BRIRER)

residual assets.
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34 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital/paid-in capital (continued)

(i)

(i)

Registered and issued share capital (continued)

Note:

The Company was a limited liability company and converted into a
joint stock company with limited liability on 16 May 2011. Pursuant to
the approval of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council (“SASAC”), the Company’s equity
of RMB4,874,724,000 was converted into 4,850,000,000 ordinary
shares with par value of RMB1 each issued proportionately to its
existing equity owners. RSM China Certified Public Accountants
Co., Ltd. (PImfEESTEIEHA have verified the issued and fully
paid share capital, and issued related capital verification report
ZhongRuiYueHuaYanzi[2011]No.068 (F I f i 5 5 [2011] 5 0685%).

Registered and paid-in capital

The paid-in capital of the Company represents the paid-in
capital of the Company before the Conversion.

The equity owners of the Company made capital
contributions totalling RMB3,218,149,000 to the
Company in 2010. After the capital injections, the
registered and paid-in capital of the Company
increased to RMB4,822,590,000. RSM China
Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd. (FirEES
stEM = FT) have verified the registered and paid-in
capital, and issued related capital verification reports
ZhongRuiYueHuaYanZi[2010]No.034, 202, 223 and 269
(FIHEFERT[2010]15034 ~ 202 + 223 % 2695%).

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

224

0

Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents share premium,
contributions from Guodian, and the difference between
the considerations of acquisition or disposal of equity
interests from/to non-controlling equity owners and the
carrying amount of the proportionate net assets.

(@) A capital of RMB66,772,000 was contributed by equity
owners in 2009 which had not yet been verified as
paid-in capital as at 1 January 2010. During the year
ended 31 December 2010, the amount had been
verified and registered as paid-in capital by the State
Administration for Industry and Commerce of the PRC,
and was transferred to paid-in capital accordingly.

UEXL - EERKRE(E)

(c) BRA& "BEHREAR(H)

U

(i)

BiEMRZTAIR A (&)
BRE

ARBIRAE—RBREMERARF - K2011F5A8
16BEHIRA—RBRHARAR  LBEKHRE
EEEEBEEZ B ARRINEREA
R¥4,874,724,000 T8 /54,850,000,000% &
B BREEAREIT  WIRLHIETET
RARIERNBEMEA - FIEESTRIE
BRBEHBEITHETHRENRAETTRE -
WA THEEBRERS - RIREERT[011]E
0685 °

B MR E I ERELR

ARBEWEARNIEA R BEFH 2 AIA
RABERER -

AR R T AR2010F RAA A
LT E AR %3,218,149,0007T ° /*
B 2% ARRIEEMEREREE
AR #4,822590,0007T ° FiFEES
SRS E B BEWE RN #EITT
BE - WHETHEERERS : PInE
FE T [2010]55034 202 - 223 )2 269

=f
i
i ©

(d) RENVHEER AR

)

EX A

BERRHIZEREEMEE - BEFN
PAGE L G S RN A
S EERARFEERASE R
R e

(a) HEZRFTA AR 20095 i & A B
A R #66,772,000 7T 18 7 2010 4 1
A1BEAEZEHRENETR
& o E20105F12A31BIEFE 2
W ElSBEELHB THEIET
BEERRBRETAMAEREAR
BEEEEEIRER -
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34 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Capital reserve (continued)

(b) Capital contributions of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2010 included
an amount of RMB30,350,000 capital contributions
from Guodian. Guodian received capital fund from the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the “MOF”) and further
re-allocated part of the fund to the Company in form of
capital contribution. According to the approval on the
board meeting on 22 July 2011, the amount was solely
attributable to Guodian.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2010, Longyuan
Technology, a subsidiary of the Company, issued
shares to non-controlling equity owners and resulted
in a dilution in the Group’s equity interest in Longyuan
Technology. The Group recognised the difference
between the Group’s share of the proceeds from the
issuance of shares by the subsidiary and the carrying
amount of the subsidiary’s proportionate net assets
amounting to RMB229,515,000 as an increase in the
Group’s capital reserve.

Y

The increase in capital reserve during 31 December
2011 represents the share premium which is the
difference between the total amount of the par value
of 1,092,500,000 H shares issued for the IPO and
the net proceeds received from the IPO amounting to
RMB1,769,412,000.

PRC statutory reserve

According to the Company’s Article of Association, the
Company is required to transfer 10% of its net profit as
determined in accordance with accounting rules and
regulations of the PRC to its statutory reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution
of a dividend to equity shareholders/owners. This reserve
fund can be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or
increasing capital of the Company and is non-distributable
other than in liquidation.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations that have functional currency
other than the RMB which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies as set out in note 2(x).
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SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

34 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

U]

226

Under the Company Law of the PRC and the Company’s
Articles of Association, net profit after tax as reported in the
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with
the accounting rules and regulations of the PRC can only be
distributed as dividends after allowances have been made for
the following:

(i) Making up prior years’ cumulative losses, if any;

(i) Allocations to the statutory reserve as set out in note 34(d)
(i) above; and

(iiy Allocations to the discretionary common reserve if
approved by the shareholders.

After the listing of the Company’s shares on HKSE, in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
the net profit after tax of the Company for the purpose
of dividends payment will be the lesser of (i) the net profit
determined in accordance with the accounting rules and
regulations of the PRC; and (ii) the net profit determined
in accordance with IFRSs. As of 31 December 2011, the
retained profits available for distribution are RMB278,678,000
(2010: RMB52,196,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity owners/
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to financing at a reasonable costs.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
equity shareholder/owner returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
liability-to-asset ratio, which is calculated as total liabilities
by total assets. The liability-to-asset ratio of the Group and
the Company were 74% (2010: 75%) and 46% (2010: 50%)
respectively.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the year. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

35 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below:

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
bank and in hand, trade and bills receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables and other non-current
assets. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and in hand are
deposited in the stated owned/controlled PRC banks which
the directors assessed the credit risk to be insignificant.

In respect of trade and bills receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables and other non-current
assets, individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. The Group generally
requires customers to settle trade receivables in accordance
with contracted terms and other debts in accordance with
agreements. Credit terms may be granted to customers,
depending on the nature of business. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers. At
the balance sheet date, 42% and 10% (2010: 19% and 8%)
of trade and other receivables was due from Guodian and
related parties under Guodian, the Group’s largest customer,
and the five largest remaining customers respectively.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as
set out in note 37, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed in note 37.
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SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ER B + UARESIR)

35 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables and other non-
current assets are set out in notes 23, 24 and 20 respectively.

(b) Liquidity risk

228

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of sufficient
funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of bank and other
borrowings with debt maturities spreading over a range
of periods, thereby ensuring that the Group’s outstanding
borrowing obligation is not exposed to excessive repayment
risk in any one year.

The Company is responsible for the Group’s overall cash
management and the raising of borrowings to cover expected
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB1,7983,923,000 (2010: RMB2,123,389,000). With
regards to its future capital commitments and other financing
requirements, the Group has unutilised banking facilities
of RMB11,059,342,000 as at 31 December 2011. The
directors of the Group have carried out a review of the cash
flow forecast for the 12 months period ending 31 December
2012. Based on such forecast, the directors have determined
that adequate liquidity exists to finance the working capital
and capital expenditure requirements of the Group during
the period. In preparing the cash flow forecast, the directors
have considered historical cash requirements of the Group
as well as other key factors, including the availability of the
above-mentioned borrowings financing which may impact
the operations of the Group prior to the end of the next
twelve months after the balance sheet date. The directors
are of the opinion that the assumptions which are included in
the cash flow forecast are reasonable. However, as with all
assumptions in regard to future events, these are subject to
inherent limitations and uncertainties and some or all of these
assumptions may not be realised.
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SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ER B + UARESIR)

35 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet dates) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

3B PHEBREER QA ABEGE)

(b) FENE = mFR ()

TRINMTREERERA  AEEEN
REPITE S BB ENRIGERMR @ K
BERARAMBERER(BERIES RN =
AAEMONSRE - MRERAFHNE - A
RIRBEERBERANNXGFENFREHR
#) AR RRARE RA QR H
RFPAH:

pay:
The Group &
2011
20115
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRERRSRE

Within ~ Morethan ~ More than

1 year 1 year 2years
oron but less butless  More than Carrying
demand than2years than5years 5 years Total amount

1R 1E0E 2EN L
ZREH 25T 5% T 5&5E I ik
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Long-term borrowings (note 27(a)  REAE R (Ftsro7a)) 70,026 831,589 239,210 201,167 1,341,992 1,138,728
Short-term borrowings (note 27(0) ~ EEMER (FHiE27(0) 11,312,984 - - - 11,312984 10,938,282
Trade and bills payables (note 28) BRI ZE(MHFH28) 12,644,926 - - - 12,644,926 12,644,926
Other payables (note 29) Hin e 5ua (M) 1,828,516 - - - 1828516 1,828,516
Other non-current liabilties (note 33)  EftJE &N & (Hi3E33) - 11,871 92,417 - 104,288 104,288
25,856,452 843,460 331,627 201,167 27,232,706 26,654,740
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35 Financial risk management and fair values 35 BIiEEKREER A L EHE(

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

230

(b) FENE = mFR ()

&)

2010
20105
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRARRESR
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
oron but less but less More than Carrying
demand  than2years  than 5 years 5 years Total amount
1Mk 155 E 2EI E
EXEMT 2ELT 5L 5L £ = ik
RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMBO00O  RMBO00  RMB'0O00  RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Long-term borrowings (note 27(a))  REIEF(KE27(a)) 131,832 578,046 1,639,002 747608 3096578 2,508,709
Short-term borrowings (note 27(0)  EEMER (FHE27(0) 4,545,645 - - - 4545645 4443908
Trade and bils payables (note 28)  EFTERFRFH(FHE28) 9,402,092 - = - 9402092 9,402,092
Other payables (note 29) H it e ZUE (ME20) 3,348,210 - - - 3348210 32348210
Other non-current liabilties (note 33) £ fts £ &) & & (H15£33) - 155,254 89,763 - 245,017 245,017
17,427,779 733300 1,728,855 747608 20637542 19,947,936
Financial quarantees issued: REMSEIER
Maximum amount guaranteed HABRE(37)
(note 37) 5,000 - - - 5,000 -
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SRR FI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ER A B+ AAREFIR)

35 Financial risk management and fair values 35 BIiEEKREER A L EHE(

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(b) FENE = mFR ()

&)

The Company NN |
2011
2011%
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARABRR SR
Within ~ Morethan ~ More than
1 year 1 year 2years
oron but less butless  More than Carrying
demand than2years than5years 5 years Total amount
1ERL 1E0E 2EN L
XA 25U 5EUT 5N L At RESHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFT AR¥TR AR%TR AR%TR AREFrn AR¥TxR
Long-term borrowings (note 27(a))  RERE K (Fi27(a)) 37,972 616,600 50,202 - 704,864 640,000
Short-term borrowings (note 27(0) ~ EEMER (HiE27(0) 4,326,463 - - - 4326463 4,170,000
Trade and bills payables (note 28)  ER R M2 & (fi328) 104,973 - - - 104,973 104,973
Other payables (note 29) Bt T R0R (FE20) 1,064,562 - - - 1064562 1,064,562
5,533,970 616,600 50,292 - 6,200,862 5,979,535
Financial guarantees issued: RENSRIER
Maximum amount guaranteed RAERE([1337)
(note 37) 1,132,400 - - - 1,132,400 -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHEH - UARESIR

35 Financial risk management and fair values 35 BIiEEKREER A L EHE(

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

)

(b) FENE = mFR ()

&)

2010
2010
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
Aﬂigﬁiﬁuiﬁi/m
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
oron but less but less More than Carrying
demand  than2years  than 5 years 5 years Total amount
1Mk 15 E 2ENE
EXEMT 2ELT 5L 5N E = FEeR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Long-term borrowings (note 27(a)) ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁﬁ?ﬂ?( )) 29,196 228,649 403,802 - 661,647 590,000
Short-term borrowings (note 27(0) 2B (f3E27(0) 1,208,021 - - - 1298021 1,280,000
Trade and bills payables (note 28)  FEfYERF SR IR (HizE28) 156,877 - - - 156,877 156,877
Other payables (note 29) E R B (F00) 2,843,251 - - - 2843251 2,843,251
4,327,345 228,649 403,802 - 4959796  4870,128
Financial quarantees issued: REMSEIER
Maximum amount guaranteed HABRE(37)
(note 37) 1,108,642 - - - 1,108,642 -
(c) Interest rate risk (c) F= =B
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term AEBMAERREZRAREHER -
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the FRMNEREREREERENR SR E
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Rk 2T e
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35 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed and
variable rate borrowings in order to manage its interest rate
risks. During the year, however, management of the Group
did not consider it is necessary to use interest rate swaps to
hedge their exposure to interest.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the profile of the Group’s net
borrowings (interest-bearing financial liabilities less interest-
bearing financial assets) at the balance sheet dates. The
detailed interest rates and maturity information of the
Group’s borrowings are disclosed in note 27.

(c) FIZ=EE ()

AT EEARKENN R
FE W BE B E F X R ¥ BRI R

35 AR EER A AEE(E)

CAREEEH
1 a’%\mzﬁ

AWM AEEEEERREAFESE
FREN R - SR AKBEHO N XRER o

() FIEIELR

Ti%*iiﬂiﬂu“j TEEREBERALKEN

FEERBR(FEERABERTE

Seaycd

éf?) WEQ?&&%Tﬁ’EIF?XE’Jﬁ

AR R A B2 fE SREARR

The Group EE
2011 2010
20114 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ET T
Net fixed rate borrowings: BEREREN
Borrowings =i 1,386,943 2,716,205
Other payables HAbfETFRIA - 1,660,000
Less: bank deposits B BRITER
(including restricted deposits) (BREXRHTFER) (995,797) (986,086)
loans and advances BERRBHR (14,000) (162,960)
377,146 3,227,159
Net floating rate borrowings: FEREFER
Borrowings e 10,690,067 4,236,412
Less: bank deposits B ERITIERR
(including restricted deposits) (BIEZRHIFR) (5,932,109) (1,866,821)
4,757,958 2,369,591
Total net borrowings e 5,135,104 5,596,750
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35 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

3B PHEBREER QA ABEGE)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate profile (continued)

(c) FIZ=EE ()

() FIFEEX(E)

234

(i)

The Company P N/NG|

2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ET T

Net fixed rate borrowings: BERRFER
Borrowings &= 400,000 90,000
Other payables H A e FRIR - 2,235,000
Less: loans and advances B BN - (380,000)
400,000 1,945,000

Net floating rate borrowings: FERRFER
Borrowings e 4,410,000 1,780,000
Other payables H b e FRIE 529,451 -
Less: loans and advances W BEREBR (3,439,391) (4,121,858)

bank deposits RITIER

(including restricted deposits) (BIEZRHIFR) (2,647,966) (637,826)
(1,147,906) (2,979,684)
Total net deposits FIERAEET (747,906) (1,034,684)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates
of net floating borrowings, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB38,258,000 (2010: RMB18,003,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not be affected
by the general increase/decrease in interest rates.

(i) SR

K201 128318 - B F 3B FI=
BEROFRLEE LR F100EE
2 HittFTE 2R ETE - AEER
g RIE LB EREEIE AL T,
£ AR #38,258,0007C (20104 : AR
#18,003,0007T) - &= E A
BHENTAEIEFEERTHAOZT
2 o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

35 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet dates and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at the balance sheet date. The
impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
and other components of consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense or income of
such a change in interest rates.

The estimated 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonable
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2010.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables and payables,
as well as borrowings and cash at bank and in hand that
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily Euros (“EUR”), USD, HKD and Australian Dollars
(“AUD”").

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising
from receivables, payables and borrowings which are
denominated in EUR, USD or AUD. Depreciation or
appreciation of these foreign currencies against Renminbi
would affect the financial position and operating results
of the Group. In respect of cash at bank and in hand that
are denominated in HKD, the Company is applying for
converting the net proceeds in HKD from the initial public
offering into RMB. The Group did not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC
government may at its discretion restrict access to
foreign currencies for current account transactions in the
future. Changes in the foreign exchange control system
may prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient foreign
currency demands and the Group may not be able to pay
dividends in foreign currencies to its equity shareholders.

3B PHEBREER QA ABEGE)

(c) FI=mp (&)

(i) SR (&)

R Lt SR E D AT O BRAR R I = 2
B RTEEERBRABERRE
FHEIELTAE © B T A AYH = @ g # ki
O o WARKEBIRNE(REFFHE) &
Aot EMERESNNFERRELL
MEREBCEF S EBARBANEEMLR
EmfbEte o

fHEt100EER L3R/ TH - &R
BHAIRE T —FEEESER A
VB AR MR T o B20106 D
JEER ©

(d) B ER

AEBENEEERTESERINEG (B
BERXSZHAENREENELEERETR
MEMERE)FENREREERE
BRSHELENEWRIEARENKE -
UEERRBTEREEFRE - &
ZEBRERNEEIEZESER T -
XL BERBAMEIT(RIT]) o

() ERWEELRE

REBNE KRR T 2RIRN KA
T RITSORTTAHEREUERIR - B
IR RMER o HFINERERARE R
THERRZELDEFEIAEB TR
AREERE - AR RAAEHERNR
TERREFRSE - AR B EERER
BIRAFRBRES )8 R PSR
AR - REBREDINERR o

ARBAIFERALER - PEBFA
BATRIE #5 R R IR EBR P X S RA R
SN o B INESZ S BIE R EL - RATEE
AR E R EIINENFT R - AEH
AIREEA RSN ARSI ARE -
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35 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

236

(i) Exposure to currency risk

35 AR EER A AEE(E)

(d) &%=k ()

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the
spot rate at the balance sheet dates. Differences resulting
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are

(i)

Bz O

RABBHEBYEEE NI bR
AHENEREEXRE  EFAKEEA
ARAREERBERAZNEEERE T
RPFAIL - BEGRZB R - RAE
EREXRANBREEXRINESARE
KINREERER o REIEFIRIEBH
BRI BIUAAREREEEMESE
FYZERE

excluded.
The Group NEE
2011
20114
USD EUR HKD AUD
E BT s BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR¥BTRT AR¥Trx
Cash atbankandinhand #$R{ITEZRERFHRS 1,431 2,228 1,839,828 -
Trade receivables JE W BR X 15,464 14,362 - -
Trade payables JEISTBRFX (393,539) - - -
Other receivables H fib U FRIE - - 1,079 -
Other payables AN e - (113,409) - (5,450)
Short-term borrowings KEHAfE X - (82,443) - -
Net exposure 0 (376,644) (179,262) 1,840,907 (5,450)
2010
20104

UsbD EUR HKD AUD
eI BT ittt SEIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTRT AREFTT ARETT
Cash at bank and inhand ~ $R{1TERLERFRS 6,939 36,746 881 -
Trade receivables FEUBRFX 22,672 54,600 39,816 -
Trade payables FE{FERFX = (136) = =
Net exposure SFRR O 29,611 91,210 40,697 -
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35 Financial risk management and fair

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

values 35 B EEKBEERAAEBEGE)

(d) &%=k ()

Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EEE RO (&)
The Company AT
2011 2010
20115 2010%F
EUR HKD EUR HKD
BT B BT ki
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AR®TR ARETT ARETT
Cashat bank andinhand ~ $R{TIER M ERFE S 2,206 1,836,745 98 207
Trade receivables FEUSAR X - - - 39,816
Net exposure SF A 2,206 1,836,745 98 40,023
Sensitivity analysis (i) BEE ST
The followings are the related foreign currency exchange TRYE T HBEINE AR 2 a9 kE
rates to RMB during the year: x
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
Reporting Reporting
Average date spot Average date spot
rate rate rate rate
HwEA HwEH
iR RERE R 3 35 i [ =
UsD ETT 6.4588 6.3009 6.7255 6.6227
EUR BT 9.0213 8.1625 9.3018 8.8065
HKD Notacs 0.8279 0.8107 0.8657 0.8509
AUD JEIT 6.7180 6.4093 6.2173 6.7139

A 5% strengthening of RMB against the following
currencies would have increased/(decreased) the net
profit after tax and retained profits by the amounts shown
below. Other components of equity would not be affected
by the strengthen of RMB against foreign currencies.

ARBHIMTEEE%HTHE » T&RM
BREBENEN LR (TE)e8EMT
RS - R EMARE N TEXE
ARERHERINEFENZE -
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35 Financial risk management and fair values 35 BIiEKREER A LEHE (&)

238

(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

(d) E¥ k(&)
(i) SRR (&)

The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
USD =5 16,008 (1,112)
EUR BT 7,630 (3,420)
HKD Nogats (69,055) (1,530
AUD JEIT 232 =
(45,185) (6,062)
The Company b /N |
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREFIT
EUR BT (83) )
HKD ks (68,878) (1,501)
(68,961) (1,505)

A 5% weakening of RMB against the above currencies
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the balance sheet dates and had been applied to the
Group’s exposure to currency risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the next annual balance sheet date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

ARBEHEEN L EH5%NEZE - a0
RFBHEMEERIT T E 'E'JséTJ:L
KELHRERRNEE  FELBN
ERFAT -

M 3 BURE DT MO BRI R - [
ERLBAEAESEEAAERNY
AFEMSRIANERERKD - 8
AR BB RETE - RHRNER
BARMY, o

PR EXRBIENEEEEHET
—EBERER B B A] BE 3 A [ R
LB IEFE - DITITER20105F0 D
I3 EMER
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35 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(e) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2011 and 2010 except the Group’s financial instruments as

3B PHEBREER QA ABEGE)

(e) AREE

BRALEENIN TSR T A2 - B20114F
K2010%12 A318 » AR K # Rk A
RENAEERARFR SR TAMER S
o HEEAALBENMEEMNEAZSR -

follows:
The Group NEE
2011 2010
20115 20104
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
RE$%HE AREE RE S ARfEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETT AREBTT
Long-term receivables RAEAE Y FRIE 13,427 11,413 12,960 12,085

Fixed rate long-term bank loans ~ BEE =R HIRITE

(5,000) (4,422) (62,636) (69,706)

(f) Estimation of fair values

The fair values of interest-bearing borrowings and receivables
are estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial
instruments.

36 Commitments

(a) Commitments for the construction and acquisition
of property, plant and equipment outstanding at

(H AABEEMMEE
mRERLERFENR A EEGA /R
RKReREREUSBH T AEAIH 5 =E
FHREBRE -

36 7KiE

(a) MBBRERHPARIEHR2011FE12831HEE
REERBEYE BERRENERE

31 December 2011 not provided for in the financial TNt
statements were as follows:
The Group rEE
2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFIT
Contracted for =EES) 1,872,569 2,565,874
Authorised but not contracted for EREERETL 1,926,309 3,606,324
3,798,878 6,172,198
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36 Commitments (continued)

36 ¥ (&)
(a) BB P KB i H9N2011612 331 A B8

(@) Commitments for the construction and acquisition

of property, plant and equipment outstanding at
31 December 2011 not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows: (continued)

REERBEVE BERRBENERE

T AT : (%)

The Company b /N |
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETIT
Contracted for a4 98,479 34,943
Authorised but not contracted for BEREERETL - 768,000
98,479 802,943

(b) At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

(b) R20115F12A31H » BET ARV E
HE AREMHREEESRAENT

payable as follows: it -
The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Within 1 year 1FER 2,051 3,216
After 1 year but within 5 years 1512 1B5F A 1,434 3,736
3,485 6,952

The Group leases certain buildings through non-cancellable
operating leases. These operating leases do not contain
provisions for contingent lease rentals. None of the rental
agreements contain escalation provisions that may require
higher future rental payments.

AEE BB RROELHETFUAHE
TETET HFHEFPABRENSE
HE O IGERHRBRE - HEBHZET I REER
MARZESHE AL BN
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37 Contingent liabilities

I HERE

At 31 December 2011, the Group and the Company issued
financial guarantees to banks in respect of the bank loans granted
to related parties and provided bid and performance guarantees
to customers and the Company’s subsidiaries for construction
contracts and sale of wind turbines as follows:

R20114F12 A31H - |RRIRTTIAIBRRE T (A
ERimEAREE R AR B FRITIEL A S B
R~ AREBERARBEREES R RE S HHE
E MR EP RAR B H B A FEL IR &
FEXPERANT Pt -

The Group NEE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Financial guarantees to banks for A N A MERTTYE L A9
associates SRER - 5,000
Bid guarantees provided to: M T A BRI IRIRER
— related parties under Guodian —BEE B 800 800
— third parties —E=75 20,030 110,380
Performance guarantees provided to: MR R A B AIIER
— related parties under Guodian —BETNBREE 303,659 393,640
— third parties —E=5 1,291,238 974,754
1,615,727 1,484,574
The Company AT
2011 2010
201145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Financial guarantees to banks for: AT AR AR TEL A9
SRER
— subsidiaries — B AF] 1,132,400 1,103,642
— associates /NG - 5,000
Performance guarantees provided to BB A AR AR E AT
subsidiaries R 676,936 863,333
1,809,336 1,971,975

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group and the

Company under any of the guarantees.

REERBEXRA  EFMIRB/REAEHOE
RARNEBEIRARARREERMRBOES D
k o]
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B EXREBRS

(a) HEBS RS

38 Material related party transactions
(a) Transactions with related parties
REBRHETENRZARIN—FD -

HEEMEETBNEE D cHAEAEXN
RHENERHIE -

The Group is part of a larger group of companies under
Guodian and has significant transactions and relationships
with Guodian and related parties under Guodian.

The principal transactions which were carried out in the EEREKARET  HPEBINETERS

ordinary course of business are as follows: OSSN
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥ET T
Sale of goods to (note (iv)) HEEY T (H5Ev)
Guodian £ - 339
Related parties under Guodian BE T BRI 6,718,228 3,880,212
Associates i l/NE] 34,773 233
Construction service provided to (note (iv)  FEHEERTE 77 (F17£(v))
Guodian £ 283,393 -
Related parties under Guodian B NEREE S 4,250,592 1,505,515
Associates i lNE] - -
Service provided to (note (iv)) FEERARTE T (M i)
Related parties under Guodian ESRNTEo]27): b 26,381 15,134
Associates i l/NE] 3,691 6
Lease to (note (iv)) HE T (W5t v)
Related parties under Guodian (note (j) BT BRI A (A7) 964,066 475,205
Lease of investment properties to HEREMEDE T (HEv)
(note (iv))
Associates i lNE] 2,612 =
Purchase of goods from (note (iv)) EYEEH (K Ev)
Related parties under Guodian BlE T 1 st 15,561 15,408
Associates kN 55,305 10,664
Purchase of equipment from (note (iv)) RIEEE (W)
Related parties under Guodian B NEREE S 675,530 679,480
Lease of property from (note (iv)) YR E S (Bt )
Guodian HE - 3,331
Service provided by (note (iv)) JRIEFERE B (KT5E(v))
Related parties under Guodian ESRNTEo]27): b 1,500 151
Associates i l/NE] 22,000 =
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B EREAHRZ (&)

38Material related party transactions
(continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued) (a) R T RS (&)

2011 2010
20114 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Working capital obtained from BEE S NZE
Guodian BE - 1,337,717
Related parties under Guodian BlE T 1 Rt 911,213 740,000
Associates i/ 259 -
Working capital repaid to EEEZEED T
Guodian B E 1,123,898 1,134,519
Related parties under Guodian & NErREE S 1,651,398 -
Working capital provided to TEREREE L T
Related parties under Guodian BlE T 1 Rt 3,266 90,097
Associates i/ 114,621 51,200
Working capital repaid from EEEEESH
Related parties under Guodian BlE T 1y Rt 542,636 91,305
Associates i/ 265,000 -
Financial guarantee provided to TEREIRIEH T
Related parties under Guodian ESRN=Eiol): b - 5,000
Loans received from EERE
Related parties under Guodian BlE T 1y R 920,000 2,300,000
Loans repaid to EEEAT
Related parties under Guodian BE NEMEEE S 2,750,000 1,030,000
Interest expenses FIEEH
Guodian 5 33,322 40,144
Related parties under Guodian & NEr RS 35,211 71,094
Interest income FIEMA
Related parties under Guodian BE NEMEEE S 43 2,528
Associates /N - 2,804
Net deposits (withdrawn from)/ (188 ) T A7 F5E
placed with
Related parties under Guodian & NErREE A (56,597) 330,155
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38Material related party transactions
(continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

(V)

Pursuant to the Notice of Pilot Plan of Concession of Fossil-Fired
Power Plant Flue Gas Desulphurisation (€ B 5 A B BUE R i
AR &S B T ERY@ A1) promulgated by the National Development
and Reform Commission of the PRC (the “NDRC”) and Ministry
of Environmental Protection in 2007, the state encourages power
plants to engage professional desulphurisation service providers to
construct, operate and maintain the desulphurisation facilities and
the Group is one of the approved service providers. Accordingly, the
Group entered into various service arrangements with power plants,
including power plants of Guodian and related parties under Guodian,
to operate the desulphurisation facilities for the treatment of sulphur
dioxide generated by power plants during their electricity generation.
The Group acquires or constructs the desulphurisation facilities and
then maintains and operates the desulphurisation facilities to provide
pollutant treatment services to power plants during the useful lives of
power plants. The service charge is based on the volume of electricity
sold by the power plant and a tariff determined by the NDRC. These
arrangements are not in the legal form of leases, but are deemed as
operating leases based on their terms and conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group disposed of
certain subsidiaries to related parties under Guodian. Details of the
transaction are set out in note 39.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group disposed of
certain associates to related parties under Guodian at a consideration
totalling RMB218,004,000.

The directors are of the opinion that these transactions with related
parties are expected to continue in the future.

(b) Outstanding balances, including commitment, with
related parties

244

Details of the outstanding balances with related parties are set
out in notes 20, 22, 23, 24, 26, 27, 28, 29 and 33.

BERBEHRZ (&)

(a) EERAEE S YR 5 (4E)

G

)

(i

(i)

(v)

REFEERENEEZE S ([HHE])EEK
IR 5 IR & 56 7 2007 F 48 45 B0 < B 7 A i N B R
R AT E S TERBADRE - BK
*iﬁb fﬁqE EENOPRRBIRHEER &
B AR R AR BB RUE R U RS
g - llit REBEDEHERRL TAER
RiEZHE - REREMRETEBO@ETNE
B BB BREREANETIE  AEBREBRRE
FERBEMAEKN A - AEEEE N
%Hmmxf% ZIREERETHRATETH
TR HE LA M B IR 5 2 MR IR RS © IRIBE
R R BB B A R B E I E B IR BRI
BEMREER -  WELRHEITTRHEAHEE
SREAZETH - BERELEFLHRTBELN
TR - LSRR AR EHE -

HZE2011F12A31ALLFEZAN - AEBERE
ETENEB A HE T ETHBAR - K739
R T BRI ER SRR o

HE2011F12A31BIEFEZA + AERE (R
ETBHBBILETETHERAR - BHE
& E A AR #218,004,0007T °

5
ETE

RA - TR RS AR It R T Y

(b) SREEHETS HVEREE - BIEEARIE

MizE20 ~ 22 ~ 2324~ 26 ~ 27 ~ 28 » 298
Q3T EA AR RIRRREAETT T AEARR AR o
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38Material related party transactions 38 EABEHKR S (&)
(continued)

(b) Outstanding balances, including commitment, with

(b) E2EEHE TS HYERER - BIEE AR (&)

related parties (continued)

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s commitments with
related parties that have been contracted for but not yet been
recognised in these financial statements were as follows:

R2011F12831H » AEEE FT 4B E &
7S 3k P R A SRR B 5 Ay AR RE
SR

2011 2010
201145 2010%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥T T
Sale of goods to HERYT -

Related parties under Guodian B NEr R 4,654,284 7,667,277
Associates YN - 1,311

Construction service to be provided to TR EIRIE T
Related parties under Guodian B NEr R 1,583,525 2,384,971

(c) Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans organised by relevant local government
authorities and Guodian for its staff. As at 31 December
2011, there was no material outstanding contribution to post-
employment benefit plans. Details of the defined contribution
retirement plans are set out in note 7(a).

(d) Transactions with other government-related entities in

the PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government
and numerous government authorities and agencies
(collectively referred to as “government-related entities”).
Guodian, the parent and ultimate holding company of the
Company, is a PRC state-owned enterprise and these
government-related entities are also considered as related
parties of the Group in this respect.

(c) REHRTRKRET BB

ARESIN T BB REREE R
Gie0 % BRI IR INETE) © 2011412
AS1A - ERIVERIE BT - QB EA
REE - M7 ()8 REHFURIE B
17T A -

(d) BHREEGBFEEER ZENRS

EARBEAERMEERBHZT - £8
TERHTEBNREERFKE R EE
EERKREERES  BEEHRERTEN
ER(AHAIBUTHRAER]) - BE(AR
AN E R R MEREERAR) 2T ENEE
X WERFEBEERRILBESAE
ERORERE TS
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38Material related party transactions
(continued)

(d) Transactions with other government-related entities in

246

the PRC (continued)

Apart from transactions with Guodian and related parties
under Guodian mentioned above, the Group conducts a
majority of its business activities with other government-related
entities in the ordinary course of business. These transactions
are carried out at terms similar to those that would be entered
into with non-government-related entities.

The Group prices its services and products based on the
commercial negotiations. The Group has also established its
approval process for sales of goods, provision of services,
purchase of products and services and its financing policy for
borrowings. Such approval process and financing policy do
not depend on whether the counterparties are government-
related entities or not.

Having considered the potential for transactions to be
impacted by related party relationships, the Group’s approval
processes and financing policy, and what information would
be necessary for an understanding of the potential effect of
the relationship on these financial statements, the directors
are of the opinion that further information about the following
transactions that are collectively significant is required for
disclosure:

— Sales of goods and provision of construction services;

The Group sells its goods and provide construction
services to a wide range of government-related power
companies and manufacturing enterprises. These
transactions individually are not significant to the Group.

— Deposits and borrowings;

The Group deposits most of its cash in government-
related financial institutions, and also obtains short-term
and long-term loans from these financial institutions in the
ordinary course of business. The interest rates of the bank
deposits and loans are regulated by the People’s Bank of
China.

B EREAHRZ (&)

(d) EFEEGBFEEER BN S (F)

Bt SR E R BEE T BT < H
RHpZI EIEBEBBIET - AKEX
MAOEBEHEREMBNAEERERS
) o WER S HMITIHRFKEIFRFHRE
RBH) X Z 5RAEM -

AR BR IR 5 A A R B AR TS SR EE dm 7E
B -FARNEYHE  REREH EmER
BHBE AEECEY TERERF I
BV TEANERTENRERRK - LEHE
HEFLRBEBRRITZERRZHTER
EBFRAEERE -

ZRIEBTARYRINBEETE K
SENERETFANBERRE - AR BE
REBBERAYBRRNECETENTR
MER  EEMRA HREBMEEAX
MRS BERBLE—THOFHAES

— EMHE REERBGAOEE

AEE RS ERTERBE DA F MG
ERHEEMWRMRERS - FR
SERMEHAKEL TEK -

— ERRRAERK

REBAREH DR SFREAERENE
R BELRXRFBREThRLE
TRWBEDGHMREHER - RITF
REE AR B B ARBITHIET
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38Material related party transactions 38 & KBRS ()

(continued)

(d) Transactions with other government-related entities in (d) EREEMBFAFEESE BN S (F)

the PRC (continued)

Purchase of materials and receiving construction services;
and

The Group purchases materials and receives construction
services from a wide range of government-related
manufacturing enterprises and construction contractors.
These transactions individually are not significant to the
Group.

Service concession arrangements;

The Group entered into three service concession
agreements with local governments to construct and
operate sewage treatment plants during the concession
period. All transactions under the service concession
arrangements were made with local governments and
carried out at terms set out in the respective service

— MHEBERESEIRYE &

AEERSERFABRELRBEN
R A SRR AT AR R S A B A
ERTS - W FABR S ERIME HAE
BAEK o

— IRESHFRELE

AEECEEMBRTRE] T ZBREE
A ERFTHRZA - AEER
AR AR E 5 KERIERR o ARTSHTRTAE ik
H TR 5H R R BTES
B - BER BRRER LR RE

TRBMITIHRR °

concession arrangements.

(e) Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or
indirectly, including the Company’s directors.

Remuneration for key management personnel, including

(e) TEEEAEEM

TEREEABEYEMERMAAE)E
B TTEERSERMRE - REURE
HIARENESOEA - BRARANE
=1 -

FARETZEEAEBNHMN T (BHEMEE

amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note FRIFER S MERNAREEZMOESE - A

9, and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in

note 10, is as follows:

K10 ENE THMZRSHES) |

2011 2010
20115 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARET T

Salaries and other emoluments
Discretionary bonus
Retirement scheme contributions

TERAEMES 3,640 1,522
2,555 1,261

K 748 246

6,943 3,029
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR HI5E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ESB A B » AAREFIR)

39 Disposal of subsidiaries

39 HEKB AT

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group disposed
of certain subsidiaries which are engaged in businesses not
in line with the Group’s long-term strategic development
plan. The total consideration for the disposal of subsidiaries
amounted to RMB756,060,000 of which a total consideration of
RMB609,490,000 was paid or payable by related parties under
Guodian in connection with the subsidiaries sold to them. The
consideration was determined with reference to valuation reports
issued by independent appraisers in the PRC.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in these subsidiaries
as at the date when controls were lost are as follows:

R2011F12A31BNEE - AEBRETAET
BT - thEHEBA R EMNERFEAE
ENREPSEERERIT—H - HEHRBA
AHY 4 5B A A R 756,060,0007T © HA A
R #609,490,000 7t Bk EHE B E ~NEMHE
BE A o Bt B R E b BB A
EL MR SRS FEER ©

REEEHERB A - WEMRBRARINEE
kA BERmEEM T

RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Property, plant and equipment W - B MR 2,896,015
Lease prepayments FEM A E K 50,397
Intangible assets | EE 59,913
Goodwill 5k 7,327
Deferred tax assets BIETIEEE 1,431
Inventories FE 353,466
Trade and other receivables JFEE LA B 50 T L Ath R LR SR IR 940,419
Cash at bank and in hand WIOTGERAREFRS 291,884
Borrowings B (2,691,330)
Trade and other payables FEASTBR SR R ELAth FE T 5RIE (1,032,085)
Deferred income EEW (4,736)
872,701
Total consideration HREHE 756,060
Fair value of the retained interest as an associate EABE N RREBERNARLEBE 97,727
Carrying amount of net assets in subsidiaries Frt &M B AR FEERA ST
disposed of (872,701)
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests JEER R IRE S5 116,226
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries recognised AP Es R B R Bt I s S SR T R AY
in other net income in the consolidated income HEWB A RS F5E
statement 97,312
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The net gain on disposal of subsidiaries included the gain
attributable to recognising the Group’s retained interest at its fair
value at the date of control was lost amounting to RMB6,866,000
(RMB97,727,000 less RMB90,861,000, being carrying value
of the proportionate assets and liabilities retained at the date of
control was lost).

HENBARNKS FEBIERELHEE B
BERATEBREBESAABEMEEANKE S
% A A R #6,866,0007T (A R #97,727,0007T
A R 90,861,000 T (K EEHEE BRA
LRI EER AERAEEE)) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSSR M 5F ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

40 Notes to the consolidated cash flow

40 SR EREBRAOMEE

statements

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2011

BZE2011F12B31B L EEHRBATINHE

RMB’000

ARBT T

Total consideration HBEE 756,060

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERHESRIASEED (291,884)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEEENRSMREEEY

in respect of disposals FIMA 464,176

41 Service concession arrangement

The Group entered into three service concession agreements
with local governments (the “Grantors”) to construct and operate
sewage treatment plants during the concession period, which is
normally for 25-30 years of operation. The Group is responsible
for construction and maintenance of the sewage treatment plants
during the concession period. At the end of the concession
period, the Group needs to transfer the sewage treatment plants
to the Grantors at nil consideration. With respect to these service
concession arrangements, the Group has evaluated and assessed
that these arrangements fall under the scope of IFRIC 12, Service
Concession Arrangements.

In accordance with IFRIC 12, the Group accounts for the revenue
and costs relating to construction services in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 2(0). The consideration
received or receivables in exchange for the construction services
is recognised as a financial asset for an unconditional contractual
right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the
direction of the Grantor for the construction services and/or an
intangible asset for a right or a license to charge users of the
sewage treatment service.

The Group recognises the intangible assets at the fair value of
the concession construction service and amortises the intangible
assets over the operating period of the service concession
projects

Services concession construction revenue (note 4) recorded
during the years presented represents the revenue recognised
during the construction stage of the service concession period.
The Group has recognised profit of RMB1,585,000 (2010:
RMB18,060,000) for the construction of sewage treatment plants.

4 RIS R B

ARG B M B ([ 54877 1) %RAT 7 =B RTS
FretiElhes - B ATEMIR A BEREERK
RRESKRIER - B % IR R25-30%F - £
Rt A - AERE R RI5KEE MM
TREARGE - FrERRZR - ARER
ZUATHERTREERERGRKES - @R
HERBRFTRLY - KAKEG - EL
BERT B CBIFR B 75 3R 5 A2 iE 55 1297 — IR 75
RratEZ ) ((BERM RS EAZZEF12
SN e

RIBCBEBRM RS ERREFF12FIRE - R
B FE20) PR S ERE - AEEIHT
FARNZERBOKRERAAR - ZERBHEK
SKEWEHE - BB RE JIREET R RK
HRUER & 3k EL A & B A B TN s IR 1 22 K0 R T
RE—HLRMEE - M/ LehRI5KER RS
Z P UER & e K T AT RERR S — TR T

AEERFEEIRBOAABERASE
WEE EREFHFEEELEHRZA - Y
B EEETHIE -

& FE AR RS E TUA (MEE4) R
TREFEFFEREETHABROBA - K&
=2 RN KEERAE TERMNBEAR
#1,585,0007T (20104 : A K # 18,060,000
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3ERBHEA + UARESIR)

41 Service concession arrangement (continued) 41 JRIG4SerRE L HE (&)

250

The Group has recognised intangible assets (note 16) related
to the service concession arrangement representing the right
the Group received to charge a fee for sewage treatment or
sale of reclaimed water. The Group has not recognised service
concession receivables as the Grantor will not provide the Group
with any guaranteed minimum payment for the operating period
of the sewage treatment plants.

42 Non-adjustment events after the balance

sheet date
(a) Issue of shares

On 13 January 2012, the over-allotment option granted by the
Company was partially exercised. The Company issued and
allotted an aggregate of 121,270,000 H shares at HKD2.16
each. After the issuance and allotment of these shares,
the registered and issued ordinary shares of the Company
increased to 6,063,770,000 shares with 1,309,770,000 H
shares being listed on HKSE.

(b) Special dividend

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 9
December 2011, in accordance with the Interim Provisions
on the Management and Financial Treatment of State Owned
Capital in Enterprise Corporate Restructuring (1& %/ 7] #2452
BB ERNE R EY BRI EITHE) issued by the MOF
and effective on 27 August 2002, and pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders on 3 June 2011, the
Company will pay a dividend to Guodian and GD Power,
which represents an amount equal to the net profit attributable
to the shareholders of the Company generated by the Group
from 1 November 2010, the date following the day on which
the Group’s state-owned assets were valued, to 30 June
2011.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at directors’ meeting on 27
March 2012, the directors resolved to pay the special dividend
to Guodian and GD Power amounting to RMB338,283,000.

43 Parent and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2011, the directors of the Company consider
its parent and ultimate holding company of the Group to be
Guodian, which is a state-owned enterprise established in the
PRC. Guodian does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

AR ERS Rt L - AEECRABRTEE
(HIFE16) IATRRA SR B B R £ 175 7 B 32 B
ERSHETIK - AEBEARBERRBITATE
FENIE - ERRIETT MRS KR IE R &
HAfE] A A SR BRI R MR IE A S8 -

REERERAPZERRAREH

(a) RGBT

201291 H130 * XA R FTHBEEAEE
BIEBEREWEOITE o ARRIEBERABE
2.16 7T 48 H£ Z 17 B 3% T 121,270,000 fx H
B o BITWEL BB LR D 218 - AARIE
5T it B 317 0 X 8 A% 12 = 6,063,770,000
A% - H e 1,309,770,000 A% HA% 7E & 7 B 32
Frfhg £ o

(b) 45 5IARE

2011F12 HOB AR AR BT E A #FE -
R I5 B B ER AR 2002458 A 27 H A 5 H)
(EARHIREEBEA E AN E IR E
BEIENETHEE) - BIRR20114F6 A3B K
RAGBBEMNL @RS ARAEREE
MBAESEAZMAKRE  ZBRELBSAR
H2010F11 A1B (AR r B EEFN G
AEZ22H)E2011F6 A0 iR ALEE
EENBRBNARBREAFFE -

BIE2012F3A27T A MBI EE RS -
BEMAEMRERREE H S HERIK
B &% A5 AR#338,283,0007T °

43 B AR RBERERAT

R2011F 128318 » ARFTMEZMRE © &
EENF AR RRKIERAREHE BER
FERBERN—REFRE - AETREAH
AR BT SRR o
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/

44 DB AMR B R EMPISE] ~ FET
HARRETEREENTE

44 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective

BEYBHREREMAE B2
E;%’ﬂ?ﬁTjQEEIM uT *EDTE}]’EEU D%ui fﬂ
MAE2011F12A31HIEMFERER - AX

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended

31 December 2011 and which have not been adopted in these EE LR RPEA -
financial statements.
Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
BUTBHHz#&
iz EtHEEXR
Amendments to IFRS 1, First-time adoption of B B B FS R Y E R B SR B 5] — B XA
International Financial Reporting Standards BUER B R 2Rl — B B R [ B E AR
— Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates B ) X#7 T E R B2 [E] = H RIEI BUY 1 July 2011
for first-time adopters 2011E7H1H
Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: BIBR B 75 R e HE B BB 7SR IS 5T — 1 July 2011
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets T TA : ﬂ%’gx — SRR EREE 20117 H1H
Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes Bl 5T E 125 RIS E] — AT7Ef — 1 January 2012
— Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets BEFEFIE - JE 65 A R4 el 201241 A1H
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial Re TR E1RMIEE] — B HE
statements — Presentation of items of other i /3 — E/ﬂ#é#ﬁ?ﬁlﬁﬂ’]& IE54 1 July 2012
comprehensive income 20127 H1H

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 11, Joint arrangements

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

IAS 27, Separate financial statements (2071)

BIBR B TR S RIE 1058 — S HF AT &

BIFR M 5 3R 5 2

A KK
[=N=}

BIIEE115% — B

BIFR M T 3R 2
AR

AISE125E —H B 1#

BIFR M T 3R 2

i

AIE135% — A E1EAY

B et ERFE275 — E B IR Z(2011)

BEMBRREERNDER AR

1 January 2013
2013F1 A1H

1 January 2013
2013F1 A1H

1 January 2013
2013F1 A1H

1 January 2013
2013F1 A1H

1 January 2013
2013F1 A1H
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44 Possible impact of amendments, new 44 B2 #1184 R 4EMPWIEET ~ FHETHW
standards and interpretations issued but not ZRIRREUEEENTE(E)
yet effective (continued)

Effective for

accounting
periods beginning
on or after
BUTHH®z%E
Bz HREN
IAS 28, Investments in associates and joint Bl &t R FE28R —HHE N A R A & 1 January 2013
ventures (2011) BRI ECOT1) 201351 A1H
Revised IAS 19, Employee benefits BB ERFE195% —ESEF/ 1 January 2013
20131 H1H
IFRIC 20, Stripping costs in the production phase  BIFREB 784 4RI 22 5 0058 — #h K £E 1 January 2013
of a surface mine AEEEE BRI RIR AR AR 20131 H1H
Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: BRI SR E RSB TR AER] — 2 AL
Disclosures — Disclosures — Offsetting financial A FE *E\#ﬁé/gﬁﬁz\ﬁﬁﬁ [5 fgfined 1 January 2013
assets and financial liabilities 201341418
Amendments to I1AS 32, Financial instruments: Bl s R E2RMIER] —2 @ LA -
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and S/ — E\ﬁyﬂé/gﬁﬁz\ﬁﬁﬁ [5 H?féffﬁ 1 January 2014
financial liabilities 201451 A1H
IFRS 9, Financial instruments (2010) BREA TSRS YERISEOSR — 280 T A (2010) 1 January 2015
2015651 A1H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what ANEBE B A EA G EEE] « #a] H2%ER]
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new &aﬁﬁu’f&g\m%}]ﬁﬂAFﬁzﬂE%; B RIS
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. BR AR EN] BRI ISR EER T
So far the Group believes that the adoption of these new IFRSs AREBRNKEXGEHPBRAEEETEATE -

is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF DALIAN ECONOMIC AND
TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENT ZONE DRAIN

MANAGEMENT COMPANY™*

RBE BRI AEREKERERR A R BHRK

I EEeMERTER T BREE) RSM China Certified Public Accountants £ (10)88095588
ok LR TP RS R A T35 B2 Add: 8-9/F Block A Corporation Bldg.No.35 Tel :  +86(10)88095588

KEARES-OE Finance Street Xicheng District Beiing PRC  {H : +86(10)88091190
HEARAS : 100033 Post Code: 100033 Fax : +86(10)88091190

Zhong Rui Yue Hua Zhuan Shen Zi [2012] No. 0769

To Board of Directors of Dalian Economic and Technological
Development Zone Drainage Management Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the financial statements of Dalian Economic and
Technological Development Zone Drainage Management Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) as annexed, including
the balance sheet on December 31, 2010, as well as the income
statement, cash flow statement, statement of changes in equity, and
notes to financial statements in 2008, 2009, and 2010.

. The management’s responsibility for the
financial statements

The preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management,
which includes: (1) The financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the corporate accounting
standards to achieve fair presentation; (2) the necessary internal
controls are designed, implemented and maintained to avoid
material misstatement in the financial statements due to fraud
or error.

II. The certified public accountant’s
responsibility

Our responsibility is to give audit opinions on the basis of
implementation of audit work. We implemented the audit work
in accordance with the provisions of China Auditing Standards
for Certified Public Accountants, which require that we comply
with the Code of Ethics of Certified Public Accountants and
plan and implement the audit work, so as to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements have no material
misstatement.

*Note: The Company herein includes audited financial statements of Dalian
Economic and Technological Development Zone Drain Management
Company pursuant to the disclosure made on page 79 of the Prospectus.

i EEEF[2012]F5%

RELERMAZRRIKEEARARESS

ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?&%%ﬁ SR ERMARRIKERS

REATEREIERRDMBRE - £%52010
¢12ﬂ31E| AN EEBER © 20085F F - 2009
FE  20105EMNER - REREXNMBER
B BYR DA K BTSRRI RE

—  EEEHMBRRNEL

REMDATHRMBHRERE BERFREEE
MEME - EREMEEE  (NRBREXSE
AR ERBEM EImE - WEEERAAR
BR : (2)RRET - BT E RS -

VAGEBA 7 3R R N7 R IR SR BN Sk B ER B B
BEAFHER

= - AMETAMNEE

4

BAMEERENTER TIEMER LYY
BRRBERBTER - RARRTEEMS
AtEMERET R RENIT T FERT LIE -
AR & 5t A2 AT 2 Rl 22 SR IR A9 58 7 o B A
SRTEVRRBETR - SEIABITE TIF
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REE o

PR : AR AMKRIBIETORMBEE - BUtRHBLH
iR EEIOKER AR D RNP RS

EEMRBEREEARNARLIA - —T——FFR 253



FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF DALIAN ECONOMIC AND TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENT

ZONE DRAIN MANAGEMENT COMPANY (CONTINUED)

RiE

RSM China Certified Public

BB R EPKEEFR QR E MR ()

The audit work involves implementing audit procedures to
obtain audit evidence on the amount and disclosure of financial
statements. The selected procedures depend on the certified
public accountant’s judgment, which includes the assessment
of risks of material misstatement in the financial statements
due to fraud or error. During the risk assessment, the certified
public accountant considers the internal control relevant to
financial statement preparation and fair presentation to design
appropriate audit procedures, but the purpose is not to give
opinions on the effectiveness of internal control. The audit work
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used by and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the management, as well as the overall
presentation of evaluating financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient,
appropriate, and able to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Audit opinions

We believe that the financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Accounting Standards for
Enterprises in all material respects, fairly presenting the financial
situation on December 31, 2010, as well as the business
results and cash flows of Dalian Economic and Technological
Development Zone Drainage Management Co., Ltd. in 2008,
2009, and 2010.

Chinese certified

Accountants public accountant: YAN Bingaqi
(special general partner)
Beijing China Chinese certified public

accountant; LI Min

March 14, 2012
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BALANCE SHEET

BERERX

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA RE 7R

2010.12.31 2009.12.31 2008.12.31
RMB RMB RMB

AR ARETT ARETT
Current assets REEE
Monetary funds EHE S O 747,391.39 2,245,098.97 2,730,090.97
Other receivables H el Er N2 73,230,945.96 139,703.00 143,042.00
Total current assets RBEEA 73,978,337.35 2,384,801.97 2,873,132.97
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets ETEE 753 23,006,313.62 31,359,102.86 35,688,297.30
Construction in progress HEETR N4 36,780,054.04
Total non-current assets ERBEES 59,786,367.66 31,359,102.86 35,688,297.30
Total assets BEAE 133,764,705.01 33,743,904.83 38,561,430.27
Current liabilities k=t
Other payables H M ERE 56 359,713.94 1,007 42413 1,905,512.52
Total current liabilities RBEESE 359,713.94 1,227,424.13 1,905,512.52
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Long-term loans REER <7  110,000,000.00 0 0
Total non-current liabilities FRBEFEF 110,000,000.00 0 0
Total liabilities aEat 110,359,713.94 1,007,424.13 1,905,512.52
Owners’ equity FEEkER
Paid-in capital BUER N8 4,671,614.91 27,855,037.47 27,855,037.47
Capital reserve EARATE N9 122,797,995.06  134,576,372.19  134,310,734.05
Undistributed profits KA FHE 7~ 10 (104,064,618.90) (129,914,928.96) (125,509,853.77)
Total owners’ equity FrEEEREE: 23,404,991.07 32,516,480.70 36,655,917.75
Total owners’ equity and liabilities frEEREREE BE 133,764,705.01 33,743,904.83 38,561,430.27

BEMBRREERNDER AR

= ——FH
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INCOME STATEMENT

HMEZR

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAAREFIR)

2010.12.31 2009.12.31 2008.12.31

RMB RMB RMB

AR®R AR¥ET ARBTT

l. Operating income il 1'UN <11 552,500.00 220,000.00 0

Il. Operating costs o EERRK 28,476,391.46 39,500,453.59 36,521,342.50

Business tax and surcharge BER S KM 7N 12 30,663.75 0 0

Sales cost HEER 7813 24,206,627.00 36,294,144.82 33,517,860.50

Management cost EHEER N 14 4,141,286.76 3,209,815.87 3,009,710.88

Financial cost &R N 15 (2,186.05) (3,507.10) (6,228.88)

Asset impairment BERERERXKX N 16 100,000.00 0 0

lll. Operating profit = BERE (27,923,891.46)  (39,280,453.59)  (36,521,342.50)

Plus:  Non-operating income me o EEIMNEA N 17  24,619,526.80  34,888,769.46  34,385,597.58

Minus: ~ Non-operating expense W EEINEH N 18 3,807,986.76 13,391.06 23,000.00
Of which: Losses from disposal of He: FRHBERE

non-current assets B 3,807,986.76 13,391.06 23,000.00

IV. Total profit ~ FlEsazE (7,112,351.42) (4,405,075.19) (2,158,744.92)

V. Net profit F o EFE (7,112,351.42) (4,405,075.19) (2,158,744.92)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ReRER

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAAREFIR)

2010 2009 2008
RMB RMB RMB
AR®R AR¥ET ARBTT
l. Cash flow generated from — RETHEENR
operating activities ERE
Cash received from sales of HEEm - B
goods and provision of services B RIRIR S 25,172,026.80 35,108,769.46 38,131,045.21
Cash received from other operating L ) 2L A Bl 40 42 B8y
activities BRI S 7~ 19 0 30,000,000.00 0
Subtotal cash inflows received from L& EERE
operating activities AN 25,172,026.80 65,108,769.46 33,131,045.21
Cash paid for purchase of goods and ~ BE B 79 ~ 57 4474
acceptance of labor X HEE 9,655,559.59  12,954,759.01 12,752,394.40
Cash paid to employees and SAGEBI AR
for employees AR IR E 14,231,162.19 16,838,167.29 15,863,916.89
Payments of taxes SRS IR B 236,186.13 5,069,196.06 0
Cash paid for other operating activities 3% 1< E fth BLAT &4 SE B
BENEE 7~ 19 2,581,826.47  30,466,000.96 2,487,345.73
Subtotal cash outflows paid for KESEHE SR H /G
operating activities 26,704,734.38 65,328,123.32 31,108,657.02
Net cash flows generated from RETEEENEERN
operating activities =258 (1,532,707.58) (219,353.86) 2,027,388.19
II. Cash flow generated from = RETFEREEN
investing activities HERE
Net cash received from disposal of REBRTFEE « EFE
fixed assets, intangible assets and EMEMEIEE
other long term assets U o] 1938 & FRE 35,000.00 0 1,000.00
Cash received from other investing U Bl E 4t B & SR B
activities BRI S 7~ 19 68,480,000.00 0 0
Subtotal cash inflows received from REFHRLSHRA
investing activities INET 68,515,000.00 0 1,000.00
Cash paid for purchasing fixed assets, BEERETEEE - &
intangible assets and BEMEMRIEE
other long term assets YRS 110,000,000.00 265,638.14 295,000.00
Cash paid for other investing activities 5z <t EL{th BL & & JE &)
BENRE 7~+19  68,480,000.00 0 0
Subtotal cash outflows for RETBHRE
investing activities FH /Nt 178,480,000.00 265,638.14 295,000.00

BEMBRREERNDERAR - —T——FFH
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Rensxk(E)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR¥517R)

2010 2009 2008
RMB RMB RMB
AR¥RT ARETT ARETT
Net cash flows generated from REFEHEEN
investing activities BeHE T (109,965,000.00) (265,638.14) (294,000.00)
lll. Cash flow generated from = -BETHEEN
financing activities HERE
Cash received from loans BEERKEIHES 110,000,000.00 0 0
Cash received from other financing U B H fih B3 55 5 i &)
activities BHMNRE N 19 2,250,600.00 0 0
Subtotal cash inflows received from HEEEH &
financing activities AN 112,250,600.00 0 0
Cash paid for distribution of dividends, 2 BAZF « FE s E
profits or cash payments MEZNHIRE 2,250,600.00 0 0
Subtotal cash outflows for EETEHES
financing activities /st 2,250,600.00 0 0
Net cash flows generated from EEEHEEN
financing activities HERETHE 110,000,000.00 0 0
IV. Affects of exchange rate - EREHHASR
changes on cash and ReZEYNE
cash equivalents 0 0 0
V. Net increase of cash and T HERREEEY
cash equivalents RIEINEE (1,497,707.58) (484,992.00) (1,733,388.19)
Plus: Balance of initial cash and m: ByEERIBEESE
cash equivalents BYIEE 2,245,098.97 2,730,090.97 996,702.78
VI. Balance of cash and N HRESER
cash equivalents at the end of HELEYERE
the period 747,391.39 2,245,098.97 2,730,090.97
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AR

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAAREFIR)

2010

Paid-in Capital Undistributed Total owners’

capital reserve profits equity

BWER -ZUN KOBAE  FEEERSH

| Balance at the end of last year — LEERBE 27,855,037.47 134,576,372.20  (129,914,928.97) 32,516,480.70

II. Balance at the beginning of this year o REENRE 27,855,037.47 134,576,372.20  (129,914,928.97) 32,516,480.70

lIl. Amount of change during the period = KEIHEEEH

(decrease or increase) (“( )" for decrease)  (GEAEA[ () I5%3E5]) (23,183,422.56)  (11,778,377.14) 25,850,310.08 (9,111,489.62)

(i). Net profits (=) 3R 0 0 (7,112,351.42) (7,112,351.42)
(ii). Owners’ investment and (Z)FBERANELER

decrease of capital (23,183,422.56)  (11,778,377.14) 32,962,661.50 (1,999,138.20)

1. Owners’ investment of capital 1. IRERAER (23,183,422.56)  (11,778,377.14)  32,962,661.50 (1,999,138.20)

(iii). Distribution of profits (Z)FEE 0 0 0 0

(iv). Internal transfer of owner’s equity (M) freERkEnTEE 0 0 0 0

(v). Special reserve (R)EERE 0 0 0 0

(vi). Others (R)Efte 0 0 0 0

IV. Balance at the end of the period M~ AE RS 4,671,614.91 122,797,995.06  (104,064,618.89) 23,404,991.08

2009

Paid-in Capital Undistributed Total owners’

capital reserve profits equity

ElER BARE ROWAE  FEEREmA

I. Balance at the end of last year — LEERBE 27,855,037.47  134,310,734.05  125,500,853.78 36,655,917.74

Il. Balance at the beginning of thisyear = KEEERE 27,855,037.47  134,310,734.05  (125500,853.78)  36,655,917.74

llIl. Amount of change during the period = K FEEHEHE

(decrease or increase) (“()” for decrease)  (HAU[ () J5REF]) 0 265,638.15 (4,405,075.19) (4,139,437.04)

(i). Net profits (=) 35 0 0 (4,405,075.19) (4,405,075.19)
(ii). Owners’ investment and (D REERANRDER

decrease of capital 0 265,638.15 0 265,638.15

1. Owners’ investment of capital 1LBERAER 0 265,638.15 0 265,638.15

(iii). Distribution of profits (2)HEIE 0 0 0 0

(iv). Internal transfer of owner’s equity (M) B EREAHEE 0 0 0 0

(v). Special reserve (B)EERE 0 0 0 0

(vi). Others (R)Eft 0 0 0 0

IV. Balance at the end of the period M~ AE R 27,855,037.47 134,576,372.20  (129,914,928.97) 32,516,480.70
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

FrEEaZEEBR(E)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R#57R)

2008

Paid-in Capital Undistributed Total owners’

capital reserve profits equity

EWER BADE FRAEME  FEEERA

| Balance at the end of last year — LEERBE 27,855,037.47 134,015,734.06  (123,351,108.36) 38,519,662.66

Il. Balance at the beginning of thisyear = REEERE 27,855,037.47  134,015,734.05  (123,351,108.86)  38,519,662.66

lIl. Amount of change during the period = KEIHSEEH

(decrease or increase) (“( )" for decrease)  (GEAEA[ () I5%385) 0 295,000.00 (2,158,744.92) (1,863,744.92)

(i)- Net profits (—)ER)H 0 0 (15874492  (2,158,744.92)
(ii). Owners’ investment and (Z)FBERANELER

decrease of capital 0 295,000.00 0 295,000.00

1. Owners’ investment of capital 1. IRERAER 0 295,000.00 0 295,000.00

(ii). Distribution of profits (2 MBI E 0 0 0 0

(iv). Internal transfer of owner’s equity (M) freERkEnTLE 0 0 0 0

(v). Special reserve (R)EERE 0 0 0 0

(vi). Others (R)Efte 0 0 0 0

IV. Balance at the end of the period I~ AEEREAE 27,855,037.47  134,310,734.05  (125509,853.78)  36,655,917.74
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010
2008 * 2009 * 2010F E B F5 3R M 5t

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) (BIESAEHR - UAREFR)

—  REETER

I. Company profiles

Dalian Economic and Technological Development Zone
Drainage Management Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to
as the “Company”) was formerly called Dalian Economic
Development Zone Sewage Treatment Plant, including No.
1 Sewage Treatment Plant and No. 2 Sewage Treatment
Plant. It was founded in 1987 and was approved by Liaoning
Dalian Administration Bureau for Industry and Commerce to
be registered as a limited liability company. The company’s
registered capital is RMB5 million, of which: Dalian Deta
Holdings Co., Ltd. invested RMB4.75 million, accounting
for 95% of the registered capital; Dalian Economic and
Technological Development Zone Running-water Company
invested RMB250 thousand, accounting for 5% of the registered
capital. The Company’s legal person is You Huichun. The
registration place is No. 101, Huanghai Middle Road, Economic
and Technological Development Zone, Dalian City, Liaoning
Province, People’s Republic of China. The registration number
of business license for legal person is [210241000006197].
On January 28, 2010, a shareholders conference was held, in
which a resolution was made to transfer the assets of No. 1
Sewage Treatment Plant. On February 11, 2010, the Finance
Bureau of Dalian Development Zone issued the Approval
on the Transfer of Assets of No. 1 Sewage Treatment Plant
of the Drainage Company (Kai Cai Guo Fa [2010] No. 42),
authorizing Dalian Deta Holdings Co., Ltd. to transfer the assets
of No. 1 Sewage Treatment Plant through Dalian Property
Exchange. After the assets of No. 1 Sewage Treatment Plant
were transferred on May 11, 2010, the Company wrote off
the assets of No. 1 Sewage Treatment Plant in December
2010 and finished the state capital accounting treatment. On
March 19, 2011, the Finance Bureau of Dalian Jinzhou New
District issued the Notice on Verifying and Eliminating the
Fixed Assets of No. 1 Sewage Treatment Plant of the Drainage
Company (Da Jin Cai Guo Fa [2011] No. 134), authorizing the
Company to conduct the above accounting treatment. After
the capital reduction event, the Company’s carrying paid-up
capital was RMB4,671,614.91. As of December 31, 2010, the
Company had not yet completed the industrial and commercial
registration change procedures on capital reduction.

The scope of business of the Company is as follows:
drainage, flood control project as well as design, construction,
management and maintenance of facilities.

Dalian Deta Holdings Co., Ltd. is the Company’s parent
company and ultimate controller.
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FMEARSCOE T - EEALE R ©
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FZEEETPIK1015E - CEEAALENR
SEAEE : [210241000006197] © A & Al & &
REMEREESKEER - 182K 1987
F - 200053 AL BB B E - BHlE
NEIEEAEREEAT  EBINEBHREEE
BEFRENL - 201051 A28H © AR ARBRR
FWHARE  RAEK—HEER BEZ -
20102 A11 B RERME &R T ERER
PR AR 5KEE — A ER G EEOILE)
(A EE[20101425%) © RERBERIER
BRATHEAR —MEELENEERER ST
HITHENREE - 2010F5 8118 » —EE
TR EEE o AEIMN2010F 12 A EBRE s —
BREE  RRMZRBERERNSRFER -
20113 A1908 » KE£MNFHEIA BB T =
CEARZEEKR AR S/KERE —HETEEER
BAY(KE I EZE[2011]13458 ) @ BEIF
BEAE EMIRFEE - BN REEE
NAIBREEWE AR4671,614917C - B =
2010812 A31H © AR HARTTHBME RN T
EREEEH

ARBEEHEER - Pk A TREERE
MIRRET ~ 2R - BIE - EERTS

AARANBARNSKRE AR ANEERE
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

262

The basis of preparing financial statements

Based on the assumption of going concern, as well as the
actual transactions and matters, the Company’s financial
statements were prepared, in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Enterprises — Basic Standards and 38 specific
accounting standards issued by the Ministry of Finance on
February 15, 2006, the Application Guide for the Accounting
Standards for Enterprises, Interpretation to the Accounting
Standards for Enterprises, and other relevant provisions issued
later by the Ministry of Finance (hereinafter collectively referred
to the “Accounting Standards for Enterprises”).

According to the relevant provisions of the Accounting
Standards for Enterprises, the Company’s accounting is on an
accrual basis. The historical costs are the measurement basis
of the financial statements.

The statement on following the Accounting
Standards for Enterprises

The financial statements prepared by the Company comply with
the requirements of Accounting Standards for Enterprises, truly
and completely reflecting the financial position of the Company
on December 31, 2010, as well as the operating results, cash
flow and other information in 2008, 2009, and 2010.

Main accounting policies and accounting
estimates

1. The accounting period

The Company’s accounting period is divided into “annual”
and “interim”, the latter of which refers to a reporting period
shorter than a full accounting year. The Gregorian calendar
year is used for the Company’s accounting year, which
starts from January 1 to December 31.

2. Functional currency

In the primary economic environment that the Company
does its business, the currency is RMB which is the
Company’s functional currency. While the Company
prepared the financial statements, the currency used is
RMB.
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EB20064F2 415 A MM RS 4R —
AR HIBIEARB R ER - HREM
MEREHEAERAER - bXESHERIR
BRhEMHEBRE(LATEEIEXGE
Al DERBERERE -

REGFSHEAMBREMRE - AARIE
BENRERLESRER - AMBERKRIG A
ESE PR AN At B AR
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A31 B AR 0% %2008 + 2009 * 20104
EHREKREMBERESARBES -
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)

2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

IV. Main accounting policies and accounting
estimates (continued)

3. Criteria of recognizing cash and cash equivalents

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents include cash
on hand, deposit that can be used for payment at any
time, as well as the Company’s short-term (from the date
of purchase, due within three months) investments that
are highly current, readily convertible to known amounts of
cash, subject to very low risk of changes in value.

4. Receivables

The receivables include debt receivables and other
receivables.

(1) Recognizing criteria of provision for bad debts

The Company checked the carrying values of receivables
corresponding to the date of balance sheet and
established provision for impairment when the following
objective evidence indicates that the receivables are
impaired: (D The debtor has severe financial difficulties;
@ the debtor breaches the terms of contract (such as
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments);
@ the debtor will enter bankruptcy or carry out other
financial reorganization; @ other objective evidence
indicates that the receivables have been impaired.

(2) Methods of provision for bad debts

@ The recognizing criteria and methods of provision for
bad debts of receivables with individually significant
amount and individual provision for bad debts

The Company recognizes the receivables of more
than RMB1 million as individually significant
receivables.

The individually significant receivables are subject
to separate impairment test. The financial assets
unimpaired in the separate testing are tested for
impairment in the portfolios of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics. The financial assets
impaired in the separate testing are not tested for
impairment in the portfolios of receivables with
similar credit risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)

2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) (IERA A - LAARKESIR

IV. Main accounting policies and accounting

estimates (continued)
4. Receivables (continued)

(2) Methods of provision for bad debts (continued)

)

C ERETTEEMNS R (&)

4~ YRR ()

(2) ERREERIERE(E)

@ The basis for recognizing receivables under credit Q@ ZERRERKRESTIREREHFN
risk and portfolio of provision for bad debts, methods JEWFRIE M ERIE « BERER
of provision for bad debts SHRAA

A. The basis for recognizing portfolios of credit risk A. ERRREFEAES NIEE KIE
characteristics

For the receivables with individually insignificant
amount and the individually significant receivables
without impairment in the separate testing, the
Company groups the financial assets by the similarity
and relevance of credit risk characteristics. The
credit risk is usually indicative of the debtors’ ability
to repay all amounts due in accordance with the
terms of contract of such assets and is relevant to
the estimated future cash flow of assets that are
checked.

The basis for recognizing different portfolios:

ARRHEBFSBEIEAUAR D
REANEBIFAFERELERED
FEMFIE @ R A RREEAE
PEFBEE S eMEEETD
Mo B ERRRBERRER
ANERBZEEENG RIEREE
FrBEE B EMmEE ) - I B B
BEEEMARFIE S RERER
7 -

TRIAEA HREE R -

Items

Basis for recognizing different portfolios

HH

‘EASHKE

Aging schedule

The current accounts, transactions,
as well as reserve fund, deposit,

Except the current accounts, transactions, as well
as reserve fund, deposit, bonds from related parties
BREAEE SRR - REARREEAS - #e - RER
The current accounts, transactions, as well as reserve fund,
deposit, bonds from related parties

264

bonds from related parties
RARE T 2R RHERF K
HRE  He  RKES

AR 77 A SRR

RBERFEERE - #7E  RES

B. The methods of provision for bad debts recognized
by portfolios of credit risk characteristics

Where impairment test is implemented by portfolios,
the amount of bad debts reserve is recognized
based on the structure of portfolios of receivables,
similar credit risk characteristics (the debtor’s ability
to repay under the terms of contract), historical loss
experience, and assessment of existing losses in
the current economic conditions and portfolios of
receivables.

B. RIFEMAER
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)

2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

IV. Main accounting policies and accounting EEEFTEORAMG A (E)

estimates (continued)

4. Receivables (continued) 4 ERFIE(E)
(2) Methods of provision for bad debts (continued) Q) AR EHEmIGTIES % (&)

@ (continued) @ (&)

B. (continued) B. (&)
The methods of provision for bad debts of different TEAETIREREENTIRA
portfolios: o
Items Provision methods
ER FREE
Aging schedule Analysis of aging schedule
AR AR D ATE
The current accounts, transactions, Separate testing

as well as reserve fund, deposit, EBEIE A

bonds from related parties
BRSO RBERK K
HRE  He  RKES

a. The joint provision methods using analysis of aging a. AEF  KAKRKIIETRE

schedule for provision for bad debts IREENAEGTIRA A

Provision Other provision

rate (%). rate (%).

Of receivables  Of receivables

AR AR HitnEWETR

Aging schedule BR#R b A5 (%) E 45l (%)

Less than one year 1FLA(E1E - TR)

(including one year, the same below) 6 6
1-2 years 1-24F 10 10
2-3 years 2-3F 20 20
3-4 years 3-44F 50 50
4-5 years 4-54F 80 80
More than five years 5% A 100 100
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 ~ 2009 * 2010F Z I I RR M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHE - AARESR)

IV. Main accounting policies and accounting

266

estimates (continued)
4. Receivables (continued)

(2) Methods of provision for bad debts (continued)

@ Individually significant receivables with individual
provision for bad debts

The Company carries out separate impairment test
for the individually significant receivables with the
following characteristics. Where impairment is shown
by objective evidence, the impairment is recognized
and provision for bad debts established by the
balance that the future cash flow value is less than
the carrying value.

(3) Reversing provision for bad debts

If there is objective evidence that the value of receivables
has been restored, which has been confirmed to
be objectively relevant to the post-loss matters, the
previously recognized impairment is reversed and is
included in the current profits and losses. However, the
reversed carrying value does not exceed the amortized
cost of receivables on the reversal day under no
provision for impairment.

5. Fixed assets

(1) Recognizing criteria of fixed assets

Fixed assets refer to the tangible assets that are held
for the sake of producing commodities, rendering labor
service, renting or business management, and of which
the useful life is in excess of one fiscal year.
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(2) ERREERIERE(E)
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 ~ 2009 * 2010F Z I I RR M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHE - AARESR)

IV. Main accounting policies and accounting
estimates (continued)

5. Fixed assets (continued)

&

3

Impairment method of fixed assets

Fixed assets are initially measured by the costs and
the impact of expected abandoning costs. From
the following month after the fixed assets become

C ERETTEEMNS R (&)

5 BIEEE (&)

@

KBEEEEMTE L

BEEERKALEEHEAREER
AR EETIIAE - BEBE
B FEE A EAAERIR ARE - R

expectedly usable, straight-line impairment is used for BERELEEFERSHRGTIRETT
impairment in the service life. The service life, expected E -ZBETEENCASS  Hit
net salvage value and annual impairment rates of fixed SEEREMERERNT ¢
assets are as follows:
Annual
Depreciable Salvage Impairment
life value rate rate
Categories k=] EFRE REXE FINEER
(%) (%)
Houses and buildings =EENREEY 20 yearst 3 4.85
Machinery and equipment SR 10 years4F 3 9.70
Transport equipment FE R 6 yearstF 3 16.17
Electronic equipment BFH 5 yearstF 3 19.40
“Expected net salvage value” refers to the expected TFHEREREREEEEERE
amount that the Company may obtain from the current FAEa B MR M S 4R T R A
disposal of fixed assets after deducting the expected TEEGRRE - ARRBRINZIAEER
disposal expenses at the expiration of its expected useful EFESHIIRETEEERZNS
life. e
Impairment testing of fixed assets and methods of (3) B & ZE A9 6018 H 37 772 K Bl 1 2 f

provision for impairment

For the impairment test of fixed assets and methods of
provision for impairment, see Note 4 and 7. Impairment
of non-current non-financial assets.
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

V.

268

Main accounting policies and accounting
estimates (continued)

5. Fixed assets (continued)
(4) Others

If the economic benefits associated with the fixed
assets are likely to flow in and the cost can be reliably
measured, the subsequent expenditures related to fixed
assets are included in the cost of fixed assets, and
the recognition of carrying value of the replaced part
is stopped. Other subsequent expenditure incurred is
included in the current profits and losses.

The income from disposal by selling, transferring,
scrapping or destroying fixed assets is included in the
current profits and losses after the carrying value and
related taxes are deducted.

The Company shall at least have reviewed the service
life of fixed assets, expected net salvage value, and
impairment method. Any changes shall be treated as
changes in accounting estimate.

6. Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is recognized as the
actual project expenditure, including the project expenses
during the construction period, the capital loan costs before
the project becomes usable as intended, and other related
costs. After becoming usable as intended, the construction
in progress is transferred into fixed assets.

For the detailed impairment test and methods of provision
for impairments of construction in progress, see Note 4 and
7. Impairment of non-current non-financial assets.
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)

2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

IV. Main accounting policies and accounting
estimates (continued)

7.

Impairment of non-current non-financial assets

For fixed assets and construction in progress, the Company
recognizes whether there are indications of impairment
on the date of balance sheet. When there are indications
of impairment, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount for impairment test.

Where the impairment test indicates that the asset’s
recoverable amount is less than its carrying value, the
difference is provided for provision for impairment and
is included in the impairment losses. The fair value of
recoverable amount of assets shall minus the higher one
between the post-disposal net amount and the expected
current value of future cash flows of assets. The fair value
of assets is recognized based on the sale agreement price
in fair trade; if there is not a sale agreement but an active
market of assets, the fair value is recognized in accordance
with the bid price of the buyer of assets; if there is not either
a sale agreement or an active market of assets, the fair value
of assets is estimated on the basis of acquirable optimal
information. The disposal expenses shall include the asset-
related legal fees, relevant taxes, handling charges, as well as
the direct expenses for bringing the assets into a marketable
state. The current value of expected future cash flow of
an asset shall be recognized by the discounted cash with
an appropriate discount rate, on the basis of the expected
future cash flow generated during the continuous use or
final disposal of an asset. The provision for impairment of
assets is recognized and confirmed based on an individual
asset. Where it is difficult to estimate the recoverable
amount of individual assets, the asset portfolio to which the
asset belongs is used to recognize the recoverable amount
of asset portfolio. An asset portfolio is the smallest asset
portfolio that is able to independently generate cash inflows.

Once impairment of assets is confirmed, the value of assets
that shall not be reversed in the subsequent period can be
partly recovered.
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IV. Main accounting policies and accounting
estimates (continued)

270

8. Income

(1)

&

Income from commodity sales

The revenue from selling goods may be recognized
when the following conditions are met: The significant
risks and rewards of ownership of goods have been
transferred into the buyer; the Company retains neither
continuous management right that usually keeps relation
with the ownership nor effective control over the sold
goods; the relevant amount of revenue can be measured
in a reliable way; the relevant economic benefits may
flow into the Company; and the relevant costs incurred
or to be incurred can be measured in a reliable way.

Providing labor services

If the Company can, on the date of the balance
sheet, reliably estimate the outcome of a transaction
concerning the labor services it provides, it shall
recognize the revenue from providing services
employing the percentage-of-completion method. The
completed transaction of labor services is recognized by
the proportion of the labor services provided against the
total labor services to be provided.

The outcome of a transaction concerning the providing
of labor services can be measured in a reliable way,
means that the following conditions shall be met
simultaneously: @ The amount of revenues can be
measured in a reliable way; @ The relevant economic
benefits are likely to flow into the Company; @ The
schedule of completion under the transaction can be
confirmed in a reliable way; and @ The costs incurred or
to be incurred in the transaction can be measured in a
reliable way.

If the Company can not measure the result of a
transaction concerning the providing of labor services
in a reliable way, the revenue from the providing of
labor services shall be recognized in accordance with
the amount of the cost of labor services incurred and
expected to be compensated, and the cost of labor
services incurred shall be treated as the current costs.
The cost of labor services incurred and expected to be
compensated shall not be recognized as revenue.
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2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)
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IV. Main accounting policies and accounting

estimates (continued)

9. Government grants

A government grant refers to the monetary or non-monetary
assets obtained by the Company from the government,
but excluding the capital invested by the government
as the owner of the Company. Government grants are
classified into the government grants related to assets and
government grants related to income.

If a government grant is a monetary asset, it shall be
measured on the basis of the received or receivable
amount. If a government grant is a non-monetary asset, it
shall be measured at its fair value. If it is unable to obtain
its fair value reliably, it shall be measured at its nominated
amount. The government grants measured at their nominal
amounts shall be directly recorded in the current profits and
losses.

The government grants related to assets shall be recognized
as deferred income and shall be distributed within the useful
lives of the relevant assets and shall be recorded in the
current profits and losses. The government grants related
to the proceeds shall be treated according to the following
circumstances, respectively: Those used for compensating
the relevant future expenses or losses of the Company
shall be recognized as deferred income and shall, during
the period when the relevant expenses are recognized,
recorded in the current profits and losses; or those used
for compensating the relevant expenses or losses that have
been incurred to the Company shall be directly recorded in
the current profits and losses.

If it is necessary to refund any government grant which
has been recognized, it shall be treated according to the
following circumstances, respectively: If there is any deferred
income related to it, it shall offset against the carrying
balance of the deferred income, but the excessive part shall
be recorded in the current profits and losses; if there is no
deferred income related to the government grant, it shall be
directly recorded in the current profits and losses.
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C ERETTEEMNS R (&)

IV. Main accounting policies and accounting
estimates (continued)

10 B T 57 M

10. Employee compensation

During the accounting period of an employee’ providing
services to the Company, the Company shall recognize the
compensation payable as liabilities.

The Company has been covered by the employee social
security system established by the government agencies as
required, including the basic endowment insurance, medical
insurance, housing provident funds, and other social
security systems. The corresponding expenditure incurred
shall be included in the cost of related assets or the profits
or losses.

If the Company cancels the labor relationship with any
employee prior to the expiration of the relevant labor
contract or brings forward any compensation proposal
for the purpose of encouraging the employee to accept a
layoff, and the following conditions are met concurrently, the
Company shall recognize the expected liabilities incurred
due to the compensation for the cancellation of the labor
relationship with the employee, and shall simultaneously
record them into the profit or loss for the current period:
Where the Company has formulated a formal plan on the
cancellation of labor relationship or has brought forward a
proposal on voluntary layoff and will execute it soon; the
Company is unable to unilaterally withdraw the plan on the
cancellation of labor relationship or the layoff proposal.

11. The changes in major accounting policies, accounting
estimates

No changes in accounting policies and accounting estimates
occurred in the Company during this reporting period.

12. Correction of previous accounting errors

No significant previous accounting errors occurred in the
Company during this reporting period.
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2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)
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IV. Main accounting policies and accounting

estimates (continued)

13. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

In the process of applying accounting policies, as a result
of the inherent uncertainties of business activities, the
Company is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions of the carrying value of report items that can
not be accurately measured. The judgments, estimates
and assumptions, which affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of balance
sheet, are made based on past historical experience of
the management of the Company as well as other relevant
factors. However, the results of estimated uncertainty may
result in major adjustments to the assets or liabilities that

may be affected in the future.

The Company regularly reviews the aforementioned
judgments, estimates and assumptions on the basis of
going concemn. Where the changes in accounting estimates
only affect the current period, the effects are recognized
in the period in which changes occur; where the changes
affect the current and future periods, the effects are

recognized in the current and future periods.

The aspects on which the Company is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions of the amount of
financial statement items on the date of balance sheet are as

follows:

(1) Provision for bad debts

The Company checks the bad debt losses under the
allowance method pursuant to the accounting policies
of the receivables. Impairment of receivables is based
on estimating the recoverability of receivables. The
identification of impairment of trade receivables requires
the management’s judgments and estimates. The
difference between the actual results and the original
estimate would affect the carrying value of receivables
as well as the provision or reversal of receivables for bad
debts in the period in which the estimate is changed.

(2) Depreciation and amortization

While taking the salvage value of investment real
estate, fixed assets and intangible assets into account,
the Company adopts the straight-line method for
depreciation and amortization in their service life. The
Company regularly reviews the service life to recognize
the expenses of depreciation and amortization in each
reporting period. The service life is identified based
on the Company’s historical experiences of similar
assets combined with the expected technological
updating. Where the previous estimate undergoes
significant changes, adjustments would be made to the
depreciation and amortization expenses in the future.
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V. Taxes

VL.

274

1.

Main taxes and tax rates

F o BiE

1 TEHERBE

Taxes

BiE

Specific tax rates

ARHEER

Business tax

Calculated and levied by 5% of the taxable turnover

EEREM RIET & RIS %t S T -

Urban maintenance and construction tax Calculated and levied by 7% of the circulation tax actually paid

S T A R R A RERBMNERER AT %14 o

Education surcharge Calculated and levied by 3% of the circulation tax actually paid

HE B M RERBMEIRERAI3%T4Y °

Local education surcharge Calculated and levied by 1% of the circulation tax actually paid

75205 Bt REBRGRERE 1 %t o

Property tax Calculated and levied according to the rate of 1.2% upon the
deduction of 30% of the original value of the property

FER BARIBEEREMRM30%E - :RER1.2%80 L KK

Land use tax RMB3 per square meter

T E R 37t/ K

Others 2 H{hFeA

During the reporting period, the Company receives full
financial funding without the need to calculate and pay

enterprise income tax.

ARAREPNEREXV R =ERE
R IAHBEBEERAEH -

Notes to the financial statements

In the following notes (including the notes to the main items of
the Company’s financial statements), unless otherwise noted,
“the beginning of the year” means January 1, 2010 and “the
end of the year” means December 31, 2010.

1. Monetary funds

NBBHRREREE
MTEREE (S ARMBERREEEAE

) BRIERFRIFE H - FH4E2010F1 A1H -
FRFE2010F12A318 -

1-E8ES

Amount at the end of the year

Amount at the beginning of the year

FRE FHE
Foreign Foreign

currency Discount Amountof currency Discount Amount of

amount rate RMB amount rate RMB

Items HE SR TEE ARESE HNELE wHEE AR%BEHE
Cashonhand: EBFHRSE :

RMB AREE 0 0 2,043.16 0 0 1,3138.60
Bank deposits:  $R1T1F2X :

RMB AREE 0 0 745,348.23 0 0 2,243,785.37

Total A&t 0 0 747,391.39 0 0 2,245,098.97
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VL.

Notes to the financial statements

N MBHmREREE(E)

(continued)

2. Other receivables

(1) Other receivables listed by types

2 - EAELK

(1) Efb kB R

Amount at the end of the year

FRE
Carrying balance Provision for bad debts
IRE&REE BIREE
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
Types B ¢ ] &5 el
(%) (%)
Other receivables with BIHeHEEAN
individually insignificant BIRETIRER
amount of individual provision 4 E i
for bad debts MR 0 0 0 0
Other receivables of REAFHRER
provision for bad debts R EAD
by portfolio MR 0 0 0 0
Aging schedule RER 0 0 0 0
The current accounts, YRR S e
receivables of financial FEUR BT B A
subsidies, as well as B MERE
reserve fund, deposit, He - RES
bonds from related parties 73,230,945.96 99.86 0 0
Subtotal HE /N5t 73,230,945.96 99.86 0 0
Other receivables with BIESHEHEIEKR
individually insignificant BEBFHRER
amount of individual provision — #E#H)E A
for bad debts UK 100,000.00 0.14 100,000.00 100.00
Total o 73,330,945.96 100.00 100,000.00 0.14
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VL.
(continued)

2. Other receivables (continued)

Notes to the financial statements

(1) Other receivables listed by types (continued)

N MBHmREREE(E)

2~ EfAELK ()

(1) BB LIELRZT (&)

Amount at the beginning of the year

FOH
Carrying balance Provision for bad debts
IRERREE BIREE
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
Types B k2.0 EL I k-] L4l
(%) (%)
Other receivables with BEIESHEEAL
individually insignificant BIEAHRRER
amount of individual provision — 2EFSH)E A
for bad debts MR 0 0 0 0
Other receivables of REAFHRER
provision for bad debts BRI E A
by portfolio FEUFR 0 0 0 0
Aging schedule RER 0 0 0 0
The current accounts, AR 7 1 AR
transactions, as well as RPERK
reserve fund, deposit, RiERS
bonds from related parties e RES 139,703.00 100 0 0
Subtotal Aa/et 139,703.00 100 0 0
Other receivables with BIRGEHEIEKN
individually insignificant BEBFHRER
amount of individual provision — 2EfERYE
for bad debts FEU R 0 0 0 0
Total aEr 139,703.00 100 0 0

(2) Other receivables listed by aging schedule

@) AR AR bS]

Amount at the end

Amount at the beginning

of the year of the year
FREY FIH

Amount Proportion Amount Proportion

Items HE k-] R 2| el
(%) (%)

Within 1 year 1FELAR 73,230,945.96 99.86 24,751.00 17.72
110 2 years 15224 0 0 12,000.00 8.59
2 to 3 years 2&E3F 0 0 0 0
More than 3 years 3FEL L 100,000.00 0.14 102,952.00 73.69
Total At 73,330,945.96 100.00 139,703.00 100.00
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VI. Notes to the financial statements X BEHREBEETE(E)
(continued)

2. Other receivables (continued) 2 HtEWFR (])
(3) Provision situation of provision for bad debts (3) EEREFERIFTIE ISR
@ Other receivables with individually insignificant O FREBRSEHETIEANEEIRG
amount of individual provision for bad debts at the TR AR AR ) B Ath FE LKL

end of the year

Carrying Provision  Provision for Provision
Other receivables balance rate bad debts grounds
HtERRAR FRERARE sHR LI HREME sHREH
(%)
Jieming Company’s 100,000.00 100 100,000.00 Written off by
current accounts Jieming Company
RRA R B R R 5K RN RE
Total 100,000.00 100,000.00
At
A
Note: Of other receivables from Jieming Company, the single 0 AARERIRARA B H MK
amount is not more than RMB1 million, whereas the W BIESFEABIBI008TT 8
customer canceled its business registration in 2010. It HRZEF2010FNE FHIE
is essentially unable to recover the funds, which shall be Eid o RECEE EEZKRD
provided as provision for bad debts. £100% T HRIBAR A -

(4) The shareholders holding 5% and more of the voting (4) 7RI & B A it JEW X 155 22 715%
shares of the Company in other receivables in the (556%)A_ERARER 7 HII R E 7
reporting period =D

Amount at the end Amount at the beginning
of the year of the year
FREY FOH
Amount of Amount of
provision for provision for
Amount bad debts Amount bad debts
Organizations BuE#E S5 SRR ] STZEER
Dalian Deta Holdings KEERERAR AT
Co., Ltd. 73,219,945.96 0 0 0
Total = 73,219,945.96 0 0 0
Note: The Company shall receive RMB73,219,945.96 from Dalian T RRERERKEERERARAR
Deta Holdings Co., Ltd., which is the payment for technology 73,219,945.967T + AANEERZERE
upgrade project of No. 2 Sewage Treatment Plant of Dalian RARREDRSKERE B
Deta Holding Co., Ltd. BIBCGEEB K ©
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VI. Notes to the financial statements X BEHREBEETE(E)

(continued)
2. Other receivables (continued) 2 HtEWFR (])
(5) The top five organizations of other receivables (5) Bt WM &R A BB
Proportion
Relationship with Fixed number of the total
Organizations the Company Amount of years receivables
1 E A R
BuEE RN |LER Ex] FR HBEEM LA
(%)
Dalian Detai Holdings Co., Ltd.  Parent company 73,219,945.96 Within 1 year 99.849
NEEFERBR AR [S¥N=] 1 AR
Chen Dan 3,000.00 Within 1 year 0.004
BRF 1FE AR
Xu Xinzhen 8,000.00 Within 1 year 0.011
TRITER 1R
Jieming Company 100,000.00 More than 5 years 0.136
A YNG] 5F A E
Total 73,330,945.96 100.00
Akt
(6) Receivables from related parties (6) FEYETR; 7 BR A IE A
For the details, see Note VII. 6 Receivables from related FERMIREN - 6FgHE R RIE -
parties.
3. Fixed assets 3 -BEEEE
(1) Fixed assets (1) BIEEEIGR
Amount at the Amount
beginning Increase Decrease at the end
ltems of the year this year this year of the year
1R EHH REEM KEHD ERY
. Total carrying valu - RERERG 160,930,986.78 0  53923577.42  107,007,400.36
Including houses and buildings 2 FEREEY 91,483,471.03 0 3464391392  56,839,557.11
Machinery and equipment WL 62,792,478.48 0  17,606,08450  45,186,393.98
Means of transport BHTA 6,308,084.27 0 1,326,626.00 4,981,458.27
Office equipment NS 346,953.00 0 346,953.00 0
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VI. Notes to the financial statements X BEHREBEETE(E)

(continued)
3. Fixed assets (continued) 3 - EEEEE)
(1) Fixed assets (continued) (1) BEEEEEL(E)
Amount at the Amount
beginning New addition Provision Decrease at the end
ltems of the year this year this year this year of the year
1BE 98 REHE REHR KERD EXY
I Accumulated depreciation - ZihE

Total accumulated depreciation ZHNEARE 129,571,883.92 3,478,991.27 3,478,991.27 49,049,779.45 84,001,095.74
Including - houses and buildings Eh: BRREEY 6285200765 3,334,498.08 3,334,498.08 30,349,384.82 36,837,340.91
Machinery and equipment S 60,900,477.31 7,341.75 734775 17,077,02300  43,830,802.06
Means of transport ERTA 5,482,634.55 137,145.44 137,145.44 1,286,827.22 4.332,952.77
Office equipment N 336,044.41 0 0 336,544.41 0
Il Total net camying value = EEFEA 31,359,102.86 0 0 0 2300631362
Including  houses and buildings £ EERESEN 28,631,243.38 0 0 0 21,002,216.20
Machinery and equipment BELE 1,892,001.17 0 0 0 1,355,591.92
Means of transport EHTA 825,449.72 0 0 0 648,506.50
Offie equipment HogE 1040859 0 0 0 0
V. Total provision for impairment M. REEEAT 0 0 0 0 0
Including - houses and buildings 2 : BEREEN 0 0 0 0 0
Machinery and equipment BERE 0 0 0 0 0
Means of transport ERTR 0 0 0 0 0
Office equipment BARE 0 0 0 0 0
V. Total carring value I BEEBAH 31,359,102.86 0 0 0 23,006,31362
Including houses and buloings Ev RERESEY 28,631,438 0 0 0 2100221620
Machinery and equipment WED 1,892,001.17 0 0 0 1,395,591.92
Means of transport ERTR 825,449.72 0 0 0 648,500.50
Office equipment WogE 10408.59 0 0 0 0

Note: This year’s depreciation is RMB3,478,991.27. No i AFIETARS478991.27TT o AF &

construction in progress was transferred into fixed assets AERIREARTEENER
this year.
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VL.

280

Notes to the financial statements

(continued)

3. Fixed assets (continued)

(2) Fixed assets without certificates of title

3 BEEE(H)

Q) FMRE#EE

N MBHmREREE(E)

HIEIEEEIET

Causes of lack of

Expected time
of availability
of certificate

Items certificates of title of title Carrying value
ST EERE

1HH AMEEEIRENRER BE MR IREEE

Houses and buildings In the process 2012

P E K2 EY) EEHHE 20124 21,002,216.20

Total

At 21,002,216.20

Note: e

@ The Company was formerly a public institution. All its houses O RARBEEEMN  2HEENREED
and buildings which were constructed with the money of the HBEBEREERE  RAEEER - &
government can be used at no cost. As of December 31, 2010, F2010%12A318 » ARKFEHEERE
the Company did not hold the ownership certificate of real estate EREEYHREBFER -
and buildings.

@ On March 3, 2010, with the approval of Dalian Economic and @ 2010%3HA3H ' KAEM LB KMHA
Technological Development Zone Management Committee, ZEEEZESHE  ARNEARF
the parent company of Dalian Deta Holdings Co., Ltd. sold all NEEFRERBER AR BBRNEMNE
assets and liabilities of No. 1 Sewage Treatment Plant affiiated RS - BRETB5KERE—mK
to it through Dalian Municipal Assets and Equity Exchange. MNEHEEARBRLE - #E20105F12
As of December 31, 2010, the Company had handed the A31H ' RAE T EKBEBIHNEE
assets over to the acquirer. The related income from the sale REIE HEEEMNHEBERAR
of assets was disposed of by the parent company of Dalian NRAREEFERERABRE ° &
Deta Holdings Co., Ltd. The Company did the processing BAEMSMNETBERD T ZENCER
of capital reduction in accordance with the requirements of ZHEBEK AR KEE —HMETEEE
the Notice on Verifying and Eliminating the Fixed Assets of Ay AN ) (K& BF B 2% 20111134 5% X )
No. 1 Sewage Treatment Plant of the Drainage Company FEX: AREEMRERE - zit
(Da Jin Cai Guo Fa [2011] No. 134) issued by the Finance & E IR R (3 34,962,564.59 7T ¢ 2
Bureau of Dalian Jinzhou District. The original carrying value =t 4 & 33,896,753.38 7T ¢ fR M ¥ H
of the assets was RMB34,962,564.59 while the accumulated 1,065,811.217T °
depreciation is RMB33,896,753.38, so the net carrying value is
RMB1,065,811.21.

® The Company applied for scrapping a number of fixed @ RAAHHRFERE—HETEE ' &
assets in this period, of which the original carrying value #t & E IR | JR 8 18,961,012.83 7T °
is RMB18,961,012.83, the accumulated depreciation K57 & 15,153,026.07 7T © BREFE

is RMB15,153,026.07, and the net carrying value is
RMB3,807,986.76. As of December 31, 2010, the Company
had finished the book records.
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)

2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

VI. Notes to the financial statements

(continued)

4. Construction in progress

(1) Basic situation of construction in progress

N MBHmREREE(E)

4 - HETRE

(1) FERTERLKIEL

Amount at the end of the year

Amount at the beginning of the year

XY FO¥

Provision Provision
Carrying for Carrying Carrying for Carrying
balance  impairment value balance  impairment value

Items EH R HB%ERE REEE REHE HEER REEE
Technology upgrade  J37KEEIE

project of No. 2 Z R

Sewage Treatment gz

Plant R 36,780,054.04 0 36,780,054.04 0 0 0
Total At 36,780,054.04 0 36,780,054.04 0 0 0

(2) Major changes in projects under construction

Q) EAEZETFIEIEHEZE)E R

Amount
Amount of transfer Amount
Budget atthe Increase to fixed Other atthe
(RMB10 beginning amount assets decrease end of
thousand) of the year this year this year amount the year
FEEA
Project names IRER EEH(ER) 08 AEENE  ETEEH  HitHIH FRY
Technology upgrade Y7k
project of No. 2 Z IR
Sewage Treatment F s
Plant JHH 14,000.00 0 36,780,054.04 0 0 36,780,054.04
Total A& 0 0 36,780,054.04 0 0 36,780,054.04
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)

2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

VI. Notes to the financial statements

(continued)
4. Construction in progress (continued)

(1) Basic situation of construction in progress

.
N

4 - EETR(R)

M mRAR EE(R)

(1) FERTERLKIEL

Of which: Percentage
Accumulated interest Interest of project
amount of capitalization capitalization ~ investment Progress
interest amount rate this of the of the Funding
capitalization this year year (%)  budget (%) project sources
FEERE  Hf: £E REFE  IBRAER
Project names IREH R oW MBERLEE ER(LE%) EHLHI(%) IREE EeRR
Technology upgrade 57K Loans from
project of No. 2 bl 2531 financial
Sewage Treatment F s In construction institutions
Plant L= 2,250,600.00  2,250,600.00 5.94 26.27 EE SREEER
Total At 2,250,600.00  2,250,600.00
5. Payables to employees 5~ FE{FHR T B
Amount at the Amount
beginning Increase Decrease at the end
of the year this year this year of the year
ltems HH FNH AER KERD XY
. Wages, bonuses, allowances and — I% %% =B
subsidies AfgEh 0 574873512  5748,735.12 0
Il Employee services and benefits — BIgENZ 0 667,245.50 667,245.50 0
Il Social insurance premiums = HeRkE 0 227434562 227434562 0
Of which: (1) Medical insurance 21, BERR 0 486,306.95 486,306.95 0
(2) Old-age insurance and 2. BERBR
other insurance Ethirk 0 178303867  1788,038.67 0
V. Housing provident funds me FEAES 0 081,137.77 981,137.77 0
V. Trade union funds and employee I ITEREFNBT
education expenses HELE 0 64,629.85 64,629.85 0
Total L 0 97360938  9,736,093.86 0
Note: No payables to employees are in arrears. 7 ENBISFMTEBRNERMEENRE -
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

VI. Notes to the financial statements X BEHREBEETE(E)
(continued)

6. Other payables 6 - HipE(IR
(1) Details of other payables (1) BT BH4157
Amount
Amount at the
at the end beginning
of the year of the year
Iltems HH FREY FNE
Within 1 year 1E R 350,248.94 902,602.43
1to 2 years 1824 - -
2 to 3 years 2FE3F - 324,821.70
More than 3 years 3FLAE 9,465.00 -
Total A&t 359,713.94  1,227,424.13
(2) The Company has no payables to the shareholders or ©2) RRa|EEMNFEARS%(E5%) A
related parties holding 5% and more of voting shares of L RIORRERR 1 B IR BR B ok RS T O
the Company. SRIA ©
(3) Instructions of other significant payables with the aging (3) BRESHE B 1F BRI X EER M fET S IEX
schedule of over one year ViofA
To be paid
Reasons for after the date
Creditor names Amount outstanding obligation of statements?
BREASE 8 KEENRE HROBREHE
Chengde Tonghua Environmental 1,600.00 Before the settlement period No
Equipment Company RENGEEH] o
AEEBIRIR RN A
Dalian Keidel Valve Co., Ltd. 1,385.00  Before the settlement period No
NEEREPIBR AR RENGEEH] Ea
Dalian Yincheng Heavy Machinery 4,480.00 Before the settlement period No
AR S A AR RENGEEH Ea
Dalian Taiginte Company 2,000.00  Before the settlement period No
NERHEFRA] REEEH o
Total 9,465.00
At
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2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) (FRIEBH A + LLARKEHIR)

VL.

284

Notes to
(continued)

the financial statements

7. Long-term loans

(1) Classification of long-term loans

N MBHmREREE(E)

7 RAER

(1) EEIE#H 74

@ Classification of long-term loans O REERHE

Amount

Amount at the

at the end beginning

of the year of the year

ltems EH FRE FNE

Guaranteed and pledged loans IRBREHRES 110,000,000.00 0

Total = 110,000,000.00 0
Note: In August 2010, the Company signed a long-term loan £ 2010%F8A ' ARIHEEERITA

contract with Dalian Branch of Industrial Bank (Contract
No.: Xing Yin Lian 2010 Loan Zi No: C003), the term
of loan of which starts from August 18, 2010 to June
20, 2020. The total amount is RMB250 million, used
specifically for the technology upgrade project of the
Company’s No: 2 Drainage Plant. While the parent
company of Deta Company provides full assurance,
the loan is pledged by the subsidies usufruct under the
Framework Agreement on the Financial Subsidies for
the New Sewage Treatment Project of the Drainage
Company. As of December 31, 2010, the Company had
actually withdrawn RMB110 million from the loans.
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

VI. Notes to the financial statements

(continued)

7. Long-term loans (continued)

(1) Classification of long-term loans (continued)

@ The top five long-term loans with the largest balance

7 REBERER)

N MBHmREREE(E)

(1) REIEH7HE (&)

Q@ FEIREHRBABRK

Amount at the end Amount at the beginning
of the year of the year
EXY 08
Foreign Local Foreign Local
Lending Start Expiration  Interest currency currency currency currency
organizations date date rate (%) Currency amount amount amount amount
EHEN BERERA  HRLLR AR  BE HELHE rEEH NELE rHEH
Dalian Branch of 2010-8-19  20206-20 594 RMB 0 110,000,000.00 0 0
Indusirial Bank Co., Ltd. ARE
BRRTROAR
RAAEAT
Total 0 110,000,000.00 0 0
4
8. Paid-in capital 8 BEER
Amount
at the Amount
beginning Increase Decrease at the end Shareholding
of the year this year this year of the year rate
Investors REEEE FAH RELM RERD ERE BREH
Dalian Detai Holdings REERER
Co., Ltd. BRAA 26,462,285.60 0 22,024,251.44  4,438,034.16 95.00%
Dalian Economic and RELER Al
Technological Development  B%[& & %k
Zone Running Water NG
Company 1,392,751.87 0 1,159,171.12 233,580.75 5.00%
Total e 27,855,037.47 0 23,183,422.56 4,671,614.91 100.00
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VL.

286

Notes to the financial statements

N MBHmREREE(E)

(continued)
8. Paid-in capital (continued) 8 BEWEAR(H)

Note: On March 3, 2010, with the approval of Dalian Economic and 5T 201093 A3H @ EAEMLERITF%R
Technological Development Zone Management Committee, BEZEeE RN ARIKEESR
the parent company of Dalian Deta Holdings Co., Ltd. sold all AR A FTBRBAETMERERZ ST
assets and liabilities of First Sewage Treatment Plant affiliated ARATEESKEE-—HRHNE2HEEAEFED
to it through Dalian Municipal Assets and Equity Exchange. As £ - HZE2010F12A31H * ARIE e E
of December 31, 2010, the Company had handed the assets WEATNEEXEIE  HEZEERRE
over to the acquirer. The related income from the sale of asset MAEBRABS R KBERERERA
and liabilities was disposed of by the parent company of Dalian AIRE - MBAEME MR KRB TR
Deta Holdings Co., Ltd. The Company did the processing of (AN BEHIK AR SKEIE—ME T B E
capital reduction in accordance with the requirements of the KA (KNS MBI 201113457 ) R 2
Notice on Verifying and Eliminating the Fixed Assets of First Sk ARBREMRERRE  RAOBWER
Sewage Treatment Plant of the Drainage Company (Da Jin 23,183,422.567T °
Cai Guo Fa [2011] No. 134) issued by the Finance Bureau of
Dalian Jinzhou District, with a reduction of paid-up capital of
RMB23,183,422.56.

9. Capital reserve 9 ERNTE
Amount
at the Amount
beginning Increase Decrease at the end
of the year this year this year of the year
ltems HH 9% REE REFHD FRY

Capital premium BB 134,576,372.19 0 1177837713  122,797,995.06

Of which: Capital from investors ~ H /- REERANEAR  134,576,372.19 0  11,778,377.13  122,797,995.06

Total E&r 134,576,372.19 0 11,778,377.13  122,797,995.06

Note: On March 3, 2010, with the approval of Dalian Economic and i 201043A3H ' KREMEERMHAEE

Technological Development Zone Management Committee,
the parent company of Dalian Deta Holdings Co., Ltd. sold all
assets and liabilities of First Sewage Treatment Plant affiliated to
it through Dalian Municipal Assets and Equity Exchange. As of
December 31, 2010, the Company had handed the assets over
to the acquirer. The related income from the sale of asset and
liabilities was disposed of by the parent company of Dalian Deta
Holdings Co., Ltd. The Company did the processing of capital
reduction in accordance with the requirements of the Notice
on Verifying and Eliminating the Fixed Assets of First Sewage
Treatment Plant of the Drainage Company (Da Jin Cai Guo Fa
[2011] No. 134) issued by the Finance Bureau of Dalian Jinzhou
District, with a reduction of capital reserve of RMB11,778,377.13.

BEZEeHE  RARNFRARKEES
ERERARBBRNEMEEISA - #
AR TESKEE—BRNENEEEELR
& - HE2010F12A31 8 * ARIE e
WETMEERETIF - HERAERE
AR A B AR KEERERAERA
FRE - HBAEDSMNES BB TEN
CRARIZEHIR R RSKEE — R E T EE
HBAN(KE MBI 201113457 30 R 2
ko ARREMRERE  ROBEARTE
11,778,377.137C °
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 ~ 2009 * 2010F Z I I RR M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) (FRIEBH A + LLARKEHIR)

VL.

Notes to the financial statements
(continued)

10. Undistributed profits

(1) Changes in undistributed profits

N MBHmREREE(E)

10+ R7 EF

(1) KA EFEZEER

Withdrawal or

and Technological Development Zone Management
Committee, the parent company of Dalian Deta Holdings
Co., Ltd. sold all assets and liabilities of First Sewage
Treatment Plant affiliated to it through Dalian Municipal
Assets and Equity Exchange. As of December 31, 2010,
the Company had handed the assets over to the acquirer.
The related income from the sale of asset and liabilities was
disposed of by the parent company of Dalian Deta Holdings
Co., Ltd. The Company did the processing of capital
reduction in accordance with the requirements of the Notice
on Verifying and Eliminating the Fixed Assets of First Sewage
Treatment Plant of the Drainage Company (Da Jin Cai Guo
Fa [2011] No. 134) issued by the Finance Bureau of Dalian
Jinzhou District, with an increase of undistributed profit of
RMB32,962,661.48 at the beginning of 2010.

Amount Amount distribution
this year last year rate
ltems HE KEH LFEY  RERSELLS
Undistributed profit at the FHNARDEFIE
beginning of the year (129,914,928.96)  (125,509,853.77) 0
Plus: Net profits belonging m: XERBR
to the owners of the ARIFTEER
parent company this year F)E (7,112,351.42) (4,405,075.19) 0
Other transfer-in Hipsg A 32,962,661.48 0 0
Minus: Withdrawal of statutory 3 : 1REVAE BB NTE
surplus reserve 0 0 10%
Undistributed profit at the FERKRDBEFE
end of the year (104,064,618.90)  (129,914,928.96) 0
Note: On March 3, 2010, with the approval of Dalian Economic F: 201093 A3H -« £ K& AL B BT

REREEZESIE  ARNEA
AIRNEERZERAR R FBEBAED
EEXSH AR TEB5/KEE—
WHE2HMEEABLE - B £2010
#12A318 * RAIE K EKRES
WEERXETIE HEZBEEBEN
WA RS ARKEERERER
RRIRE - BB EmMETERE
TR R R EBE KR RS KRR
—BEETEENBN) (KT EHE
201113457 30 ) R E3k - A F AR %
FERRIE - FHE2010F I EA D EF
H32,962,661.487T °
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

VI. Notes to the financial statements
(continued)

N MBHmREREE(E)

11. Operating income and costs 11 EEIWA - EERAE

(1) Operating income and costs

(1) BEWA - B2

2010 2009 2008
ltems HE 2010 20094F 20084
Other operating income H M ZERFUA 552,500.00 220,000.00 0
Total operating income BEIWAEET 552,500.00 220,000.00 0
Note: Other operating income refers to the labor services revenue i HEMERKRAABRRAHAKNERSE

NEEEKERBR A RSB R
TSR E OS5I B

received from Dalian Deta Xiaoyaowan Sewage Treatment
Co., Ltd. in this period.

12 EEH S K0

12. Business tax and surcharge

2010 2009 2008
ltems BH 20105 20094 20084
Business tax R 27,625.00 0 0
Urban maintenance and Yl T R AR
construction tax 1,933.75 0 0
Education surcharge A B 828.75 0 0
Local education surcharge A B M 276.25 0 0
Total A&t 30,663.75 0 0
Note: For the detailed standards of business tax and surcharges, see i BRREERE RME R BIRER B
Note V. Taxes. Fo BiE
13. Sales cost 13 -HEEH
2010 2009 2008
ltems 1BH 2010 20094 20084F
Employee compensation B T 5B 7,290,044.13 8,122,911.66 9,041,320.35
Depreciation e 3,356,600.57  4,581,441.52  4,534,873.44
Sewage drugs costs PR 3,962,290.00 5,674,540.00  6,963,118.00
Utilities costs IKEE 5,274,756.39 5,459,584.89 5,308,481.74
Maintenance costs wEE 1,532,052.32  2,633,744.08  2,924,846.88
Sewage alkali charges HESS IR E 17,400.00 2,266,093.27 2,385,326.25
Commercial vehicle fuel fees BEBRE 1,053,106.63 1,109,154.82 958,422.69
Property land tax FE T HF 1,032,858.35 5,069,196.06 0
Inflow monitoring costs HEIKESH|IE A 0 351,427.60 596,438.02
Office expenses PNE 125,784.82 187,668.14 235,656.37
Others HA 561,733.79 838,382.78 569,376.76
Total EEr 24,206,627.00 36,294,144.82 33,517,860.50
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) (FRIEBH A + LLARKEHIR)

VI. Notes to the financial statements X BEHREBEETE(E)

(continued)
14. Management cost 14 - EEEH
2010 2009 2008
ltems BH 20105 20094 20084F
Wage T& 2,390,091.52 1,664,525.21 1,590,947.79
Social security R 1,389,420.73 947,820.41 956,080.36
Employee services and benefits BIENE 98,389.11 209,264.45 148,761.37
Office expenses LN 66,594.18 88,684.37 88,181.04
Car fuel consumption HRE 39,546.00 96,511.13 63,414.95
Heating costs EnpE & 102,930.67 143,391.84 84,318.60
Trade union funds TeKs 54,314.55 59,618.46 60,674.77
Road maintenance BEKE - - 17,332.00
Total (= 4,141,286.76 3,209,815.87 3,009,710.88
15. Financial costs 15 - & A
2010 2009 2008
ltems BH 20105 20094 20084F
Interest expense FEZH
Minus: Interest income o FEMA 2,506.05 3,507.10 6,228.88
Minus: Interest capitalization amount & : 8 &4k £%8 0 0 0
Exchange profits and losses = Ee 0 0 0
Minus: Capitalized amount of R B
exchange profits and ERbeHE
losses 0 0 0
Others Hih 320.00 0 0
Total =i (2,186.05) (83,507.10) (6,228.88)
16. Asset impairment 16 EERERX
2010 2009 2008
ltems BHH 20104 20094 20084
Bad debt losses FERIE L 100,000.00 0 0
Total a5l 100,000.00 0 0
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2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)
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based on the actual monthly volume of sewage treatment.

VI. Notes to the financial statements < BBHEREETE(E)
(continued)
17. Plus: Non-operating Income 17 EE IR
2010 2009 2008
20104 20094 2008F
Included in Included in Included in
the amount the amount the amount
of current of current of current
extraordinary extraordinary extraordinary
Amount profits and Amount profits and Amount profits and
incurred losses incurred losses incurred losses
FAEH FTAEH FSTAEH
RN El g FFEE
ltems HE REE  BRHEE BAEE  BRMeE HEE  BRNEE
Government grants ~ BiF#BI (R T
(see table below: BTREAER)
Detailed government
subsidy) 24,619,526.80 0 34,888,769.46 0 34,385,597.58 0
Total aar 24,619,526.80 0 34,888,769.46 0 34,385,597.58 0
Of which: Government subsidies details: Hrh - BUSHBIRAAE ¢
2011 2010 2009 Note
ltems 1ER 20114 20104 2009F  #EHA
Sewage treatment subsidies 57K EZIE AL 24,619,526.80 34,888,769.46  34,385,597.58 0
Total e 24,619,526.80 34,888,769.46 34,385,597.58 0
Note: Sewage treatment is a public service business, so the Company T SKEEBARMER  AHARINEA
can receive sewage treatment subsidies from the government BERSKEEER/RER  EXBUFAIEK

BRY2FHEL
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)

2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) (FRIEBH A + LLARKEHIR)

VI. Notes to the financial statements X BEHRREETIE(E)
(continued)
18. Non-operating expense 18 EE I H
2010 2009 2008
20104 20094 2008F
Included in Included in Included in
the amount the amount the amount
of current of current of current
extraordinary extraordinary extraordinary
Amount profits and Amount profits and Amount profits and
incurred losses incurred losses incurred losses
HON-L:] FTAEH FAEH
R R LR
ltems EH REE  BRNSE BAEE  Bane® HEE  BRNEE
Total losses from FRHEERE
disposal of BRA:t
non-current assets 3,807,986.76  3,807,986.76 13,391.06 13,391.06 23,000.00 23,000.00
Of which: Losses from  E : FIEEE
disposal of RERX
fixed assets 3,807,986.76  3,807,986.76 13,391.06 13,391.06 23,000.00 23,000.00
Others Hity 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total A 3,807,986.76  3,807,986.76 13,391.06 13,391.06 23,000.00 23,000.00
19. Notes to the items in cash flow statement 19 BEREREBEETE
(1) Cash received from other operating activities (1) WEIR M H4T &% ) F R 5 %
2010 2009 2008
ltems HE 20104 2009%F 20084
Current accounts R FRIE 0 30,000,000.00 0
Total aat 0 30,000,000.00 0
(2) Cash paid for other operating activities ©2) FSITEMAEE TEH B
2010 2009 2008
ltems ER 20104 20094 20084
Day-to-day management AEEREEE
and sales 2,581,826.47 466,000.96 2,487,345.73
Current accounts ERzIE 0 30,000,000.00 0
Total aer 2,581,826.47 30,466,000.96 2,487,345.73
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(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) (FRIEBH A + LLARKEHIR)

VI. Notes to the financial statements
(continued)

19. Notes to the items in cash flow statement (continued)

(3) Cash received from other investing activities

N MBHmREREE(E)

19 RERBEREB TR ()

3) WE/E M HER LR E B R H 2

2010 2009 2008
ltems BH 20104 20094 20084
Receipt of current accounts =R SN 68,480,000.00 0 0
Total = 68,480,000.00 0 0

(4) Cash paid for other investing activities

(4) XITHIRMEREEB) B H T

2010 2009 2008
Items 1EH 20104 20094F 20084
Payment of current accounts I B R 68,480,000.00 0 0
Total T 68,480,000.00 0 0

(5) Cash received from other financing activities

(6) KEEMHEELLEH R H T

2010 2009 2008
Items HH 20104 20094 20084
Receipt of interest on borrowings U AGE =R A

from Dalian Deta Holdings BIE A BT

Co., Ltd. 2R F B 2,250,600.00 0 0
Total & 2,250,600.00 0 0
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

VI. Notes to the financial statements
(continued)

N MBHmREREE(E)

20 - BERERBRER

20. Supplementary information on cash flow statement

(1) The information that net profit is transferred into (1) FEF B FED A & E By & i & B

operating cash flow 158
2010 2009 2008
Items BHE 20105 20094 20084

- BFNBREREE

.  Net profit is transferred

into operating cash flow EBRERE
Net profit BRI (7,112,351.42)  (4,405,07519)  (2,158,744.92)
Plus: Provision for asset m: BEREER
impairment 0 0 0
Depreciation of fixed assets, ETEENE
depletion of oil and gas HREENRE
assets, depreciation of EENEY
productive biological assets BERE 3,478,991.26  4,581,44152  4,534,873.44
Amortization of intangible assets A
0 0 0
Amortization of long-term REGFEE BEE
prepaid expenses 0 0 0
Losses due to disposal of BEBTEE £
fixed assets, intangible assets BEMEMRE
and other long BrEMBR (eI
term assets (“-” for gains) [— |5%3E%I) 3,807,986.76 13,391.06 23,000.00
Losses due to scrapped EE B ERERL
fixed assets (‘=" for gains) (g AT — I574E51) 0 0 0
Losses due to changes in NN EEEIEES
fair value (“=" for gains) (g AT — I574E51) 0 0 0
Financial expenses BB A (e A
(=" for gains) [ — I53E71) 0 0 0
Investment losses WEBK (WA
(=" for gains) [ — I53E71) 0 0 0
Decrease of deferred income tax ~ IEEFTERIEER L
assets (‘- for increase) (BEANPAT — ISR 0 0 0
Increase of deferred BEEFEHAR
income tax liabilities EICRD AT — 5%
(=" for decrease) 1H51)) 0 0 0
Decrease of inventories FERE A (BEANLA
(=" for increase) [— J5738%1) 0 0 0
Decrease of operating R FEUIA B R
receivables (=" for increase) (B ANLAT — I557E71)) (395,119.36) 3,339.00  1,181,929.28
Increase of operating receivables 444 FE{I8 B #93Z 4N
(“=" for decrease) CRABAT— 150E5)  (1,312,214.82) (412,450.25)  (1,553,669.61)
Others Hit 0 0 0
Net cash flows generated RETHEENES
from operating activities REFHE (1,532,707.58) (219,353.86) 2,027,388.19

BEMBRREERNDERAR - —T——FFH
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VI. Notes to the financial statements
(continued)

N MBHmREREE(E)

20. Supplementary information on cash flow statement 0 -RERERBHRER (E)

(continued)

(1) The information that net profit is transferred into

(1) RFEF BB L TR H 2 B

294

operating cash flow (continued) =B (&)
2010 2009 2008
Items EH 20105 20094F 20084
Il. Significantinvestmentand = FHFRELUZH
financing activities not BEAREM
involving cash receipts and E558
payments:
Debt transferred into capital EREAREN 0 0 0
Convertible bonds due within —F RN BB R a4
one year of the Company NR)EH 0 0 0
Financing included fixed assets BMEBABRTEE 0 0 0
lll. Changesincashandcash =-:BR&RELZEY
equivalents: FEBRER
Cash balance at the end B e MFRGE
of the year 747,391.39 2,245,098.97 2,730,090.97
Minus: Cash balance at the e EVIRE
beginning of the year 2,245,098.97 2,730,090.97 996,702.78
Plus: Balance of cash mn: REEENH
equivalents at the FREATE
end of the year 0 0 0
Minus: Balance of cash o REEBYN
equivalents at the FHIRAEE
beginning of the year 0 0 0
Net increase of cash and Re RREEED
cash equivalents SFEIE =R (1,497,707.58) (484,992.00) 1,733,388.19
(2) Composition of cash and cash equivalents ©) Bz RELZEYIEL
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Items EH 2010124318 20094 12A31H 2008412A31H
. Cash — B
Of which: Cash on hand Heh: B5rHe 2,043.16 1,313.60  2,730,090.97
Bank deposits readily BRI
available for payment BIIER 745,348.23  2,243,785.37 996,702.78
Other monetary funds readily A BERS B A S A5 Y
available for payment HEKES 0 0 0
Il. Cash equivalents — BEEEY
Of which: Bond investments
due within three Hen o =@ AREIHA
months EHEE 0 0 0
lil. Balance of cashandcash = &£XEERES
equivalents at the end ZEYHE
of the year 747,391.39 2,245,098.97 1,733,388.19
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

VIl. Related parties and related party transactions

1.

2.

Parent company of the Company

t BBRIRBEBHIS

1> RRFWNFLEER

Name of the Incidence Type of Registration Nature of
parent company relation enterprise place Legal person business
(SENCIE=E BRI ER 1R xER EEaiisi EARE EBME
Dalian Detai Holdings ~ Parent company Limited liability  North 4th floor, Wang Yingai State-owned
Co., Ltd. [S/NC] company Industrial Tuandi T investment
NERFERER AT BREEEALT  Management Center, company
No. 128, BHKRE QT
Liaohe West Road,
Dalian Economic and
Technological
Development Zone
AL B M7 3 =
0] P B 1 28557
TRE,
EEFR LI IOE
The parent
The parent company’s
company’s proportion
Registered  shareholding  of voting The Company’s
Name of the capital  rate of the rights of the ultimate Organization
parent company (RMB10 thousand) Company (%) Company (%) controlling party  code
[SYNEIES|
BATEEADLE KEEHN PN
BARER AMER(ERT) HERIEBI(%) RRELBHI(%) FKEFF HBRERE
Dalian Detai Holdings 370,000.00 95 95 Dalian Detai Holdings 75608204-2
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
RERRERAR AT RERRER
BRAT]

Other related parties of the Company

2 RAAFHEALEEB S ER

Names of related parties

Relationship with the Company

Organization code

HtBA% S 258 BRAR N B EEH HEBHBRE
Dalian Deta Xiaoyaowan Sewage A related company under the same control 69601280-X

Treatment Co., Ltd.
NBERNEESKEEERAT

Al — 4% i N REHE A 7]
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

VIl. Related parties and related party transactions

(continued)

3. Transactions with related parties

t BBRIREBRIS (&)

3 -BEAXRBER

(1) Related party transactions of selling goods/provision of

(1) HEEm TREEKEIHHT S

services
Amount of transactions Amount of transactions
this year last year
rEREH TEREE
Pricing principle
and decision- Proportion Proportion
Contents of  making process of similar of similar
related party of related party transaction transaction
Related parties transactions transactions Amount amount (%) Amount amount (%)
EEERS EEERS
HHXZEE kx| SN
2]y BHXZRE RAKARER k2] EE (%) k] EAl(%)
Dalian Deta Xiaoyaowan ~ Labor service  Market price 552,500.00 100.00  220,000.00 100.00
Sewage Treatment BERTS e
Co., Ltd.
RERFNEETKEIE
BRAT
(2) Related party guarantees 2) BB ERIER
Has the
Amount guarantee
(RMB10 Starting Due been
Guarantee provider = Guaranteed party thousand) date date fulfilled?
B’R
EReE BR BR =2RELK
BRA WIERT (Bx) ¥ A A BiT=2
Dalian Detai Holdings Dalian Economic 25,000.00 2010-8-18 2020-6-20 No
Co., Ltd. and Technological =

RNERFERERAA

Development Zone
Drainage Management
Co., Ltd.

REL BRI E R
HKEBBRAR

206  GUODIAN TECHNOLOGY & ENVIRONMENT GROUP CORPORATION LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2011



NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN 2008, 2009, AND 2010 (CONTINUED)
2008 + 2009 * 2010F Z I R M sk (48)

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified) ((RIEREHEA - AARESIR)

VIl. Related parties and related party transactions

(continued)

4. Receivables from or payables to related parties

(1) Receivables from or prepayments to related parties

t BBRIREBRIS (&)

4~ BB S EWENRE

(1) BB /N - FEITR

Amount at the end

Amount at the beginning

of the year of the year
FRE FRNE
Carrying Provision for Carrying Provision for
balance bad debts balance bad debts
Item names HEEH AREEREE RERER AREEREE RERER
Other receivables: H A UK
Receivable of project FEM RS R R
construction fees from ARAA]
Dalian Deta Holdings THERER
Co., Ltd. 78,219,945.96 0 0 0
Total EET 78,219,945.96 0 0 0
VIIl.Contingencies N-HEEHE

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had no significant
contingencies that shall be disclosed.

IX. Commitments

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had no significant
commitments that shall be disclosed.

HZE2010%F12A31H » AR REZERERN

EAHEEAE -
N~ EEEE

HZE2010%F12A31H » AR REZERERN

BERAGHEIHE -

BB BREMRAARAT - —F 558
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X.

XI.

298

The events after the date of balance sheet

On May 10, 2010, Dalian Hengping Joint Accounting Firm
conducted a special audit of the balance sheet as of March
31, 2010 of the Company’s No. 2 Sewage Treatment
Plant. Identified by the audit, the total carrying amount
of assets of the Plant is RMB17,390,134.34, the total
Liabilities are RMB801,825.78, and the total net assets are
RMB16,588,308.56. On May 26, 2010, Liaoning Xinhua Assets
Appraisal Co., Ltd. issued the assets evaluation report of the
Enterprise Restructuring Project of No. 2 Sewage Treatment
Plant of Dalian Economic and Technological Development Zone
Drainage Management Co., Ltd. (Liao Xin Ping Zi [2010] No.
089), which took March 31, 2010 as the evaluation date and
identified that the net carrying value of assets of the Drainage
Management Co., Ltd. (No.2 Plant) was RMB17,390,134.34
with the assessment value of RMB64,203,969.29; the
carrying value of net assets was RMB16,588,308.56 with the
assessment value of RMB63,402,143.51. The period of validity
of the assessment report was one year. On August 11, 2011,
the parent company of Dalian Deta Holdings Co., Ltd., through
Dalian Municipal Assets and Equity Exchange., signed a share
transfer contract with Beijing Lucency Enviro-Tech Co., Ltd.,
transferring 50% equity of the Company that it held to Beijing
Lucency. The transfer price was RMB26,721,317.23 and the
amount was actually paid by Beijing Lucency Enviro-Tech Co.,
Ltd. to Dalian Property Rights Exchange on April 20, 2011.

On November 2, 2011, according to the resolution made by
the Company’s new shareholder conference after the share
transfer, as well as the provision of revised articles of association,
the Company’s registered capital, with the increase of
RMB48.442 million, became RMB53.442 million; the means of
contributing investment is investment of net assets; the parties
hold the same proportions after the increase of capital. The part
of RMB634.45 that net assets assessment outnumbers the
registered capital was transferred into the capital reserve. As of
the release of audit report, the Company had not changed the
business registration regarding the increase of capital.

Instructions of other important issues

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had no other
important matters that need to be disclosed.

T BEEERAREE

-

20105 A10H » KiBEHFHMA A=
BT AR5 KEE —BE E£2010F3 A
SIAMEEBBRETTHEEHESN - £F
FTRE  ZRRE B EAF17,390,134.34
JTc B{EA5H801,825.787L ' SFEE A&
16,588,308.56 7T ° 20104F5 26 H + & %8
MELETHERARHACKEMEEEE
KEBRBRARSKEE ZMADENRHE
BYMEETEREE (EFHTF[2010]089
8% ) > LA2010F3 A31H AL - R
EHRKEEBRAER AR (Z8) EERMEFE
17,390,134.34 7T+ &1 1& {E {8 64,203,969.29
T R A ERMEEE6,588,308.567T ¢ AEh
B{B63,402,143.517L ° AR E B HE A1
F o 2011F8A11H » AR AR KNEESE
TRBERARIBANEEER ST - #HitR
BAFTRAIR R B AR A RIS EEE S
£) - BEAGH RN E)50% M 4E 8 E 4GB
B o ER:E(EK26,721,317.237C © 2 E AL
FEAFTRARR B AR AR ER20119F4 B
0HEB I MG KEEER ST °

2011411 A28 » RIFREEZEZ R RIFH
RS ER AR - UREHRENATIER
ME - AR EAR4844 28T - B

BRARINGFEMERAEARMES34428 7T
HEFAAFEERE @ BEBETHERL

BIRE - FEFEEBBIMELRNIT D
634.457C * EAENQE - HEETRER

A ARM R REEFRE T I
BER -

HttEESRHH

HZE2010F12H31H » AARIEFTEHER
HhE EHIEHA -
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XlIl. Supplementary information

1. Detailed extraordinary profits and losses

o wEES

1 FEEHRFEHAR

ltems

HE

2011 2010

2009

2011EE 20105 20095 F

Non-current asset disposal profits and losses

Tax rebates, exemptions under ultra vires approval
or without formal approval documents

Included in the government grants of current profits
or losses (excluding the government subsidies
that are closely related to the business and the
fixed or quantitative subsidies that are granted
accordance with the national uniform standard)

The fund occupation fees charged to non-financial
enterprises that are included in current profits or
losses

Where the investment cost of the Company
for acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures is less than the investment
shall enjoy the revenue generated by the
fair value of identifiable net assets of the
invested entity

Non-monetary assets exchange profits and losses

The profits or losses for commissioning others to
invest or managing assets

Provision for the impairment of assets due to force
majeure, such as natural disasters

The profits or losses due to debt reorganization
Corporate restructuring costs, such as employee
placement expenses, integration costs, etc.

The profits or losses of the part that exceeds the
fair value generated by the transactions that are
obviously unfair

The current net profits or losses from the beginning
to the merger date of the subsidiary formed from
enterprises under the same control

The profits or losses having nothing to do
with normal business activities or arising
from matters

In addition to effective hedging business
related to the Company’s normal
business, the profits or losses arising from
changes in fair values of trading financial
assets, trading financial liabilities, and
the investment income from disposal of
trading financial assets, trading financial
liabilities, and financial assets available for
sales

FRPUEERE R
BEEY - REEABE
XIFRBMORE - Bi%
ATAE HREMBT
B8 - (BEREH
TR - WRER
FRETHRATE
FR OB
AIARHRGNEIEER
EREBHESERE

BEBETFRAF
Babxkag
EMRBKR
NRBGER AR
EEARRA BN
RRFEBEAR
{BEELH R

FERMEEERREALS

REMARER
ERBENRS

AR AEE - 0
BXARNE MR
MERBEREER

EBERRR

CEEEER W
ZEBIMOZL
ERERE

RAERBRAAKN
RPELNER
RAEER MBS

R—ZH T EEAH
ELNF R A
ERHANERFES

BB EREEER
BENHEER
ELHBER

RREDQRIEEEEES
RN ERERRE
B HARSM
THEE RHM
SHABELN
RAEEZEES -
NERRER SR
BE  RFMHEH
BEMATHRLESH
BERGHRE RS

(3,807,986.76) (13,391.06) (23,000.00)

0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0

BB BREERAARAT - —F——F5H

0
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T2 HRERNGRE)

Xll. Supplementary information (continued)

1. Detailed extraordinary profits and losses (continued)

1 FEEHRBEAARE)

2011 2010 2009
Items BH 20115E 20105 & 2009F F
Provision for reversal of receivables under BB TRIER
separate impairment test FEW IR R B2 EE [ 0 0 0
The profits or losses from commissioned HINEEEZEGNER
loans 0 0 0
The profits or losses arising from changes ~ HFAAABEER
in fair values of investment property BTREEN
where subsequent measurement is REUEENR
made in the fair value method EBEZIELMNER
0 0 0
The impact on the current profit and loss RERUW  S:t5EE
caused by its one-time adjustment }BEE’JEK%TMHH
according to the requirements of laws BEET R RE
and regulations on tax, accounting HEmEs E’Jﬁu 2
and others 0 0 0
The income from hosting fees in entrusted x?%«* HEH
operations EBYA 0 0 0
Other operating income and expenses %&J:LRIEZ?I\E'J
other than those mentioned above Hofth & S INIANZ 0 0 0
Other profit and loss items in line with the  H&F& IEE BB
definition of extraordinary profits and TEMERER
losses 0 0 0
Subtotal et (3,807,086.76)  (13,391.06)  (23,000.00)
The amount affected by income tax PriSHis 25
The affected amount of equity of minority D8R Bz 285
shareholders (after tax) (Bifg) 0 0 0
Total at (3,807,986.76)  (13391.06)  (23,000.00)

Note: In the extraordinary items,

“()” represents loss or expense.

For the recognition of extraordinary profit and loss items, the
Company performs in accordance with the provisions of the
Explanatory Announcement No.1 on Information Disclosure
for Companies Offering Their Securities to the Public —
Extraordinary Profits and Losses (CSRC Announcement

[2008] No.43).

i SEEEMBRBETNEF () IRREX
s o

ARRBH LT E1E 250 B R RER KR
(PRBTESNAREERERELER
FEIR-FEFUERS)(BEERE

[2008]435% ) KRR EHATT ©
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